
AGENDA – Board of Commissioners 
Thursday, September 21, 2023      6:30 P.M. 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 4 | 

I. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

II. Roll Call

III. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes per person)

IV. Oath of Office

Ms. Karyn M. Romano – County Representative – District 4

V. Approval of Minutes

(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commissioners Present, provided there is a quorum—minimum 4)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To approve the Minutes of the August 17, 2023 Regular Meeting of the 
DuPage Water Commission, (Voice Vote)  

VI. Treasurer’s Report
(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commissioners present, provided there is a quorum—minimum 4)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To accept the August 2023 Treasurer's Report (Voice Vote). 

VII. Committee Reports

A. Finance Committee

1. Report of 9/21/23 Finance Committee

2. Resolution No. R-50-23:  A Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Task Order
#3 for a Source Water Project Financial Validation and Strategy Report, to Raftelis,
Inc., at a cost of $28,500.00.

(Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed 
Commissioners and 40% of the Municipal Appointed Commissioners—3 County + 3 Muni+1=7) 

3. Actions on other items listed on the 9/21/23 Finance Committee Agenda.

1 of 264



  

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 2 of 4 | 
 

B. Administration Committee 
 

1. Report of 9/21/23 Administration Committee 
 

2. Request for Board Action:  Approval of Professional Development travel and 
expenses as listed in the approved FY 23/24 Management Budget.   
 
(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commissioners Present, provided there is a quorum—minimum 4) 
 

3. Request for Board Action:  To approve the 2024 Schedule of Board Meetings  
 

(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commissioners Present, provided there is a quorum—minimum 4) 
 

4. Resolution No. R-48-23:  A Resolution to approve the Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between the DuPage Water Commission and the International Union of 
Operating Engineers Local 399 (AFL-CIO) 
 
(Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed Commissioners and 40% 
of the Municipal Appointed Commissioners—3 County + 3 Muni+1=7) 
 

5. Resolution No. R-49-23: A Resolution Authorizing staff to hold Joint Meetings to 
discuss the DWC/Customer Contract and the DWC/Chicago contract, pursuant to 
Section 16 of the current DWC/Customer contract. 

 

(Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed Commissioners and 40% 
of the Municipal Appointed Commissioners—3 County + 3 Muni+1=7) 

 
6. Resolution No. R-51-23 A Resolution Suspending Purchasing Procedures and 

Approving the Renewal of the Unitrends Services and the Purchase and Installation 
of a new Unitrends Appliance, at a cost of $83,137.17. 

 
(TO SUSPEND PURCHASING PROCEDURES: 2/3 Majority of those Commissioners Present, provided there is a quorum-minimum 5) 
 

(Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed Commissioners and 40% 
of the Municipal Appointed Commissioners—3 County + 3 Muni+1=7) 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  To adopt item numbers 2 through 6 under the Administration Committee 
Report section of the agenda in a single group pursuant to the Omnibus Vote procedures.  (Roll Call) 

 
7. Actions on Other Items Listed on 9/21/23 Administration Committee Agenda 

 
C. Engineering & Construction Committee 

 
1. Report of 9/21/23 Engineering & Construction Committee 

 
2. Resolution No. R-46-23:  A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Task Order 8 Under a 

Master Contract with DeLasCasas CP, LLC., at a not to exceed cost of $59,000.00. 
 
(Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed Commissioners and 40% of 
the Municipal Appointed Commissioners—3 County + 3 Muni+1=7) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                            2 of 264



  

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 3 of 4 | 
 

3. Resolution No. R-47-23:  A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Task Order 9 Under a 
Master Contract with DeLasCasas CP, LLC., at a not to exceed cost of $43,000.00.  
 
(Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed Commissioners and 40% 
of the Municipal Appointed Commissioners—3 County + 3 Muni+1=7) 

 
4. Resolution No. R-52-23:  A Resolution Approving exterior standpipe cleaning 

services, with Jetco, Ltd., at a not to exceed cost of $26,350.00.   
 
(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commissioners Present, provided there is a quorum—minimum 4) 

5. Resolution No. R-53-23: A Resolution Approving a Fifth Amendment to Task Order 
No. 03 under a Master Contract with Greeley and Hansen, additional cost not-to-
exceed $65,000.00.  
 
(Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed Commissioners and 40% 
of the Municipal Appointed Commissioners—3 County + 3 Muni+1=7) 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  To adopt item numbers 2 through 5 under the Engineering & 
Construction Report section of the agenda in a single group pursuant to the Omnibus Vote 
procedures.  (Roll Call) 
 

6. Actions on Other Items Listed on 9/21/23 Engineering & Construction Committee 
Agenda 

VIII. Accounts Payable 

A.  August 2023 

1. Approval of Accounts Payable invoices received 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To approve the Accounts Payable in the amount of $12,696,559.68 
(August 2023), subject to submission of all contractually required documentation, for invoices that 
have been received (Roll Call). (Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 
1/3 of the County Appointed Commissioners and 40% of the Municipal Appointed Commissioners—3 County + 3 Muni+1=7) 
 

2. Approval of Accounts Payable estimated invoices 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To approve the Accounts Payable in the amount of $4,641,175.00 (August 
2023), subject to submission of all contractually required documentation, for invoices that have not 
yet been received but have been estimated (Roll Call). (Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, 
containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed Commissioners and 40% of the Municipal Appointed 
Commissioners—3 County + 3 Muni+1=7) 

 
IX. Chairman’s Report 

 
X. Old Business 

 

A. Customer contract update/Customer meeting 
B. Chicago contract update 
C. Source Water Project update / North Route Report  
D. Bylaw update  

 

 
                                                            3 of 264



  

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 4 of 4 | 
 

XI. New Business 

XII. Executive Session   
(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commissioners Present, provided there is a quorum—minimum 4) 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To go into Executive Session to discuss security procedures pursuant to 5 ILCS 
120/2(c)(8), to discuss matters related to personnel pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) and (2), to discuss 
acquisition of real estate pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(5), to discuss the setting of a price for sale or lease of 
property owned by the DuPage Water Commission 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(6), to discuss pending, probable, or 
imminent litigation pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(11), and/or to discuss minutes of closed meetings 
pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(21) (Roll Call). 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To come out of Executive Session (Voice Vote). 

XIII. Adjournment  
(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commissioners Present, provided there is a quorum—minimum 4) 

 
                                                            4 of 264



Minutes of a Meeting 
of the 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
DuPage Water Commission 

600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, Illinois 

August 17, 2023 
 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 6 | 

 

I. The meeting was called to order by Chairman Zay at 6:30 PM 
 

II. Roll Call  
 
Commissioners in attendance:  D. Bouckaert, N. Cuzzone, J. Healy, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, K. Rush, F. 
Saverino, D. Van Vooren, J. Zay.  
 
Commissioners absent:  J. Fennell, D. Russo, P. Suess 
 
Also in attendance:  P. May, C. Bostick, C. Peterson, M. Weed, D. Cuvalo, D. Mundall 
 

III. Public Comments  
 
No public comment was offered.  
 

IV. Approval of Minutes 
 
Commissioner Healy moved to approve the minutes of the June 15, 2023 Regular Meeting of the 
DuPage Water Commission, seconded by Commissioner Pruyn, unanimously approved by a voice 
vote. All Aye, motion carried.  
 
 

V. Treasurer’s Report 
 
Treasurer Fates presented the June and July 2023 Treasurer’s Reports consisting of 13 
pages each with pages 1 and 2 containing a brief summary of the report. 
 
July  2023 
Treasurer Fates noted $225.6 million of cash and investments on page 4, a decrease of 
$2.2M from the previous month.  Treasurer Fates also pointed out the schedule of 
investments on pages 5 through 11 totaling $195.7 million and the market yield on the 
total portfolio showed 2.76% which is up slightly from the prior month. On page 12, the 
statement of cash flows showed a decrease in cash and investments by about $2.2 million 
and operating activities decreased by approximately $2.4 million.  Also noted on page 13, 
the monthly cash/operating report showed that the Commission has met all 
recommended reserve balances.  
 

 
                                                            5 of 264

mundall
Draft



| 2 of 6 | 

 

Commissioner Pruyn moved to accept the June and July 2023 Treasurer's Reports, 
seconded by Commissioner Rush, unanimously approved by a voice vote. All aye, motion 
carried.   
 

VI. Committee Reports 
 

A. Finance Committee  
 
Commissioner Pruyn provided an update of the Finance Committee meeting; although 
there was no quorum for the committee, those present at the Finance Committee did 
review and now bring forward the FYE 2023 Annual Audit Report.  He then asked Sikich 
LLC representative Jim Savio to present the 2023 Annual Audit Report. Mr. Savio began 
by thanking General Manager May, Financial Administrator Peterson and staff for their 
participation and cooperation throughout the process. He then provided a favorable 
summary of the report pointing out that the Commission had no audit adjustments, no 
past adjustments, no material weaknesses, no significant deficiencies, no deficiencies, 
and that Sikich therefore provides a favorable unmodified opinion to the Commission, 
which is the highest opinion they are permitted to provide. 
 
After Mr. Savio concluded his report, Chairman Zay expressed his appreciation to General 
Manager May and Financial Administrator Peterson for a job well done.  
 
Commissioner Pruyn moved to accept the draft audit report for the fiscal year ending 
April 30, 2023, to direct the auditors to print the final report, and to direct staff to 
distribute the FY2023 audit report to the Commission’s customers and other interested 
parties, seconded by Commissioner Van Vooren, unanimously approved by a Roll Call 
Vote.   

 
Ayes:   D. Bouckaert, N. Cuzzone, J. Healy, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, K. Rush, F. Saverino, D. 

Van Vooren, J. Zay 
 
Nay:   None 
 
Absent:  J. Fennell, D. Russo, P. Suess 
 
B.    Administration Committee 
  
Commissioner Healy gave a brief update on the Administration Committee meeting.   
 
Item 1:  Resolution No. R-32-23: A Resolution to review Executive  Session Minutes  
 

Commissioner Healy moved to accept Resolution R-32-23, seconded by 
Commissioner Pruyn, unanimously approved by a Roll Call Vote. 

 

 
                                                            6 of 264



| 3 of 6 | 

 

Ayes:  D. Bouckaert, N. Cuzzone, J. Healy, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, K. Rush, F. 
Saverino, D. Van Vooren, J. Zay 

 
Nay:   None 

 
Absent:  J. Fennell, D. Russo, P. Suess 

 
Item 2: Resolution No. R-33-23: A Resolution Approving and Authorizing the Execution of a 

Memorandum of Understanding for Geographic Information System Data Sharing with 
Kane County, Illinois. 

   
 Item 3:  Resolution No. R-36-23:  A Resolution Authorizing and Ratifying the Disposal of Certain 

Personal Property Owned by the DuPage Water Commission. 
  

Item 4:  Resolution No. R-37-23:  A Resolution to approve the Amended Intergovernmental 
Escrow Agreement with WaterLink Communities of Montgomery, Oswego and 
Yorkville.  

 
Item 5:   Resolution No. R-42-23:  A Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the DuPage Water 

Commission to negotiate a Source Water Contract extension with the City of Chicago. 
  
Item 6:    Resolution No R-43-23:  A Resolution Ratifying Purchase Order No. 40278 to 

Willowbrook Ford for the purchase of a 2023 utility vehicle, at a cost of  $81,500.00.  
 
Commissioner Healy moved to adopt item numbers 2 through 6  under the Administration Report 
section of the agenda in a single group pursuant to the Omnibus Vote Procedures. Seconded by 
Commissioner Cuzzone  and unanimously approved by a Roll Call Vote. 
 
Ayes:   D. Bouckaert, N. Cuzzone, J. Healy, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, K. Rush, F. Saverino, D. 

Van Vooren, J. Zay 
 
Nay:   None 
 
Absent:  J. Fennell, D. Russo, P. Suess 
 
C.              Engineering & Construction Committee 
 
Commissioner Saverino gave a brief update on the Engineering Committee meeting, noting that 
the Committee had received a report on the Lexington Pump Station condition assessment, and 
noted that significant investment in repairs and maintenance are necessary.   
 
Item 1:  Resolution No. R-34-23:  A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Certain Change Orders for 

the Influent, Effluent, and 72” Meter Buildings Coatings Rehabilitation Contract 
(Contract PSD-11/22), to G.P. Maintenance Services, Inc., net contract price reduction of 
$23,800.00.  

 

Item 2:   Resolution No. R-35-23:  A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Certain Change Orders for 
a Contract for the Construction of DPPS Emergency Generation System Modifications 

 
                                                            7 of 264



| 4 of 6 | 

 

(PSD-10/22), to J. J. Henderson & Son, Inc., contract decrease of $137,018.75.    
 

Item 3:   Resolution No. R-38-23:  A Resolution to authorize Task Order #2 under a Master Services 
Agreement with LAN Engineering for Phase I engineering of a water transmission main 
to the communities of Montgomery, Oswego, and Yorkville, at a cost of $4.27 M.   

 
Item 4:   Resolution R-39-23: A Resolution authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with 

NSMJAWA, and the Northwest Water Commission to participate in an engineering 
validation study at a not to exceed cost of $75,000.00. 

 
Item 5:   Resolution No. R-40-23 A Resolution authorizing an engineering contract with Burns and 

McDonnell, to validate the source water alternative study, at an estimated cost of 
$75,000. 

 
Item 6:   Resolution No. R-41-23: A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Certain Change Orders to 

a Contract for the SCADA Replacement Project (Contract PSD-9/21) to Baxter & 
Woodman/Boller Construction, at a net contract decrease of $233,718.76 

   
Item 7:   Resolution No. R-44-23:  A Resolution Requesting Suspension of Purchasing Procedures 

and Authorizing the General Manager to Procure Installation Services for Two (2) Custom 
Fabric Storage Structures from a Sole Source Service Provider, Casey General LLC, at a 
not to exceed amount of $31,000.00. 
 

Item 8:   Resolution No. R-45-23: A Resolution Approving and Ratifying a First Amendment to Task 
Order No. 14 Under a Master Task Order Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, 
Inc., at an estimated additional cost of $20,000.00. 

 
Commissioner Saverino moved to approve Items 1 through 8 under the Engineering & 
Construction Committee Report section of the agenda in a single group pursuant to the Omnibus 
Vote Procedures.  Seconded by Commissioner Bouckaert, unanimously approved by a roll call 
vote.   

 
Ayes:   D. Bouckaert, N. Cuzzone, J. Healy, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, K. Rush, F. Saverino, D. 

Van Vooren, J. Zay 
 
Nay:   None 
 
Absent:  J. Fennell, D. Russo, P. Suess 

 
 

VII. Accounts Payable 
 

A. June and July 2023  
 
Item 1:  To approve the Accounts Payable in the amount of $13,926,256.17 (June 2023), 

disbursements made with the concurrence of the Commission’s Chairman and 
$12,604,474,26 (July 2023) subject to submission of all contractually required 
documentation for invoices that have been received.  

 
                                                            8 of 264



| 5 of 6 | 

 

 
Chairman Zay asked for a motion to combine and approve the accounts payable 
disbursements and the estimated accounts payable for June & July 2023, Commissioner 
Healy  moved, seconded by Commissioner Saverino and unanimously approved by a roll 
call vote. 
 
Ayes:   D. Bouckaert, N. Cuzzone, J. Healy, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, K. Rush, F. Saverino, D. 

Van Vooren, J. Zay 
 
Nay:   None 
 
Absent:  J. Fennell, D. Russo, P. Suess 
 
Item 2:  To approve the Accounts Payable in the amount of $2,864,475.00 (June 2023), 

disbursements made with the concurrence of the Commission’s Chairman and 
$3,713,575.00 (July 2023) subject to submission of all contractually required 
documentation, for invoices that have not yet been received but have been estimated.   

 
Chairman Zay asked for a motion to combine and approve the accounts payable 
disbursements and the estimated accounts payable for June & July 2023, Commissioner 
Van Vooren moved, seconded by Commissioner Cuzzone and unanimously approved by a 
roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:   D. Bouckaert, N. Cuzzone, J. Healy, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, K. Rush, F. Saverino, D. 

Van Vooren, J. Zay 
 
Nay:   None 
 
Absent:  J. Fennell, D. Russo, P. Suess 
 
 

VIII. Chairman’s Report  
 

Chairman Zay informed the Commissioners that a new County appointed Commissioner for District 
4, Ms. Karyn Romano, will be sworn in at the September meeting.   
 
Chairman Zay thanked staff for their efforts maintaining the facility and operations successfully 
with so many projects running concurrently.  The Chairman went on to brief the Commissioners 
on the most recent meeting with the City of Chicago, noting that negotiations are not progressing 
satisfactorily; there has been no response from Chicago regarding the term sheet since mid-June.  
The City has not offered any new information nor have they sent a draft copy of the contract.  
Additionally, the inspection of Lexington indicates significant maintenance and replacement 
activities are necessary; for example during the inspection the generators at Lexington are were 
not operational.   
 
General Manager May began by informing the Commissioners that in June more than 3 billions 
gallons of water were pumped.  This is all being done while the Commission is facing staff 

 
                                                            9 of 264



| 6 of 6 | 

 

shortages, currently have 6 open positions.  Operations staff is doing an outstanding job of 
maintaining the plant and critical operataion during the staffing shortage.   
 
Mr. May noted the efforts of Financial Administrator Peterson for a great job and a clean audit, 
and Water Operations Manager Bostick for the Lexington Condition assessment program.   
 
Commissioner Van Vooren asked about the status of the compensation report.  General Manager 
May explained that the loss of personnel is due to our staff being very well trained on machinery 
and infrastructure and being well-qualified for many difficult-to-fill positions in the region.  
Adjustments may be warranted and will be brought before this board for consideration.   
 
The Customer Steering Group has met and is ready to bring forward the Charter Customer Contract 
and prepare for a Joint Meeting, likely in late September.  It is the objective that municipal boards 
will execute the contract in October and November and that signed contacts can be presented to 
the DWC Board in November, December - or January at the latest. 
 
The Chicago Contract, of which time is of the essence, also requires a Joint Meeting, projected for 
November.   The current contract may be extended, no less than 10 years, no more than 40 years.   
 
General Manager May updated the commissioners concerning the Source Water Project.  The 
North Route provides opportunities for additional partners, Northwest Water Commission and 
NSMJAWA.  Both parties are interested in the concept and have presented the concept to their 
respective Boards.  Carollo is currently updating the model with a deeper look at the North Route 
with partners.  Burns and McDonnell will perform the Engineering Validation Study, which will be 
funded three ways by all three partners.   
 
The Source Water Project and negotiations with the City of Chicago are proceeding concurrently.    
 
The Montgomery, Oswego and Yorkville project is progressing rapidly and on-schedule, with the 
intention of providing water delivery by the end of 2027.   

 
IX. Old Business 

 
No Old Business was offered.  
 

X. New Business 
 
No new business was offered.   
 

XI. Adjournment  
 

Commissioner Healy made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Pruyn, 
unanimously approved by a voice vote.  All aye, motion carried.    
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:32 PM.  

 
                                                            10 of 264



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 1 | 

 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Paul D. May, P.E., General Manager  

Date: 9/8/2023 

Subject: Welcome To Commissioner Karyn Romano, County Representative for District 4 

 

At the September 21, 2023 DWC Board Meeting, Commissioner Karyn Romano will be seated as the 
successor to Commissioner Gans as the County Representative for District 4.  Ms. Romano was selected by 
DuPage County Board Chair Conroy, with the advice and concurrence of the full Dupage County Board.  Ms. 
Romano will serve the remainder of the current term as the District 4 representative, ending January 1, 
2027.   

Ms. Romano is a resident of Glen Ellyn, has formerly served as a DuPage County Board member, and has 
significant relevant work experience with the Metropolitan Planning Council (MPC), the Illinois State 
Comptroller, the North Central Council of Mayors, and the West Central Municipal Conference.  
Additionally, Ms. Romano was the owner and president of Metro Strategies, a municipal public affairs and 
consulting firm. 

Please join me in welcoming Commissioner Romano to the board – I have attached a bio for your 
information. 

 
                                                            11 of 264



County Board Appointment 421 N. COUNTY FARM
ROAD

WHEATON, IL 60187
www.dupagecounty.gov

File #: CB-R-0083-23 Agenda Date:7/1812023 Agenda #: 8.A

APPOINTMENT OF KARYN ROMANO
TO THE DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION (DISTRICT 4)

WHEREAS, Deborah A. Conroy has submitted to the County Board her appointment of Karyn Romano
as a Commissioner of the DuPage Water Commission; and

WHEREAS, such appointment requires the advice and consent of the County Board under 70 ILCS
372012

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the DuPage County Board that the County Board does
advise and consent to the appointment of Karyn Romano as a Commissioner of the DuPage Water Comrnission
for a term expiring January lst,2027; and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED that the "Notice of Appointment" be attached hereunto and made a part
hereof; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk transmit certified copies of this resolution to
Karyn Romano; Paul May, DuPage Water Commission, 600 E. Butterfield Rd., Elmhurst, IL 60126; Phil
Luetkehans, Schirott, Luetkehans and Gardner, 105 E. Irving Park Road, ltasca, lL 60143.

Enacted and approved this l8th of July, 2023 at Wheaton, Illinois.

DEBORAH A. CONROY, CHAIR
DU PAGE COUNTY BOARD

Attest:

Page 1 of 1

J KACZMA , COUNTY CLERK

AYES 18
NAYS O

ABSENT O
 

                                                            12 of 264



NOTICE OF APPOINTMENT

By virtue of the power vested in me under 70 ILCS 372012,as amended, I, Deborah A.

Conroy, as presiding officer of the DuPage County Board, do hereby appoint Karyn Romano to

be a Commissioner of the DuPage Water Commission for a term ending January |tt,2027.

I hereby submit his appointment to the County Board for its advice and consent this l8th

day ofJuly,2023.

Conroy, Chair
DuPage County Board

 
                                                            13 of 264



Novembet 15, 20'14

"n-ie Honorable Dan Cronin
Chairman
DuPagc County
421 N. Couuty Farm Road
Wheflton,IL60187

Dcar Chairman Cronin:

I ain writing to express my interest in the Disteict 4 County Board vacancy aud to submit my
credcntials for consideratioa.

I. have lived in DuPage Coimty since thc day I martied my husbandjohn in 1991. We are members

of St PetrotuUe. Parish and our nine-year old daughtet, Grace, atends St. James the Apostle school.

We chose DuPage County for the quality of life offeted aad thc flscal i:esponsibility demonstrated by

the C^ounty Board and the comtnunities within DnPage.

Fot those same reasons I chose to build my business, Mctto Stcategies, Inc., faom downtown Glen

EUyn. In 2004, aftei: 16 years
-working for and with multiple units of government, I started a

successful planning, policy aad publie affairs fiun providing consulting sei-vices to pubiic, private
and not-for-profit. clients. My experience ranges fi:om policy development, project management and

plaiiniag to public affairs, cHmmuniciitions, and advocacy. I have experuse in community and

econoinlc dcvelopmcnt, tfansportadon, aad funding.

I was sa,c1dcned to learn of ]R McBride's passiag. He \vas a strong suppo.rter of ttansit and

transportiidoa iilidadves and reptcsented thc coiistituents of the 4"' Distidct \vell. The County has
lost a good friend iind public servant. While JR cannot be replaced, I belicve I havc both thc
committnent to the peopie ofDuPage County and the right mix ofskills to contitiue his work with
his samc lcvel of dedication and focus on good governmcnt aad fiscal responsibUity. I have bccn
blessed to live ia D\iPage County and am. committed to domg my part: to kecp the County a great
phce to live, raise a family and work,

ITiank you for considering me for the 4 Distriet vacancy. I look forward to represenung the

communides and tcsj.dcnts of the 4 D.istrict and ensurlng their voiccs are represented at tlie County
level.

Sinccfely,

 
                                                            14 of 264



KARYNM.ROMANO

A policy, planning and public affairs professional bringing 26 years ofpublic, private and not-for-profit
experience in community development, transportation and funding.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Metro Strategies, Inc.
GIen Ellyn, Illinois
November 2004 to Present
As owner andpresident ofMetro Strategies, I
understand the issuesfacing county businesses and
can call on strong community resources to work
with the County Board Chair and myfellow board
members in developing and delivering policies that
support business growth and economic develop-
ment in the County.

Owner/President. Direct a public affairs consulting firm that specializes
in community and government relations, project management, plan-
ning, research and policy development, coalition building and public
involvement. Work with communities to identify and assist with project
funding alternatives. Communicate and coordinate with public agency
staffand elected officials on behalfofclients. Plan and facilitate public
involvement for special projects. Conduct research on various topics
and work with clients to formulate policy recommendations. Coordi-
nate multi-jurisdictional projects and act as project manager. Extensive
experience with public, private and not-for-profit sectors, as well as with
all levels of government; local, state, and federal.

MetropoUtan Planning Council (MPC)
November 2001 to November 2004
Chicago> Illinois
I have worked with all modes of transportation:
freight, roadway, pedestrian, bicycle and tran-
sit. Afy regional connections and knowledge of
transportation issues will help support and shape
transportation initiatives for DuPage County.

Transportation Director. Developed and managed a transportation
work plan with measurable outcomes for both MPC and Business
Leaders for Transportation (a coalition ofregional business organiza-
Uons co-led by MPC, Chicagoland Chamber of Commerce and Chicago
Metropolis 2020.) Priorities included freight strategies, major project
evaluation, state and federal transportation funding, regional planning
and governance, and land use and transportation coordination, Ini-
tiated and coordinated policy analysis, outreach and advocacy tactics.
Acted as spokesperson for media, at public forums and with government
bodies for MPC and Business Leaders. Shaped funding proposals, ex-

panded the program funding base and provided budget oversight.

Christopher B. Burke Englneering, Ltd.
February 1999 to November 2001
Rosemont, Illinois
I worked closely with DuPage Mayors e^ Managers
and various communities within DuPage County
and gained valuable understanding ofthe vari-
ous funding programs that will allow me to make
knowledgeable input into the County infrastruc-
ture programs.

PublicAgencyLiaison. Responsible for planning and conducting public
relations program designed to create and maintain a positive public
image for the firm and its clients. Worked with municipal clients in
identifying and obtaining project funding from various funding sources.
Partnered with municipalities, legislators, and state agencies to ob-
tain over $5 million in funding for projects, Acted as liaison between
clients and county, state and federal agencies. Nurtured and developed
relationships with clients and business partners as well as with elected
ofRcials from all levels ofgovernment.

IHinois State Comptroller
November 1996 to February 1999
Chicago, Illinois
Workingwith the State Comptroller's Officegave
me insight into the vast number oflocal govern-
ments the State has. I workedfor the Illinois State
Comptroller's Office under Loleta Didrickson
and staffed the local government committee. The
Comptroller's Office collects annual financial
reportsfrom all the local governments in the
state - over 7,000. I understand well the need to
consolidate or reduce governments in orderto be
more efficient, transparent andfiscally responsible,
which is an initiative ofthe County's.

Project Coordinator. Managed the training and outreach activities
oflocal government division staffstatewide. Coordinated coopera-
tive programs with local governments and governmental associations.
Responsible for local government ofiicials training program on financial
reporting requirements for over 7,250 local government units statewide.
Prepared informational materials on the local government division and
authored articles for publication. Assisted with the development ofthe
Comptroller's legislative package. Monitored and analyzed legislation
affecting the local government division. StafFed the Comptroller's Local
Government Advisory Board. Represented the Comptroller at various
official and community events.

 
                                                            15 of 264



KARYN M. ROMANO

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

North Central CouncU ofMayors
July 1994 to October 1996
Westchester, Illinois
I worked directly for 20 communities m West Cook
County as their staff representing them in regional
transportation issues. At this time I developed and
built strong relationships with regional organi-
zatlons such as the Chicago Area Transportation
Study (CATS), now CMAP, Regional Transpor-
tation Authority, Metra and Pace. These working
relationships continue today,

Council Liaison. Accountable for ensuring local input for twenty com-
munities in west suburban Cook County into transportation planning,
programming and policy making. Assisted with regional and subre-

gional studies, provided technical assistance to municipal and state
agencies, and performed liaison services between local governments and
regional, state and federal agencies.

West Central Munkipal Conference (WCMC)
January 1988 to June 1994
Western Springs, Illinois
As a program coordinator at WCMC, I researched
and developed several new programs that were
beneficial to the commurtities in West Cook Coun-
ty, Newprograms that I developed and managed
mcludedajointpurchasingprogram, ajoint
Employee Assistance Program (EAP), an annual
training conference, and an Economic Develop-
ment Commission (EDC). I have the ability to
look atgaps and needs, evaluate solutions and
formulate recommendationsfor implementation.

Program Coordinator. Recommended, developed and administered

projects and programs ofa regional organization representing 35 mu-
nicipalities and a population ofapproximately 500,000 in west suburban
Cook County. Responsible for the foUowing Conference program areas:
economic development, transportation, joint training, joint purchasing,
and personnel programs. Served as staffto several Conference commit-
tees. Assisted the Executive Director with legislative activities.

ORGANIZATIONS &ACTIVITIES

As Owner and President ofa young business, I have spent the last decade being active in regional professional organiza-
tions that have allowed me to stay educated on important issues and connected to decision makers. In several ofthe organi-
zations I have served in leadership roles. I am currently serving as President ofthe Chicago Public Affairs Group (CAPAG).

City Club ofChicago, Corporate Member
Chicago Area Public Affairs Group (CAPAG), President
Cadence Health Auxillary, Member
Illinois State Chamber, Member
International Association for Public Participation (LAP2), Member
Metropolitan Planning Council, Member
Chicago Women in Government Relations, Former President and Board Member
Women's Transportation Seminar (WTS), Former President and Board Member

EDUCATION

Elmhurst College, Elmhurst, Illinois: B.S. Business Administration, Minor: Urban Studies. 1988

AWARDS & RECOGNITION

2001 Member ofthe Year, Women's Transportation Seminar
Elmhurst College Mentoring Program Recognition, Served 3 years as a mentor

 
                                                            16 of 264



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 3 | 

 

To: Chairman and Commissioners 

From: Bill Fates, Treasurer  

Date: 9/12/2023 

Subject: TREASURER’S REPORT – August 31, 2023  

 

I am pleased to report that I have reviewed and approved all journal entries and bank reconciliations for 
the month of August.  I have also reviewed the monthly financial statements and budget status reports and 
found them to be in order. 

Summary of Cash & Investments (Page 4)  

1. Cash and investments totaled $228.9 million on August 31st, an increase of $2.2 million compared 
to the previous month.  

  
2. The balance in the BMO Harris checking account was $24.8 million on August 31st, an increase of 

$0.7 million compared to the $24.1 million reported last month.  The Waterlink Escrow account 
had a balance of $2.7 million. The BMO Harris money market accounts had $2.8 million at month-
end, relatively unchanged from the prior month.   

 
3. During the month of August, the IIIT money market accounts decreased by $3.3 million from the 

prior month.  Corporate notes and commercial paper increased by $6.7 million and $2.9 million, 
respectively. In addition, U.S. Treasury investments and municipal bonds decreased by $7.3 million 
and $0.4 million, respectively.     

  
4. The current holdings of cash and investments are in compliance with the approved investment 

policy. 
 

5. For the four months ended August 31, 2023, the Commission’s cash and investments increased a 
total of $1.1 million. 
• The Operating & Maintenance Account decreased by $7.5 million for an ending balance of 

$27.6 million. 
• The Waterlink Escrow Account increased by $2.7 million.    
• The General Account increased by approximately $1.8 million for an ending balance of $29.2 

million.     
• The Operating Reserve Account increased by approximately $1.7 million for a balance of $75.8 

million.  

 
                                                            17 of 264



| 2 of 3 | 

 

• The Long-Term Capital Reserve Account increased by approximately $2.2 million for a balance 
of $27.0 million. 

• The Capital Reserve Fund increased by approximately $247,000 for a balance of $66.6 million. 
 
Summary of the Changes in Cash and Investments by Account 
 

ACCOUNT Balance 4/30/2023 Balance 8/31/2023
Increase 

(Decrease)
Operations & Maintenance 35,062,282$           27,569,253$           (7,493,029)$         
Waterlink Escrow -                             2,689,179                2,689,179             
General Account 27,337,988              29,182,725              1,844,737             
Operating Reserve 74,109,825              75,777,355              1,667,530             
Long-Term Capital Reserve 24,832,174              27,002,037              2,169,863             
Capital Reserve 66,393,788              66,641,190              247,402                 
Total Cash & Investments 227,736,057$         228,861,739$         1,125,682$            

 

Schedule of Investments (Pages 5-11) 

1. The average yield to maturity on the Commission’s investments was 3.15%, up from the prior 
month average yield to maturity of 3.04%. 

 
2. The portfolio ended the month of August 2023 with $7.0 million of unrealized losses, compared to 

$6.0 million in unrealized losses at April 30, 2023. 
 

3. The amortized cost of our investments was $201.4 million at August 31st. 
 
Statement of Cash Flows (Page 12) 

1. The statement of cash flows shows a breakdown of the $1.1 million increase in cash and     
investments for the fiscal year.  

 
2. Operating activities decreased cash by approximately $0.2 million as of the end of August 2023.   

 
3. The decrease in Loans Receivable increased cash by approximately $194,000.  

 
4. Capital Assets purchased were $2.0 million.  Escrow funds received was $2.2 million.  

 
5. Cash flow from investment activity generated approximately $1.0 million of income. 

 
Reserve Analysis (Page 13) 

1. The Operating Reserve account was $75.8 million which is approximately 181 days, this amount 
meets the minimum balance per the reserve policy.  

 
2. The Operating and Maintenance Account was $25.9 million which is a balance currently sufficient 

to cover an estimated 62 days of normal operation and maintenance costs. 
 

3. The reserve analysis report shows the Commission has met all recommended reserve balances on 
August 31st.   

 
                                                            18 of 264



Respectfully submitted,

t^K^-/
Bill Fates, CPA
Treasurer

3of3
 

                                                            19 of 264



DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION
TREASURER'S REPORT
SUMMARY OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS
8/31/2023

FUNDS CONSIST OF: 8/31/2023 7/31/2023 Increase/(Decrease)

PETTY CASH 1,300.00$                            1,300.00$                             -$                                
OPERATING & MAINTENANCE 24,803,686.53 24,074,867.04 728,819.49                    
WATERLINK ESCROW 2,689,178.65 1,355,910.00 1,333,268.65                

TOTAL CASH 27,494,165.18$                 25,432,077.04$                  2,062,088.14$              

BMO HARRIS MONEY MARKET FUNDS 2,764,266.92$                    2,758,643.82$                     5,623.10$                      
IIIT MONEY MARKET FUNDS 5,365,807.10                      8,701,213.60                       (3,335,406.50)               
U. S. TREASURY INVESTMENTS 91,722,605.75 98,985,709.30 (7,263,103.55)               
U. S. AGENCY INVESTMENTS 25,451,585.25 24,884,091.82 567,493.43                    
MUNICIPAL BONDS 7,872,147.48 8,223,032.40 (350,884.92)                  
COMMERCIAL PAPER 9,744,827.22 6,863,566.38 2,881,260.84                
ASSET BACKED SEC/COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIG 32,078,554.70 31,148,412.64 930,142.06                    
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 0.00 0.00 -                                  
CORPORATE NOTES 26,367,779.60 19,651,663.73 6,716,115.87                

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 201,367,574.02$               201,216,333.69$                151,240.33$                  

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 228,861,739.20$               226,648,410.73$                2,213,328.47$              

8/31/2023 7/31/2023 % CHANGE
IIIT MONEY MARKET FUNDS 2.8% 4.2% -38.3%
BMO HARRIS MONEY MARKET FUNDS 1.4% 1.4% 0.2%
U. S. TREASURY INVESTMENTS 45.5% 49.2% -7.3%
U. S. AGENCY INVESTMENTS 12.6% 12.4% 2.3%
MUNICIPAL BONDS 3.9% 4.1% -4.3%
COMMERCIAL PAPER 4.8% 3.4% 42.0%
ASSET BACKED SEC/COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIG 15.9% 15.5% 3.0%
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 0.0% 0.0% N/A
CORPORATE NOTES 13.1% 9.8% 34.2%

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 100.0% 100.0% 0.1%

Note 1 - Investments are carried at amortized cost. 

 4  
                                                            20 of 264



DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION
INVESTMENTS
(Unaudited)
August 31, 2023

YIELD TO AMORTIZED ACCRUED
COUPON PURCHASE MATURITY MATURITY PAR PURCHASE DISCOUNT INTEREST

FUND SOURCE RATE DATE DATE (COST) VALUE PRICE (PREMIUM) AMORTIZED COST 08/31/23

Water Fund Oper. & Maint. Acct. (01-121103)
BMO Harris - Money Market 2.400% 08/31/23 09/01/23 1 2.400% 2,764,266.92$                 2,764,266.92$                 0.00 2,764,266.92$              -                                

Water Fund General Account (01-121700)
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
IIIT - Money Market 5.416% 08/31/23 09/01/23 1 5.416% 4,686,780.11                   4,686,780.11                   0.00 4,686,780.11                -                                

US Treasury Notes 1.375% 11/28/22 09/30/23 30 4.730% 1,000,000.00                   972,773.44                      24,646.27 997,419.71                   5,785.52                      
US Treasury Notes 0.125% 11/28/22 10/15/23 45 4.770% 1,000,000.00                   960,507.81                      34,078.93 994,586.74                   474.73                          
US Treasury Notes 0.250% 11/28/22 11/15/23 76 4.800% 1,000,000.00                   957,656.25                      33,321.64 990,977.89                   740.49                          
US Treasury Notes 0.125% 02/06/23 12/15/23 106 4.930% 2,000,000.00                   1,920,859.38                   52,421.12 1,973,280.50                532.79                          
US Treasury Notes 0.125% 02/06/23 01/15/24 137 4.910% 2,000,000.00                   1,913,515.63                   52,092.92 1,965,608.55                326.09                          
US Treasury Notes 0.125% 03/22/23 02/15/24 168 4.670% 4,000,000.00                   3,841,093.75                   78,490.06 3,919,583.81                230.98                          
US Treasury Notes 0.250% 03/22/23 03/15/24 197 4.610% 4,000,000.00                   3,834,531.25                   75,129.27 3,909,660.52                4,619.57                      

Liberty Street FDG LLC 0.000% 07/18/23 10/13/23 43 5.510% 1,000,000.00                   986,853.33                      6,800.00 993,653.33                   -                                
Manhattan Asset FDG 0.000% 06/30/23 11/08/23 69 5.540% 1,000,000.00                   980,240.83                      9,502.50 989,743.33                   -                                
MUFG Bank LTD NY 0.000% 06/23/23 12/19/23 110 5.690% 1,000,000.00                   972,503.61                      10,752.78 983,256.39                   -                                
NATIXIS NY 0.000% 06/27/23 01/16/24 138 5.780% 1,000,000.00                   968,422.22                      10,266.67 978,688.89                   -                                
ING (US) Funding LLC 0.000% 06/30/23 01/31/24 153 5.730% 1,000,000.00                   966,913.89                      9,695.00 976,608.89                   -                                
Cooperative Rabobank UA 0.000% 06/27/23 03/08/24 190 5.650% 1,000,000.00                   961,537.50                      9,955.00 971,492.50                   -                                
MUFG Bank LTD NY 0.000% 08/17/23 04/15/24 190 5.810% 2,000,000.00                   1,924,845.56                   4,658.33 1,929,503.89                -                                
Cooperative Rabobank UA 0.000% 08/17/23 05/10/24 253 5.820% 2,000,000.00                   1,917,230.00                   4,650.00 1,921,880.00                -                                

Weighted Avg Maturity 107 4.977% 29,686,780.11$               28,766,264.56$               416,460.49 29,182,725.05$            12,710.17$                  
Water Fund Operating Reserve (01-121800)
IIIT - Money Market 5.416% 08/31/23 09/01/23 1 5.416% 382,758.66                      382,758.66                      0.00 382,758.66                   -                                

US Treasury Notes 1.500% 05/06/21 11/30/24 457 0.450% 250,000.00                      259,248.05                      (6,004.12) 253,243.93                   952.87                          
US Treasury Notes 1.750% 01/02/20 12/31/24 488 1.650% 500,000.00                      502,363.28                      (1,731.26) 500,632.02                   1,497.96                      
US Treasury Notes 1.375% 02/03/20 01/31/25 519 1.370% 1,000,000.00                   1,000,078.13                   (55.92) 1,000,022.21                1,195.65                      
US Treasury Notes 2.000% 05/06/21 02/15/25 534 0.490% 1,000,000.00                   1,056,406.25                   (34,572.89) 1,021,833.36                923.91                          
US Treasury Notes 1.125% 03/02/20 02/28/25 547 0.830% 1,000,000.00                   1,014,335.94                   (10,039.88) 1,004,296.06                30.91                            
US Treasury Notes 0.250% 06/29/21 09/30/25 761 0.760% 700,000.00                      685,207.03                      7,553.65 692,760.68                   736.34                          
US Treasury Notes 0.250% 11/03/20 10/31/25 792 0.390% 500,000.00                      496,523.44                      1,967.25 498,490.69                   421.20                          
US Treasury Notes 0.375% 12/08/20 11/30/25 822 0.380% 160,000.00                      159,968.75                      17.12 159,985.87                   152.46                          
US Treasury Notes 0.375% 01/05/21 12/31/25 853 0.370% 1,500,000.00                   1,500,410.16                   (218.05) 1,500,192.11                962.98                          
US Treasury Notes 0.375% 03/01/21 01/31/26 884 0.690% 1,000,000.00                   984,765.63                      7,740.25 992,505.88                   326.09                          
US Treasury Notes 1.625% 03/01/21 02/15/26 899 0.690% 1,000,000.00                   1,045,585.94                   (22,969.27) 1,022,616.67                750.68                          
US Treasury Notes 0.500% 09/03/21 02/28/26 912 0.720% 1,000,000.00                   990,507.81                      4,200.03 994,707.84                   13.74                            
US Treasury Notes 0.750% 06/02/21 03/31/26 943 0.760% 750,000.00                      749,707.03                      136.25 749,843.28                   2,366.80                      
US Treasury Notes 0.750% 06/02/21 04/30/26 973 0.770% 750,000.00                      749,121.09                      401.91 749,523.00                   1,895.38                      
US Treasury Notes 1.625% 11/05/21 05/15/26 988 1.050% 680,000.00                      697,265.63                      (6,950.15) 690,315.48                   3,272.96                      
US Treasury Notes 0.750% 08/02/21 05/31/26 1,004 0.630% 500,000.00                      502,753.91                      (1,185.39) 501,568.52                   952.87                          
US Treasury Notes 0.875% 10/26/21 06/30/26 1,034 1.150% 1,000,000.00                   987,304.69                      5,012.68 992,317.37                   1,497.96                      
US Treasury Notes 0.625% 11/02/21 07/31/26 1,065 1.120% 750,000.00                      732,744.14                      6,649.14 739,393.28                   407.61                          
US Treasury Notes 0.750% 01/05/22 08/31/26 1,096 1.350% 750,000.00                      729,902.34                      7,144.78 737,047.12                   15.45                            
US Treasury Notes 0.875% 12/02/21 09/30/26 1,126 1.210% 600,000.00                      590,648.44                      3,370.60 594,019.04                   2,209.02                      
US Treasury Notes 1.250% 02/14/22 11/30/26 1,187 1.920% 1,500,000.00                   1,453,886.72                   14,861.65 1,468,748.37                4,764.34                      
US Treasury Notes 1.250% 02/14/22 12/30/26 1,217 1.930% 1,500,000.00                   1,453,007.81                   14,881.30 1,467,889.11                3,209.92                      
US Treasury Notes 2.750% 05/04/22 04/30/27 1,338 2.960% 1,000,000.00                   990,312.50                      2,578.73 992,891.23                   9,266.30                      
US Treasury Notes 2.375% 07/06/22 05/15/27 1,353 2.910% 750,000.00                      731,923.83                      4,299.97 736,223.80                   5,275.99                      
US Treasury Notes 2.625% 06/03/22 05/31/27 1,369 2.940% 500,000.00                      492,812.50                      1,793.92 494,606.42                   3,335.04                      
US Treasury Notes 2.625% 06/03/22 05/31/27 1,369 2.920% 1,000,000.00                   986,289.06                      3,422.09 989,711.15                   6,670.08                      
US Treasury Notes 3.250% 08/05/22 06/30/27 1,399 2.780% 1,000,000.00                   1,021,250.00                   (4,653.63) 1,016,596.37                5,563.86                      
US Treasury Notes 2.750% 08/05/22 07/31/27 1,430 2.770% 600,000.00                      599,320.31                      146.31 599,466.62                   1,434.78                      
US Treasury Notes 3.875% 01/06/23 12/31/27 1,583 3.940% 580,000.00                      578,187.50                      237.02 578,424.52                   3,847.62                      
US Treasury Notes 3.500% 02/02/23 01/31/28 1,614 3.640% 650,000.00                      645,962.89                      467.01 646,429.90                   1,978.26                      
US Treasury Notes 4.000% 03/03/23 02/29/28 1,643 4.240% 200,000.00                      197,882.81                      211.25 198,094.06                   21.98                            
US Treasury Notes 3.500% 05/02/23 04/30/28 1,704 3.600% 1,500,000.00                   1,493,320.31                   446.53 1,493,766.84                17,690.22                    
US Treasury Notes 3.625% 06/05/23 05/31/28 1,735 3.700% 750,000.00                      747,539.06                      118.86 747,657.92                   6,908.30                      

Inter-American Devel Bk Notes 0.500% 09/23/21 09/23/24 389 0.520% 710,000.00                      709,474.60                      339.40 709,814.00                   1,558.06                      

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Commission Reports\August 2023\INV0823.xlsx 5

 
                                                            21 of 264



DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION
INVESTMENTS
(Unaudited)
August 31, 2023

YIELD TO AMORTIZED ACCRUED
COUPON PURCHASE MATURITY MATURITY PAR PURCHASE DISCOUNT INTEREST

FUND SOURCE RATE DATE DATE (COST) VALUE PRICE (PREMIUM) AMORTIZED COST 08/31/23

Water Fund Operating Reserve (01-121800) Continued… .
OR ST Dept of Trans Txbl Rev Bonds 1.946% 11/07/19 11/15/23 76 1.950% 300,000.00                      300,000.00                      0.00 300,000.00                   1,718.97                      
Houston, TX Txbl GO Bonds 1.950% 08/23/19 03/01/24 183 1.950% 765,000.00                      765,000.00                      0.00 765,000.00                   7,458.75                      
New York St Urban Dev Corp SAL Bonds 2.020% 10/24/19 03/15/24 197 2.020% 680,000.00                      680,000.00                      0.00 680,000.00                   6,333.82                      
TX ST Trans Comm Txbl GO Bonds 4.000% 12/11/19 04/01/24 214 1.990% 410,000.00                      443,812.70                      (29,234.12) 414,578.58                   6,833.33                      
WI St Txbl GO Bonds 1.775% 02/11/20 05/01/24 244 1.780% 200,000.00                      200,000.00                      0.00 200,000.00                   1,183.33                      
WI St Txbl GO Bonds 1.857% 10/02/19 05/01/24 244 1.860% 275,000.00                      275,000.00                      0.00 275,000.00                   1,702.25                      
Connectict St A Txbl Municipal Bonds 1.998% 06/11/20 07/01/24 305 2.000% 120,000.00                      120,000.00                      0.00 120,000.00                   399.60                          
NYC, NY Txbl GO Bonds 1.790% 10/04/19 10/01/24 397 1.790% 675,000.00                      675,000.00                      0.00 675,000.00                   5,034.38                      
NY ST Urban Dev Corp Bonds 1.115% 06/18/20 03/15/25 562 1.120% 395,000.00                      395,000.00                      0.00 395,000.00                   2,030.85                      
FL ST Board of Admin Txbl Rev 1.258% 09/16/20 07/01/25 670 1.110% 100,000.00                      100,707.00                      (436.57) 100,270.43                   209.67                          
FL ST Board of Admin Txbl Rev 1.258% 09/16/20 07/01/25 670 1.260% 410,000.00                      410,000.00                      0.00 410,000.00                   859.63                          
Los Angeles CCD, CA Txbl GO Bonds 0.773% 11/10/20 08/01/25 701 0.770% 275,000.00                      275,000.00                      0.00 275,000.00                   177.15                          
MN St Txbl GO Bonds 0.630% 08/25/20 08/01/25 701 0.630% 740,000.00                      740,000.00                      0.00 740,000.00                   388.50                          
New York St Dorm Auth Municipal Bonds 2.888% 03/25/22 03/15/27 1,292 2.890% 185,000.00                      185,000.00                      0.00 185,000.00                   2,463.62                      

FN AL2092 3.000% 03/06/18 07/01/27 1,400 2.980% 92,042.48                        92,157.53                        (67.64) 92,089.89                     230.11                          
FN AP4718 2.500% 07/20/18 08/01/27 1,431 2.750% 84,872.91                        83,188.69                        953.06 84,141.75                     176.82                          
Fannie Mae Pool 3.500% 04/05/18 02/01/28 1,615 3.230% 132,307.36                      135,325.63                      (1,660.93) 133,664.70                   385.90                          
Fannie Mae Pool 3.500% 04/05/18 03/01/28 1,644 3.230% 25,187.48                        25,762.07                        (313.66) 25,448.41                     73.46                            
FR ZT1267 2.500% 08/21/19 05/01/28 1,705 2.320% 100,450.94                      101,847.83                      (646.95) 101,200.88                   209.27                          
FN CA1940 4.000% 07/11/18 06/01/28 1,736 3.640% 106,642.68                      109,808.62                      (1,645.20) 108,163.42                   355.48                          
FNMA Pool #AU1266 3.000% 10/31/17 07/01/28 1,766 2.720% 134,838.87                      138,273.05                      (1,878.40) 136,394.65                   337.10                          
FG J32374 2.500% 02/17/22 11/01/28 1,889 2.220% 224,257.10                      228,181.61                      (899.00) 227,282.61                   467.20                          
Fannie Mae Pool 4.000% 03/18/19 03/01/29 2,009 3.630% 56,539.42                        58,279.78                        (779.24) 57,500.54                     188.46                          
FNMA Pool #AS4197 3.500% 07/16/15 01/01/30 2,315 3.000% 59,548.19                        63,046.62                        (1,966.09) 61,080.53                     173.68                          
FHLMC Pool #U49048 3.000% 03/17/16 08/01/30 2,527 2.630% 117,522.90                      122,682.88                      (2,677.29) 120,005.59                   293.81                          
FNMA Pool #AL7738 3.500% 02/17/16 11/01/30 2,619 2.960% 118,709.47                      126,407.05 (3,945.53) 122,461.52                   346.24                          
FR ZS7331 3.000% 02/13/20 12/01/30 2,649 2.600% 214,266.49                      222,368.47 (2,655.41) 219,713.06                   535.67                          
FN FM1082 3.000% 08/19/19 09/01/31 2,923 2.720% 144,896.21                      149,084.64 (1,403.13) 147,681.51                   362.24                          
FG G16720 3.500% 01/25/19 11/01/31 2,984 3.340% 120,837.76                      122,782.48 (699.58) 122,082.90                   352.44                          
FG G16635 3.000% 04/18/19 02/01/32 3,076 2.930% 201,681.39                      203,280.68 (545.55) 202,735.13                   504.20                          
FN FS2986 4.000% 10/21/22 10/01/32 3,319 4.370% 369,139.66                      358,180.82 950.19 359,131.01                   1,230.47                      
Fannie Mae Pool 3.500% 02/13/18 01/01/33 3,411 3.300% 132,815.85                      135,887.19 (1,143.98) 134,743.21                   387.38                          
Freddie Mac Pool 4.000% 06/07/18 02/01/33 3,442 3.730% 44,749.42                        46,098.90 (480.88) 45,618.02                     149.16                          
FN CA1455 4.000% 12/20/18 03/01/33 3,470 3.760% 166,247.73                      170,572.76 (1,430.83) 169,141.93                   554.16                          
FN BM5830 3.500% 06/05/19 04/01/34 3,866 3.180% 181,348.99                      188,149.57 (1,934.03) 186,215.54                   528.93                          
FN FM0047 3.000% 06/17/21 12/01/34 4,110 2.450% 205,851.65                      218,878.19 (2,136.19) 216,742.00                   514.63                          
FN FM2694 3.000% 06/05/19 03/01/35 4,200 2.570% 224,521.51                      236,589.54                      (2,776.93) 233,812.61                   561.30                          
FR SB0759 4.500% 10/18/22 03/01/35 4,200 4.630% 245,374.90                      242,307.71                      215.93 242,523.64                   920.16                          
FR SB0364 3.500% 06/21/21 06/01/35 4,292 2.830% 192,236.57                      207,134.94                      (2,336.20) 204,798.74                   560.69                          
FR SB0666 4.000% 05/13/22 06/01/35 4,292 3.750% 395,098.84                      405,470.20                      (1,027.77) 404,442.43                   1,317.00                      
FN FM3701 2.500% 07/27/20 07/01/35 4,322 2.040% 194,040.61                      205,410.16                      (2,355.27) 203,054.89                   404.25                          
FR SB0361 3.000% 03/20/23 07/01/35 4,322 3.530% 347,572.14                      329,378.91                      669.17 330,048.08                   868.93                          
FN FM5714 4.000% 03/19/21 11/01/35 4,445 3.230% 166,400.53                      181,272.58                      (2,481.46) 178,791.12                   554.67                          
FHR 5050 XL 1.000% 02/11/22 07/01/36 4,688 1.180% 238,447.73                      232,784.58                      611.15 233,395.73                   198.71                          

Water Fund Operating Reserve (01-121800) Continued…
FHMS K724 A2 3.062% 02/02/21 11/01/23 62 0.580% 258,320.06                      275,766.75                      (16,384.57) 259,382.18                   659.15                          
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Pool 2.951% 12/15/17 02/01/24 154 2.600% 24,459.76                        24,948.10                        (454.87) 24,493.23                     60.15                            
Fannie Mae ACES 3.346% 12/13/19 03/01/24 183 2.140% 87,669.02                        91,929.17                        (3,755.04) 88,174.13                     244.45                          
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Pool 3.064% 05/31/22 08/01/24 336 3.000% 698,335.87                      699,263.34                      (535.66) 698,727.68                   1,783.08                      
FHMS K047 A1 2.827% 06/18/19 12/01/24 458 2.490% 89,676.21                        91,217.51                        (1,187.34) 90,030.17                     211.26                          

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Commission Reports\August 2023\INV0823.xlsx 6

 
                                                            22 of 264



DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION
INVESTMENTS
(Unaudited)
August 31, 2023

YIELD TO AMORTIZED ACCRUED
COUPON PURCHASE MATURITY MATURITY PAR PURCHASE DISCOUNT INTEREST

FUND SOURCE RATE DATE DATE (COST) VALUE PRICE (PREMIUM) AMORTIZED COST 08/31/23

FHMS K043 A2 3.062% 03/19/20 12/01/24 458 1.950% 190,000.00                      199,410.94                      (6,898.79) 192,512.15                   484.82                          
FHMS K046 A2 3.205% 08/08/22 03/01/25 548 3.510% 710,000.00                      704,702.73                      2,201.54 706,904.27                   1,896.29                      
FHMS K047 A2 3.329% 05/24/22 05/01/25 609 3.100% 710,000.00                      714,548.44                      (1,971.13) 712,577.31                   1,969.66                      
FHMS K736 A1 1.895% 09/04/19 06/01/25 640 1.800% 58,317.50                        58,609.08                        (202.18) 58,406.90                     92.09                            
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Pool 3.139% 04/11/19 06/01/25 640 2.780% 407,204.71                      415,348.40                      (5,816.40) 409,532.00                   1,065.18                      
FHLMC Series K049 A2 3.010% 09/06/22 07/01/25 670 3.770% 565,000.00                      553,545.51                      4,007.40 557,552.91                   1,417.21                      
FHMS K733 A2 3.750% 08/15/23 01/01/26 854 5.240% 373,321.00                      362,976.28                      245.27 363,221.55                   1,166.63                      
FHMS K054 A2 2.745% 04/14/23 01/01/26 854 4.370% 420,000.00                      402,609.38                      2,451.85 405,061.23                   960.75                          
FHMS KJ31 A1 0.569% 10/20/20 05/01/26 974 0.570% 28,421.78                        28,421.21                        0.29 28,421.50                     13.48                            
FHMS K737 A1 2.116% 01/22/20 06/01/26 1,005 2.030% 425,279.91                      427,403.75                      (1,202.35) 426,201.40                   749.91                          
FHMS K058 A2 2.653% 04/12/23 08/01/26 1,066 4.020% 740,000.00                      708,839.06                      3,665.99 712,505.05                   1,636.02                      
FHMS K061 A2 3.347% 05/24/23 11/01/26 1,158 4.310% 515,000.00                      499,147.66                      1,261.12 500,408.78                   1,436.42                      
FHMS K063 A2 3.430% 05/24/23 01/01/27 1,219 4.340% 735,000.00                      712,749.02                      1,688.24 714,437.26                   2,100.88                      
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Pool 3.243% 06/13/23 04/01/27 1,309 4.440% 765,000.00                      733,055.27                      1,841.19 734,896.46                   2,067.41                      
FHMS KJ40 A1 3.400% 07/14/22 06/01/28 1,736 3.400% 325,567.64                      325,563.70                      0.76 325,564.46                   922.44                          
FNA 2023-M6 A2 4.190% 07/31/23 07/01/28 1,766 4.580% 725,000.00                      712,708.98                      218.87 712,927.85                   2,531.46                      
FHMS K750 A1 3.000% 11/03/22 11/01/28 1,889 4.260% 622,061.66                      580,721.32                      5,700.81 586,422.13                   1,555.15                      
FHMS KJ45 A1 4.455% 05/25/23 11/01/28 1,889 4.460% 709,353.66                      709,352.24                      0.07 709,352.31                   2,633.48                      
FHMS KJ43 A1 4.377% 12/15/22 12/01/28 1,919 4.380% 682,974.00                      682,962.37                      1.39 682,963.76                   2,491.15                      
FHMS K752 A1 4.284% 08/24/23 01/01/29 1,950 4.910% 335,000.00                      325,104.44                      40.45 325,144.89                   1,195.95                      
FHMS KJ44 A1 4.558% 02/23/23 01/25/29 1,974 4.560% 343,536.36                      343,525.73                      0.94 343,526.67                   1,304.87                      
FHMS KJ42 A1 3.902% 09/15/22 07/01/29 2,131 3.900% 425,818.40                      425,802.20                      2.29 425,804.49                   1,384.62                      

FHR 4096 PA 1.375% 02/21/20 08/01/27 1,431 1.490% 184,203.22                      182,706.57                      707.78 183,414.35                   211.07                          
FNR 2012-107 GA 1.500% 12/03/19 09/01/27 1,462 1.690% 76,886.56                        75,823.37                        513.54 76,336.91                     96.11                            
FHS 287 150 1.500% 12/21/17 10/01/27 1,492 1.840% 95,921.24                        93,043.60                        1,674.12 94,717.72                     119.90                          
FNR 2012-145 EA 1.250% 02/07/20 01/01/28 1,584 1.440% 98,339.78                        96,945.35                        627.98 97,573.33                     102.44                          
FNR 2013-39 MP 1.750% 12/09/19 05/01/28 1,705 1.860% 212,544.45                      210,751.11                      795.67 211,546.78                   309.96                          
FNR 2013-19 GE 2.500% 10/25/19 03/01/33 3,470 2.400% 144,159.06                      145,735.78                      (453.82) 145,281.96                   300.33                          
Freddie Mac 3.000% 05/03/19 04/01/34 3,866 2.960% 256,967.50                      258,232.27                      (366.51) 257,865.76                   642.42                          
FHR 3745 NP 4.000% 09/12/19 06/01/39 5,753 3.740% 22,314.28                        23,111.83                        (160.13) 22,951.70                     74.38                            
FNR 2013-75 PC 2.500% 04/15/20 04/01/43 7,153 2.200% 184,624.86                      194,606.14                      (1,463.67) 193,142.47                   384.64                          
FNR 2015-33 P 2.500% 02/14/20 06/01/45 7,945 2.400% 148,424.52                      151,253.86                      (395.00) 150,858.86                   309.22                          
FNR 2016-19 AH 3.000% 07/08/20 04/01/46 8,249 2.580% 94,561.48                        102,107.94                      (919.91) 101,188.03                   236.40                          
FHR 5000 LB 1.250% 08/07/20 07/01/46 8,340 1.160% 219,320.15                      223,638.02                      (509.25) 223,128.77                   228.46                          
FNR 2016-79 HA 2.000% 06/05/20 11/01/46 8,463 1.830% 145,834.01                      151,166.10                      (651.58) 150,514.52                   243.06                          

Fannie Mae Notes 2.500% 02/07/19 02/05/24 158 2.580% 605,000.00                      602,749.40                      2,056.77 604,806.17                   1,092.36                      
Federal Farm Credit Banks Notes 0.875% 04/03/20 04/08/24 221 0.880% 1,420,000.00                   1,420,000.00                   0.00 1,420,000.00                4,935.49                      
Fannie Mae Notes 1.625% 01/08/20 01/07/25 495 1.690% 1,210,000.00                   1,206,140.10                   2,814.51 1,208,954.61                2,949.38                      
Freddie Mac Notes 5.150% 01/24/23 01/24/25 512 5.150% 700,000.00                      700,000.00                      0.00 700,000.00                   3,705.14                      
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 0.500% 04/15/20 04/14/25 592 0.600% 1,060,000.00                   1,054,742.40                   3,554.07 1,058,296.47                2,016.94                      
Fannie Mae Notes 0.625% 06/01/20 04/22/25 600 0.500% 500,000.00                      502,950.00                      (1,960.06) 500,989.94                   1,119.79                      
Fannie Mae Notes 0.625% 04/22/20 04/22/25 600 0.670% 1,225,000.00                   1,222,476.50                   1,694.78 1,224,171.28                2,743.49                      
Fannie Mae Notes 0.500% 06/29/20 06/17/25 656 0.470% 1,000,000.00                   1,001,280.00                   (817.56) 1,000,462.44                1,027.78                      
Freddie Mac Notes 0.375% 07/21/20 07/21/25 690 0.480% 420,000.00                      417,908.40                      1,301.52 419,209.92                   175.00                          
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 0.375% 09/10/20 09/04/25 735 0.440% 150,000.00                      149,550.00                      268.42 149,818.42                   276.56                          
Freddie Mac Notes 0.375% 09/23/20 09/23/25 754 0.440% 680,000.00                      677,953.20                      1,201.82 679,155.02                   1,119.17                      
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 1.100% 07/20/22 08/20/26 1,085 3.410% 770,000.00                      702,617.30                      18,426.37 721,043.67                   258.81                          
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 1.100% 08/03/22 08/20/26 1,085 3.000% 770,000.00                      714,521.50                      14,789.26 729,310.76                   258.81                          
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 0.830% 08/19/22 02/10/27 1,259 3.370% 740,000.00                      662,492.40                      17,908.24 680,400.64                   358.28                          
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 1.020% 08/16/22 02/24/27 1,273 3.240% 780,000.00                      707,608.20                      16,685.59 724,293.79                   154.70                          

Bank of America Corp Notes 3.841% 06/30/23 04/25/25 603 4.930% 740,000.00                      726,080.60                      1,318.68 727,399.28                   9,948.19                      
Citigroup Inc Corp Notes 4.140% 07/06/23 05/24/25 632 5.080% 360,000.00                      354,002.40                      496.89 354,499.29                   4,015.80                      
Morgan Stanley 2.720% 08/14/23 07/22/25 691 4.320% 370,000.00                      359,092.40                      277.31 359,369.71                   1,090.27                      
BMW US Capital LLC 5.300% 08/11/23 08/11/25 711 5.300% 570,000.00                      569,965.80                      0.98 569,966.78                   1,678.33                      
Wells Fargo & Co 2.164% 06/30/23 02/11/26 895 4.530% 380,000.00                      358,058.80                      1,444.41 359,503.21                   456.84                          
Merck & Co Inc Corp Notes 0.750% 03/15/23 02/24/26 908 4.570% 390,000.00                      349,443.90                      6,401.61 355,845.51                   56.88                            
JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.595% 06/30/23 02/24/26 908 4.630% 755,000.00                      717,015.95                      2,467.01 719,482.96                   380.96                          
Goldman Sachs Group Inc 3.750% 08/14/23 02/25/26 909 5.400% 365,000.00                      350,918.30                      273.73 351,192.03                   228.13                          
Eli Lilly & Co Corp Notes 5.000% 02/27/23 02/27/26 911 5.060% 315,000.00                      314,480.25                      88.21 314,568.46                   175.00                          
Colgate Palmolive Co Corp Notes 4.800% 03/02/23 03/02/26 914 4.820% 690,000.00                      689,599.80                      66.82 689,666.62                   16,560.00                    
John Deere Capital Corp Notes 5.050% 03/03/23 03/03/26 915 5.050% 345,000.00                      344,962.05                      6.30 344,968.35                   8,614.46                      
Roche Holdings Inc Corp Notes 0.991% 04/05/23 03/05/26 917 4.240% 575,000.00                      524,244.75                      7,100.97 531,345.72                   2,785.81                      
Nestle Holdings Inc Corp Notes 5.250% 03/14/23 03/13/26 925 5.260% 265,000.00                      264,912.55                      13.66 264,926.21                   6,453.85                      
Commonwealth Bk Austr NY Corp Notes 5.316% 03/13/23 03/13/26 925 5.320% 690,000.00                      690,000.00                      0.00 690,000.00                   17,117.52                    
Paccar Financial Corp Corp Notes 4.450% 03/30/23 03/30/26 942 4.470% 350,000.00                      349,765.50                      33.16 349,798.66                   6,532.85                      
Walmart Inc Corp Notes 4.000% 04/18/23 04/15/26 958 4.020% 155,000.00                      154,931.80                      8.49 154,940.29                   2,290.56                      
Caterpillar Finl Serv Corp Notes 4.350% 05/15/23 05/15/26 988 4.370% 580,000.00                      579,727.40                      27.11 579,754.51                   7,428.83                      
Toyota Motor Credit Corp Notes 4.450% 05/18/23 05/18/26 991 4.470% 450,000.00                      449,739.00                      25.24 449,764.24                   5,729.38                      
State Street Corp Notes 5.104% 05/18/23 05/18/26 991 5.100% 530,000.00                      530,000.00                      0.00 530,000.00                   7,739.65                      
Bank of New York Mellon Corp Notes 5.148% 05/24/23 05/22/26 995 5.150% 1,065,000.00                   1,065,000.00                   0.00 1,065,000.00                14,772.62                    
Bristol Myers Squibb Co 3.200% 08/14/23 06/15/26 1,019 4.850% 380,000.00                      363,553.60                      285.75 363,839.35                   2,567.11                      
American Honda Finance Corp Notes 5.250% 07/07/23 07/07/26 1,041 5.290% 305,000.00                      304,624.85                      19.17 304,644.02                   2,401.88                      
State Street Corp Notes 5.272% 08/03/23 08/03/26 1,068 5.270% 200,000.00                      200,000.00                      0.00 200,000.00                   820.09                          
Bank of America 5.526% 08/18/23 08/18/26 1,083 5.530% 355,000.00                      355,000.00                      0.00 355,000.00                   708.40                          

Wells Fargo Bank NA 5.450% 08/09/23 08/07/26 1,072 5.450% 710,000.00                      709,943.20                      1.19 709,944.39                   2,364.69                      
Weighted Avg Maturity 1,196 2.641% 76,355,625.09$               75,761,296.44$               16,058.59$             75,777,355.03$            325,046.11$                

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Commission Reports\August 2023\INV0823.xlsx 7

 
                                                            23 of 264



DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION
INVESTMENTS
(Unaudited)
August 31, 2023

YIELD TO AMORTIZED ACCRUED
COUPON PURCHASE MATURITY MATURITY PAR PURCHASE DISCOUNT INTEREST

FUND SOURCE RATE DATE DATE (COST) VALUE PRICE (PREMIUM) AMORTIZED COST 08/31/23

Water Fund L-T Water Capital Reserve (01-121900)
IIIT - Money Market (PFM Asset Management) 5.416% 08/31/23 09/01/23 1 5.416% 104,648.53                      104,648.53                      0.00 104,648.53                   -                                

 
US Treasury Notes 2.875% 07/02/18 05/31/25 639 2.830% 100,000.00                      100,292.97                      (218.91) 100,074.06                   730.53                          
US Treasury Notes 2.250% 07/06/16 11/15/25 807 1.320% 75,000.00                        81,152.34                        (4,701.13) 76,451.21                     499.83                          
US Treasury Notes 0.375% 04/26/21 01/31/26 884 0.790% 1,000,000.00                   980,468.75                      9,619.70 990,088.45                   326.09                          
US Treasury Notes 1.625% 03/01/21 02/15/26 899 0.690% 500,000.00                      522,792.97                      (11,484.63) 511,308.34                   375.34                          
US Treasury Notes 1.625% 09/10/18 05/15/26 988 2.900% 255,000.00                      232,727.34                      14,429.95 247,157.29                   1,227.36                      
US Treasury Notes 2.750% 05/06/22 04/30/27 1,338 3.050% 250,000.00                      246,552.73                      914.85 247,467.58                   2,316.58                      
US Treasury Notes 0.500% 06/29/20 06/30/27 1,399 0.490% 500,000.00                      500,195.31                      (88.49) 500,106.82                   427.99                          
US Treasury Notes 2.250% 06/04/18 08/15/27 1,445 2.950% 250,000.00                      236,035.16                      7,959.71 243,994.87                   259.85                          
US Treasury Notes 2.250% 08/01/19 08/15/27 1,445 1.950% 250,000.00                      255,566.41                      (2,824.97) 252,741.44                   259.85                          
US Treasury Notes 0.500% 09/02/20 08/31/27 1,461 0.450% 200,000.00                      200,671.88                      (287.65) 200,384.23                   2.75                              
US Treasury Notes 2.250% 05/01/19 11/15/27 1,537 2.440% 250,000.00                      246,328.13                      1,863.60 248,191.73                   1,666.10                      
US Treasury Notes 0.625% 12/11/20 11/30/27 1,552 0.620% 200,000.00                      200,109.38                      (42.64) 200,066.74                   317.62                          
US Treasury Notes 0.625% 01/05/21 12/31/27 1,583 0.660% 200,000.00                      199,476.56                      198.57 199,675.13                   213.99                          
US Treasury Notes 2.750% 01/30/19 02/15/28 1,629 2.710% 250,000.00                      250,722.66                      (366.36) 250,356.30                   317.60                          
US Treasury Notes 2.875% 04/05/21 05/15/28 1,719 1.420% 385,000.00                      422,717.97                      (12,747.08) 409,970.89                   3,278.52                      
US Treasury Notes 1.250% 06/04/21 05/31/28 1,735 1.230% 500,000.00                      500,664.06                      (212.50) 500,451.56                   1,588.11                      
US Treasury Notes 3.625% 06/05/23 05/31/28 1,735 3.700% 500,000.00                      498,281.25                      83.01 498,364.26                   4,605.53                      
US Treasury Notes 4.000% 07/13/23 06/30/28 1,765 4.230% 600,000.00                      593,882.81                      168.61 594,051.42                   4,108.70                      
US Treasury Notes 1.000% 08/02/21 07/31/28 1,796 0.990% 400,000.00                      400,203.13                      (60.31) 400,142.82                   347.83                          
US Treasury Notes 1.125% 09/02/21 08/31/28 1,827 1.070% 400,000.00                      401,359.38                      (387.48) 400,971.90                   12.36                            
US Treasury Notes 3.125% 05/01/19 11/15/28 1,903 2.470% 150,000.00                      158,320.31                      (3,779.35) 154,540.96                   1,388.42                      
US Treasury Notes 1.138% 01/05/22 12/31/28 1,949 1.580% 250,000.00                      246,601.56                      804.33 247,405.89                   588.49                          
US Treasury Notes 2.625% 06/03/19 02/15/29 1,995 2.120% 100,000.00                      104,406.25                      (1,926.41) 102,479.84                   121.26                          
US Treasury Notes 2.625% 04/01/19 02/15/29 1,995 2.490% 150,000.00                      151,769.53                      (791.04) 150,978.49                   181.90                          
US Treasury Notes 2.875% 05/05/22 04/30/29 2,069 3.110% 250,000.00                      246,308.59                      698.92 247,007.51                   2,421.88                      
US Treasury Notes 2.750% 06/03/22 05/31/29 2,100 2.950% 250,000.00                      246,933.59                      546.29 247,479.88                   1,746.93                      
US Treasury Notes 3.250% 07/06/22 06/30/29 2,130 2.870% 500,000.00                      511,992.19                      (1,983.81) 510,008.38                   2,781.93                      
US Treasury Notes 1.750% 02/03/20 11/15/29 2,268 1.560% 250,000.00                      254,355.47                      (1,590.46) 252,765.01                   1,295.86                      
US Treasury Notes 3.500% 02/02/23 01/31/30 2,345 3.590% 350,000.00                      348,044.92                      161.46 348,206.38                   1,065.22                      
US Treasury Notes 1.500% 03/04/22 02/15/30 2,360 1.820% 500,000.00                      488,164.06                      2,224.59 490,388.65                   346.47                          
US Treasury Notes 0.625% 06/29/20 05/15/30 2,449 0.650% 250,000.00                      249,414.06                      188.16 249,602.22                   462.81                          
US Treasury Notes 3.750% 07/26/23 06/30/30 2,495 4.050% 250,000.00                      245,517.58                      65.53 245,583.11                   1,604.96                      
US Treasury Notes 0.625% 11/03/21 08/15/30 2,541 1.500% 250,000.00                      232,148.44                      3,708.40 235,856.84                   72.18                            
US Treasury Notes 0.875% 12/11/20 11/15/30 2,633 0.880% 200,000.00                      199,867.19                      36.33 199,903.52                   518.34                          
US Treasury Notes 1.125% 11/05/21 02/15/31 2,725 1.480% 175,000.00                      169,572.27                      1,065.05 170,637.32                   90.95                            
US Treasury Notes 1.250% 11/03/21 08/15/31 2,906 1.540% 250,000.00                      243,369.14                      1,236.67 244,605.81                   144.36                          
US Treasury Notes 1.375% 02/22/22 11/15/31 2,998 1.940% 450,000.00                      427,517.58                      3,518.22 431,035.80                   1,832.71                      
US Treasury Notes 2.875% 06/03/22 05/15/32 3,180 2.910% 250,000.00                      249,287.11                      89.26 249,376.37                   2,128.91                      
US Treasury Notes 4.125% 12/29/22 11/15/32 3,364 3.850% 200,000.00                      204,539.06                      (309.40) 204,229.66                   2,443.61                      
US Treasury Notes 3.375% 06/05/23 05/15/33 3,545 3.610% 300,000.00                      294,234.38                      139.70 294,374.08                   2,998.98                      

Inter-American Devel Bk Corp Notes 0.875% 04/13/21 04/20/26 963 0.970% 200,000.00                      199,084.00                      433.42 199,517.42                   636.81                          
 

OR ST Dept of Trans Txbl Rev Bonds 1.946% 11/07/19 11/15/23 76 1.950% 75,000.00                        75,000.00                        0.00 75,000.00                     429.74                          
Houston, TX Txbl GO Bonds 1.950% 08/23/19 03/01/24 183 1.950% 200,000.00                      200,000.00                      0.00 200,000.00                   1,950.00                      
New York St Urban Dev Corp SAL Bonds 2.020% 10/24/19 03/15/24 197 2.020% 175,000.00                      175,000.00                      0.00 175,000.00                   1,630.03                      
TX ST Trans Comm Txbl GO Bonds 4.000% 12/11/19 04/01/24 214 1.990% 105,000.00                      113,659.35                      (7,486.79) 106,172.56                   1,750.00                      
WI St Txbl GO Bonds 1.775% 02/11/20 05/01/24 244 1.780% 50,000.00                        50,000.00                        0.00 50,000.00                     295.83                          
WI St Txbl GO Bonds 1.857% 10/02/19 05/01/24 244 1.860% 75,000.00                        75,000.00                        0.00 75,000.00                     464.25                          
Connectict St A Txbl Municipal Bonds 1.998% 06/11/20 07/01/24 305 2.000% 30,000.00                        30,000.00                        0.00 30,000.00                     99.90                            
Tamalpais UHSD, CA Txbl GO Bonds 2.021% 09/20/19 08/01/24 336 2.020% 60,000.00                        60,000.00                        0.00 60,000.00                     101.05                          
NYC, NY Txbl GO Bonds 1.790% 10/04/19 10/01/24 397 1.790% 170,000.00                      170,000.00                      0.00 170,000.00                   1,267.92                      
NY ST Urban Dev Corp Bonds 1.115% 06/18/20 03/15/25 562 1.120% 105,000.00                      105,000.00                      0.00 105,000.00                   539.85                          
FL ST Board of Admin Txbl Rev 1.258% 09/16/20 07/01/25 670 1.260% 115,000.00                      115,000.00                      0.00 115,000.00                   241.12                          
Los Angeles CCD, CA Txbl GO Bonds 0.773% 11/10/20 08/01/25 701 0.770% 75,000.00                        75,000.00                        0.00 75,000.00                     48.31                            
New York St Dorm Auth Municipal Bonds 2.888% 03/25/22 03/15/27 1,292 2.890% 55,000.00                        55,000.00                        0.00 55,000.00                     732.43                          

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Commission Reports\August 2023\INV0823.xlsx 8

 
                                                            24 of 264



DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION
INVESTMENTS
(Unaudited)
August 31, 2023

YIELD TO AMORTIZED ACCRUED
COUPON PURCHASE MATURITY MATURITY PAR PURCHASE DISCOUNT INTEREST

FUND SOURCE RATE DATE DATE (COST) VALUE PRICE (PREMIUM) AMORTIZED COST 08/31/23

Water Fund L-T Water Capital Reserve (01-121900)  Continued…
FR ZT1267 2.500% 08/21/19 05/01/28 1,705 2.320% 26,163.98                        26,527.83                        (168.51) 26,359.32                     54.51                            
FNMA Pool #AU1266 3.000% 10/31/17 07/01/28 1,766 2.720% 31,116.65                        31,909.15                        (433.47) 31,475.68                     77.79                            
FG J32374 2.500% 02/17/22 11/01/28 1,889 2.220% 68,761.75                        69,965.09                        (275.65) 69,689.44                     143.25                          
Fannie Mae Pool 4.000% 03/18/19 03/01/29 2,009 3.630% 11,993.21                        12,362.40                        (165.30) 12,197.10                     39.98                            
FNMA Pool #AS4197 3.500% 07/16/15 01/01/30 2,315 3.000% 14,711.93                        15,576.29                        (485.76) 15,090.53                     42.91                            
FHLMC Pool #U49048 3.000% 03/17/16 08/01/30 2,527 2.630% 17,628.45                        18,402.45                        (401.60) 18,000.85                     44.07                            
FNMA Pool #AL7738 3.500% 02/17/16 11/01/30 2,619 2.960% 19,592.87                        20,863.36                        (651.21) 20,212.15                     57.15                            
FR ZS7331 3.000% 02/13/20 12/01/30 2,649 2.600% 54,706.34                        56,774.93                        (677.98) 56,096.95                     136.77                          
FN FM1082 3.000% 08/19/19 09/01/31 2,923 2.720% 36,934.36                        38,002.00                        (357.66) 37,644.34                     92.34                            
FG G16635 3.000% 04/18/19 02/01/32 3,076 2.930% 43,217.45                        43,560.14                        (116.90) 43,443.24                     108.04                          
FN FS2986 4.000% 10/21/22 10/01/32 3,319 4.370% 121,694.39                      118,081.60 313.25 118,394.85                   405.65                          
FN BM5462 3.000% 06/21/19 11/01/32 3,350 2.800% 55,026.94                        56,273.63                        (390.77) 55,882.86                     137.57                          
Freddie Mac Pool 4.000% 06/07/18 02/01/33 3,442 3.730% 13,768.97                        14,184.16                        (147.95) 14,036.21                     45.90                            
FN CA1455 4.000% 12/20/18 03/01/33 3,470 3.760% 37,262.39                        38,231.78                        (320.70) 37,911.08                     124.21                          
FN BM5830 3.500% 06/05/19 04/01/34 3,866 3.180% 45,337.26                        47,037.43                        (483.51) 46,553.92                     132.23                          
FN FM0047 3.000% 06/17/21 12/01/34 4,110 2.450% 63,015.79                        67,003.51                        (653.94) 66,349.57                     157.54                          
FR SB0759 4.500% 10/18/22 03/01/35 4,200 4.630% 87,633.89                        86,538.48                        77.12 86,615.60                     328.63                          
FR SB0364 3.500% 06/21/21 06/01/35 4,292 2.830% 57,472.81                        61,926.96                        (698.45) 61,228.51                     167.63                          
FR SB0666 4.000% 05/17/22 06/01/35 4,292 3.750% 123,002.47                      126,231.28                      (319.97) 125,911.31                   410.01                          
FN FM3701 2.500% 07/27/20 07/01/35 4,322 2.040% 52,668.18                        55,754.22                        (639.29) 55,114.93                     109.73                          
FR SB0361 3.000% 03/20/23 07/01/35 4,322 3.530% 113,014.25                      107,098.66                      217.58 107,316.24                   282.54                          
FN FM5714 4.000% 03/19/21 11/01/35 4,445 3.230% 45,589.16                        49,663.70                        (679.85) 48,983.85                     151.96                          
FHR 5050 XL 1.000% 02/11/22 07/01/36 4,688 1.180% 72,859.04                        71,128.62                        186.74 71,315.36                     60.72                            
FN FM8086 3.500% 10/15/21 07/01/51 10,166 3.090% 156,519.25                      168,869.57                      (770.11) 168,099.46                   456.51                          

FHMS K724 A2 3.062% 02/02/21 11/01/23 62 0.580% 72,177.66                        77,052.46                        (4,578.03) 72,474.43                     184.17                          
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Pool 2.951% 12/15/17 02/01/24 154 2.600% 7,526.09                          7,676.34                          (139.95) 7,536.39                        18.51                            
Fannie Mae ACES 3.346% 12/13/19 03/01/24 183 2.140% 22,209.48                        23,288.73                        (951.29) 22,337.44                     61.93                            
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Pool 3.064% 05/31/22 08/01/24 336 3.000% 443,082.05                      443,670.52                      (339.87) 443,330.65                   1,131.34                      
FHMS K047 A1 2.827% 06/21/19 12/01/24 458 2.490% 22,952.83                        23,347.33                        (303.90) 23,043.43                     54.07                            
FHMS K043 A2 3.062% 03/25/20 12/01/24 458 1.950% 50,000.00                        52,476.56                        (1,815.47) 50,661.09                     127.58                          
FHMS K046 A2 3.205% 08/08/22 03/01/25 548 3.510% 235,000.00                      233,246.68                      728.68 233,975.36                   627.65                          
FHMS K047 A2 3.329% 05/24/22 05/01/25 609 3.100% 220,000.00                      221,409.38                      (610.78) 220,798.60                   610.32                          
FHMS K736 A1 1.895% 09/04/19 06/01/25 640 1.800% 14,368.09                        14,439.92                        (49.81) 14,390.11                     22.69                            
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Pool 3.139% 04/11/19 06/01/25 640 2.780% 88,522.75                        90,293.11                        (1,264.43) 89,028.68                     231.56                          
FHMS K733 A2 3.750% 08/15/23 01/01/26 854 5.240% 129,417.95                      125,831.77                      85.03 125,916.80                   404.43                          
FHMS K054 A2 2.745% 04/14/23 01/01/26 854 4.370% 140,000.00                      134,203.13                      817.28 135,020.41                   320.25                          
FHMS KJ31 A1 0.569% 10/20/20 05/01/26 974 0.570% 7,802.07                          7,801.90                          0.09 7,801.99                        3.70                              
FHMS K737 A1 2.116% 01/22/20 06/01/26 1,005 2.030% 106,320.01                      106,850.97                      (300.59) 106,550.38                   187.48                          
FHMS K058 A2 2.653% 04/12/23 08/01/26 1,066 4.020% 240,000.00                      229,893.75                      1,188.97 231,082.72                   530.60                          
FHMS K061 A2 3.347% 05/24/23 11/01/26 1,158 4.310% 170,000.00                      164,767.19                      416.29 165,183.48                   474.16                          
FHMS K063 A2 3.430% 05/24/23 01/01/27 1,219 4.340% 245,000.00                      237,583.01                      562.75 238,145.76                   700.29                          
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Pool 3.243% 06/13/23 04/01/27 1,309 4.440% 265,000.00                      253,934.18                      637.80 254,571.98                   716.16                          
FHMS KJ40 A1 3.400% 07/14/22 06/01/28 1,736 3.400% 108,522.53                      108,521.21                      0.25 108,521.46                   307.48                          
FNA 2023-M6 A2 4.190% 07/31/23 07/01/28 1,766 4.580% 255,000.00                      250,676.95                      76.98 250,753.93                   890.38                          
FHMS K750 A1 3.000% 11/03/22 11/01/28 1,889 4.260% 200,823.07                      187,476.98                      1,840.42 189,317.40                   502.06                          
FHMS KJ45 A1 4.455% 05/25/23 11/01/28 1,889 4.460% 234,786.07                      234,785.60                      0.02 234,785.62                   871.64                          
FHMS KJ43 A1 4.377% 12/15/22 12/01/28 1,919 4.380% 224,334.53                      224,330.71                      0.46 224,331.17                   818.26                          
FHMS KJ44 A1 4.558% 02/23/23 01/25/29 1,974 4.560% 109,533.33                      109,529.92                      0.30 109,530.22                   416.04                          
FHMS K752 A1 4.284% 08/24/23 01/01/29 1,950 4.910% 115,000.00                      111,603.02                      13.89 111,616.91                   410.55                          
FHMS KJ42 A1 3.902% 09/15/22 07/01/29 2,131 3.900% 138,638.55                      138,633.26                      0.75 138,634.01                   450.81                          

FHR 4096 PA 1.375% 02/21/20 08/01/27 1,431 1.490% 47,769.76                        47,381.64                        183.55 47,565.19                     54.74                            
FNR 2012-145 EA 1.250% 02/07/20 01/01/28 1,584 1.440% 25,366.79                        25,007.11                        161.98 25,169.09                     26.42                            
FNR 2013-39 MP 1.750% 12/09/19 05/01/28 1,705 1.860% 54,284.43                        53,826.39                        203.22 54,029.61                     79.16                            
Fannie Mae 2.500% 10/25/19 03/01/33 3,470 2.400% 36,728.46                        37,130.17                        (115.62) 37,014.55                     76.52                            
Freddie Mac 3.000% 05/03/19 04/01/34 3,866 2.960% 47,440.16                        47,673.65                        (67.66) 47,605.99                     118.60                          
FHR 3745 NP 4.000% 09/12/19 06/01/39 5,753 3.740% 4,909.17                          5,084.63                          (35.23) 5,049.40                        16.36                            
FNR 2015-33 P 2.500% 02/14/20 06/01/45 7,945 2.400% 38,030.45                        38,755.40                        (101.21) 38,654.19                     79.23                            
FNR 2016-79 HA 2.000% 06/05/20 11/01/46 8,463 1.830% 36,764.83                        38,109.05                        (164.26) 37,944.79                     61.27                            

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Commission Reports\August 2023\INV0823.xlsx 9

 
                                                            25 of 264



DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION
INVESTMENTS
(Unaudited)
August 31, 2023

YIELD TO AMORTIZED ACCRUED
COUPON PURCHASE MATURITY MATURITY PAR PURCHASE DISCOUNT INTEREST

FUND SOURCE RATE DATE DATE (COST) VALUE PRICE (PREMIUM) AMORTIZED COST 08/31/23

Water Fund L-T Water Capital Reserve (01-121900)  Continued…
FHLB Bonds 2.500% 02/14/19 02/13/24 166 2.580% 5,000.00                          4,982.30                          16.10 4,998.40                        6.25                              
Federal Farm Credit Banks Notes 0.875% 04/03/20 04/08/24 221 0.880% 345,000.00                      345,000.00                      0.00 345,000.00                   1,199.11                      
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 0.500% 04/15/20 04/14/25 592 0.600% 260,000.00                      258,710.40                      871.75 259,582.15                   494.72                          
Fannie Mae Notes 0.625% 04/22/20 04/22/25 600 0.670% 320,000.00                      319,340.80                      442.72 319,783.52                   716.67                          
Fannie Mae Notes 0.500% 06/29/20 06/17/25 656 0.470% 500,000.00                      500,640.00                      (408.78) 500,231.22                   513.89                          
Freddie Mac Notes 0.375% 07/21/20 07/21/25 690 0.480% 115,000.00                      114,427.30                      356.37 114,783.67                   47.92                            
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 0.375% 09/10/20 09/04/25 735 0.440% 40,000.00                        39,880.00                        71.58 39,951.58                     73.75                            
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 1.100% 07/20/22 08/20/26 1,085 3.410% 250,000.00                      228,122.50                      5,982.59 234,105.09                   84.03                            
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 1.100% 08/03/22 08/20/26 1,085 3.000% 255,000.00                      236,627.25                      4,897.74 241,524.99                   85.71                            
FNMA Benchmark Note 1.875% 12/20/18 09/24/26 1,120 2.970% 500,000.00                      462,350.00                      22,783.96 485,133.96                   4,088.54                      
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 0.830% 08/19/22 02/10/27 1,259 3.370% 245,000.00                      219,338.70                      5,929.08 225,267.78                   118.62                          
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 1.020% 08/16/22 02/24/27 1,273 3.240% 255,000.00                      231,333.45                      5,454.90 236,788.35                   50.58                            
Fannie Mae Notes 0.750% 10/07/20 10/08/27 1,499 0.770% 210,000.00                      209,699.70                      124.23 209,823.93                   625.63                          
Fannie Mae Notes 0.875% 08/05/20 08/05/30 2,531 0.930% 100,000.00                      99,485.00                        158.13 99,643.13                     63.19                            
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 3.500% 08/05/22 06/11/32 3,207 3.120% 230,000.00                      237,378.40                      (803.87) 236,574.53                   1,788.89                      

Bank of America Corp Notes 3.841% 06/30/23 04/25/25 603 4.930% 255,000.00                      250,203.45                      454.41 250,657.86                   3,428.09                      
Citigroup Inc Corp Notes 4.140% 07/06/23 05/24/25 632 5.080% 125,000.00                      122,917.50                      172.53 123,090.03                   1,394.38                      
Morgan Stanley 2.720% 08/14/23 07/22/25 691 4.320% 130,000.00                      126,167.60                      97.43 126,265.03                   383.07                          
BMW US Capital LLC 5.300% 08/11/23 08/11/25 711 5.300% 200,000.00                      199,988.00                      0.34 199,988.34                   588.89                          
Wells Fargo & Co 2.164% 06/30/23 02/11/26 895 4.530% 130,000.00                      122,493.80                      494.14 122,987.94                   156.29                          
Merck & Co Inc Corp Notes 0.750% 03/15/23 02/24/26 908 4.570% 125,000.00                      112,001.25                      2,051.80 114,053.05                   18.23                            
JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.595% 06/30/23 02/24/26 908 4.630% 260,000.00                      246,919.40                      849.56 247,768.96                   131.19                          
Goldman Sachs Group Inc 3.750% 08/14/23 02/25/26 909 5.400% 125,000.00                      120,177.50                      93.74 120,271.24                   78.13                            
Eli Lilly & Co Corp Notes 5.000% 02/27/23 02/27/26 911 5.060% 100,000.00                      99,835.00                        28.00 99,863.00                     55.56                            
Colgate Palmolive Co Corp Notes 4.800% 03/02/23 03/02/26 914 4.820% 230,000.00                      229,868.90                      21.89 229,890.79                   5,520.00                      
John Deere Capital Corp Notes 5.050% 03/03/23 03/03/26 915 5.050% 110,000.00                      109,987.90                      2.01 109,989.91                   2,746.64                      
Roche Holdings Inc Corp Notes 0.991% 04/05/23 03/05/26 917 4.240% 200,000.00                      182,346.00                      2,469.90 184,815.90                   968.98                          
Commonwealth Bk Austr NY Corp Notes 5.316% 03/13/23 03/13/26 925 5.320% 250,000.00                      250,000.00                      0.00 250,000.00                   6,202.00                      
Paccar Financial Corp Corp Notes 4.450% 03/30/23 03/30/26 942 4.470% 115,000.00                      114,922.95                      10.90 114,933.85                   2,146.51                      
Walmart Inc Corp Notes 4.000% 04/18/23 04/15/26 958 4.020% 50,000.00                        49,978.00                        2.74 49,980.74                     738.89                          
Caterpillar Finl Serv Corp Notes 4.350% 05/15/23 05/15/26 988 4.370% 190,000.00                      189,910.70                      8.88 189,919.58                   2,433.58                      
Toyota Motor Credit Corp Notes 4.450% 05/18/23 05/18/26 991 4.470% 150,000.00                      149,913.00                      8.41 149,921.41                   1,909.79                      
State Street Corp Notes 5.104% 05/18/23 05/18/26 991 5.100% 175,000.00                      175,000.00                      0.00 175,000.00                   2,555.54                      
Bank of New York Mellon Corp Notes 5.148% 05/24/23 05/22/26 995 5.150% 350,000.00                      350,000.00                      0.00 350,000.00                   4,854.85                      
Bristol Myers Squibb Co 3.200% 08/14/23 06/15/26 1,019 4.850% 130,000.00                      124,373.60                      97.76 124,471.36                   878.22                          
American Honda Finance Corp Notes 5.250% 07/07/23 07/07/26 1,041 5.290% 105,000.00                      104,870.85                      6.60 104,877.45                   826.88                          
State Street Corp Notes 5.272% 08/03/23 08/03/26 1,068 5.270% 70,000.00                        70,000.00                        0.00 70,000.00                     287.03                          
Bank of America 5.526% 08/18/23 08/18/26 1,083 5.530% 250,000.00                      250,000.00                      0.00 250,000.00                   498.88                          

Wells Fargo Bank NA 5.450% 08/09/23 08/07/26 1,072 5.450% 250,000.00                      249,980.00                      0.42 249,980.42                   832.64                          
Weighted Avg Maturity 1,609 2.739% 27,216,651.42$               26,962,387.41$               39,649.60$             27,002,037.01$            122,251.75$                

Capital Reserve (01-122000)
IIIT - Money Market (PFM Asset Management) 5.416% 08/31/23 09/01/23 1 5.416% 191,619.80                      191,619.80                      0.00 191,619.80                   -                                

US Treasury Notes 2.250% 11/05/21 12/31/23 122 0.510% 50,000.00                        51,861.33                        (1,574.79) 50,286.54                     192.60                          
US Treasury Notes 0.125% 04/26/21 02/15/24 168 0.300% 1,000,000.00                   995,234.37                      3,988.42 999,222.79                   57.74                            
US Treasury Notes 0.250% 04/01/21 03/15/24 197 0.340% 1,600,000.00                   1,595,687.50                   3,526.22 1,599,213.72                1,847.83                      
US Treasury Notes 0.375% 04/26/21 04/15/24 228 0.340% 2,000,000.00                   2,001,953.13                   (1,544.13) 2,000,409.00                2,848.36                      
US Treasury Notes 0.250% 06/02/21 05/15/24 258 0.300% 1,700,000.00                   1,697,343.75                   2,021.81 1,699,365.56                1,258.83                      
US Treasury Notes 0.250% 06/29/21 06/15/24 289 0.460% 750,000.00                      745,371.09                      3,395.68 748,766.77                   399.59                          
US Treasury Notes 0.375% 10/05/21 09/15/24 381 0.510% 1,300,000.00                   1,294,820.31                   3,348.73 1,298,169.04                2,252.04                      
US Treasury Notes 1.125% 02/07/22 01/15/25 503 1.500% 965,000.00                      954,746.88                      5,456.23 960,203.11                   1,416.03                      
US Treasury Notes 1.375% 01/31/23 01/31/25 519 4.280% 2,000,000.00                   1,889,765.63                   32,120.27 1,921,885.90                2,391.30                      
US Treasury Notes 1.500% 04/04/22 02/15/25 534 2.650% 1,000,000.00                   968,398.44                      15,529.39 983,927.83                   692.93                          
US Treasury Notes 2.000% 01/31/23 02/15/25 534 4.270% 1,350,000.00                   1,290,621.09                   16,954.03 1,307,575.12                1,247.28                      
US Treasury Notes 1.125% 09/02/21 02/28/25 547 0.520% 2,000,000.00                   2,041,953.13                   (23,987.32) 2,017,965.81                61.81                            
US Treasury Notes 0.500% 03/04/22 03/31/25 578 1.650% 400,000.00                      386,250.00                      6,685.22 392,935.22                   841.53                          
US Treasury Notes 2.625% 05/04/22 04/15/25 593 2.910% 1,350,000.00                   1,339,242.19                   4,844.51 1,344,086.70                13,458.50                    
US Treasury Notes 0.375% 02/08/22 04/30/25 608 1.580% 3,000,000.00                   2,887,031.25                   54,708.74 2,941,739.99                3,790.76                      
US Treasury Notes 2.750% 06/08/22 05/15/25 623 2.910% 3,000,000.00                   2,986,757.81                   5,558.76 2,992,316.57                24,436.14                    
US Treasury Notes 2.875% 07/06/22 06/15/25 654 2.860% 1,850,000.00                   1,850,505.86                   (198.58) 1,850,307.28                11,335.04                    
US Treasury Notes 3.000% 08/03/22 07/15/25 684 2.780% 645,000.00                      649,031.25                      (1,474.76) 647,556.49                   2,523.91                      
US Treasury Notes 3.000% 08/03/22 07/15/25 684 2.910% 1,000,000.00                   1,002,500.00                   (914.58) 1,001,585.42                3,913.04                      
US Treasury Notes 3.000% 08/05/22 07/15/25 684 3.060% 1,400,000.00                   1,397,539.06                   897.38 1,398,436.44                5,478.26                      
US Treasury Notes 0.250% 06/10/22 07/15/25 684 3.020% 2,500,000.00                   2,293,847.66                   80,519.83 2,374,367.49                543.48                          
US Treasury Notes 4.250% 11/03/22 10/15/25 776 4.460% 500,000.00                      497,070.31                      821.51 497,891.82                   8,070.36                      
US Treasury Notes 3.000% 12/07/22 10/31/25 792 4.130% 900,000.00                      872,472.66                      6,966.31 879,438.97                   9,097.83                      
US Treasury Notes 4.500% 12/07/22 11/15/25 807 4.120% 1,785,000.00                   1,803,338.09                   (4,575.99) 1,798,762.10                23,791.92                    
US Treasury Notes 4.000% 03/03/23 02/15/26 899 4.610% 230,000.00                      226,190.63                      641.95 226,832.58                   425.00                          
US Treasury Notes 0.750% 05/05/23 04/30/26 973 3.830% 1,750,000.00                   1,599,062.50                   16,463.39 1,615,525.89                4,422.55                      
US Treasury Notes 3.625% 06/02/23 05/15/26 988 3.990% 1,000,000.00                   989,882.81                      854.05 990,736.86                   10,737.09                    
US Treasury Notes 4.125% 07/10/23 06/15/26 1,019 4.650% 1,275,000.00                   1,256,771.48                   902.06 1,257,673.54                11,208.50                    

Asian Development Bank Corp Notes 0.375% 06/02/21 06/11/24 285 0.400% 1,270,000.00                   1,269,238.00                   564.91 1,269,802.91                1,058.33                      
Asian Development Bank Corp Notes 0.625% 10/06/21 10/08/24 404 0.640% 420,000.00                      419,773.20                      143.56 419,916.76                   1,042.71                      

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Commission Reports\August 2023\INV0823.xlsx 10

 
                                                            26 of 264



DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION
INVESTMENTS
(Unaudited)
August 31, 2023

YIELD TO AMORTIZED ACCRUED
COUPON PURCHASE MATURITY MATURITY PAR PURCHASE DISCOUNT INTEREST

FUND SOURCE RATE DATE DATE (COST) VALUE PRICE (PREMIUM) AMORTIZED COST 08/31/23

Capital Reserve (01-122000) Continued…
CT ST Txble GO Bonds 0.508% 06/04/21 06/01/24 275 0.510% 540,000.00                      540,000.00                      0.00 540,000.00                   685.80                          
New York St Dorm Auth Municipal Bonds 2.566% 03/25/22 03/15/25 562 2.570% 190,000.00                      190,000.00                      0.00 190,000.00                   2,248.10                      
Los Angeles CCD, CA Txbl GO Bonds 0.773% 11/10/20 08/01/25 701 0.770% 225,000.00                      225,000.00                      0.00 225,000.00                   144.94                          
Conneticut St Txbl 5.050% 06/22/23 05/15/26 988 4.550% 90,000.00                        91,206.90                        (80.99) 91,125.91                     871.13                          

FN AL2092 3.000% 03/06/18 07/01/27 1,400 2.980% 70,142.65                        70,230.32                        (51.54) 70,178.78                     175.36                          
Fannie Mae Pool 3.500% 04/05/18 02/01/28 1,615 3.230% 110,256.20                      112,771.42                      (1,384.11) 111,387.31                   321.58                          
Fannie Mae Pool 3.500% 04/05/18 03/01/28 1,644 3.230% 58,770.81                        60,111.50                        (731.86) 59,379.64                     171.41                          
Fannie Mae Pool 3.500% 04/05/18 04/01/28 1,675 3.240% 76,405.68                        78,077.06                        (904.62) 77,172.44                     222.85                          
FR ZT1267 2.500% 08/21/19 05/01/28 1,705 2.320% 68,680.39                        69,635.48                        (442.34) 69,193.14                     143.08                          
FN CA1940 4.000% 07/11/18 06/01/28 1,736 3.640% 77,189.03                        79,480.59                        (1,190.82) 78,289.77                     257.30                          
FG J32374 2.500% 02/17/22 11/01/28 1,889 2.220% 203,941.11                      207,510.08                      (817.55) 206,692.53                   424.88                          
Fannie Mae Pool 4.000% 03/18/19 03/01/29 2,009 3.630% 33,409.65                        34,438.03                        (460.45) 33,977.58                     111.37                          
FN FS2986 4.000% 10/21/22 10/01/32 3,319 4.370% 340,744.32                      330,628.47 877.10 331,505.57                   1,135.81                      
FR SB0364 3.500% 06/21/21 06/01/35 4,292 2.830% 172,418.39                      185,780.81                      (2,095.35) 183,685.46                   502.89                          
FHR 5050 XL 1.000% 02/11/22 07/01/36 4,688 1.180% 216,369.24                      211,230.48                      554.56 211,785.04                   180.31                          

FHMS K724 A2 3.062% 02/02/21 11/01/23 62 0.580% 212,734.18                      227,102.05                      (13,493.18) 213,608.87                   542.83                          
Fannie Mae ACES 3.346% 12/13/19 03/01/24 183 2.140% 59,614.93                        62,511.85                        (2,553.44) 59,958.41                     166.23                          
FHMS K047 A1 2.827% 06/18/19 12/01/24 458 2.490% 61,385.53                        62,440.60                        (812.78) 61,627.82                     144.61                          
FHMS K046 A2 3.205% 08/08/22 03/01/25 548 3.510% 645,000.00                      640,187.70                      1,999.98 642,187.68                   1,722.69                      
FHMS K047 A2 3.329% 05/24/22 05/01/25 609 3.100% 650,000.00                      654,164.06                      (1,804.56) 652,359.50                   1,803.21                      
FHLMC Series K049 A2 3.010% 09/06/22 07/01/25 670 3.770% 520,000.00                      509,457.81                      3,688.23 513,146.04                   1,304.33                      
FHMS K733 A2 3.750% 08/15/23 01/01/26 854 5.240% 338,477.71                      329,098.49                      222.38 329,320.87                   1,057.74                      
FHMS K054 A2 2.745% 04/14/23 01/01/26 854 4.370% 385,000.00                      369,058.59                      2,247.53 371,306.12                   880.69                          
FHMS KJ31 A1 0.569% 10/20/20 05/01/26 974 0.570% 22,848.89                        22,848.41                        0.25 22,848.66                     10.83                            
FHMS K058 A2 2.653% 04/12/23 08/01/26 1,066 4.020% 675,000.00                      646,576.17                      3,343.98 649,920.15                   1,492.31                      
FHMS K061 A2 3.347% 05/24/23 11/01/26 1,158 4.310% 470,000.00                      455,532.81                      1,150.93 456,683.74                   1,310.91                      
FHMS K063 A2 3.430% 05/24/23 01/01/27 1,219 4.340% 675,000.00                      654,565.43                      1,550.42 656,115.85                   1,929.38                      
FHMS K505 A1 4.612% 07/20/23 02/25/28 1,639 4.610% 639,910.72                      639,897.28                      0.35 639,897.63                   2,459.39                      
FNA 2023-M6 A2 4.190% 07/31/23 07/01/28 1,766 4.580% 645,000.00                      634,065.23                      194.72 634,259.95                   2,252.13                      

FHR 4096 PA 1.375% 02/21/20 08/01/27 1,431 1.490% 124,129.11                      123,120.57                      476.95 123,597.52                   142.23                          
FNR 2012-107 GA 1.500% 12/03/19 09/01/27 1,462 1.690% 52,645.23                        51,917.26                        351.62 52,268.88                     65.81                            
FNR 2013-39 MP 1.750% 12/09/19 05/01/28 1,705 1.860% 145,732.79                      144,503.17                      545.56 145,048.73                   212.53                          
FHR 3745 NP 4.000% 09/12/19 06/01/39 5,753 3.740% 15,173.73                        15,716.07                        (108.89) 15,607.18                     50.58                            
FNR 2015-33 P 2.500% 02/14/20 06/01/45 7,945 2.400% 99,830.01                        101,733.02                      (265.68) 101,467.34                   207.98                          

Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 4.875% 01/31/23 09/13/24 379 4.650% 2,000,000.00                   2,006,900.00                   (2,486.80) 2,004,413.20                45,500.00                    
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 4.625% 01/31/23 12/13/24 470 4.510% 2,000,000.00                   2,003,820.00                   (1,193.05) 2,002,626.95                20,041.67                    
Freddie Mac Notes 5.150% 01/24/23 01/24/25 512 5.150% 635,000.00                      635,000.00                      0.00 635,000.00                   3,361.09                      
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 1.100% 07/20/22 08/20/26 1,085 3.410% 705,000.00                      643,305.45                      16,870.90 660,176.35                   236.96                          
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 1.145% 08/14/23 12/30/26 1,217 4.060% 975,000.00                      895,118.25                      1,165.21 896,283.46                   2,395.52                      
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 0.830% 08/19/22 02/10/27 1,259 3.370% 675,000.00                      604,300.50                      16,335.21 620,635.71                   326.81                          
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 1.020% 08/16/22 02/24/27 1,273 3.240% 710,000.00                      644,104.90                      15,188.16 659,293.06                   140.82                          

Bank of America Corp Notes 3.841% 06/30/23 04/25/25 603 4.930% 665,000.00                      652,491.35                      1,185.03 653,676.38                   8,939.93                      
Citigroup Inc Corp Notes 4.140% 07/06/23 05/24/25 632 5.080% 320,000.00                      314,668.80                      441.68 315,110.48                   3,569.60                      
Morgan Stanley 2.720% 08/14/23 07/22/25 691 4.320% 335,000.00                      325,124.20                      251.08 325,375.28                   987.13                          
BMW US Capital LLC 5.300% 08/11/23 08/11/25 711 5.300% 515,000.00                      514,969.10                      0.89 514,969.99                   1,516.39                      
Wells Fargo & Co 2.164% 06/30/23 02/11/26 895 4.530% 340,000.00                      320,368.40                      1,292.36 321,660.76                   408.76                          
Merck & Co Inc Corp Notes 0.750% 03/15/23 02/24/26 908 4.570% 360,000.00                      322,563.60                      5,909.18 328,472.78                   52.50                            
JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.595% 06/30/23 02/24/26 908 4.630% 680,000.00                      645,789.20                      2,221.94 648,011.14                   343.12                          
Goldman Sachs Group Inc 3.750% 08/14/23 02/25/26 909 5.400% 330,000.00                      317,268.60                      247.48 317,516.08                   206.25                          
Eli Lilly & Co Corp Notes 5.000% 02/27/23 02/27/26 911 5.060% 290,000.00                      289,521.50                      81.21 289,602.71                   161.11                          
Colgate Palmolive Co Corp Notes 4.800% 03/02/23 03/02/26 914 4.820% 635,000.00                      634,638.05                      60.44 634,698.49                   15,240.00                    
John Deere Capital Corp Notes 5.050% 03/03/23 03/03/26 915 5.050% 315,000.00                      314,965.35                      5.75 314,971.10                   7,865.38                      
Roche Holdings Inc Corp Notes 0.991% 04/05/23 03/05/26 917 4.240% 525,000.00                      478,658.25                      6,483.49 485,141.74                   2,543.57                      
Nestle Holdings Inc Corp Notes 5.250% 03/14/23 03/13/26 925 5.260% 240,000.00                      239,920.80                      12.37 239,933.17                   5,845.00                      
Commonwealth Bk Austr NY Corp Notes 5.316% 03/13/23 03/13/26 925 5.320% 635,000.00                      635,000.00                      0.00 635,000.00                   15,753.08                    
Paccar Financial Corp Corp Notes 4.450% 03/30/23 03/30/26 942 4.470% 320,000.00                      319,785.60                      30.32 319,815.92                   5,972.89                      
Walmart Inc Corp Notes 4.000% 04/18/23 04/15/26 958 4.020% 140,000.00                      139,938.40                      7.66 139,946.06                   2,068.89                      
Caterpillar Finl Serv Corp Notes 4.350% 05/15/23 05/15/26 988 4.370% 540,000.00                      539,746.20                      25.24 539,771.44                   6,916.50                      
Toyota Motor Credit Corp Notes 4.450% 05/18/23 05/18/26 991 4.470% 410,000.00                      409,762.20                      23.00 409,785.20                   5,220.10                      
State Street Corp Notes 5.104% 05/18/23 05/18/26 991 5.100% 490,000.00                      490,000.00                      0.00 490,000.00                   7,155.52                      
Bank of New York Mellon Corp Notes 5.148% 05/24/23 05/22/26 995 5.150% 975,000.00                      975,000.00                      0.00 975,000.00                   13,524.23                    
Bristol Myers Squibb Co 3.200% 08/14/23 06/15/26 1,019 4.850% 340,000.00                      325,284.80                      255.67 325,540.47                   2,296.89                      
American Honda Finance Corp Notes 5.250% 07/07/23 07/07/26 1,041 5.290% 270,000.00                      269,667.90                      16.97 269,684.87                   2,126.25                      
State Street Corp Notes 5.272% 08/03/23 08/03/26 1,068 5.270% 200,000.00                      200,000.00                      0.00 200,000.00                   820.09                          
Bank of America 5.526% 08/18/23 08/18/26 1,083 5.530% 320,000.00                      320,000.00                      0.00 320,000.00                   638.56                          

Wells Fargo Bank NA 5.450% 08/09/23 08/07/26 1,072 5.450% 650,000.00                      649,948.00                      1.09 649,949.09                   2,164.86                      
Weighted Avg Maturity 748 3.113% 67,632,430.10$               66,354,108.32$               287,081.69$           66,641,190.01$            360,533.98$                

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 3.145% 203,655,753.64$             200,608,323.65$             759,250.37 201,367,574.02$          820,542.01$                
Less: Net Unsettled Trades -                                 

201,367,574.02$          
August 31, 2023 90 DAY US TREASURY YIELD 5.56%

3 month US Treasury Bill Index 5.41%
0-3 Year US Treasury Index 5.03%
1-3 Year US Treasury Index 4.97%
1-5 Year US Treasury Index 4.74%
1-10 Year US Treasury Index 4.57%

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Commission Reports\August 2023\INV0823.xlsx 11

 
                                                            27 of 264



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
       ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

TREASURER'S REPORT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

        For the Period from May 1, 2023 to August 31, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 52,635,853
Cash payments to suppliers (51,605,576)
Cash payments to employees (1,249,230)

Net cash from operating activities (218,953)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from sales taxes 11,023
Cash received/paid from long term loans 193,828
Cash payments for net pension activity 0

Net cash from noncapital financing activities 204,851

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid 0
Principal paid 0
Escrow activity 2,166,470
Construction and purchase of capital assets (2,027,787)

Net cash from capital and related financing activities 138,683

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income 1,001,101

Net cash from investing activities 1,001,101

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash and investments 1,125,682

CASH AND INVESTMENTS, MAY 1, 2023 227,736,057

CASH AND INVESTMENTS, AUGUST 31, 2023 $ 228,861,739

 12  
                                                            28 of 264



August 31, 2023
TREASURER'S REPORT
DPWC MONTHLY CASH/OPERATING REPORT

YEAR END TARGETED Amount Amount
Reserve or Monthly Cash On Hand Over - (Under)

Amount-Needed Target
TABLE 1 A B C
RESERVE ANALYSIS

A .Operating Reserve 75,542,631$                              75,777,355$          234,724$           
     # of days per current fiscal year management budget 180                                             181                         
B. Capital Reserve 60,500,000$                              66,114,596$          5,614,596$        

C. Long Term Water Capital Reserve 24,625,000$                              27,002,037$          2,377,037$        

D. O+M Account (1) 14,975,455$                              25,858,734$          10,883,278$     

E. Current Construction Obligation 526,594$                                   526,594$                -$                    

F. Customer Construction Escrows (2) 4,399,699$                                4,399,699$             -$                    

TOTAL SUMMARY CASH + RESERVE ANALYSIS 180,569,379$                            199,679,014$        19,109,635$     

TABLE 2
OTHER CASH
G. General Fund 29,182,725$          
TOTAL TABLE 2-OTHER CASH 29,182,725$          

TOTAL MONTH END FUNDS CASH BALANCE-Table1+2 228,861,739$        

Note 1:  The O&M Account target varies from month to month.  The cash 
balance should be enough to cover the current months operating cash outflows. 

Note 2:   Escrow Balances include specific bank accounts and amounts included 
in the O&M Account until required

13

8/31/2023

 
                                                            29 of 264



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 1 | 

 

To: Paul May, General Manager 

From: Cheryl Peterson, Financial Administrator  

Date: 9/12/2023 

Subject: Financial Report – August 31, 2023  

 

• Water sales to Commission customers for August 2023 were 20.7 million gallons (0.8%) above August 
2022 and increased by 141.5 million gallons compared to July 2023. Year-to-date water sales are up by 
270.3 million gallons or 2.6% compared to the prior fiscal year. 

• Water sales to Commission customers for August were 158.0 million gallons (6.2%) higher than the 
budgeted anticipated/forecasted sales for the month. Year-to-date water sales were 929.4 million 
gallons (9.5%) above the budgeted anticipated/forecasted sales. 

• For the month of August, water billings to customers for O&M costs were $14.6 million and water 
purchases from the City of Chicago were $12.6 million. Water billing receivables at the August month 
end ($17.7 million) were down compared to the prior month ($18.6 million) primarily due to timing of 
receivables.  

• For the four months ended August 31, 2023, $60.5 million of the $141.2 million revenue budget has 
been realized. Therefore, 43% of the revenue budget has been accounted for year to date. For the 
same period, $57.2 million of the $148.1 million expenditure budget has been realized, and this 
accounts for 39% of the expenditure budget.   

• Adjusted for seasonality based on a monthly trend, year to date revenues are 111% percent of the 
current budget and expenses are 102% of the current budget. 

• The Operating Reserve, Capital Reserve and Long-Term Water Capital Accounts have reached their 
respective 2023/2024 fiscal year end minimum targeted levels.   

• The O&M and General Account have balances of $27.6 million and $29.2 million, respectively. 

     

cc:  Chairman and Commissioners 

 

 
                                                            30 of 264



0

500,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,500,000,000

2,000,000,000

2,500,000,000

3,000,000,000

3,500,000,000

May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr

Water Usage (in gallons) 

2021-22

2022-23

2023-24

2  
                                                            31 of 264



Account / Reserve 
Assets Balance (1) Offsetting Liabilities

Year-End Specific 
Account Target Status

Operations and Maintenance Account (2) 30,258,432.10$      19,375,153.91$      Positive Net Assets
General Account 29,195,435.22$      -$                          Positive Net Assets
Operating Reserve 76,102,401.14$      75,542,631.00$      Target Met
Capital Reserve 67,001,723.99$      61,026,593.95$      Target Met
L-T Water Capital Reserve 27,124,288.76$      24,625,000.00$      Target Met

229,682,281.21$    19,375,153.91$      161,194,224.95$    49,112,902.35$          

Total Net Assets - All Commission Accounts
Unrestricted 229,929,798.16$    
Invested in Capital Assets, net 322,836,943.17$    

Total 552,766,741.33$    

(1) Includes Interest Receivable
(2) Includes Customer Escrow Accounts and Customer Deposit Liability Accounts

Revenue Bond Ordinance Accounts and 
Commission Policy Reserves

DuPage Water Commission
Summary of Specific Account Target and Summary of Net Assets

August 31, 2023

3  
                                                            32 of 264



9/13/2023 9:00:05 AM Page 1 of 1

Board Balance Sheet
DuPage Water Commission Account Summary

As Of 08/31/2023

Current Year
Balance

Prior Year
Balance

Variance
Favorable /

(Unfavorable)

Fund: 01 - WATER FUND
Assets

Level1: 10 - CURRENT ASSETS

110 - CASH 27,494,165.18 35,641,983.37 -8,147,818.19

120 - INVESTMENTS 201,367,574.02 184,014,966.45 17,352,607.57

131 - WATER SALES 17,696,087.05 17,592,320.68 103,766.37

132 - INTEREST RECEIVABLE 820,542.01 437,586.31 382,955.70

134 - OTHER RECEIVABLE -6,039,526.34 -6,144,826.19 105,299.85

135 - LOAN RECEIVABLE - CURRENT 148,724.03 144,649.69 4,074.34

150 - INVENTORY 177,768.00 177,768.00 0.00

155 - PREPAIDS 412,046.35 400,700.69 11,345.66

Total Level1 10 - CURRENT ASSETS: 242,077,380.30 232,265,149.00 9,812,231.30

Level1: 17 - NONCURRENT ASSETS

170 - FIXED ASSETS 537,026,918.22 535,938,023.50 1,088,894.72

175 - LESS: ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -223,667,507.20 -214,432,634.29 -9,234,872.91

180 - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 9,477,532.15 2,460,286.01 7,017,246.14

190 - LONG-TERM ASSETS 11,697,240.12 14,629,946.29 -2,932,706.17

Total Level1 17 - NONCURRENT ASSETS: 334,534,183.29 338,595,621.51 -4,061,438.22

576,611,563.59Total Assets: 570,860,770.51 5,750,793.08

Liability

Level1: 21 - CURRENT LIABILITIES

210 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 13,558,739.04 12,341,892.10 -1,216,846.94

211 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,030,735.54 613,549.92 -417,185.62

225 - ACCRUED PAYROLL LIABILITIES 77,383.83 203,831.81 126,447.98

226 - ACCRUED VACATION 308,596.91 271,964.19 -36,632.72

250 - CONTRACT RETENTION 526,593.95 0.00 -526,593.95

251 - CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 4,399,698.59 130,542.50 -4,269,156.09

270 - DEFERRED REVENUE 2,856,619.40 4,519,103.16 1,662,483.76

Total Level1 21 - CURRENT LIABILITIES: 22,758,367.26 18,080,883.68 -4,677,483.58

Level1: 25 - NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

297 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS LIABILITIES 1,086,455.00 3,769,823.00 2,683,368.00

Total Level1 25 - NONCURRENT LIABILITIES: 1,086,455.00 3,769,823.00 2,683,368.00

23,844,822.26Total Liability: 21,850,706.68 -1,994,115.58

Equity

Level1: 30 - EQUITY

300 - EQUITY 549,497,155.95 546,719,532.78 2,777,623.17

Total Level1 30 - EQUITY: 549,497,155.95 546,719,532.78 2,777,623.17

549,497,155.95Total Beginning Equity: 546,719,532.78 2,777,623.17

60,450,047.20Total Revenue 55,435,198.88 5,014,848.32

57,180,461.82Total Expense 53,144,667.83 -4,035,793.99

3,269,585.38Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses 2,290,531.05 979,054.33

Total Liabilities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit): 576,611,563.59

552,766,741.33Total Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit): 549,010,063.83

570,860,770.51

3,756,677.50

5,750,793.08

 
                                                            33 of 264



Page 1 of 59/12/2023 2:12:21 PM

Monthly & YTD Budget Report

… … August
2023-2024

Budget

August
2023-2024

Activity
2023-2024

Seasonal YT…
2023-2024

YTD Activity
Seasonal Percent

Used
2023-2024

Total Budget
Total Percent Used

01 - WATER FUND

Revenue

510 - WATER SERVICE

% of Year Completed: 33%

-13,419,383.36 -14,281,538.04 -51,516,111.02 -56,535,300.36 110% -132,602,602.44 43%01-511100 O&M PAYMENTS- GOVERNMENTAL

-329,984.68 -315,821.66 -1,266,789.01 -1,235,813.81 98% -3,260,718.23 38%01-511200 O&M PAYMENTS- PRIVATE

-189,606.24 -189,606.24 -758,424.96 -758,424.96 100% -2,275,274.88 33%01-513100 SUBSEQUENT CUSTOMER - GO

-173,572.50 -173,572.50 -694,290.00 -694,290.00 100% -2,082,870.00 33%01-513200 SUBSEQUENT CUSTOMER - PRIVAT

-1,175.85 -3,853.85 -4,703.40 -21,452.20 456% -21,775.00 99%01-514100 EMERGENCY WATER SERVICE- GOV
510 - WATER SERVICE Totals: -14,113,722.63 -14,964,392.29 -54,240,318.39 -59,245,281.33 109% -140,243,240.55 42%

520 - TAXES

% of Year Completed: 33%

0.00 -757.64 0.00 -11,023.06 0% 0.00 0%01-530010 SALES TAXES - WATER REVENUE
520 - TAXES Totals: 0.00 -757.64 0.00 -11,023.06 0% 0.00 0%

540 - OTHER INCOME

% of Year Completed: 33%

-66,640.00 -204,201.58 -266,560.00 -1,136,835.84 426% -800,000.00 142%01-581000 INVESTMENT INCOME

-15,776.02 0.00 -63,104.08 -47,631.99 75% -189,388.00 25%01-582000 INTEREST INCOME

0.00 0.00 0.00 -9,274.98 0% 0.00 0%01-590000 OTHER INCOME
540 - OTHER INCOME Totals: -82,416.02 -204,201.58 -329,664.08 -1,193,742.81 362% -989,388.00 121%

Revenue Totals: -14,196,138.65 -15,169,351.51 -54,569,982.47 -60,450,047.20 111% -141,232,628.55 43%

 
                                                            34 of 264



Monthly & YTD Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 8/31/2023

Page 2 of 59/12/2023 2:12:22 PM

… … August
2023-2024

Budget

August
2023-2024

Activity
2023-2024

Seasonal YT…
2023-2024

YTD Activity
Seasonal Percent

Used
2023-2024

Total Budget
Total Percent Used

Expense

610 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

% of Year Completed: 33%

147,886.72 130,144.49 643,894.40 520,237.37 81% 1,990,400.00 26%01-60-611100 ADMIN SALARIES

187,345.00 168,411.83 735,140.00 617,692.32 84% 2,225,000.00 28%01-60-611200 OPERATIONS SALARIES

0.00 2,304.00 34,560.00 8,352.00 24% 36,000.00 23%01-60-611300 SUMMER INTERNS

616.67 0.00 2,466.64 434.11 18% 7,400.00 6%01-60-611600 ADMIN OVERTIME

25,498.50 23,358.57 107,467.49 87,540.01 81% 333,750.00 26%01-60-611700 OPERATIONS OVERTIME

23,302.29 6,630.23 93,209.16 25,288.37 27% 279,627.50 9%01-60-612100 PENSION

66,694.40 57,175.84 268,739.20 218,604.68 81% 980,800.00 22%01-60-612200 MEDICAL/LIFE BENEFITS

29,581.99 23,414.69 115,728.11 89,365.80 77% 351,330.08 25%01-60-612300 FEDERAL PAYROLL TAXES

1,148.33 47.87 4,593.32 161.27 4% 13,780.00 1%01-60-612800 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT

950.00 650.00 3,800.00 2,807.00 74% 11,400.00 25%01-60-613100 TRAVEL

6,437.50 3,343.00 25,750.00 9,932.34 39% 77,250.00 13%01-60-613200 TRAINING

5,775.00 1,155.00 23,100.00 2,219.00 10% 69,300.00 3%01-60-613301 CONFERENCES

1,666.66 0.00 6,666.64 2,432.00 36% 20,000.00 12%01-60-613302 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

2,125.00 2,634.10 8,500.00 8,653.84 102% 25,500.00 34%01-60-619100 OTHER PERSONNEL COSTS
610 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Totals: 499,028.06 419,269.62 2,073,614.96 1,593,720.11 77% 6,421,537.58 25%

620 - CONTRACT SERVICES

% of Year Completed: 33%

916.66 0.00 3,666.64 516.43 14% 11,000.00 5%01-60-621000 WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM

11,500.00 12,153.71 46,000.00 47,057.06 102% 138,000.00 34%01-60-623300 TRUST SERVICES & BANK CHARGE

8,333.33 963.50 33,333.32 20,815.41 62% 100,000.00 21%01-60-625100 LEGAL SERVICES- GENERAL

12,500.00 6,423.00 50,000.00 31,886.75 64% 150,000.00 21%01-60-625300 LEGAL SERVICES- SPECIAL

2,708.33 0.00 10,833.32 0.00 0% 32,500.00 0%01-60-625800 LEGAL NOTICES

6,000.00 0.00 33,000.00 20,000.00 61% 33,000.00 61%01-60-626000 AUDIT SERVICES

31,500.00 13,106.01 126,000.00 68,337.07 54% 378,000.00 18%01-60-628000 CONSULTING SERVICES

75,091.66 46,740.59 300,366.64 182,197.66 61% 901,100.00 20%01-60-629000 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
620 - CONTRACT SERVICES Totals: 148,549.98 79,386.81 603,199.92 370,810.38 61% 1,743,600.00 21%

640 - INSURANCE

% of Year Completed: 33%

13,666.66 7,107.14 54,666.64 32,638.32 60% 164,000.00 20%01-60-641100 GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

2,025.00 1,588.16 8,100.00 6,352.66 78% 24,300.00 26%01-60-641200 PUBLIC OFFICIAL LIABILITY

12,083.33 10,301.00 48,333.32 41,204.00 85% 145,000.00 28%01-60-641500 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

5,833.33 4,179.91 23,333.32 16,719.64 72% 70,000.00 24%01-60-641600 EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE

37,916.66 33,191.66 151,666.64 132,766.64 88% 455,000.00 29%01-60-642100 PROPERTY INSURANCE

2,500.00 2,271.17 10,000.00 7,689.68 77% 30,000.00 26%01-60-642200 AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE

8,333.33 15.00 33,333.32 9,234.90 28% 100,000.00 9%01-60-649100 SELF INSURANCE PROPERTY
640 - INSURANCE Totals: 82,358.31 58,654.04 329,433.24 246,605.84 75% 988,300.00 25%

 
                                                            35 of 264



Monthly & YTD Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 8/31/2023

Page 3 of 59/12/2023 2:12:22 PM

… … August
2023-2024

Budget

August
2023-2024

Activity
2023-2024

Seasonal YT…
2023-2024

YTD Activity
Seasonal Percent

Used
2023-2024

Total Budget
Total Percent Used

650 - OPERATIONAL SUPPORT SRVS

% of Year Completed: 33%

9,375.00 0.00 37,500.00 18,132.65 48% 112,500.00 16%01-60-651200 GENERATOR DIESEL FUEL

2,748.90 218.19 10,995.60 1,253.85 11% 33,000.00 4%01-60-651300 NATURAL GAS

6,388.33 5,938.05 25,553.32 14,912.80 58% 76,660.00 19%01-60-651401 TELEPHONE

2,189.12 14,674.00 8,756.48 18,270.00 209% 26,280.00 70%01-60-651403 RADIOS

250.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0% 3,000.00 0%01-60-651404 REPAIRS & EQUIPMENT

2,351.66 1,157.54 9,406.64 6,218.21 66% 28,220.00 22%01-60-652100 OFFICE SUPPLIES

670.83 4,400.00 2,683.32 4,575.87 171% 8,050.00 57%01-60-652200 BOOKS & PUBLICATIONS

1,258.33 113.00 5,033.32 202.00 4% 15,100.00 1%01-60-653100 PRINTING- GENERAL

533.33 327.36 2,133.32 444.06 21% 6,400.00 7%01-60-653200 POSTAGE & DELIVERY

1,618.75 0.00 6,475.00 7,171.00 111% 19,425.00 37%01-60-654000 PROFESSIONAL DUES

634.74 592.82 2,538.96 2,050.51 81% 7,620.00 27%01-60-655000 REPAIRS & MAINT- OFFICE EQUI

24,083.33 17,098.77 96,333.32 54,757.09 57% 289,000.00 19%01-60-656000 REPAIRS & MAINT- BLDGS & GRN

3,348.66 0.00 13,394.64 0.00 0% 40,200.00 0%01-60-658000 COMPUTER SOFTWARE

14,966.66 981.18 59,866.64 14,753.70 25% 179,600.00 8%01-60-659000 COMPUTER/SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

1,124.55 2,523.04 4,498.20 4,912.43 109% 13,500.00 36%01-60-659100 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
650 - OPERATIONAL SUPPORT SRVS Totals: 71,542.19 48,023.95 286,168.76 147,654.17 52% 858,555.00 17%

660 - WATER OPERATION

% of Year Completed: 33%

11,939,278.67 12,586,962.50 45,834,088.57 49,363,825.03 108% 117,977,061.98 42%01-60-661101 WATER BILLING

202,400.00 258,167.01 777,000.00 630,986.21 81% 2,000,000.00 32%01-60-661102 ELECTRICITY

65,000.00 40,000.00 260,000.00 159,020.85 61% 780,000.00 20%01-60-661103 OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

20,833.33 0.00 83,333.32 0.00 0% 250,000.00 0%01-60-661104 MAJOR MAINTENANCE

278,300.00 217,408.30 1,068,375.00 953,125.40 89% 2,750,000.00 35%01-60-661201 PUMP STATION

17,811.20 995.71 68,376.00 44,791.90 66% 176,000.00 25%01-60-661202 METER STATION, ROV, TANK SITE

4,825.00 5,328.00 19,300.00 13,931.50 72% 57,900.00 24%01-60-661300 WATER CHEMICALS

8,478.66 52.50 33,914.64 7,263.97 21% 101,744.00 7%01-60-661400 WATER TESTING

44,525.00 39,664.50 178,100.00 67,420.75 38% 534,300.00 13%01-60-662100 PUMPING SERVICES

3,375.00 0.00 13,500.00 3,172.94 24% 40,500.00 8%01-60-662300 METER TESTING & REPAIRS

3,991.66 7,374.69 15,966.64 7,836.04 49% 47,900.00 16%01-60-662400 SCADA / INSTRUMENTATION

500.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0% 6,000.00 0%01-60-662500 EQUIPMENT RENTAL

1,833.33 875.42 7,333.32 2,220.18 30% 22,000.00 10%01-60-662600 UNIFORMS

14,918.33 6,341.73 59,673.32 22,667.21 38% 179,020.00 13%01-60-662700 SAFETY

112,500.00 3,005.62 450,000.00 195,699.58 43% 1,350,000.00 14%01-60-663100 PIPELINE REPAIRS

28,750.00 42,259.33 115,000.00 90,491.86 79% 345,000.00 26%01-60-663200 COR TESTING & MITIGATION

33,216.66 28,264.90 132,866.64 34,963.96 26% 398,600.00 9%01-60-663300 REMOTE FACILITIES MAINTENANCE

4,414.90 0.00 17,659.60 7,901.43 45% 53,000.00 15%01-60-663400 PLAN REVIEW- PIPELINE CONFLI

8,666.66 12,052.02 34,666.64 44,612.89 129% 104,000.00 43%01-60-663700 PIPELINE SUPPLIES

1,762.50 0.00 7,050.00 0.00 0% 21,150.00 0%01-60-664000 MACHINERY & EQUIP- NON CAP

 
                                                            36 of 264



Monthly & YTD Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 8/31/2023

Page 4 of 59/12/2023 2:12:22 PM

… … August
2023-2024

Budget

August
2023-2024

Activity
2023-2024

Seasonal YT…
2023-2024

YTD Activity
Seasonal Percent

Used
2023-2024

Total Budget
Total Percent Used

3,291.67 1,941.59 13,166.64 8,927.40 68% 39,500.00 23%01-60-664100 REPAIRS & MAINT- VEHICLES

3,750.00 2,258.30 15,000.00 11,420.36 76% 45,000.00 25%01-60-664200 FUEL- VEHICLES

275.00 0.00 1,100.00 0.00 0% 3,300.00 0%01-60-664300 LICENSES- VEHICLES
660 - WATER OPERATION Totals: 12,802,697.57 13,252,952.12 49,207,470.33 51,670,279.46 105% 127,281,975.98 41%

680 - LAND & LAND RIGHTS

% of Year Completed: 33%

83.33 0.00 333.32 0.00 0% 1,000.00 0%01-60-681000 LEASES

516.66 0.00 2,066.64 2,995.00 145% 6,200.00 48%01-60-682000 PERMITS & FEES
680 - LAND & LAND RIGHTS Totals: 599.99 0.00 2,399.96 2,995.00 125% 7,200.00 42%

685 - CAPITAL EQUIP / DEPREC

% of Year Completed: 33%

6,875.00 4,989.54 27,500.00 19,681.40 72% 82,500.00 24%01-60-685100 COMPUTERS

0.00 0.00 29,000.00 0.00 0% 29,000.00 0%01-60-685200 OFFICE FURNITURE & EQUIPMT

0.00 0.00 176,000.00 56,490.35 32% 176,000.00 32%01-60-685600 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

0.00 0.00 -205,000.00 -56,490.35 28% -205,000.00 28%01-60-685800 CAPITALIZED EQUIP

0.00 81,500.26 196,000.00 81,500.26 42% 196,000.00 42%01-60-686000 VEHICLES

0.00 -81,500.26 -196,000.00 -81,500.26 42% -196,000.00 42%01-60-686800 CAPITALIZED VEHICLE PURCHASES

425,000.00 400,591.68 1,700,000.00 1,602,366.70 94% 5,100,000.00 31%01-60-692000 DEPRECIATION- TRANS MAINS

283,333.33 246,331.13 1,133,333.32 972,840.31 86% 3,400,000.00 29%01-60-693000 DEPRECIATION- BUILDINGS

153,333.33 121,722.14 613,333.32 483,862.35 79% 1,840,000.00 26%01-60-694000 DEPRECIATION-PUMPING EQUIPMENT

15,833.33 7,127.12 63,333.32 28,508.54 45% 190,000.00 15%01-60-695200 DEPRECIATION- OFFICE FURN &

15,166.66 11,303.12 60,666.64 41,137.56 68% 182,000.00 23%01-60-696000 DEPRECIATION- VEHICLES
685 - CAPITAL EQUIP / DEPREC Totals: 899,541.65 792,064.73 3,598,166.60 3,148,396.86 88% 10,794,500.00 29%

710 - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

% of Year Completed: 33%

0.00 159,359.39 950,000.00 188,595.52 20% 950,000.00 20%01-60-722200 DPS BUILDINGS REHAB & MAINT

0.00 0.00 500,000.00 0.00 0% 500,000.00 0%01-60-722202 DPS VALVE REPLACEMENT

0.00 62,167.16 4,800,000.00 87,561.22 2% 4,800,000.00 2%01-60-722300 GENERATION BUILDING REHAB & MAINT

0.00 0.00 0.00 17,271.70 0% 0.00 0%01-60-722500 BUILDING AUTOMATION SYSTEM

0.00 0.00 750,000.00 28,297.17 4% 750,000.00 4%01-60-751200 CATHODIC PROTECTION

0.00 0.00 500,000.00 1,426.39 0% 500,000.00 0%01-60-771000 VALVE REHAB & REPLACEMENT

0.00 78,003.53 500,000.00 100,355.68 20% 500,000.00 20%01-60-771200 CONDITION ASSESSMENT

0.00 546,025.05 6,800,000.00 1,456,764.01 21% 6,800,000.00 21%01-60-771700 REPLACEMENT OF SCADA SYSTEM

0.00 1,275.00 0.00 9,525.00 0% 0.00 0%01-60-772300 REPLACEMENT OF CHILLERS

0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 0% 1,000,000.00 0%01-60-772500 ALTERNATIVE WATER SOURCE

0.00 -846,830.13 -15,800,000.00 -1,889,796.69 12% -15,800,000.00 12%01-60-798000 CAPITALIZED FIXED ASSETS
710 - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 0.00 0%

 
                                                            37 of 264



Monthly & YTD Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 8/31/2023

Page 5 of 59/12/2023 2:12:22 PM

… … August
2023-2024

Budget

August
2023-2024

Activity
2023-2024

Seasonal YT…
2023-2024

YTD Activity
Seasonal Percent

Used
2023-2024

Total Budget
Total Percent Used

850 - ESCROW FUNDED CONSTRUCTION

% of Year Completed: 33%

0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 0% 1,000,000.00 0%01-80-850001 METERING STATION

0.00 0.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 0% 2,000,000.00 0%01-80-852001 AQUA ILLINOIS

0.00 701,530.16 1,200,000.00 701,530.16 58% 1,200,000.00 58%01-80-852010 MONTGOMERY/OSWEGO/YORKVILLE

0.00 -701,530.16 -4,200,000.00 -701,530.16 17% -4,200,000.00 17%01-80-899000 CONTRIBUTED/CAPITALIZED FIXED ASSETS
850 - ESCROW FUNDED CONSTRUCTION Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 0.00 0%

Expense Totals: 14,504,317.75 14,650,351.27 56,100,453.77 57,180,461.82 102% 148,095,668.56 39%

01 - WATER FUND Totals: 308,179.10 -519,000.24 1,530,471.30 -3,269,585.38 -214% 6,863,040.01 -48%

 
                                                            38 of 264



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-50-23 
Account:  01-60-772500 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           PDM     -    CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/11/2023 

Description:  Authorize Professional Services Task Order #3 for a Source Water Project 
Financial Validation and Strategy Report, to Raftelis, Inc. 

Agenda Section:    Finance Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

In April 2023, the Board of Commissioners received a report and presentation from the engineering 
firm Carollo Inc, for various source water alternatives. The study included 3 routes for possible 
consideration, one of which was a north route with two potential partners, NSMJAWA and the 
Northwest Water Commission. DWC has reached out to both potential partners, and commenced 
discussions about the project concept, scope, and schedule.  Both parties have expressed significant 
interest in a regional project and have also shared future plans for expansion - which would result in 
even more favorable conditions for a joint partnership.  

Carollo has been directed to update the engineering computations and financial analysis for the north 
route to include consideration regarding how additional partners would impact the route and scale of 
the proposed infrastructure. This report has been received in draft form.  Therefore, it is now 
recommended to engage a third-party financial consultant to validate the findings of the updated 
Carollo report for the north route, and to prepare a conceptual financial strategy for the project.   

The firm Raftelis, Inc. has been selected for this task based upon qualifications as determined by all 
three agencies (DWC, NSMJAWA, NWC), and continuity with the previously prepared financial report. 
This work will commence immediately following approval and is expected to be completed in early 
October.  Mr. John Mastracchio will be present at the October Board of Commissioners meeting to 
present his findings and recommendations for consideration and discussion.  

The cost for the study is estimated at $28,500, which will be paid by the DWC, with 2/3 to be 
reimbursed to us by NSMJAWA and the NWC.  A companion IGA previously formalized this process. 

 

 

 
                                                            39 of 264



| 2 of 2 | 

 

Recommended Motion: 

it is recommended that Resolution R-50-23 be approved authorizing Task Order number 3 with the 
firm of Raftelis, Inc in an estimated amount of $28,500 for alternative source water financial validation 
and strategy report. 

 
                                                            40 of 264



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-50-23 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND RATIFYING TASK ORDER NO. 03 UNDER A MASTER CONTRACT 
WITH RAFTELIS, INC 

 

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission (the “Commission”) entered into a contract with 

Raftelic, Inc (the “Consultant”) to provide, from time to time, professional consulting services in 

connection with various projects of the Commission (the “Master Contract”); and 

WHEREAS, the Master Contract sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which the 

Commission will obtain from time to time, and the Consultant will provide from time to time, professional 

consulting services for such discrete projects as are delineated and described in Task Orders to be 

approved by the Commission and the Consultant; and 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has accepted the Task Orders attached hereto and by this reference 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof as Exhibit 1 (“Task Order No. 03”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 

findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  The Task Orders attached hereto as Exhibit 1 shall be and hereby are approved 

and, if already issued, ratified because the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission has 

determined, based upon the representations of staff and the consultant, that the circumstances said to 

necessitate the Task Orders were not reasonably foreseeable at the time the Master Contract was signed, 

the Task Orders are germane to the Master Contract as signed, and/or the Task Orders are in the best 

interest of the DuPage Water Commission and authorized by law. 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
                                                            41 of 264



| 2 of 3 | 
 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

Healy, J.       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2023. 

 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2022/R-47-23.docx 

 
                                                            42 of 264



| 3 of 3 | 
 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 
                                                            43 of 264



Draft dated 9/1/23 

1 

 

TASK ORDER 3 - SCOPE OF WORK 
EXPANDED ALTERNATIVE WATER SUPPLY PROJECT FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Under this Task, the Consultant shall review Alternative Water Supply Study, Technical 
Memorandum 8 – Expanded Alternative Water Supply System by Carollo Engineers, 
dated August 2023 (“TM8”) and provide a peer review of the variables, parameters, and 
conclusions contained in the memorandum.  In addition, the Consultant shall provide 
the DuPage Water Commission (DWC) with a detailed analysis of financing alternatives 
associated with the Expanded Alternative TM8.  More specifically, the Scope of Work 
associated with Task Order 3 shall include the following specific subtasks: 

1. Peer Review of Technical Memorandum 8 

a. Review of the key inputs, variables, assumptions, calculations and 
conclusions contained in the memorandum for reasonableness. 

b. If any inputs, variables, assumptions, or calculations are 
recommended by the Consultant to be modified, provide a 
description of the basis and rationale for the proposed 
modifications.   

c. Prepare a written summary of the findings from the peer review. 

2. Prepare Conceptual Financing Plan for the Expanded Alternative for the 
Alternative Water Supply Project included in TM8. 

a. Evaluate viable funding and financing scenarios for the Expanded 
Alternative, including consideration of debt financing options, such 
as conventional debt structuring, as well as WIFIA and other 
potential options. 

b. Develop a conceptual sequencing of financing for the project and 
financial projections considering the alternatives identified above as 
well as the potential use of DWC cash reserves and current 
revenues to fund the preliminary phase of the Project including 
planning and engineering, and right of way costs.  The financing 
plan will focus on mitigating the debt service overlap costs during 
the period of time where DWC would continue to pay Chicago 
purchase water costs and incur project construction costs 
associated with the Expanded Alternative for the Project as 
described in TM8. 

c. Provide a written summary of the analysis associated with this 
subtask. 

3. Presentation of Results 

 
                                                            44 of 264



Draft dated 9/1/23 

2 

 

a. Prepare and provide a presentation (in person) to the DWC at a 
Board Meeting anticipated to be held on October 19, 2023. 

b. Prepare and provide up to three presentations (virtual) anticipated 
to be held in the fall of 2023.  These presentations are anticipated 
to be provided to Northwest Water Commission (NWC) and the 
Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency 
(NSMJAWA). 

TASK ORDER 3 - FEE ESTIMATE 

Raftelis proposes to complete subtasks 1 through 3 of the Task Order 3 scope of work 
for a lump sum of $28,500.  Additional support can be provided on a time-and-materials 
basis in accordance with our standard billing schedule provided below.     

Raftelis 2023 Standard Hourly Billing Rates 

Position Hourly Billing Rate* 

Executive Vice President $375 

Vice President $340 

Senior Manager $295 

Manager $260 

Senior Consultant $230 

Consultant $200 

Associate $175 

Administration $95 

Technology / Communications Charge** $10 

 

*These rates shall be in effect for calendar year 2023 and will then be increased annually by 3% unless 
specified otherwise by contract. 

**Technology / Communications Charge is an hourly fee charged monthly for each hour worked on the 
project to recover telephone, facsimile, computer, postage/overnight delivery, conference calls, electronic 
/ computer webinars, photocopies, etc. 

 
                                                            45 of 264



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  N/A 
Account:  01-60-613301 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           RCB    RCB   CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/14/2022 

Description:   Approval of Professional Development Travel and Expenses 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

The following are approved budgeted expenditures in FY 23/24 for Commission Employees to attend 
professional development training programs and/or conferences in Q4 including early discount 
registrations and fares, if applicable. 

 

Dates 
Location/Event 

Description Attendees 

Budgeted/Estimated 

Expenditure 

September 28-30, 2023 2023 International Facility 
Management Association 
World Workplace 
Conference. 
Denver, CO 

Mike Weed,  

Supervisor of Operations 
and Instrumentation 

$2,500 

October 1-6, 2023 Illinois Public Service 
Institute (IPSI) – 
Effingham, IL 

Aurelio Melgoza,  

Lead Operator 

 

$2,120 

Recommended Motion: 

To Ratify the Estimated Expenditures as listed in the approved FY-23/24 Management Budget and as 
listed above. 

 

 

 
                                                            46 of 264



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  Click or tap here to enter text. 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           DM     -     -   PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/14/2023 

Description:   2024 Schedule of Meetings  

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

Seeking Board approval of the Schedule of Board and Committee Meetings for calendar year 2024. 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Motion of approve the 2024 Schedule of meetings.  

 

 

 
                                                            47 of 264



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 1 | 

 

To: Interested news mediums 

From: Paul D. May, P.E., General Manager 

Date: September 14, 2023 

Subject: 2024 Schedule of Meetings  

 

 
As required in 5 ILCS 120/2.03 the following is a list of regular board meetings for the DuPage Water 
Commission: 
 
 
 

January 18, 2024 
February 15, 2024 

March 21, 2024 
April 18, 2024 
May 16, 2024 
June 20, 2024 
July 18, 2024 

August 15, 2024 
September 19, 2024 

October 17, 2024 
November 21, 2024 
December 19, 2024 

 
 
 
 

 
The regular Commission meetings begin at 6:30 P.M., and are held at the Commission Offices at 600 East 
Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, Illinois 60126. Administration Committee to begin at 6:15 P.M., the Engineering 
and Construction Committee to begin at 6:00 P.M., and the Finance Committee to begin at 5:45 P.M. prior 
to the regular Board meetings. 

 

 
                                                            48 of 264



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-48-23 
Account:  01-60-611200 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           PDM     -    CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/11/2023 

Description:  Recommendation to approve collective bargaining agreement between 
the DuPage Water Commission and the International Union of Operating 
Engineers Local 399 (AFL-CIO) 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

The collective bargaining agreement with IUOE 399 expired on April 30, 2023.  DWC administrative 
staff commenced negotiations with IUOE 399 in January 2023 and has been engaged in negotiations 
since that time.  Progress was somewhat slower than desired in part due to an expansion of the 
bargaining unit.  Nonetheless, negotiations have concluded and the attached 3-year contract, 
terminating April 30, 2026 is recommended for approval. 

Notable changes from the previous contract include the following: 

 Updating job titles throughout 

 Clarification/definition of “On-call” (Section 5.1C, 23.5) and “Call-back (Section 5.6)” status, 
including prescribed procedures 

 Increase of shift premium from $1.30/ hr to $1.40/hr in 2024 and $1.50/hr in 2025 

 Revision of Personal Leave to provide employees with more than 25 years of service with 16 
additional personal leave hours upon reaching 25 years (Section 10.4) 

 Revision of vacation accrual to cause employees to accrue their 3rd week of vacation at the 
beginning of their 5th year of service rather than the end of their 5th year of service (Section 
11.1) 

 Addition of longevity pay increases for employees with 30 years of service and 35 years of 
service, as compared to the previous 5-year cycle which ended at 25 years (Section 23.3) 

 Inclusion of “Me too” clause for certification and accreditation incentive pay (Section 23.6) 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that Resolution R-48-23 be approved authorizing execution of a three-year 
collective bargaining agreement with the International Union of Operating Engineers Local 399. 

 
                                                            49 of 264



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-48-23 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION AND THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 399 

(AFL-CIO) 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement with IUOE 399 contract terminated on April 30, 

2023; and 

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission received a notice of contract reopener on January 6, 

2023, which included an expanded bargaining unit; and 

WHEREAS, DWC has engaged in good-faith negotiations with employees and representatives of 

IUOE local 399,  and are in agreement with all parties that the collective bargaining agreement term 

ending April 30, 2026 attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is favorable to all parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 

findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  The Collective Bargaining Agreement between the DuPage Water Commission 

and the International Union of Operating Engineers Local 399, term ending April 30, 2026, attached hereto 

as Exhibit 1 is hereby approved. 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 

 
                                                            50 of 264



| 2 of 3 | 
 

 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

Healy, J.       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2023. 

 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2023/R-48-23.docx 

 
                                                            51 of 264



| 3 of 3 | 
 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

DELETE PAGE IF NO ATTACHMENT 

 

 
                                                            52 of 264



1161159.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

 
INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS 

LOCAL 399 (AFL-CIO) 
 

AND 

DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

 

MAY 1, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 30, 2026 
 
 
 

 
                                                            53 of 264



1161159.1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

PREAMBLE ................................................................................................................................... 1 

AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................................ 1 

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION ......................................................................................................... 1 

SECTION 1.1. RECOGNITION ........................................................................................ 1 
SECTION 1.2. PART-TIME EMPLOYEES ...................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE II  RIGHTS OF EMPLOYER ....................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE III UNION RIGHTS ..................................................................................................... 3 

SECTION 3.1. UNION ACTIVITY DURING WORKING HOURS ............................... 3 
SECTION 3.2. UNION BULLETIN BOARD ................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE IV UNION DUES/FAIR SHARE CHECK OFF .......................................................... 4 

SECTION 4.1. DEDUCTIONS .......................................................................................... 4 
SECTION 4.2. HOLD HARMLESS .................................................................................. 4 

ARTICLE V HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME................................................................... 5 

SECTION 5.1. REGULAR WORKDAY AND REGULAR WORKWEEK .................... 5 
SECTION 5.2. MANDATORY REST PERIOD ............................................................... 6 
SECTION 5.3. OVERTIME COMPENSATION   ............................................................. 6 
SECTION 5.4. OVERTIME DISTRIBUTION .................................................................. 6 
SECTION 5.5. EXTENSION OF THE WORK DAY ....................................................... 7 
SECTION 5.6. CALL BACK PAY .................................................................................... 7 
SECTION 5.7. ALTERNATING SHIFT ROTATION PREMIUM PAYMENT .............. 8 

ARTICLE VI SENIORITY ............................................................................................................ 8 

SECTION 6.1. SENIORITY DEFINED ............................................................................ 8 
SECTION 6.2. BREAKS IN CONTINUOUS SERVICE .................................................. 9 
SECTION 6.3. SENIORITY LIST ..................................................................................... 9 
SECTION 6.4. PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES ............................................................ 9 

ARTICLE VII LAYOFF AND RECALL .................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 7.1. DEFINITION AND NOTICE .................................................................. 10 
SECTION 7.2. GENERAL PROCEDURES .................................................................... 10 
SECTION 7.3. RECALL OF LAID-OFF EMPLOYEES ................................................ 10 

ARTICLE VIII DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES ...................................................................... 11 

SECTION 8.1. EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE...................................................................... 11 
SECTION 8.2. RIGHT TO REPRESENTATION ........................................................... 12 

ARTICLE IX GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE................................................................................ 12 

SECTION 9.1. GRIEVANCE DEFINED ........................................................................ 12 
SECTION 9.2. PROCESSING OF GRIEVANCE ........................................................... 12 

 
                                                            54 of 264



1161159.1 

SECTION 9.3. GRIEVANCE STEPS .............................................................................. 12 
SECTION 9.4. GRIEVANCE FORMS ............................................................................ 15 
SECTION 9.5. SETTLEMENTS AND TIME LIMITS ................................................... 15 

ARTICLE X HOLIDAYS ............................................................................................................ 15 

SECTION 10.1. GENERAL INFORMATION   .............................................................. 15 
SECTION 10.2. SPECIFIC APPLICATIONS ................................................................. 16 
SECTION 10.3. HOLIDAY PAY .................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 10.4. PERSONAL LEAVE ............................................................................. 17 

ARTICLE XI VACATIONS ........................................................................................................ 17 

SECTION 11.1. VACATION ACCRUAL ....................................................................... 17 
SECTION 11.2. VACATION USAGE ............................................................................ 18 
SECTION 11.3. VACATION PAY AT TERMINATION ............................................... 19 

ARTICLE XII SICK LEAVE ....................................................................................................... 19 

SECTION 12.1. SICK LEAVE ACCRUAL .................................................................... 19 
SECTION 12.2. SICK LEAVE USAGE .......................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE XIII LEAVES OF ABSENCE .................................................................................... 20 

SECTION 13.1. DISABILITY LEAVE ........................................................................... 20 
SECTION 13.2. DISCRETIONARY LEAVE OF ABSENCE ........................................ 20 
SECTION 13.3. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE .................................................................... 21 
SECTION 13.4. JURY DUTY/WITNESS LEAVE ......................................................... 22 
SECTION 13.5. MILITARY LEAVE .............................................................................. 22 
SECTION 13.6. VICTIM'S ECONOMIC SECURITY AND SAFETY LEAVE ............ 22 
SECTION 13.7. BLOOD DONATION LEAVE .............................................................. 22 

 SECTION 13.8. WAIVER OF PAID LEAVE FOR ALL WORKERS ACT .................. 22 
ARTICLE XIV HEALTH INSURANCE ..................................................................................... 23 

ARTICLE XV EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND EDUCATION .................................................. 23 

ARTICLE XVI SAFETY ............................................................................................................. 24 

SECTION 16.1. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS .............................................................. 24 
SECTION 16.2. UNSAFE CONDITIONS ....................................................................... 24 

ARTICLE XVII LABOR-MANAGEMENT MEETINGS .......................................................... 24 

SECTION 17.1. LABOR-MANAGEMENT CONFERENCES ...................................... 24 
SECTION 17.2. PURPOSE .............................................................................................. 25 

ARTICLE XVIII SUBCONTRACTING ..................................................................................... 25 

ARTICLE XIX UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT ...................................................................... 25 

ARTICLE XX PERSONNEL RECORDS ................................................................................... 25 

SECTION 20.1. RIGHT OF INSPECTION AND COPIES ............................................ 25 
SECTION 20.2. DISCIPLINE ACTION IN PERSONNEL FILE ................................... 26 

 
                                                            55 of 264



1161159.1 

ARTICLE XXI NO STRIKE / NO LOCKOUT ........................................................................... 26 

SECTION 21.1. NO STRIKE/SLOWDOWN .................................................................. 26 
SECTION 21.2. NO LOCKOUT ...................................................................................... 27 
SECTION 21.3. PENALTY ............................................................................................. 27 
SECTION 21.4. JUDICIAL RESTRAINT ....................................................................... 27 

ARTICLE XXII NON-DISCRIMINATION ................................................................................ 27 

ARTICLE XXIII WAGES ............................................................................................................ 28 

SECTION 23.1. STEP UP PAY ....................................................................................... 28 
SECTION 23.2. MERIT BASED ADJUSTMENTS ........................................................ 28 
SECTION 23.3. MERIT BASED LONGEVITY PAY .................................................... 28 
SECTION 23.5.  ON-CALL PAY. ................................................................................ 30 

 SECTION 23.6. COMPENSATION FOR CERTIFICATION AND  
                   ACCREDITATION ................................................................................................... 29 
ARTICLE XXIV DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY ................................................................. 31 

ARTICLE XXV FILLING OF VACANCIES ............................................................................. 31 

SECTION 25.1. POSTING ............................................................................................... 31 
SECTION 25.2. FILLING OF VACANCIES .................................................................. 31 

ARTICLE XXVI SAVINGS CLAUSE ........................................................................................ 32 

ARTICLE XXVII ENTIRE AGREEMENT ................................................................................ 32 

ARTICLE XXVIII TERMINATION ........................................................................................... 33 

EXHIBIT A GRIEVANCE FORM .............................................................................................. 35 

EXHIBIT B DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY ......................................................................... 36 

 

 
                                                            56 of 264



 

1161159.1 
1 

 

PREAMBLE 
 

In order to establish harmonious employment relations through a mutual process, to 

provide fair and equitable treatment to all employees, to promote the quality and continuance 

of public service, to achieve full recognition for the value of employees and the vital and 

necessary work they perform, to specify wages, hours, benefits and working conditions, and 

to provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of disputes, the parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT  
 

This Agreement has been made and entered into by and between the DuPage Water 

Commission (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer" or the "Commission") and the 

International Union of Operating Engineers Local 399 (AFL-CIO) (hereinafter referred to as the 

"Union"), on behalf of certain employees described in ARTICLE I. 

ARTICLE I 
RECOGNITION 

 
SECTION 1.1. RECOGNITION 
 

The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining representative 

for all full-time and part-time employees employed in the following titles: Assistant Water 

Operator (now known as Assistant Operator); Lead Water Operator (now known as Lead 

Operator); Control Room Operator (now known as Operating Coordinator); Field Maintenance 

Technician (now known as Senior Technician or Field Maintenance Technician, depending 

upon qualifications and experience); Field Maintenance Coordinator; Meter Technician (now 

known as Instrumentation and Metering Technician), Instrumentation and Metering 

Coordinator, Senior Instrumentation Technician, Instrumentation Technician, Field 

Maintenance Technician, Senior Pipeline Technician, Utility Locator, Pipeline Maintenance 

Technician and Maintenance Technician; and excluding all other employees of the Employer as 

 
                                                            57 of 264



 

1161159.1 
2 

 

set forth in the bargaining unit certified by the Illinois Labor Relations Board in Case No. S-UC-

(S)-17-073, and as clarified in Case No. S-UC-23-106. 

SECTION 1.2. PART-TIME EMPLOYEES 
 

Part-time employees are not eligible to earn benefits or participate in the Employer's 

benefit programs. The only exception is if required by law. 

ARTICLE II 
 RIGHTS OF EMPLOYER 

 
It is understood and agreed that the Commission retains all traditional, statutory, and 
constitutional rights and authority to manage and operate the employees of the Commission in all 
respects, including, but not limited to, all rights and authority exercised by the Commission 
prior to the execution of this Agreement, except as amended, changed or modified in a specific 
provision set forth in this Agreement. These rights include but are not limited to, the following: 
 

a) Plan, direct, control, and determine all functions, operations, standards and 
services; 

 
b) Supervise, direct and evaluate employees; 
 
c) Establish the qualifications for employment and employ employees; 
 
d) Establish reasonable work rules, schedules, assignments and assign employees; 

 
e) Hire, promote, transfer, schedule, and assign employees in positions and create, 

combine, modify, and eliminate positions within the Operations and 
Instrumentation Department and the Pipeline and Remote Facilities Department, 
however, prior to any elimination of positions within those Departments, the 
Commission and the Union will meet and discuss alternatives; 
 

f) Suspend, discharge, demote, and take other disciplinary action against employees 
for just cause (with the exception of probationary employees, who may be 
discharged without cause); 
 

g) Establish reasonable work and productivity standards and, from time to time, 
amend such standards; 
 

h) Determine whether work and/or services are to be provided by employees covered 
by this Agreement or by other employees or persons not covered by this 
Agreement; 
 

i) Determine the number of hours of work and shifts per workweek and assign 

 
                                                            58 of 264



 

1161159.1 
3 

 

overtime; 
 

j) Maintain efficiency of operations and services of the Operations and 
Instrumentation Department and the Pipeline and Remote Facilities Department; 
 

 k) Take whatever action is necessary to comply with State and Federal law; 
 

l) Secure, change or eliminate methods, equipment, and facilities for the 
improvement of operation and to establish and implement a budget; 
 

m) Determine the kinds and amounts of services to be performed as it pertains to 
operations, and the number and kind of positions and classifications to perform 
such services, to include revision, combination, addition or elimination of job 
classifications; 
 

n) Determine the methods, means, organization and personnel by which operations 
are to be conducted to include services and staffing requirements by program, 
unit, and division. 
 

ARTICLE III 
UNION RIGHTS 

 
SECTION 3.1. UNION ACTIVITY DURING WORKING HOURS 

Authorized agents of the Union shall have access to the Employer's establishment during 

business hours for the purpose of adjusting disputes, investigating working conditions, and 

ascertaining that this Agreement is being adhered to; provided that both: (a) the Union agent 

provides notice to the General Manager (or designee) at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the 

visit (unless otherwise agreed to by the General Manager (or designee)), and (b) the Union agent 

shall not interfere with the Employer's business operations or the work performed by the 

employees. Covered employees shall not engage in Union business during working hours unless 

otherwise agreed to by the General Manager (or designee) and shall ask for and obtain 

permission before leaving their jobs in order to conduct Union business so that covered 

employees' conduct of Union business shall not interfere with the Employer's business 

operations or the work performed by the employees. 

 
                                                            59 of 264



 

1161159.1 
4 

 

 
SECTION 3.2. UNION BULLETIN BOARD 
 

The Employer shall provide a Union bulletin board at the work location. The board shall 

be for the sole and exclusive use of the Union. The Union agrees not to post or display any 

inappropriate, offensive or discriminatory information on the bulletin board. 

ARTICLE IV 
UNION DUES/FAIR SHARE CHECK OFF 

 
SECTION 4.1. DEDUCTIONS 
 

The Employer agrees to deduct from the pay of those employees who are Union members 

any or all of the following: 

(A) Union membership dues, assessments, PAC, or fees; 
 
(B) Union sponsored credit and other benefit programs. 
 

Requests for any of the above shall be made on a form provided by the Union and shall 

be made within the provisions of the Government Salary Withholding Act and/or any other 

applicable State statute. 

Upon receipt of an appropriate written authorization from an employee, such authorized 

deductions shall be made in accordance with the law and shall be remitted to the Union on a 

bi-weekly basis at the address designated in writing by the Union. The Union shall advise the 

Employer of any increases in dues or other approved deductions in writing at least thirty (30) 

calendar days prior to its effective date. 

The Union shall certify the current amount of Union deductions. 
 

SECTION 4.2. HOLD HARMLESS 
 

The Union shall hold and save the Employer harmless from any and all responsibility and 

claims in connection with the collection and disbursement of monies under this Article and 

Agreement. 

 
                                                            60 of 264



 

1161159.1 
5 

 

ARTICLE V 
HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 

 
SECTION 5.1. REGULAR WORKDAY AND REGULAR WORKWEEK   
 

(A) The regular workday for lead operators is comprised of twelve (12) hour shifts of 

actual working time. The regular workday for all other bargaining unit employees is comprised of 

eight (8) hour shifts of actual working time. 

(B) The regular workweek for lead operators alternates between thirty-six (36) and 

forty-eight (48) hours of actual working time, except for authorized leaves, subject to the remaining 

provisions of this Article. The regular workweek for all other bargaining unit employees is 

forty (40) hours of actual working time, except for authorized leaves, subject to the remaining 

provisions of this Article. 

(C) Employees may be assigned to be “on call,” which is defined as when an 

employee is required to respond to a request to work an overtime assignment and is required 

to work such overtime assignment.  Employees “on call” shall be required to mobilize 

immediately and to report to the work assignment location within sixty (60) minutes of being 

contacted by a supervisor or a supervisor’s designee, unless otherwise authorized by such 

supervisor or designee.  When assigned to be "on call", the lead operators or other bargaining 

unit employees will   be required to promptly respond when called. An employee's failure, when 

“on call,” to promptly respond when called is a serious matter and may result in disciplinary 

action and loss of "on call" status pay in the absence of an explanation deemed acceptable 

to management. If the Commission exercises its right to end this practice, the parties agree to 

meet and discuss an alternate scheduling arrangement to address the change. 

(D) Nothing in this Article should be construed as a guarantee of hours of work or 

days of work per day, week or year, for any classification of employees. 

 
                                                            61 of 264



 

1161159.1 
6 

 

(E) In the event that the Employer has a need to change the regular work schedule of 

a covered employee, the Employer will provide fourteen (14) days of advance notice to the 

Union, in the absence of an emergency or unanticipated need. 

SECTION 5.2. MANDATORY REST PERIOD 
 

Employees will not be allowed to work more than eighteen (18) hours in a twenty-four 

(24) hour period. 

SECTION 5.3. OVERTIME COMPENSATION   
 

The compensation paid employees for overtime work shall be as follows: 
 
(A) Except as provided for in this Agreement, a bargaining unit employee shall be 

paid at one and one-half (1-1/2) his/her regular hourly rate of pay when in approved pay status 

(excluding sick time) in excess of forty (40) hours per workweek. 

(B) Non-working time in approved pay status (other than sick time) shall be counted 

as "time worked" for purposes of computing overtime compensation.  

SECTION 5.4. OVERTIME DISTRIBUTION 
 

(A) Employees will be expected to perform any reasonable amounts of overtime work 

when assigned to them. 

(B) The Employer will attempt to offer overtime work as equally as appropriate under 

the circumstances among those bargaining unit employees with the same position title within the 

Department (e.g., lead for lead, assistant for assistant, technician for technician, etc.) who usually 

perform the type of work at issue; then within the entire bargaining unit; provided, however, 

that completion of any overtime assignment does not violate the Employer work rules such as 

that stated in SECTION 5.2.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employer is authorized to 

continue its historical practice of utilizing non-bargaining unit employees to perform what 

 
                                                            62 of 264



 

1161159.1 
7 

 

may be described as “bargaining unit work,” including what would otherwise be deemed 

overtime work for bargaining unit members. 

(C) The parties recognize that they have an obligation to the community to provide 

services and that this obligation on occasion may require the working of overtime. To meet that 

objective, compulsory overtime work may be scheduled in situations when there is a business 

need to do so; if this occurs, the Employer will provide advance notice when practical. 

(D) If the full-time personnel who would have usually worked the overtime refuse it 

or are unavailable, the Employer may work part-time, temporary or non-bargaining unit 

personnel on said overtime without violating this Agreement. 

(E) No overtime compensation shall be paid more than once for the same hours 

worked or deemed worked under this or any other Article (i.e., no pyramiding allowed). 

SECTION 5.5. EXTENSION OF THE WORK DAY 
 

For any employee required to report to work earlier than his/her regular starting time or 

to stay at work later than his/her regular quitting time, such earlier or later time shall be added to 

the regular day's work and paid at his/her regular or overtime rate, if applicable. Alternatively, 

with the approval of the General Manager (or designee), the employee may leave work prior to 

the end of the regular shift for that day. 

SECTION 5.6. CALL BACK PAY   
 

A “call back” is defined as an official assignment of work which does not continuously 

precede or follow an employee’s regularly scheduled work hours.  Except for an employee who is 

on-call regularly (e.g., Utility Locator), an employee who has been called back to work after the 

close of one regularly scheduled work day and before the beginning of the next regularly 

scheduled work day shall be paid a minimum of three (3) hours of pay from the actual starting 

 
                                                            63 of 264



 

1161159.1 
8 

 

time of work at his/her regular or overtime rate, if applicable. If said three (3) hour minimum 

overlaps with the next regular scheduled workday, this will be treated as an extension of the 

workday under SECTION 5.5.  If an employee who is regularly on-call is called back to work for 

an assignment that can be performed remotely (e.g., clearing JULIE tickets), such employee shall 

perform such work remotely, and shall be compensated at 15 minute increments for such overtime 

work, but if such employee is required to report to a work site in order to perform such call-back 

assignment, then the employee shall be entitled to the minimum payment on the same conditions 

as other bargaining unit members. 

SECTION 5.7. ALTERNATING SHIFT ROTATION PREMIUM PAYMENT  
 
 A bargaining unit employee is eligible for a "Shift Rotation" premium payment equal to 

$1.30 for each hour in approved pay status (other than sick time) pursuant to a regular work 

schedule that is subject to rotation/alternating days on and off in order to meet the business 

demands of the Commission. Such “Shift Rotation” premium shall be increased to $1.40 per 

applicable hour, effective May 1, 2024, and increased to $1.50 per applicable hour, effective 

May 1, 2025.  This premium is payable quarterly in arrears. This premium payment is not 

earned or available if a change in an employee's work schedule occurs due to factors other than 

an employee's assignment to a permanent work schedule which is subject to regular rotation in 

order to meet the business demands of the Commission. 

ARTICLE VI 
SENIORITY 

 
SECTION 6.1. SENIORITY DEFINED 
 

Except for purposes of layoff, an employee's seniority shall be the period of the 

employee's most recent continuous regular employment with the Employer. For purposes of 

layoff, an employee's seniority shall be the period of the employee's most recent employment 

 
                                                            64 of 264



 

1161159.1 
9 

 

with the Employer in the Operations and Instrumentation Department or the Pipeline and Remote 

Facilities Department in the current title.  Employees who are employed as Technician Trainees 

or Operator Trainees (“Trainees”) shall not establish nor have any seniority, while holding the 

title of Trainee. 

SECTION 6.2. BREAKS IN CONTINUOUS SERVICE 
 

An Employee's continuous service record shall be broken by (a) voluntary resignation, 

(b) discharge for just cause, (c) retirement, (d) failure to return from a leave of absence as 

scheduled (without approval or as allowed by law), (e) failure to work for any reason in excess of 

twelve (12) months (except in the case of layoff after eighteen (18) months), and/or (f) being 

absent for three (3) consecutive days without reporting off. 

SECTION 6.3. SENIORITY LIST 
 

Once each year the Employer shall make available upon a request a bargaining unit 

seniority list showing the seniority of each employee. The seniority list shall be accepted and 

final thirty (30) calendar days after it is issued, unless protested by the Union or an employee in 

writing. 

SECTION 6.4. PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES 
 

An employee is probationary for the first twelve (12) months of employment and can be 

discharged for any or no reason. A probationary employee shall have no seniority, except as 

otherwise provided for in this Agreement, until he/she has completed their required probationary 

period. Upon such completion, he/she shall acquire seniority retroactively from the date of 

employment.  Employees who are employed as Trainees shall be probationary employees the 

entire time that they are employed as Trainees.  If a Trainee is retained as a permanent, non-

trainee employee, pursuant to SECTION 23.4 of this Agreement, seniority shall commence 

 
                                                            65 of 264



 

1161159.1 
10 

 

upon assumption of the permanent, non-trainee position.  During this period of probation, no 

grievance may be filed by or on behalf of such employee. 

ARTICLE VII 
LAYOFF AND RECALL 

 
SECTION 7.1. DEFINITION AND NOTICE 
 

A layoff is defined as a reduction in bargaining unit jobs. The Employer shall give the 

Union at least thirty (30) calendar days' notice of any layoffs, except in emergency or other 

unanticipated situation(s) wherein such period of notice may be reduced. 

SECTION 7.2. GENERAL PROCEDURES 

In the event of a layoff, employees shall be laid off in inverse order of seniority as 

defined in ARTICLE VI provided the employee selected to be retained has the present ability to 

perform the available work. However, prior to laying off any bargaining unit employees, all 

seasonal, temporary, probationary, part-time or other non-bargaining unit employees who 

perform work customarily performed by bargaining unit employees shall be laid off or 

terminated, as the case may be. 

If a more senior employee has the present ability to perform the available work in a lower 

level job within the Department, the employee may "bump down" the less senior employee in the 

lower job (based on total time employed with the Commission in that Department) to avoid 

being laid off. For purposes of this provision, a control room operator is above the level of an 

assistant operator but below the level of a lead operator. 

SECTION 7.3. RECALL OF LAID-OFF EMPLOYEES 
 

The names of laid-off employees shall be placed on a layoff list for eighteen (18) months. 

Employees shall be recalled in seniority order provided the employee has the present ability to 

perform the available work as determined by the Employer.  No part-time or seasonal employees 

 
                                                            66 of 264



 

1161159.1 
11 

 

will be hired to do bargaining unit work during this time if contrary to this provision. After eighteen 

(18) months on layoff, an employee shall lose his/her seniority. 

ARTICLE VIII 
DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 

 
SECTION 8.1. EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE 
 

The Employer agrees with the tenets of progressive and corrective discipline in 

appropriate cases, and that it shall be imposed only for just cause. When appropriate, progressive 

discipline may include but not be exclusive of the following progressive steps of priority as 

determined by management based on all of the facts presented, including the nature of the offense, 

the employee's overall work record, etc.: 

(A) Oral warning with documentation of such filed in the employee's personnel file, 

(B) Written reprimand with copy of such maintained in the employee's personnel file, 

(C) Suspension without pay with documentation of such maintained in the employee's 
personnel file, 
 

(D) Discharge with documentation of such maintained in the employee's personnel 
file. 
 

Upon request of the employee, a representative of the Union (or designee from bargaining 

unit if no other representative is present or immediately available) shall be allowed to be present 

and participate in hearings where there is a reasonable likelihood that disciplinary action may 

occur. Participation by the Union may not unreasonably delay or postpone any discussion, 

hearing, or imposition of disciplinary action. 

The parties agree and acknowledge that there may be circumstances when progressive 

discipline is not appropriate and the Employer has the discretion to skip step(s) in the progressive 

discipline procedure. In some cases, unpaid suspension(s) or even immediate termination (with 

no prior warnings) may result from even a first offense as determined by management. 

 
                                                            67 of 264



 

1161159.1 
12 

 

SECTION 8.2. RIGHT TO REPRESENTATION 
 

Prior to any investigatory meeting with an employee that reasonably is expected to result 

in disciplinary action against that employee, the employee shall be informed of his/her rights to 

Union representation. 

ARTICLE IX 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 9.1. GRIEVANCE DEFINED 
 

A grievance is defined as any claim of violation of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 9.2. PROCESSING OF GRIEVANCE 
 

Grievances shall be processed only by the Union on behalf of an employee or on behalf 

of a group of employees or itself setting forth name(s) or group(s) of the employee(s). The 

Grievant or one Grievant representing a group of Grievants may be present at any step of the 

grievance procedure, and the employee is entitled to Union representation at each and every step 

of the grievance procedure. The resolution of a grievance filed on behalf of a group of 

employees shall be made applicable to the appropriate employees within that group. 

SECTION 9.3. GRIEVANCE STEPS   
 
STEP ONE: Operations and Instrumentation Department Supervisor or Pipeline and 
Remote Facilities Department Supervisor   
 

The Union may submit a written grievance to the Operations and Instrumentation 

Department Supervisor or Pipeline and Remote Facilities Department Supervisor within ten (10) 

business days of the event giving rise to the grievance or the Union's reasonable knowledge of 

the events giving rise to the grievance. The Operations and Instrumentation Department 

Supervisor or Pipeline and Remote Facilities Department Supervisor or his/her designee shall 

schedule a conference within ten (10) business days of receipt of the grievance to attempt to 

 
                                                            68 of 264



 

1161159.1 
13 

 

adjust the matter. The Operations and Instrumentation Department Supervisor or Pipeline and 

Remote Facilities Department Supervisor or designee shall submit a written response within ten 

(10) business days of the conference. If the conference is not scheduled, the Operations and 

Instrumentation Department Supervisor or Pipeline and Remote Facilities Department 

Supervisor or designee shall respond to the grievance in writing within ten (10) business days of 

receipt of the appeal. 

STEP TWO: General Manager 

If the grievance remains unsettled at Step One, the Union may advance the written 

grievance to the General Manager (or designee) within ten (10) business days of the response in 

Step One or when such response was due. The General Manager or his/her designee shall 

schedule a conference within ten (10) business days of receipt of the grievance to attempt to 

adjust the matter. The General Manager or designee shall submit a written response within ten 

(10) business days of the conference. If the conference is not scheduled, the General Manager or 

designee shall respond to the grievance in writing within ten (10) business days of receipt of the 

appeal. 
 
STEP THREE: Arbitration 
 

If the grievance remains unsettled after the response in Step Two, the Union may refer the 

grievance to arbitration within fifteen (15) business days of the Step Two response. The Union 

shall request the American Arbitration Association to submit a panel of seven (7) Arbitrators. The 

parties shall alternately strike the names of Arbitrators, taking turns as to the first strike. The person 

whose name remains shall be the Arbitrator, provided that either party, before striking any names, 

shall have the right to reject one (1) panel of Arbitrators. 

Both parties agree to attempt to arrive at a joint stipulation of the facts and issues as outlined 

to be submitted to the Arbitrator. Both parties shall have the right to request the Arbitrator to 

 
                                                            69 of 264



 

1161159.1 
14 

 

require the presence of witnesses and/or documents. Each party shall bear the costs of its own 

witnesses. 

Questions of arbitrability shall be decided by the Arbitrator. The Arbitrator shall make a 

preliminary determination on the question of arbitrability. If it is determined that the matter is 

arbitrable, the Arbitrator shall then proceed to determine the merits of the dispute. If either party 

objects, another panel will be requested and another arbitrator selected. 

In the conduct of any arbitration under this Article, the rules and procedure governing the 

conduct of arbitration proceedings of the American Arbitration Association shall control, except 

where specifically limited by this Article. The Arbitrator shall neither amend, modify, nullify, 

ignore, add nor subtract from the provisions of this Agreement. 

The expenses and fees of the Arbitrator and the cost of the hearing room shall be shared 

equally by the parties. Nothing in this Article shall preclude the parties from agreeing to the 

appointment of a permanent Arbitrator(s) during the term of this Agreement or to use the expedited 

arbitration procedures of the American Arbitration Association. 

If either party desires a verbatim record of the proceedings, it may cause such to be made, 

providing it pays for the record and makes a copy available without charge to the Arbitrator. If the 

other party desires a copy, it shall equally pay for the expense of such. 

The Arbitrator shall render his/her decision in writing to the parties within thirty (30) 

calendar days following the close of the arbitration hearing or the submission date of briefs, 

whichever is later. The Arbitrator shall support his/her findings with a written opinion. The 

decision and opinion shall be based solely on and directed to the issue presented. The award shall 

clearly direct the parties as to what action(s) must be taken in order to comply with the award. 

  

 
                                                            70 of 264



 

1161159.1 
15 

 

The decision and award of the arbitration shall be final and binding to the Union, 

employee(s) and Employer. Such decision shall be within the scope and terms of this Agreement 

but shall not change any of its terms or conditions. 

SECTION 9.4. GRIEVANCE FORMS 
 

The written grievance required under this Article shall be on a form which shall be 

provided by the Union. It shall contain the basis of the Grievant's complaint, the section(s) of 

this Agreement that have been allegedly violated, the date of the alleged violations and the relief 

being sought. The form shall be signed and dated by the Grievant and/or his/her representative. 

An inaccurate reference to a date or section citation on the form shall not alone be grounds for 

denial of a grievance provided the grievance was timely filed on the appropriate form. A copy of 

the form currently in use is attached as Exhibit A. 

SECTION 9.5. SETTLEMENTS AND TIME LIMITS 
 

Any grievance not appealed to the next succeeding step in writing and within the 

appropriate number of business days of the Employer's last answer will be considered settled on 

the basis of the Employer's last answer and shall not be eligible for further appeal, except that 

the parties may, in any individual case (except discharge cases), extend this limit by mutual 

agreement. 

ARTICLE X 
HOLIDAYS 

 
SECTION 10.1. GENERAL INFORMATION  

The Commission provides eight (8) hours of paid time off to all eligible employees on the 

following holidays (to be determined by the actual date of the holiday in all cases for eligible 

bargaining unit employees): 
 

  

 
                                                            71 of 264



 

1161159.1 
16 

 

New Year's Day  
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 
Presidents' Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Veteran’s Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Day after Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Eve Day 
Christmas Day 
 

SECTION 10.2. SPECIFIC APPLICATIONS 
 

(A) If the Employer declares any additional holiday(s) as a Commission paid holiday 

for employees not covered by a collective bargaining agreement, such date(s) shall be considered 

holiday(s) for all eligible bargaining unit employees. 

(B) All eligible bargaining unit employees shall receive eight (8) hours' pay for each 

holiday, in addition to the rate of pay provided in subsection (C) below if applicable; 

provided, however, that part-time and short-term employees, employees on excused 

absence without pay for the entire payroll week that includes the holiday, and employees on a 

paid or unpaid leave of absence that includes the holiday are not eligible for holiday pay. 

(C) Employees who work on any of these holidays shall be paid one and one-half (1-

1/2) times such employee's regular rate for all hours actually worked, up to eight (8) hours, and 

shall be paid two and one-half (2 ½) times such employee’s regular rate for all hours actually 

worked in excess of eight (8) hours. Employees who are not regularly scheduled to work on a 

holiday and who actually work on a holiday shall be guaranteed a minimum of four (4) hours at 

one and one-half (1.5) times such employee's regular rate, in addition to holiday pay pursuant to 

subsection (B) above, if applicable. 

  

 
                                                            72 of 264



 

1161159.1 
17 

 

(D) The employee whose shift falls partly within and partly without the holiday 

(12:01 A.M. to 12:00 midnight) shall receive pay of 1.5 or 2.5 times their regular rate (as 

determined by subsection (C) above), if at least one-half of the hours of such employee's shift 

actually worked fall within the actual holiday listed above. 

(E) There shall be no pyramiding of holiday overtime payments. 

SECTION 10.3. HOLIDAY PAY 
 

In no event, however, shall an eligible employee receive more than eight (8) hours' 

holiday pay for each holiday listed above. 

SECTION 10.4. PERSONAL LEAVE 
 

All eligible employees with 0-25 years of service shall be entitled to sixteen (16) hours off 

with pay for personal leave, to be used in each calendar year. After completing 25 years of service, 

employees shall be entitled to sixteen (16) additional hours of personal leave annually, for a total 

of thirty-two (32) hours annually.  Employees shall notify the Employer of his/her intent to use 

his/her personal leave at least seventy two (72) hours in advance of the personal leave day, 

when the employee has advance notice of the need to take the personal leave. Personal leave can 

be used in half-day increments only (except with the prior approval of the General Manager or 

designee). Unused personal leave cannot be carried over from one calendar year to the next. 

ARTICLE XI 
VACATIONS 

 
SECTION 11.1. VACATION ACCRUAL 
 

Eligible bargaining unit employees shall be entitled to paid vacation days in accordance 

with the following schedule: 

  

 
                                                            73 of 264



 

1161159.1 
18 

 

Effective 8/17/23: 
80 hours/year 0-4 years of service 
120 hours/year 5th through 10th years of service 
160 hours/year 11th through 18th years of service 
200 hours/year 19th and all subsequent years of service 
 

Except as provided below in this Section, shifts of paid vacation leave shall accrue, pro 

rata, at the rates set forth above, but shall be credited for use only at the end of each regular pay 

period, pro rata, at a rate based on twenty-six (26) regular pay periods per year (e.g., vacation 

begins accruing the first month of employment at the accrual rate for eighty (80) hours per year, 

and then begins accruing after forty-eight (48) months of employment at the accrual rate of one 

hundred twenty (120) hours per year, etc.). Vacation leave may be used only after it is credited for 

use.  

SECTION 11.2. VACATION USAGE 
 

Employees are encouraged to use available paid vacation leave for rest, relaxation, and 

personal pursuits within one (1) year after it is accrued. In the event that accrued vacation leave 

is not used within such period, an employee may carry unused vacation leave forward for a 

maximum of one (1) additional year. If an employee's total amount of unused vacation leave 

reaches an amount equal to two (2) times the employee's total annual vacation leave benefit, no 

further accrual of vacation leave will be allowed until the employee uses paid vacation leave and 

brings the accumulated total below the aforesaid limit. Accrual of paid vacation leave will be 

suspended during any period of unpaid leave, except for military leave. Employees generally 

may not work and be paid in lieu of taking a vacation. 

Earned vacation may be taken in increments of one-half day or more. Employees must 

provide as much advance notice as possible, but in no event less than seventy two (72) hours, to 

their supervisor of their desire to schedule vacation time in accordance with the requirements of 

 
                                                            74 of 264



 

1161159.1 
19 

 

the Commission. In the event that two (2) or more employees request the same vacation dates 

and the Commission cannot grant all of the requests, preference generally will be given on the 

basis of the employees' length of service if requested prior to the year in which the vacation will 

be taken; otherwise preference generally will be given in the order in which the requests are 

received. However, the Commission reserves the right to approve or change scheduled vacations 

depending on Commission needs. 

SECTION 11.3. VACATION PAY AT TERMINATION 
 

Upon termination of employment, employees will be paid for unused vacation leave that 

has been accrued in accordance with this Agreement through the date of termination. 

ARTICLE XII 
SICK LEAVE 

 
SECTION 12.1. SICK LEAVE ACCRUAL 
 

The Commission provides paid sick leave to all full-time employees. Paid sick leave 

may be used for an employee's own sickness, injury, childbirth, disability, or hospitalization, or 

for the sickness, injury, disability or hospitalization of a person in the employee's immediate 

family. Immediate family for sick leave purposes means the employee's spouse, children 

(adopted and step), and parents. Paid sick leave also may be used for appointments with doctors, 

dentists or other healthcare providers. However, employees are expected to make all reasonable 

efforts to schedule such appointments outside of their normal working hours. Paid sick leave 

may be used by non-exempt employees in one half (1/2) hour increments. 

Paid sick leave is credited to eligible employees at the rate of one (1) eight (8)-hour shift 

for each full month of service and will accumulate to a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) 

eight (8)-hour shifts. Paid sick leave cannot be taken in advance of earning the time. 

 
                                                            75 of 264



 

1161159.1 
20 

 

SECTION 12.2. SICK LEAVE USAGE   
 

Paid sick leave is a benefit provided by the Commission, for the purposes set forth in 

Section 12.1 of this Agreement. Paid sick leave may be withheld pending the submission of proof 

of illness in the form of a physician statement verifying an illness, injury or disability for the 

dates of paid sick leave requested. The Commission may request at any time proof of illness, 

especially where a pattern of abuse is present or in cases of excessive or chronic absenteeism. 

Before taking paid sick leave, employees must provide their supervisor with notice as 

far in advance as possible under the circumstances. 

Paid sick leave must be used only for legitimate reasons consistent with this Article. Any 

abuse of this policy may result in non-payment of sick leave benefits and shall be grounds for 

disciplinary action. Abuse of this policy includes, but is not limited to: (1) the employee's 

failure to notify his/her supervisor of his/her intention to take paid sick leave when such notice 

was practicable; (2) the employee's failure to provide documentation for absence, as required; 

and (3) a continuing pattern of absences prior to or following regularly scheduled holidays, 

vacation or scheduled days off work. 

ARTICLE XIII 
LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 
SECTION 13.1. DISABILITY LEAVE 
 

In the event of a temporary disability, an eligible employee may apply for disability 

payment through the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund ("IMRF"). 

SECTION 13.2. DISCRETIONARY LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
 

An eligible employee can petition the General Manager (or designee) for a special leave 

of absence. Such leave of absence is without pay, seniority accrual or fringe benefits. A leave 

may be granted for good cause only if approved in advance by the General Manager (or 

 
                                                            76 of 264



 

1161159.1 
21 

 

designee). 

The Commission will continue to provide Commission paid medical insurance for 

eligible employees on unpaid personal leave on the same basis as if an active employee and, at 

the employee's sole expense, for his or her dependents, for a period of thirty (30) calendar days 

or for such period as is permitted by the Commission's medical insurance plan in effect from 

time to time, whichever is shorter. 

SECTION 13.3. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 

In the event of a death in an eligible employee's "immediate family," such employee 

shall be entitled to a leave of absence up to a maximum of three (3) consecutive days including 

the day of the funeral. Where death occurs and the funeral is to be held out of Illinois and 

beyond the States contiguous thereto, the employee shall be entitled to a maximum of five (5) 

consecutive days including the day of the funeral. During such leave, an employee shall receive 

his/her regular straight time pay for such time as she/he is required to be away from work during 

his/her regularly scheduled hours of work (but not to exceed eight (8) hours per day). 

The employee's "immediate family" shall be defined as: mother, father, husband, wife, 

brother or sister (including step or half), son or daughter (including step or adopted), father-in- 

law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, grandparent, 

grandchild, grandparent-in-law, court-appointed legal guardian, and a person for whom the 

employee is a court-appointed legal guardian. The Employer may, at its option, require the 

employee to submit satisfactory proof of death and/or proof of the relationship of the deceased to 

the employee. 

  

 
                                                            77 of 264



 

1161159.1 
22 

 

SECTION 13.4. JURY DUTY/WITNESS LEAVE 
 

An eligible employee whose service on a jury occurs during hours that the employee 

would have been regularly scheduled to work shall receive the difference between the amount the 

employee received for jury duty service and the amount employee would have earned in his/her 

regular base pay for the time spent in jury duty. The employee is required to immediately notify 

his/her supervisor of the need for jury duty time off. 

The Commission also provides employees with paid time off to comply with a subpoena 

issued on behalf of the Commission (or by any party in a matter directly involving the 

Commission or the employee's employment with the Commission), provided the employee is not 

a party or third party beneficiary in the case. 

SECTION 13.5. MILITARY LEAVE 

The Employer shall comply with all federal and state laws regarding military leave.  

SECTION 13.6. VICTIM'S ECONOMIC SECURITY AND SAFETY LEAVE 

Eligible employees who are victims of domestic or sexual violence, or have a family or 

household member who is a victim of domestic or sexual violence, are permitted to take up to 

twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave during any rolling twelve (12) month period as required by 

law. The eligibility requirements and time off benefits available under this Section will be 

construed in accordance with the law. 

SECTION 13.7. BLOOD DONATION LEAVE 

Eligible employees who have been employed by the Commission for at least six (6) 

months shall receive up to one (1) hour of paid leave every fifty-six (56) calendar days to donate 

blood as required by law. However, employees may take leave only after obtaining approval 

from their supervisor. The eligibility requirements and time off benefits available under this 

 
                                                            78 of 264



 

1161159.1 
23 

 

Section will be construed in accordance with the law. 

SECTION 13.8. WAIVER OF PAID LEAVE FOR ALL WORKERS ACT 

 In consideration of the Employer agreeing to provide paid sick leave, vacation leave, 

personal leave, and bereavement leave, bargaining unit employees hereby waive the paid leave 

provided by the Paid Leave for All Workers Act (820 ILCS 192/1 et seq.) and all provisions of 

said Act. 

ARTICLE XIV 
HEALTH INSURANCE 

 
The Employer shall provide health insurance through the Commission's group health 

insurance plan for eligible full-time employees and their eligible family members on the same 

basis and subject to the same terms, co-payment(s) of premiums, eligibility requirements and 

plan design or coverage changes as the other employees of the Commission who are not covered 

by a collective bargaining agreement (including any revisions thereto adopted by the 

Commission during the term of this Agreement). The cost of the program shall be shared by the 

Employer and employees in the same amount as the Commission's employees who are not 

covered by a collective bargaining agreement. The Commission may alter the plan coverage and 

premium payments for cost containment purposes after providing advance notice to the Union. 

ARTICLE XV 
EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND EDUCATION 

 
With the approval of the General Manager (or designee), eligible bargaining unit 

employees who voluntarily participate in an education program that is directly related to the type 

of responsibilities that the employee is regularly assigned to perform for the Commission, shall 

be eligible for tuition reimbursement in accordance with the then applicable policy in effect at 

the Commission in the published Personnel Manual. This benefit is only available, however, in 

 
                                                            79 of 264



 

1161159.1 
24 

 

the event that the General Manager (or designee) approves the benefit and the benefit is funded 

by the Commission in the applicable budget year when the reimbursement is sought and the 

course is taken. 

ARTICLE XVI 
SAFETY 

 
SECTION 16.1. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 

In order to maintain safe working conditions, the Employer and all covered employees 

shall comply with all laws applicable to the Commission's operations concerning the safety of 

employees and visitors of the Commission. 

SECTION 16.2. UNSAFE CONDITIONS 
 

Employees who reasonably and justifiably believe that their safety and health are in 

imminent danger of serious bodily harm due to an alleged unsafe working condition, equipment 

or vehicle, shall immediately inform their supervisor who shall have the responsibility to determine 

what action, if any, should be taken, including whether or not the job assignment should be 

discontinued if appropriate. 

ARTICLE XVII 
LABOR-MANAGEMENT MEETINGS 

 
SECTION 17.1. LABOR-MANAGEMENT CONFERENCES 
 

The Union and the Employer mutually agree that in the interest of efficient management 

and harmonious employee relations, meetings shall be held between Union and Employer 

representatives when appropriate. Such meetings shall be scheduled within one (1) week of either 

party submitting an agenda to the other or at a time mutually agreed upon by the parties, and shall 

be limited to: 

  

 
                                                            80 of 264



 

1161159.1 
25 

 

(A) Discussion of the implementation and general administration of this Agreement; 
 
(B) A sharing of general information of interest to the parties; 
 
(C) The identification of possible health and safety concerns. 
 

A Union representative may attend these meetings. The Employer may assign appropriate 

management personnel to attend. 

SECTION 17.2. PURPOSE 
 

It is expressly understood and agreed that such meetings shall be exclusive of the 

grievance procedure. Such meeting shall be chaired by the Employer representative and there 

shall be no loss of wages for attendance by affected bargaining unit employees. Grievances and 

arbitrations shall not be discussed at such meetings. 

ARTICLE XVIII 
SUBCONTRACTING 

 
It is the general policy of the Commission to continue to utilize its employees to perform 

available work which they are qualified to perform. However, the Employer reserves the right to 

contract out any work it deems necessary in the exercise of its business judgment. The Employer 

agrees to provide the Union advance notice in the event it elects to contract out bargaining unit 

work which is regularly performed by the covered employees. 

ARTICLE XIX 
UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT 

 
The Employer shall provide all employees with Commission required items of protective 

clothing, uniforms, shoes/boots and other safety gear, at no expense to the employee. 

ARTICLE XX 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

 
SECTION 20.1. RIGHT OF INSPECTION AND COPIES 

An employee will be granted the right to inspect his/her personnel records and make 

 
                                                            81 of 264



 

1161159.1 
26 

 

copies thereof in accordance with the Illinois Personnel Record Review Act; provided, however, 

that nothing in this ARTICLE XX can be the basis of a grievance under this Agreement. 

SECTION 20.2. DISCIPLINE ACTION IN PERSONNEL FILE 

No disciplinary action will be used against an employee in the progressive discipline 

procedure if it is more than two (2) years old; the only exception is a disciplinary action for 

harassment and/or violence which may be used for future discipline determinations for an 

indefinite period of time. 

ARTICLE XXI 
NO STRIKE / NO LOCKOUT 

 
SECTION 21.1. NO STRIKE/SLOWDOWN 
 

During the term of this Agreement, neither the Union nor any officers, agents, designees 

or employees of the Employer shall instigate, promote, sponsor, engage or participate in, or 

condone any strike of any kind, including but not limited to sympathy strikes, work slowdowns, 

sick outs, concerted stoppages of work, concerted refusals to work overtime, picketing, or any 

other intentional interruption or disruption of the operation of the Commission, regardless of the 

reason for doing so. 

Any or all of the employees who violate any of the provisions of this Article may be 

subject to discipline or discharge by the Commission. Each employee who holds the position of 

officer or representative of the Union occupies a position of special trust and responsibility in 

maintaining and bringing about compliance with the provisions of this Article. In addition, in the 

event of a violation of this Section of this Article, the Union agrees to inform its members of their 

obligations under this Agreement and to direct them to return to work. 

  

 
                                                            82 of 264



 

1161159.1 
27 

 

SECTION 21.2. NO LOCKOUT 

The Commission will not lock out any employees during the term of this Agreement as a 

result of a labor dispute with the Union. 

SECTION 21.3. PENALTY 

The only matter which may be made the subject of a grievance concerning disciplinary 

action imposed for an alleged violation of SECTION 21.1 above is whether or not the employee 

actually engaged in such prohibited conduct. The failure to confer a penalty in any instance is not 

a waiver of such right in any other instance nor is it a precedent. 

SECTION 21.4. JUDICIAL RESTRAINT 

Nothing contained herein shall preclude the Commission or the Union from obtaining 

judicial restraint and damages in the event the other party violates this Article. 

ARTICLE XXII 
NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 
Both the Employer and the Union agree not to discriminate against any employee on the 

basis of race, sex, creed, religion, color, sexual orientation, marital or parental status, age, national 

origin, political affiliation and/or beliefs, or other non-merit factors. Rights of employees pursuant 

to this Article are not exclusive and shall be inclusive of any and all other remedies available to 

them by law. 

The Employer and the Union agree that no employee shall be discriminated against, 

intimidated, restrained or coerced in the exercise of any rights granted by this Agreement, or on 

account of membership or non-membership in, or lawful activities on behalf of, the Union. 

 
                                                            83 of 264



 

1161159.1 
28 

 

ARTICLE XXIII 
WAGES 

 
SECTION 23.1. STEP UP PAY 
 

When an employee is designated by the General Manager (or designee) in writing to 

work in a higher classification for more than twenty (20) working days, the employee shall be 

compensated with an additional five percent (5%) of their current rate while in that position.  

SECTION 23.2. MERIT BASED ADJUSTMENTS 
 

(A) The following merit based wage adjustments will be provided to eligible 

employees who were or are actively employed on the date of ratification in 2023 and on the 

following dates in 2024 and 2025, provided the employee satisfied the merit based standards 

throughout the period at issue: 

Effective 5/1/23:  The same percentage wage increases to be approved by 
the Commission for employees who are not covered by a  

   collective bargaining agreement.  ("Me Too" provision) 
 
Effective 5/1/24:  The same percentage wage increases to be approved by the  
   Commission for employees who are not covered by a 

collective bargaining agreement.  ("Me Too" provision) 
 
Effective 5/1/25:  The same percentage wage increases to be approved by the  
   Commission for employees who are not covered by a 

collective bargaining agreement.  ("Me Too" provision) 
 
(B) The only portion of the Commission's pay and classification policy which is 

subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure is the reasonableness of the General Manager's 

(or designee's) determination, after the ratification date of this Agreement, about an employee's 

merit under this SECTION 23.2. 

SECTION 23.3. MERIT BASED LONGEVITY PAY 
 

(A) Subject to the remaining provisions of this SECTION 23.3, eligible employees 

will receive a merit based longevity pay increase in the amount(s) indicated below upon 

 
                                                            84 of 264



 

1161159.1 
29 

 

reaching the stated period of "Completed Years of Competent Service," provided the employee 

has been at or above a "Competent" level of performance, as determined by the General Manager 

(or designee), for the stated number of years: 

Completed Years of Competent Service Longevity Pay Adjustment (if earned)  
3 $1.10 increase to base wage rate 
5 $1.10 increase to base wage rate 
7 $1.10 increase to base wage rate 
10 $1.10 increase to base wage rate 
15 $1.10 increase to base wage rate 
20 $1.10 increase to base wage rate 
25 $1.10 increase to base wage rate 
30 $1.10 increase to base wage rate 
35 $1.10 increase to base wage rate 
 

(B) In determining whether an employee has met or exceeded a "Competent" level of 

performance, the Commission will look to the "Overall" rating on annual written performance 

evaluations, with a rating of "3" or better being deemed "Competent." Any change to the 

evaluation system shall be discussed with the Union prior to the effective date of implementation 

if it impacts this SECTION 23.3.  The General Manager shall have the authority, in his sole 

discretion, to adjust an employee’s “Completed Years of Competent Service.” 

(C) The only portion of the Commission's longevity pay system which is subject to 

the grievance and arbitration procedure is the reasonableness of the General Manager's (or 

designee's) determination, after the ratification date of this Agreement, about whether an 

employee has reached a level of "Competent" performance under this SECTION 23.3. 

(D)   Both parties recognize that the longevity pay system will be renegotiated each 

time the contract is re-negotiated and there is no guarantee that this longevity pay system will 

remain in effect in successor or subsequent contract years. 

  

 
                                                            85 of 264



 

1161159.1 
30 

 

SECTION 23.4.  TECHNICIAN TRAINEES AND OPERATOR TRAINEES 

 The Employer may employ Trainee Technicians (“Technician Trainees”) and/or Trainee 

Operators (“Operator Trainees”) (jointly, “Trainees”) at the following rates of pay: 

 - First Year of Service - an hourly rate to be determined by the Employer, based 
upon the ascertained market hourly rate of pay;   

 - Second Year of Service - an increase of $2 per hour above the previous hourly 
rate;  

 - Third Year of Service - an increase of $2 per hour above the previous hourly rate. 
 
 Upon completion of three (3) full years of service, a Trainee shall be either retained as a 

Technician or an Operator, as applicable, at a rate of pay equal to the Employer’s ascertained 

market hourly rate of pay (considering the Trainee’s education, experience, training and 

demonstrated level of skills), or shall be laid off pursuant to Section 7.2 of this Agreement, as 

determined solely by the Employer.  Employees who are employed as Trainees shall be 

probationary employees the entire time that they are employed as Trainees. 

SECTION 23.5. ON-CALL PAY  

 Employees who are assigned by the Employer to be on-call not on a regular basis shall 

be compensated one (1) hour at their regular hourly rate of pay for each day that they are assigned 

and perform on-call duties.  Employees who are regularly on-call (e.g., Utility Locator) shall be 

compensated thirty (30) minutes per weekday (Monday-Friday) and one (1) hour per weekend 

day (Saturday or Sunday) for each day that they are assigned and perform on-call duties. 

SECTION 23.6. COMPENSATION FOR CERTIFICATION AND ACCREDITATION  

 Employees shall receive the same payments as employees who are not covered by a 

collective bargaining agreement (“Me Too” provision) and as stated in the Personnel Manual, 

for obtaining an Illinois Certified Water Operator’s license, an NACE certification or a 

Professional Engineer’s license.  With regard to attending training classes, if training is required, 

 
                                                            86 of 264



 

1161159.1 
31 

 

as determined by the Employer, the employee shall be permitted to attend such training during 

regular work hours and be compensated for such time.  Attendance at required training outside 

of regular work hours shall also be compensated as work hours.  In all other cases, employees 

will not be compensated for attending training outside of their regular work schedule. 

ARTICLE XXIV 
DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY 

 
The Drug and Alcohol Policy, in effect for all bargaining unit employees, will be the 

same as is then in effect for employees of the Commission who are not covered by a collective 

bargaining agreement (including revisions thereto). A copy of the Policy currently in effect is 

attached as Exhibit B. 

ARTICLE XXV 
FILLING OF VACANCIES 

 
SECTION 25.1. POSTING 
 

The Employer will continue its practice of attempting to fill vacant positions with qualified 

current employees. Whenever the Employer determines there is a vacancy in an existing job 

classification that the Employer determines in its discretion needs to be filled or that a new 

position within the bargaining unit job has been created that the Employer determines in its 

discretion needs to be filled, a notice of such vacancy shall be posted on the Commission's bulletin 

boards for five (5) working days. During this period, employees who wish to apply for such 

vacancy, including employees on layoff, may do so. 

SECTION 25.2. FILLING OF VACANCIES 
 

When a vacancy occurs in the bargaining unit that the Employer determines in its discretion 

needs to be filled, the Employer will fill that vacancy by employing the internal employee on layoff 

for eighteen (18) months or less who is presently qualified to perform the available work to 

 
                                                            87 of 264



 

1161159.1 
32 

 

management's satisfaction. If no internal employee on layoff for eighteen (18) months or less is 

qualified, the Employer shall then hire an internal candidate, an external candidate or any other 

person not covered by this collective bargaining agreement to fill the vacancy based upon the 

Employer's assessment of each candidate's qualifications skills, performance, and other legitimate, 

non-discriminatory criteria. Any employee who expresses an interest in an open position will be 

given due consideration. 

ARTICLE XXVI 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
If any provision of this Agreement or the application of any such provision should be 

rendered or declared invalid by any court action, or by reason of any existing or subsequently 

enacted legislation, the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force 

and effect and the subject matter of such invalid provision shall be open to immediate re-

negotiation. 

ARTICLE XXVII 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement, upon ratification, supersedes all prior practices and agreements, whether 

written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein, and constitutes the complete and 

entire agreement between the parties, and concludes collective bargaining for its term unless 

otherwise expressly provided herein. 

The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, 

each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any 

subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the 

understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and 

opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, the Commission and the Union, for the 

 
                                                            88 of 264



 

1161159.1 
33 

 

duration of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees 

that the other shall not be obligated, to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter 

referred to or covered by this Agreement, including the impact of the Commission's exercise of 

its rights as set forth herein on wages, hours or terms and conditions of employment, even though 

specific aspects of such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge or 

contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated and signed this 

Agreement. The Union specifically waives any right it might have to impact bargaining for the 

life of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XXVIII 
TERMINATION 

 
This Agreement shall be effective upon execution in 2023, and shall remain in full force 

and effect until April 30, 2026, and shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter 

unless either party notifies the other in writing at least ninety (90) days prior to the anniversary 

date that is desires to modify this Agreement. In the event that such notice is given, negotiations 

shall begin no later than sixty (60) days prior to the anniversary date. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS IMMEDIATELY] 

  

 
                                                            89 of 264



 

1161159.1 
34 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this ________ day 

of ____________, 2023, at the DuPage Water Commission. 

 
INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING   DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ENGINEERS LOCAL 399 (AFL-CIO) 
 
 
 
_______________________________________  ______________________________ 
Brian E. Hickey      Paul D. May, General Manager 
President/Business Manager 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Vincent T. Winters 
Recording-Corresponding Secretary 

 
                                                            90 of 264



 

1161159.1 
35 

 

EXHIBIT A 

GRIEVANCE FORM 

 
                                                            91 of 264



 

1161159.1 
36 

 

EXHIBIT B 

DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY 

DRUG/ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPLACE 
 

A. General Policy And Rules 

Drug and alcohol use and abuse not only threaten the health of the user, but also create a 
danger to the life and safety of fellow employees on the job. They also have an adverse effect on 
the quality of the products and services that we provide and are extremely costly in terms of 
absenteeism, reduced productivity, and related problems in the workplace. For these and other 
reasons, the Commission is committed to creating and maintaining a workplace free of drugs and 
alcohol. 

 
Consistent with the foregoing, the Commission has adopted the following rules regarding 

drugs and alcohol. All employees are required to abide by these rules as a condition of their 
employment with the Commission: 

 
1. The manufacture, distribution, dispensation, sale, possession, or use of 

alcohol, illegal drugs, or controlled substances while on duty or on 
Commission property is absolutely prohibited and will subject employees to 
immediate discharge. Employees who are impaired by or under the 
influence of alcohol, illegal drugs, or controlled substances, or who have 
any of the same present in their bodily systems, while on the Commission's 
property, while on duty, or while operating a vehicle or machine leased or 
owned by the Commission, also will be subject to discharge. 
 

2. Off-the-job, illegal manufacture, distribution, dispensation, sale, possession, 
or use of illegal drugs or controlled substances may adversely affect an 
employee's job performance, the safety of other employees and the public, 
and the public's trust in the Commission and its ability to provide quality 
services. Accordingly, such conduct also will subject employees to 
disciplinary action, up to and including immediate discharge. 
 

3. Employees taking a prescribed drug or controlled substance must maintain 
the same in the original container identifying the drug or substance, dosage, 
date of prescription, name of the person for whom it was prescribed, and 
authorizing physician. Employees also must review with their supervisor or 
the General Manager any work restrictions that should be observed while 
taking the prescribed drug or substance. 
 

4. Employees are encouraged to report known violations of these rules directly 
to their supervisor or the General Manager. The Commission will use its 
best efforts to protect the anonymity of all employees involved and will treat 
the information as confidential. 
 

 
                                                            92 of 264



 

1161159.1 
37 

 

5. Employees who recognize that they have a drug and/or alcohol problem are 
encouraged to voluntarily seek medical or other professional assistance to 
correct the problem. No employee will be disciplined or discharged for 
seeking such professional assistance. However, while seeking such 
assistance, the employee must continue to observe and comply with all 
Commission policies and rules, including those relating to the use and 
possession of drugs and alcohol. The employee therefore will not be 
insulated from disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, for 
violation of the Commission's policies and rules merely because he or she is 
seeking professional assistance or participating in a drug and/or alcohol 
rehabilitation program. 
 

6. Employees must notify the General Manager of any criminal drug statute 
conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five days 
after such conviction. 
 

B.  Definitions 
 

The following definitions apply for purposes of the Commission's drug/alcohol policy 
and rules: 

 
1. The terms "drugs," "illegal drugs," and "controlled substances" include 

controlled substances as defined in the federal Controlled Substances Act 
(21 U.S.C. § 812 et seq.) and the Illinois Controlled Substances Act (720 
ILCS 570/100 et seq.), and cannabis as defined in the Illinois Cannabis 
Control Act (720 ILCS 550/1 et seq.). The terms specifically include, but 
are not limited to, marijuana, cocaine, PCP, heroin, LSD, amphetamines, 
and barbiturates. 
 

2. The term "Commission property" includes, but is not limited to, all 
Commission offices, work areas, lunch or break rooms, rest rooms, parking 
lots, buildings and grounds, vehicles, desks, and lockers, wherever located, 
which are owned, leased, or operated by the Commission, or which are used 
by employees in connection with the performance of their duties on behalf 
of the Commission. 
 

3. The term "conviction" means a finding of guilt, including a plea of nolo 
contendere, or imposition of a sentence or both, by any judicial body 
charged with determining violations of federal or state criminal drug 
statutes. 
 

4. The term "criminal drug statute" means a criminal statute involving the 
manufacture, distribution, sale, position, or use of any controlled substance. 

 
 
 

 
                                                            93 of 264



 

1161159.1 
38 

 

C. Drug and Alcohol Testing 
 

In keeping with the Commission's commitment to safety, employees may be required to 
provide blood, urine, or other body substance samples for testing to determine the use of alcohol 
or drugs. Employees may be required to submit to alcohol or drug testing in any of the following 
situations: 

 
1. Post-accident. Any employee who is involved in any accident while on 

duty, whether on or off the Commission's premises, may be asked to 
provide a body substance sample. 
 

2. Reasonable Suspicion. Any employee demonstrating significant and 
observable changes in performance, appearance, behavior, speech, or other 
characteristics providing reasonable suspicion of the influence of alcohol 
or drugs may be asked to provide a body substance sample. 
 

3. Random Testing. Any employee holding a safety-sensitive position may, 
at any time and on a random basis, be asked to provide a body substance 
sample. Any employee who has tested positive on any alcohol or drug 
test, and who is allowed to return to work following such test, may, at any 
time during the 12-month period following such return, be asked to 
provide a body substance sample. 
 

The Commission may, in its sole discretion and in addition to any disciplinary action, 
require an employee who has tested positive on any alcohol or, drug test to participate in an 
approved alcohol or drug counseling or rehabilitation program as a condition to being allowed to 
return to work. 
 

 

 
                                                            94 of 264



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-49-23 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           PDM     -    CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/11/2023 

Description:  Authorize staff to provide draft DWC/Customer Contract to DWC 
Customers and to schedule Joint Meetings as required by Section 16 of 
the current Customer Contract 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  

The term of the existing DWC/Customer contract will end on February 24, 2024, and the term of the 
existing DWC/Chicago contract will end on March 19, 2024.    

DWC has been working earnestly for several years to engage the contractual parties in productive 
negotiations so that both contracts are acted upon at the necessary time to avoid a contractual lapse.  
Relative to the DWC/Customer contract, DWC staff, legal counsel, and a steering committee of 
municipal officials has recently completed preparation of the document for the contract renewal, 
which is now recommended for approval by all parties. 

However, prior to any action by the DWC Board of Commissioners, it is necessary to facilitate a rather 
complex sequence of events as prescribed by Section 16 of the existing DWC/Customer Contract.  
These events include scheduling “Joint Meetings” of the customers to review 1) the proposed 
DWC/Customer Contract, and 2) recommended action on the DWC/Chicago contract.  Following the 
Joint Meetings, each municipality must undertake individual municipal legislative activities to provide 
DWC with the requisite documentation prior to final consideration and action by the DWC Board of 
Commissioners, which is targeted for December 2023, with a backup date of January, 2024.   

Each municipality will be a direct party to the Customer contract and will have a designated signature 
line accordingly.  DWC will hold a Joint Meeting on September 28, 2023 to present the DWC/Customer 
contract, as required by Section 16 of the current contract.  Relative to the DWC/Chicago contract, the 
municipalities will not be a signatory, but will need to provide a resolution concurring with the 
recommended action which is presented by the DWC.  DWC/Chicago contract negotiations continue 
in earnest concurrently with advancement of the Alternative Source Water Project.  Updates on both 
will be provided at the October 19, 2023 DWC Board of Commissioners meeting.    

 
                                                            95 of 264



| 2 of 2 | 

 

DWC has undertaken a communications initiative to ensure that all parties are informed as to the 
necessary steps and their various responsibilities in the same.  Attached support documents provide 
additional details as to the necessary tasks, which are summarized in the following matrix: 

DWC Water Contracts Sequencing Matrix: 

Date    Action          Responsible Party  

9/28/2023   DWC/Customer Contract [Joint Meeting #1]     DWC / Municipalities 

9/28/2023   Notice provided for second Joint meeting     DWC 

10/19/2023*   Alternative Source Water Presentation     DWC / Consultants 

10/31/2023   DWC/Chicago Contract [Joint Meeting #2]     DWC / Municipalities 

9/28/23 – 12/8/23  Municipal Board Customer contract approval     Municipalities 

11/1/23 – 12/8/23  Municipal Board Chicago contract consent     Municipalities 

12/8 - 12/21/2023  Customer contract municipal signatures     DWC/Municipalities 

12/21/2023*   DWC Board  - Customer contract approval     DWC 

12/21/2023*   DWC Board - Chicago contract action      DWC 
 
* DWC Board meeting 
 

Recommended Motion: 

it is recommended that Resolution R-49-23 be approved authorizing staff to release the draft 
DWC/Customer Contract to DWC Customers, and to schedule two Joint Meetings as required by 
Section 16 of the current DWC/Customer contract. 

 
                                                            96 of 264



| 1 of 4 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-49-23 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STAFF TO DISTRIBUTE THE DRAFT DWC/CUSTOMER CONTRACT AND 
SCHEUDLE JOINT MEETINGS AS PRESCRIBED BY SECTION 16 OF THE CURRENT WATER SUPPLY 

CONTRACT 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the current DuPage Water Commission Water Purchase and Sale Contract between 

DWC and current customers term ends on February 24, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, Section 16 of the current Water Purchase and Sale Contract prescribes a procedure for 

modification of the Customer Contract, which requires the scheduling of a Joint Meeting to consider 

modifications to the DWC Customer Contract, notice of which must be provided no less than 30 days, and 

no more than 60 days prior to the proposed meeting; and 

WHEREAS, DWC has assembled a steering group of municipal customer representatives to 

participate with DWC staff and legal counsel in preparation of a Water Purchase and Sale Contract for the 

term ending February 24, 2064, which document is now recommended for approval by all parties; and 

WHEREAS, the Municipalities party to the DWC/Customer Contract must undertake individual 

municipal legislative activities to authorize the DWC/Customer contract for the term ending February 24, 

2064, with each customer party individually approving and executing the Water Purchase and Sale 

contract before action by the DuPage Water Commission Board of Commissioners; and 

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission Water Supply Contract with the City of Chicago term 

ends on March 19, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, Section 16 of the current Water Purchase and Sale Contract prescribes a procedure for 

modification of the Chicago Water Supply Contract, which requires the scheduling of a Joint Meeting to 

 
                                                            97 of 264



| 2 of 4 | 
 

consider modifications to the Chicago Water Supply Contract, notice of which must be provided no less 

than 30 days, and no more than 60 days prior to the proposed meeting; and 

WHEREAS, DWC is 1) exploring an alternative solution to obtaining Lake Michigan water and at 

the same time, 2) in discussions and negotiations with the City of Chicago for a new water supply 

agreement or extension of the current Chicago Water Supply contract; and 

WHEREAS, the Charter Municipalities party to the DWC/Customer Contract must undertake 

individual municipal legislative activities in accordance with Section 16 of the current DWC/Customer 

Contract, which requires the affirmative vote of ¾ of the charter customers to authorize the 

recommended action relative to a Chicago Water Supply Contract modification or extension. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  Staff is authorized and directed to provide the proposed Water Purchase and Sale 

Contract with a term ending February 24, 2064 to the customers party to the contract, for consideration 

and individual legislative action, seeking approval of the same. 

SECTION TWO:  Staff is authorized and directed to schedule a Joint Meeting for consideration of 

the proposed DWC/Customer Water Purchase and Sale Contract in accordance with Section 16 of the 

current Water Purchase and Sale Contract, and to participate in any activities necessary to facilitate 

effective communication and municipal legislative processing of the same. 

SECTION THREE:  Staff is authorized and directed to schedule a Joint Meeting for consideration of 

the proposed DWC/Chicago Water Supply Contract in accordance with Section 16 of the current Water 

Purchase and Sale Contract, and to communicate the direction provided by the DWC Board of 

Commissioners relative to extension or modification of the same, including participation in any activities 

necessary to facilitate effective communication and municipal concurrence by ¾ of the DWC Charter 

Customers. 

 
                                                            98 of 264



| 3 of 4 | 
 

 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

Healy, J.       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2023. 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2022/R-49-23.docx 

 

 

 
                                                            99 of 264



| 4 of 4 | 
 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

DELETE PAGE IF NO ATTACHMENT 

 

 
                                                             100 of 264



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 4 | 

 

 

 

 

 

To: DWC Municipal Customers, Mayors & Managers 

From: Paul D. May, DuPage Water Commission General Manager  

Date: 8/28/2023 

Subject: DWC Strategic Initiatives & Contracts Status Update 

 

As the process for the DWC/Customer Contract advances, DWC wishes to take the opportunity to 
provide an update on strategic objectives and present a summary of required activities relative to the 
contract approval process.  There will be several DWC communication events which will be scheduled 
to assist with communication relative to these items, including joint meetings on 9/28 and 10/31.   

Please note that the prescribed sequencing of required activities relative to the DWC/Customer and 
DWC/Chicago contract presents a logistically challenging sequence of events to ensure that both 
contracts remain fully authorized at all times, and that adequate time is allotted for the various 
municipal, DWC, and City of Chicago legislative processes to be completed in in the requisite order.  
This memorandum seeks to provide greater clarity relative to these events.  

Required Municipal Board Legislative Activities: 

It will be necessary for each municipal board to vote on two DWC-related items: 

1) DWC/Customer Contract (presented by DWC at the 9/28 Joint Meeting), and;  
2) DWC/Chicago Contract (presented by DWC at the 10/31 Joint meeting)  

Each municipality will be a direct party to the Customer contract and will have a designated signature line 
accordingly.  DWC will hold a Joint Meeting on September 28 to present the DWC/Customer contract, as 
required by Section 16 of the current contract.  The status of the DWC customer contract is described in 
greater detail separately in this memorandum.   

Relative to the DWC/Chicago contract, the municipalities will not be a signatory, but will need to 
provide a resolution concurring with the recommended action which is presented by the DWC at the 
October 31th Joint Meeting.  The status of this item is also described in greater detail separately in this 
memorandum.   

It is anticipated that municipalities may desire to act on both required activities at one meeting; 
therefore, DWC has prepared a matrix of sequenced activities which will present the opportunity to 
do so in November - but will be dependent upon the unique legislative process of each community.  
Following, please see the anticipated sequence of activities. 

 
                                                             101 of 264



  

| 2 of 4 | 

 

DWC Water Contracts Sequencing Matrix: 

Date    Action          Responsible Party  

8/28/2023   Registered notice of Joint Meeting mailed     DWC 

9/22/2023   IML Conference communication event      DWC 

9/28/2023   DWC/Customer Contract [Joint Meeting #1]     DWC / Municipalities 

9/28/2023   Notice provided for second Joint meeting     DWC 

10/19/2023*   Alternative Source Water Presentation     DWC / Consultants 

10/31/2023   DWC/Chicago Contract [Joint Meeting #2]     DWC / Municipalities 

9/28/23 – 12/8/23  Municipal Board Customer contract approval     Municipalities 

11/1/23 – 12/8/23  Municipal Board Chicago contract consent     Municipalities 

12/8 - 12/21/2023  Customer contract municipal signatures     DWC/Municipalities 

12/21/2023*   DWC Board  - Customer contract approval     DWC 

12/21/2023*   DWC Board - Chicago contract action      DWC 
 
* DWC Board meeting 
 

Following, please find a summary of current strategic initiatives, including detailed status of the contract 
negotiations as well as the alternative source water concept. 

DWC / Customer Contract: 

The DWC/Customer contract expires on February 28, 2024.  Due to the number of governmental 
bodies which are party to the contract it is not practicable to engage the 28 governmental bodies 
in separate individual negotiations.  Rather, a steering group of 8 municipal representatives was 
assembled to participate in preparation of the new DWC/Customer contract, assisted by the legal 
staff from the City of Naperville and the DuPage County States attorney. 

Procedurally, it will be necessary to facilitate compliance with the process prescribed in Section 16 
of the current contract, and to provide adequate time for municipalities to schedule individual 
legislative processes - which may include review by a subcommittee, or a first and second reading 
procedure.  It is also anticipated that some municipalities may hold only one meeting in November 
due to the Thanksgiving holiday.   

A memorandum provided separately describes the targeted dates and sequence of events, which 
will begin with a Joint Meeting of the governing bodies at the DWC on September 28th to present 
the contract.  Following that meeting, municipalities will commence their legislative procedures 
with the objective of providing all municipal authorizations by early December.  If the municipal 
(and private) signatories can authorize the contract by the DWC’s December 21 Board meeting, 
the contract will be fully executed at that time, with a backup date of January 18, 2024. 

 

 
                                                             102 of 264



  

| 3 of 4 | 

 

DWC / Chicago Contract: 
The DWC/Chicago contract expires on March 19, 2024.  DWC has been earnestly attempting to 
engage the City of Chicago in meaningful negotiations for several years, but very little progress 
was made with the former City of Chicago administration.  While the new Chicago administration 
has been more engaged, it remains likely that a favorable contract will not be formalized prior to 
the expiration date of the current contract.   

In particular, DWC has taken the positions that 1) the lower-rate “Cost-of-Service” commodity 
costing methodology established in the Joliet contract, should be included in the DWC contract 
effective immediately; and 2) DWC should be granted operational control and ownership of the 
Lexington Pumping facility (which was built by DWC and serves only DWC - but is under the control 
of Chicago in the existing contract).  A satisfactory solution has not been agreed to by Chicago 
relative to either of these priorities.  While we will continue to negotiate with Chicago in good 
faith, it is prudent to consider alternatives, should a satisfactory conclusion to negotiations not be 
possible.   

Absent negotiation of a suitable agreement, DWC would consider extending the contract 
unilaterally for a period 10+ years.  The current contract provides the DWC with the authority to 
extend the current contract for no less than 10 years.  DWC could therefore extend the contract 
under the current terms and continue to negotiate with the City during that period of time.  

 In the event that another water purchaser (e.g. Joliet) receives water at a lower rate during that 
time, DWC would enforce our current favored nations clause for parity relative to rate and 
methodology.  Additionally, the length of the Chicago contract extension could be established to 
facilitate construction of a new source water system should that alternative prove most favorable 
(see following alternative source water project summary). 

In a manner similar to the process prescribed for the DWC/Customer contract, any action on the 
DWC/Chicago contract will require a rather complex sequence of events, including participation 
by the governing bodies of the DWC Customer municipalities.  At minimum, this process will 
require the assembly of a Joint Meeting for discussion of the proposed action on the Chicago 
contract, followed by a municipal legislative process which must result in approval of the proposed 
action by ¾ of the DWC charter customer’s municipal boards.   

Therefore, this process will include the following steps:  1) joint meeting of DWC customers with 
minimum 30 days notice, 2) municipal process to approve resolutions authorizing the proposed 
action on the Chicago contract, 3) authorization of the action by the DWC Board, and 4) notice of 
and/or approval of the action by the City of Chicago.   

Alternative Source Water Project: 
The conclusion of the existing Chicago contract presents an opportunity to consider the future of 
water supply for DuPage County and the larger suburban region.  Due to commodity cost rate 
escalation from the City of Chicago and the absence of governance participation in the critical 
source water supply, DWC commenced an initiative in 2022 to study alternative supplies of Lake 
Michigan source water.   

The initial study was completed in April, 2023 at which time a presentation was made to the DWC 
Board of Commissioners.  The report indicated that it is technically feasible and financially viable 
to construct a new source water system which would be owned and operated by DWC and 
potentially other suburban partners.  The initial study identified the “North” route as likely most 

 
                                                             103 of 264



  

| 4 of 4 | 

 

preferrable, and recommended that following activities include engagement with other regional 
water wholesalers to determine if a partnership would be possible; through which the source 
water infrastructure would be jointly owned by participating suburban water agencies, essentially 
replacing the commodity service currently provided by Chicago.  A partnership would increase the 
scale of the project, but the cost would be shared by more consumers, likely resulting in lower 
water rates when compared with DWC acting alone. 

DWC therefore began engaging the Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency 
(NSMJAWA) and the Northwest Water Commission (NWC), and both agencies expressed a desire 
to participate in further consideration of a source water project.  DWC then directed consulting 
engineering firm, Carollo Inc, to update the report to evaluate the “North” route with partner 
agencies NSMJAWA and NWC.  This report is now being completed, and a following engineering 
validation study will be performed by engineering firm Burns & McDonnell, and a financial 
validation study and strategy document will be performed by Raftelis, Inc. 

The results of these studies will be presented to the DWC Board of Commissioners at the October 
19, 2023 Board meeting, at which time details will be provided relative to project scope, cost, 
schedule, and financial implications - including the projected rate impacts.  This meeting will be 
open to the public, and interested parties are encouraged to attend.  Following the meeting, 
summary study information can be made available to DWC municipalities. 

It should be noted that the October meeting is not intended to result in a decision regarding the 
source water project; rather to inform the DWC Board relative to the whether an alternative 
source water project presents a favorable alternative compared to a long-term Chicago contract.  
If so, it will be recommended that the project be advanced for further study and consideration.  
The results of the study may also inform the DWC Board relative to the desired length of the 
Chicago contract extension.  

DWC Communication Enhancement Events: 

As described above, there are many strategic initiatives and relatively complex activities underway 
with the DWC, customers, and partners agencies.   

DWC appreciates the engagement and collaboration of the Customer Steering Committee relative 
to the DWC/Customer Contract, and will be focusing on enhanced outreach and engagement over 
the next several months.  In particular, please consider attending the following, and of course feel 
free to reach out at any time with questions. 

 9/22/2023 IML Conference communication event (invitations pending)  

9/28/2023 DWC/Customer Contract [Joint Meeting #1] 

10/19/2023 Alternative Source Water Presentation 

10/31/2023 DWC/Chicago Contract [Joint Meeting #2] 

 

 
                                                             104 of 264



 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 1 | 

 

 

August 28, 2023 

RE:  DuPage Water Commission / Customer Water Contract Extension [JOINT MEETING] 

Dear Mayor,  

As you are likely aware, the DuPage Water Commission/Customer Contract will expire on February 24, 
2024.  Prior to that date, it is necessary for each municipal governing body to approve a contract extension, 
followed by the DuPage Water Commission Board of Commissioners. 

Municipal Steering Committee & Legal Review: 
There are 28 governing bodies that are signatories to the contract; therefore, it is not practicable to 
engage in individual contract negotiations with each municipality.  For this reason, a steering group 
comprised of eight municipal representatives was assembled to represent the municipalities in 
preparation of the contract, which will become the water supply contract for the next 40-year period.   

The objective of this collaboration was to ensure the document provides as much continuity with the 
previous contract as possible, while removing sections which no longer applied (primarily regarding 
the original system construction).  The municipal legal review for the document was performed 
concurrently by both the DuPage County States Attorney and the Naperville City Attorney.   

This process has now been concluded with all parties recommending approval of the contract extension 
(Steering Committee, DuPage County States Attorney, Naperville City Attorney, DWC).  Following 
separately by e-mail transfer, please find a copy of the proposed contract as well as a procedural 
memorandum and ordinance template. 

Lastly, pursuant to Section 16 of the current contract, a Joint Meeting of all governing bodies must be held 
to provide a venue for the discussion of the proposed contract extension – a proxy representative may 
attend on your behalf.  During the meeting, DWC will also provide an update relative to other ongoing 
initiatives including the Chicago water contract and an alternative source water project.  The Joint Meeting 
is scheduled at the following time: 

 DWC/Customer Water Supply Contract Joint Meeting of Governing Bodies 
 9:00 AM September 28, 2023, DWC Public Meeting Room 
 600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126 

Sincerely, 

 
James F. Zay         CE: Village Manager 

Chairman          File 

 
                                                             105 of 264



1 

 
 
 
 
 

DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION 
Counties of DuPage, Cook, Kane and Will, Illinois 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT 
 

Between 
 

The DuPage Water Commission 
 

and 
 

Contract Customers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                             106 of 264



2 

 
 
 

DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
 

COUNTIES OF DuPAGE, COOK, KANE AND WILL ILLINOIS 
 
 

AND 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ADDISON 
VILLAGE OF BARTLETT 

VILLAGE OF BENSENVILLE 
VILLAGE OF BLOOMINGDALE 
VILLAGE OF CAROL STREAM 

VILLAGE OF CLARENDON HILLS 
CITY OF DARIEN 

VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE 
CITY OF ELMHURST 

VILLAGE OF GLENDALE HEIGHTS 
VILLAGE OF GLEN ELLYN 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
VILLAGE OF ITASCA 
VILLAGE OF LISLE 

VILLAGE OF LOMBARD 
CITY OF NAPERVILLE 

VILLAGE OF OAK BROOK 
CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

VILLAGE OF ROSELLE 
VILLAGE OF VILLA PARK 
VILLAGE OF WESTMONT 

CITY OF WHEATON 
VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK 

VILLAGE OF WINFIELD 
CITY OF WOOD DALE 

VILLAGE OF WOODRIDGE 
ILLINOIS AMERICAN WATER 

ARGONNE NATIONAL LABORATORY 
AQUA ILLINOIS 

 
WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT 

DATED AS OF ________, ____ 

 
                                                             107 of 264



3 

WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT 
 

Table of Contents 
            Page 

PREAMBLES 
Section 1. Definitions 
 
Section 2. Water Supply 

(a) Agreement to Purchase and Sell 
  (b) Certain Limits on Supply and Commission’s Power to Contract 
  (c) Emergency or Maintenance Shut-Off 
  (d) Curtailment; Emergency Use of Other Sources 
  (e) Water Quality 
 
Section 3. Storage, Delivery, Distribution and Conservation 

(a) Storage 
(b) Points of Delivery, Back-Flows, Pressure 
(c) Contract Customer to Maintain Water Quality and Unit System 

and to Prevent Waste 
 
Section 4. Measuring Equipment 

(a) Commission to Supply Equipment, Official Record 
(b) Calibration 
(c) Check Meters 
(d) Variations between Meters; Reconciliation 
(e) Removal of Commission Metering Station 
 

Section 5. Unit of Measurement 
 
Section 6. Prices and Terms of Payment 

(a) Operation and Maintenance Costs; Underconsumption Costs 
(b) Fixed Costs 
(c) Bills and Due Date 
(d) Default Shares 
(e) Disputed Payments 
(f) Interest on Overdue Payments 
(g) Security Deposit 
(h) Rates to Contract Customers Same 
(i) Limitation on Payments; Net Indebtedness of Contract  

Customers 
(j) May Use Other Moneys 
(k) Sole Method for Contract Customers to Enforce Provisions 

Hereof Against Other Customers 
(l) Beginning of Obligation to Pay 
(m) Provision in Lieu of` Water Allocation 
 

 
                                                             108 of 264



4 

Page 
             
Section 7. Procedural and Other Limitations; Further Covenants of the 
  Commission 

(a) Procedural Rule 
(b) Lake Water Only 
(c) Taxes 
(d) Covenants to Be Set Out in Bond Ordinances/Resolutions 
(e) Absolute Conditions 
(f) Emergency Supply 
(g) Governance 
(h) Retail Sales 
(i) Evidence of Customer Action 
(j) Limitation on Funds 
(k) Certain Budget, Rate Limitation, Notice and Hearing 

Provisions 
 

Section 8. Special Conditions and Covenants 
(a) Commission to Build Waterworks System and Supply 

Lake Water 
(b) Title to Lake Water 
(c) Payments Hereunder an Operation Expense of Unit  

Systems 
(d) Commission Insurance 
(e) Commission to Continue to Serve 
(f) Commission Covenant to Operate Properly 

 
Section 9. Additional Contract Customer Covenants 

(a) Maintain and Operate Unit System 
(b) Rate Covenant 
(c) Segregate Revenues 
(d) Future Subordination of Revenue Bond Lien 
(e) General Covenant to Operate Properly 
(f) Accounting and Audit 
(g) Maintain Ownership of Unit System and Properties 
(h) Insurance 
(i) Budget and Appropriations 
(j) Continue to Serve 
(k) Maintain Water Allocation 
(l) Combining or Separating Unit System Accounts 
(m) Customer Covenants as to Rate of Withdrawal 

 
Section 10. Election as to Water Purchase Requirements 
 
Section 11. Intentionally Omitted 
 

 
                                                             109 of 264



5 

Section 12. Subsequent and Other Contracts 
(a) No Contract With Rate More Favorable 
(b) Occasional Service Only Except to Contract Customers 
(c) Subsequent Contract Terms 

 
Section 13. Force Majeure 
 
Section 14. Commission Defaults 
 
Section 15. Contract Customer’s Obligation Unconditional 
  
Section 16. Modification of this Contract or of the Water Supply 
  Contract 
 
Section 17. Non-Assignability 
 
Section 18. Cooperation In Construction of Commission Water Supply 
 
Section 19. Mutual Cooperation in Issuance of Obligations 
 
Section 20. Regulatory Bodies 
 
Section 21. Commission Cooperative Arrangements with Other Water 
  Suppliers 
 
Section 22. Notices and Evidence of Actions 
 
Section 23. Severability 
 
Section 24. Effective Date and Term 
 
Section 25. Governing Law; Superseder 
 
Section 26. Venue 
 
Section 27. Execution in Counterparts 
 
SIGNATURES 
 
EXHIBIT 1 Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                             110 of 264



6 

DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
COUNTIES OF DuPAGE, COOK, KANE AND WILL, ILLINOIS 

WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT 
 

 This Water Purchase and Sale Contract, dated as of XX, by and between the 
DuPage Water Commission, Counties of DuPage, Cook and Will, Illinois (the 
“Commission”), a county water commission and public corporation under Division 135 of 
Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-1 et seq., and the Water 
Commission Act of 1985, 70 ILCS 3720/1 et seq. (collectively, the “Acts”), and each of 
the following units of local government and private water providers in the State of 
Illinois: 
 

Unit of Local Government 
 

Village of Addison 
Village of Bartlett 

Village of Bensenville 
Village of Bloomingdale 
Village of Carol Stream 

Village of Clarendon Hills 
City of Darien 

Village of Downers Grove 
County of DuPage 

City of Elmhurst 
Village of Glendale Heights 

Village of Glen Ellyn 
Village of Hinsdale 

Village of Itasca 

Village of Lisle 
Village of Lombard 
City of Naperville 

Village of Oak Brook 
City of Oakbrook Terrace 

Village of Roselle 
Village of Villa Park 
Village of Westmont 

City of Wheaton 
Village of Willowbrook 

Village of Winfield 
City of Wood Dale 

Village of Woodridge 

 
Private Utilities 

 
Illinois American Water 

Argonne National Laboratory 
Aqua Illinois 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has been organized under said division and act 
(collectively, the “Act”) to supply water within its territorial limits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the aforementioned units of local government (the “Contract 
Customers” as hereafter defined) have each executed counterparts of this Contract and 
are authorized under the Act to receive potable water from Lake Michigan (“Lake Water” 
as hereafter defined) through the instrumentality of the Commission and, by executing 
this Contract are enabling the Commission to construct and complete its waterworks 
system (the “Waterworks System” as hereafter defined); and 

 
                                                             111 of 264



7 

 
 WHEREAS, the Contract Customers each have a waterworks system (a “Unit 
System” as hereafter defined) and have each received or may properly petition to 
receive from the State of Illinois Department of Natural Resources, Office of Water 
Resources, a “Water Allocation” as hereafter defined; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has entered into a contract to purchase Lake Water 
sufficient to meet the water supply needs of the Commission and the Contract 
Customers and others (the “Water Supply Contract” as hereafter defined); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission proposes to issue and sell its “Bonds” as hereafter 
defined from time to time during the term of this Contract in sufficient amounts for the 
payment of: “Cost of the Project” as hereafter defined; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Bonds will be issued from time to time by the Commission 
pursuant to a “Bond Resolution” as hereafter defined; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, Article VII, Section 10 of the Illinois Constitution 
of 1970, and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., as 
amended, the Commission and its Customers are authorized to enter into this Contract; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, by the execution of this Contract, its Customers are surrendering 
none of their respective rights to the ownership and operation of their respective Unit 
Systems, except as expressly limited to this Contract, nor is the Commission 
surrendering any of its rights to the ownership and operation of its Waterworks System, 
but all expressly assert their continued right to operate such systems; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is known to its Customers that the Commission may use this 
Contract as the basis for obtaining loans from time to time to be evidenced by the 
issuance of the Bonds and for payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds and as the means for the payment of its maintenance and 
operating expenses; and for the establishment and maintenance of accounts and 
reserves for such purposes as may be required in the Bond Resolution authorizing 
issuance of Bonds or authorized by applicable statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, its Customers recognize that the Commission may in the future 
enter into contracts with other “Subsequent Customers” as hereafter defined and other 
customers as may be served from time to time who have Water Allocations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission, in Article VI, Section 7.b of its By-Laws, requires a 
greater than majority vote containing a certain composition of Commissioners to 
validate certain motions, resolutions or ordinances; and the Contract Customers enter 
into this Contract in reliance upon the continuation of procedural rules of the 
Commission as set forth in said Article VI, Section 7.b which grant this vote and 
composition; and 

 
                                                             112 of 264



8 

 
 WHEREAS, this Contract also contains certain requirements for the nature and 
composition of the vote of the Commission required to effectuate certain actions relating 
to the contractual rights of the Contract Customers herein; and such Contract 
Customers execute this Contract in reliance upon the continuation of such requirements 
for the term of this Contract; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contract Customers have entered into this Contract in reliance 
upon Section 2 (j) of the Water Commission Act of 1985 which provides that units of 
local government may enter into contracts for the supply of Lake Water with the 
Commission in contemplation of and reliance upon the pledge of the State of Illinois that 
no subsequent legislation would impair or limit the power or ability of a County Water 
Commission or a unit of local government fully to carry out the terms of any contract for 
the supply of Lake Water; and, in particular, the rights of the Contract Customers and 
the obligations of the Commission under this Contract are intended by the Contract 
Customers and acknowledged by the Commission to be subject to such pledge and 
agreement of the State of Illinois; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and of the mutual 
covenants and agreements herein contained, the parties hereto hereby agree as 
follows: 
 
 The preambles hereto are hereby incorporated herein by reference, as if set out 
in full.  Section numbers and captions are for reference and convenience only and do 
not expand or limit the meaning as contained in the text of this Contract.  A definition in 
the singular may be used in the plural, and vice-versa. 
 
 Section 1.  Definitions.  The following words and phrases shall have the 
following meanings when used in this Contract, unless the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning is intended. 
  
 
  “Aggregate Costs” means Operation and Maintenance Costs, Fixed Costs and 
Underconsumption Costs, collectively, as herein defined. 
 
 “Bonds” means all of the Commission’s obligations which are payable from the 
revenues of the Waterworks System, whether in the form of bonds, notes, or other 
evidences of indebtedness, in whatever original principal amount, together with any 
such additional revenue obligations authorized by statute to be issued by the 
Commission from time to time and refunding revenue obligations issued to refund other 
such obligations. 
 
 “Bond Resolution” means the Commission’s bond resolution or bond resolutions 
or bond ordinance or bond ordinances under which the Commission will authorize the 
issuance of and issue Bonds. 
  

 
                                                             113 of 264



9 

 “Charter Customers” means the units of local government that executed the 
original contract between the Commission and its customers dated June 11, 1986. 

  
  

 “Commission” means the DuPage Water Commission, Counties of DuPage, 
Cook, Kane and Will, Illinois. 
 
 “Contract” means this Contract. 
 
 “Contract Customers” collectively means Charter Customers and any other entity 
that has executed a contract with the Commission to receive Lake Michigan Water from 
the Commission and wholesale it to the public prior to the date of this Contract. 
 
 “Cost of the Project” means, with respect to a Project, all costs of the Project, 
including costs of the acquisition of necessary lands, easements, and rights-of-way over 
lands and waters; the erection, construction, rehabilitation, repair and replacement of 
pumping, storage or other facilities, and the installation of mains and pipelines; costs of 
financing and administration during any period of acquisition, erection, construction, 
rehabilitation, repair, replacement or installation, as aforesaid; costs of repayment of 
such interim indebtedness as may be incurred for such costs, including administrative 
expenses prior to issuance of Bonds for a Project; and costs for such other purposes, 
including without limitation reasonable reserves and working capital, as may be 
determined by the Commission. 
 
 “Customer” means any customer purchasing water from the Commission. 
 
 “Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Commission. 
 
 “Fixed Costs” means an amount sufficient, at all times, to pay the principal of and 
premium, if any, and interest on Bonds, to provide reserves required therefor, to provide 
an adequate depreciation fund for the Waterworks System, to comply with the 
covenants of the Bond Resolution, and to pay reasonable capital costs necessary to 
carry out the corporate purposes and powers of the Commission; and except as any of 
the above are included in Operations and Maintenance Costs. 
 
 “Full Water Requirements” means, with respect to a Customer, the amount of 
water necessary from time to time to meet the potable water requirements of all then 
current customers served by the Unit System of such Customer (including municipal 
use where applicable) whether within or without the corporate limits or applicable 
service area of such Customer. 
 
 “Lake Water” means potable, filtered water drawn from Lake Michigan. 
 
 “Minimum Take or Pay Requirement” means a requirement that a certain 
minimum amount of Lake Water from the Waterworks System will be taken or, if not 
taken, will be paid for on the same basis as if taken. 

 
                                                             114 of 264



10 

 
 “Operations and Maintenance Costs” means amounts payable under the Water 

Supply Contract, but not including Underconsumption Costs except as provided in 
Section 10 of this Contract, and similar water supply contracts, and all expenses 
incurred in the administration, operation and maintenance of the Waterworks System 
and the accumulation of reserves related to payment of said costs.  Upon the adoption 
of a Bond Resolution by the Commission in connection with the sale of Bonds, 
Operation and Maintenance Costs payable under this Contract shall in any month at 
least be equal to the amount required to be deposited in that month into the operation 
and maintenance fund or account created under the Bond Resolution. 
 
  
 “Project” means any acquisition or construction for the provision of Lake Water 
related to the Waterworks System including initial acquisition and construction thereof 
and all future improvements or extensions, acquisition, construction, repair, 
maintenance or replacement thereof. 
 

“Subsequent Customer” means a customer of the Waterworks System which has 
a Water Allocation, is not a Contract Customer and is served pursuant to a Subsequent 
Contract executed after the Effective Date of this contract. 
 
 “Subsequent Contract” means a contract which provides for a Customer to take 
its Full Water Requirements from the Waterworks System or contains a Minimum Take 
or Pay Requirement and which contract further provides for storage and other 
requirements, terms of payment (expressly subject to the following sentence), Force 
Majeure and Commission Defaults substantially the same as Sections 3, 6, 13, 14, and 
15 hereof (which provisions may relate to a Full Water Requirements agreement or a 
Minimum Take or Pay Requirement agreement as the case may be).  The rate or 
charges for Lake Water may be higher than those provided herein, and only the terms 
of payment need be substantially the same. 
 
 “Trustee” means the trustee provided in the Bond Resolution. 
  
 “Underconsumer” means, for any given year, a Contract Customer which takes 
less Lake Water in such year than its Water Allocation times 365 times the 
Underconsumption Ratio for such year. 
 
 “Underconsumption” means the amount by which the amount of Lake Water 
actually taken by a Contract Customer is less than the Underconsumption Ratio times 
such customer’s Water Allocation times 365. 
 
 “Underconsumption Costs” means any amount which the Commission is 
obligated to pay under the Water Supply Contract solely by reason of failure to accept 
delivery of the minimum quantity of Lake Water that the Commission is obligated to 
purchase under the Water Supply Contract. 
 

 
                                                             115 of 264



11 

 “Underconsumption Ratio” means, for any given year, (i) the minimum amount of 
Lake Water required to be taken by the Commission under the Water Supply Contract 
divided by (ii) the sum of the Water Allocations of all Contract Customers times 365. 
 
 “Unit System” means the waterworks system or combined waterworks and 
sewerage system (if such systems are combined for financing and accounting 
purposes) from time to time of a Contract Customer. 
 
 “Water Allocation” means, with respect to a Customer, such Customer’s 
allocation and allowable excess from time to time of Lake Water pursuant to the Level of 
Lake Michigan Act, as amended from time to time as ordered by the Illinois Department 
of Natural Resources; or such other amounts of Lake Water as a Customer may lawfully 
take. 
 

“Water Supply Contract” means the water supply contract, dated March 19, 1984, 
between the Commission and the City of Chicago, Illinois, as amended, supplemented 
or extended from time to time, or any alternative water supply agreement. 
 
 “Waterworks System” means all the Commission’s facilities, including land, 
easements, rights-of-way over lands and waters, pumping, storage and other facilities,  
mains and pipelines acquired and used for the purposes of providing and transmitting 
Lake Water to Customers which may be modified, amended and supplemented from 
time to time by the Commission in its sole discretion to serve the Lake Water needs of 
only those Customers or potential Customers located within the territorial limits of the 
Commission or within territory which becomes part of “included units” in the Act. 
 

Section 2.  Water Supply. 
 
      (a) Agreement to Purchase and Sell.  Subject to the provisions of this Contract, 
the Commission shall sell to each Contract Customer and each Contract Customer 
agrees to purchase from the Commission an amount of Lake Water necessary from 
time to time to serve its Full Water Requirements.  The Commission’s obligation to each 
Contract Customer, however, to deliver Lake Water hereunder shall be limited to a 
maximum annual amount equivalent to such Contract Customer’s then current Water 
Allocation and to a maximum rate of Lake Water in any one hour equal to 1.7 times 
such Contract Customer’s Water Allocation divided by 24.   Further, the Commission’s 
obligation to each Contract Customer to deliver Lake Water at a maximum hourly rate 
shall be divided among the connection points, if more than one of each such Contract 
Customer as provided in the design of the Waterworks System. 
 
  (b) Certain Limits on Supply and Commission’s Power to Contract.  The 
Commission shall use its best efforts to furnish Lake Water to the Contract Customers 
as hereinabove provided, but its obligation hereunder shall be limited by (i) the amount 
of Lake Water from time to time available to the Commission; (ii) contracts between the 
Commission and its other Customers; (iii) the capacity of the Waterworks System; and 
(iv) ordinary transmission loss, including standard metering error, between the 

 
                                                             116 of 264



12 

Commission’s source of supply and the points of delivery.  The Commission shall not 
enter into contracts with other Customers that would cause the Commission to be 
obligated to sell Lake Water in excess of the least of (i) Waterworks System capacity, 
(ii) the maximum amount of Lake Water available under the Water Supply Contract or 
(iii) an amount which would decrease the amount of Lake Water then being supplied or 
to be supplied in the future to the Contract Customers. 
 

(c) Emergency or Maintenance Shut-Off.  The Commission undertakes to use 
reasonable care and diligence to provide a constant supply of Lake Water as herein 
provided for, but reserves the right at any time temporarily to turn off the Lake Water in 
its mains for emergency and maintenance purposes.  The Commission shall give to the 
Contract Customers notice not less than forty-eight (48) hours in advance of any such 
turn-off, except that in emergencies it shall give notice which is reasonable under the 
particular circumstances. 
 

(d) Curtailment; Emergency Use of Other Sources.  If it becomes necessary 
for the Commission to limit its delivery of Lake Water to its Customers for any reason, 
each Contract Customer shall be entitled to the fullest extent possible to receive during 
such period of curtailment its pro rata share of Lake Water available as determined by 
the ratio of its total Lake Water use during the prior Fiscal Year to the sum of Lake 
Water use during the prior Fiscal Year of all Customers entitled to Lake Water during 
such period of curtailment.  Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to prohibit each 
Contract Customer from serving its customers in cases of emergency, or when the 
Commission for whatever reason is unable to meet such Contract Customer’s Full 
Water Requirements, from any source including wells owned by such Contract 
Customer and maintained for emergency use. 
 

(e) Water Quality. The Commission further undertakes to provide that all Lake 
Water delivered to the Commission under said contracts shall be of such quality, at the 
point of delivery to the Commission under said contracts, as to meet the requirements of 
any Federal, State or local agency as shall have jurisdiction from time to time for the 
operation of public water supplies.  The Commission shall supply each Contract 
Customer with Lake Water of a quality commensurate with that furnished other Contract 
Customers, and meeting state and federal water quality standards.  The Commission 
bears no responsibility for the contamination of Lake Water or deterioration of water 
quality occurring beyond the points of delivery to the Contract Customers. 
 
 Section 3.  Storage, Delivery, Distribution and Conservation. 
 

(a) Storage.  The Water Supply Contract currently requires the Commission to 
provide for and maintain water storage within the Waterworks System and certain 
Customer Unit Systems, collectively, of sufficient capacity to store not less than two 
times the annual average daily water demands (including operable shallow well capacity 
which may be counted towards meeting up to ten percent (10%) of the storage 
requirements.)  In the event the City of Chicago enforces the minimum water storage 
standards and thereby requires the Commission to provide additional water storage and 

 
                                                             117 of 264



13 

capacity, then this Section will apply.  Each Contract Customer agrees to use its best 
efforts to increase the water storage capacity of its Unit System; but in no event shall a 
Contract Customer be required to increase the water storage capacity contained in its 
Unit System (including its operable shallow well capacity which may be counted towards 
meeting up to ten percent (10%) of its storage requirements) to an amount more than 
twice the amount of its then annual average daily water demand, less that portion of the 
Commission’s storage capacity in its Waterworks System equal to such Contract 
Customer’s annual average daily water demand divided by the total annual average 
daily water demands of all Customers (to the extent that such Customers are included 
as parties for whom storage must be provided and maintained under the provisions of 
the Water Supply Contract) . 

 
(b) Points of Delivery, Back-Flows, Pressure.  The points of delivery shall be 

defined as the points of outlet where the Lake Water delivered hereunder leaves the 
Waterworks System and enters a Unit System.  These points will be to the lesser of ten 
feet downstream from the Commission’s metering stations or a common dividing wall 
between the Commission’s metering station and the Contract Customer’s pressure 
adjusting or rate control stations.  The number and location of connections to each 
Contract Customer’s system are shown on Exhibit 1.  Each Contract Customer shall 
receive its supply of Lake Water downstream of the Commission’s metering stations at 
pressures that will vary from time to time. Each point of delivery shall have a pressure 
adjusting or rate control station.  Each Contract Customer is responsible for the siting, 
design, construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of the pressure adjusting 
or rate control stations supplied by Contract Customer to convey water from the 
Waterworks System into the Unit System.   
 
 Future construction and modification of plans and specifications of the pressure 
increasing/reducing stations shall be submitted to the Commission for review and 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
 Each Contract Customer’s operation of its pressure adjusting or rate control 
stations shall not cause surges or back-flows into the Waterworks System nor shall the 
operation of the Customer’s pressure adjusting or rate control facilities cause the 
Waterworks System pressure to drop below 20 psi.  The Commission shall not be 
responsible for any damage to the Unit System caused by design, operation or 
maintenance of the Customer’s connection facilities to the Waterworks System. 
 
 (c) Contract Customer to Maintain Water Quality and Unit System and to 
Prevent Waste.  Each Contract Customer agrees to operate its Unit System from the 
points of delivery on to the consumer in such a manner as at no time to place the 
Commission and the Waterworks System in jeopardy of failing to meet the regulations 
of any agency or governmental authority having jurisdiction for its operation of public 
water supplies.  Each Contract Customer also agrees to notify the Commission as 
promptly as possible of all emergency and other conditions which may directly or 
indirectly affect the quantity or quality of the Lake Water received hereunder or the 
Waterworks System. 

 
                                                             118 of 264



14 

 
Section 4.  Measuring Equipment. 

 
 (a) Commission to Supply Equipment, Official Record.  The Commission 
shall furnish, install, own, operate, maintain, repair and replace, at its own expense, at 
the points of delivery the necessary equipment and devices of a type meeting the 
standards of the American Waterworks Association for measuring properly the quantity 
of Lake Water delivered under this Contract, together with such above-ground 
structures as the Commission shall deem necessary to house such equipment and 
devices.  Such meter or meters and other equipment so installed and structures so 
constructed shall remain the property of the Commission.  Such structures and 
equipment shall be located at sites selected and provided by each Contract Customer, 
respectively, for Lake Water delivered to it, for such purpose.  Such sites shall be 
subject to review and approval by the Commission, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.  Each Contract Customer shall grant to the Commission a property interest in 
each respective site sufficient to enable the Commission to install, use, operate and 
maintain such structures and equipment during the term of this Contract; however, each 
Contract Customer shall be responsible for maintaining the grounds and landscaping, 
including but not limited to shrubbery and other plantings, located on each site provided.  
The Commission and each Contract Customer shall have access to such structures and 
equipment for examination and inspection at all reasonable times, but the reading for 
billing purposes, calibration and adjustment thereof shall be done only by the 
employees or agents of the Commission.  For the purpose of this Contract, the official 
record of readings of the meter or meters shall be the journal or other record book of the 
Commission in its office in which the records of the employees or agents of the 
Commission who take the readings are or may be transcribed.  Upon written request of 
a Contract Customer, the Commission will give the Contract Customer a copy of such 
journal or record book, or permit the Contract Customer to have access thereto in the 
office of the Commission during regular business hours. 
 
 (b) Calibration.  At least once in each Fiscal Year, the Commission shall 
calibrate its meters dedicated to measuring Lake Water to a Contract Customer if 
requested in writing by such Contract Customer to do so, in the presence of a 
representative of the Contract Customer, and the Commission and such Contract 
Customer shall jointly observe any adjustments which are made to the meters in case 
any adjustments shall be necessary, and if any check meters as hereinafter provided for 
have been installed, such meters shall also be calibrated by the Contract Customer in 
the presence of a representative of the Commission and the Commission and such 
Contract Customer shall jointly observe an adjustment in case any adjustment is 
necessary. 
 
 (c) Check Meters.  A Contract Customer may, at its option and its own expense, 
install and operate a check meter to check each meter installed by the Commission, but 
the measurement of Lake Water for the purpose of this Contract shall be solely by the 
Commission’s meters, except in the cases hereinafter specifically provided to the 
contrary.  All such check meters shall be of standard make and shall be subject at all 

 
                                                             119 of 264



15 

reasonable times to inspection and examination by any employee or agent of the 
Commission, but the calibration and adjustment thereof shall be made only by such 
Contract Customer, except during any period when a check meter may be used under 
the provisions hereunder for measuring the amount of water delivered, in which case 
the calibration and adjustment thereof shall be made by the Commission with like 
effects as if such check meter or meters had been furnished and installed by the 
Commission. 
 

(d) Variations between Meters; Reconciliation.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
if the Commission or any Contract Customer at any time observes a variation between a 
delivery meter and a check meter, if any such check meter shall have been installed, or 
any other evidence of meter malfunctions, such party shall promptly notify the other 
party and the Commission and such Contract Customer shall then cooperate to procure 
an immediate calibration test and adjustment of such meter to accuracy and shall jointly 
observe any such adjustment.  The party who discovers such variation shall give the 
other party notice not less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the time of all tests of 
meters (which tests shall be conducted during normal working hours) so that the other 
party may conveniently have a representative present.  If said representative is not 
present at the time set in such notice, calibration and adjustment may, notwithstanding 
any other provision of this paragraph, proceed in the absence of said representative.  If, 
upon any test, the percentage of inaccuracy of any meter is found to be in excess of two 
percent (2%), registration thereof shall be corrected by agreement of the Commission 
and such Contract Customer based upon the best data available, for a period extending 
back to the time when such inaccuracy began, if such time is ascertainable, and if such 
time is not ascertainable, then for a period extending back one-half (1/2) of the time 
elapsed since the last date of calibration, but in no event further back than a period of 
183 calendar days of meter operation.  If for any reason any meters are out of service or 
out of repair so that the amount of Lake Water delivered cannot be ascertained or 
computed from the reading thereof, the Lake Water delivered during the period such 
meters are out of service or out of repair shall be deemed to be the registration of any 
check meter or meters if the same have been installed and are accurately registering.  
Otherwise, the amount of Lake Water delivered during such period shall be estimated (i) 
by correcting the error if the percentage of the error is ascertainable by calibration tests 
of mathematical calculations, or (ii) if the error is not ascertainable by calibration tests or 
mathematical calculation, by estimating the quantity of delivery by considering deliveries 
during preceding periods under similar conditions when the meter or meters were 
registering accurately. 
 

(e) Removal of Commission Metering Station.  Within ninety (90) days after 
the termination of this Contract (absent a failure to renew), the Commission shall at its 
own expense remove metering equipment and stations from and restore the property of 
each Contract Customer to which such termination without renewal applies.  If the 
Commission fails to remove and restore, as aforesaid, the Contract Customer affected 
may elect to enforce its right to same or to take title to such equipment and station. 
 

 
                                                             120 of 264



16 

 Section 5.  Unit of Measurement.  The unit of measurement for Lake Water 
delivered hereunder shall be gallons of water, U.S. Standard Liquid Measure, and all 
measuring devices shall, unless the Commission and affected Contract Customer 
otherwise agree, to be so calibrated.  In the event that it should become necessary or 
desirable to use other units of measurement, the basis of conversion shall be that 7.48 
gallons is equivalent to one (1) cubic foot. 
 
 Section 6.  Prices and Terms of Payment. 
 

(a) Operation and Maintenance Costs; Underconsumption Costs.   Each 
Contract Customer shall pay a share of Operation and Maintenance Costs for each 
month, which shall be an amount equal to the then current price per 1,000 gallons for 
Operation and Maintenance Costs times the quantity of Lake Water divided by 1,000 
delivered by the Waterworks System to such Contract Customer for such month.  At 
any time no Lake Water is being supplied through the Waterworks System to Contract 
Customers, each Contract Customer’s share of monthly Operation and Maintenance 
Costs shall be that proportion of those costs which such Contract Customer’s Water 
Allocation bears to the total Water Allocations of all Contract Customers required to 
make Operation and Maintenance Costs payments during the same period. The 
Commission may require Subsequent Customers to pay for any month a share of 
Operation and Maintenance Costs, which share may be based upon a rate or 
proportion higher than that which is applicable to Contract Customers.  Such 
requirement of a greater share may but need not be applied by the Commission to 
reduce the shares of said costs payable in any month by the Contract Customers; 
provided, however, that in no event shall the Commission reduce the shares of 
Contract Customers by an amount which exceeds the amount that is available due to 
such greater share being paid by a Subsequent Customer. 

 
 Each Underconsumer shall pay its share of Underconsumption Costs as 
determined and assessed by the Commission after notification of such costs by the City 
of Chicago.  Each Underconsumer’s share of Underconsumption Costs for a year shall 
be equal to the ratio of its Underconsumption to the aggregate Underconsumption of all 
Underconsumers for such year. 
 
 (b) Fixed Costs.  Each Contract Customer agrees to pay its share of Fixed 
Costs for each Fiscal Year, which share shall be payable monthly and shall be that 
proportion of Fixed Costs which such Contract Customer’s Full Water Requirements for 
the two preceding calendar years prior to such Fiscal Year bears to the sum of the Full 
Water Requirements or Minimum Take of Pay Requirements, as applicable, of all those 
Contract Customers for such two preceding calendar years.  The Commission may 
require Subsequent Customers to pay for any month a share of Fixed Costs which is 
greater than said proportion.  Such requirement of a greater share may but need not be 
applied by the Commission to reduce the shares of said costs payable in any month by 
the Contract Customers; provided, however, that in no event shall the Commission 
reduce the shares of Contract Customers by an amount which exceeds the amount that 
is available due to such greater share being paid by a Subsequent Customer.  Prior to 

 
                                                             121 of 264



17 

the Commission’s delivery of Lake Water to any Contract Customer for two (2) calendar 
years, each Contract Customer’s share of monthly Fixed Costs shall be that portion of 
Fixed Costs which such Contract Customer’s Water Allocation bears to the total Water 
Allocations of Contract Customers.     
 (c) Bills and Due Date.  The Commission shall notify each Contract Customer of 
such Contract Customer’s share of Aggregate Costs for a month on or before the tenth 
(10th) day of the following month.  The Contract Customer’s share of Aggregate Costs 
for a month shall be due and payable and must be received at the offices of the 
Commission on or before the tenth day of the month following the month of the 
Commission’s notification.  If the Commission provides the notice later than the tenth 
(10th) day of the month, Contract Customer shall have twenty-eight (28) days from the 
date of notification to make said payment. 
 
 (d) Default Shares.  If any Customer shall default in the payment to the 
Commission of any part of its share of Aggregate Costs, or any part of the payment of 
its share due pursuant to this subsection 6(d), each Contract Customer agrees to pay a 
share of the amount so in default to the Commission, which share shall be in the same 
proportion as such Contract Customer’s share of the Aggregate Costs for the month 
prior to the month of the default bears to the sum of the shares of Aggregate Costs in 
that month of all Contract Customers obligated to make payments under this subsection 
6(d) not in default.  A Contract Customer’s share of defaulted Aggregate Costs, or such 
defaulted payment of shares, as the case may be, shall be due and payable twenty-one 
(21) days after the Commission’s written demand therefor.  The demand shall include 
the Commission’s calculations of the amount due by the Contract Customer hereunder. 
If and when the defaulting Customer makes a payment to the Commission of a 
defaulted amount or interest thereon for which the Contract Customers have made a 
payment to the Commission under this paragraph, the Commission will pay to each 
Contract Customer its proportionate share of such amount, including any such interest 
paid thereon. 
 
 (e) Disputed Payments.  If a Contract Customer desires to dispute all or any 
part of any payments under this Agreement, the Contract Customer shall nevertheless 
pay the full amount of any such payment when due and include with such payment 
written notification to the Commission that charges are disputed, the grounds for dispute 
and the amount in dispute. 
 
 Upon receipt of notification of dispute, representatives of the Commission shall 
meet with representatives of the Contract Customer to resolve such dispute.  No 
adjustment or relief on account of any disputed charges shall be made unless disputed 
charges are the subject of such notice within twenty-one (21) days of receipt by 
Contract Customer of the bill, or within a reasonable period from the time the Contract 
Customer knew or should have known of the facts giving the rise to the dispute. 
 
 The Commission and the Contract Customer shall promptly attempt and continue 
efforts to resolve the dispute.  In the event that it is determined that the Contract 

 
                                                             122 of 264



18 

Customer shall have overpaid, it shall receive a refund with interest at the rate set out in 
subsection (f). 
 
 (f) Interest on Overdue Payments.  If a Contract Customer shall fail to make 
any payment required under this Contract on or before its due date, such Contract 
Customer shall be in default, and interest on the amount of such payment shall accrue 
during the period of non-payment at the maximum legal rate payable by an Illinois non-
home rule unit, not to exceed the higher of the weighted average effective interest rate 
on all series of Bonds of the Commission any of which are then outstanding plus two 
percent (2%) or the prime rate from time to time announced by the largest commercial 
bank, measured in terms of total assets, located and doing banking business in the 
State of Illinois, plus five percent (5%), from the date such payment becomes due until 
paid in full with interest as herein specified.  In the event such payment is not made 
within thirty (30) days from the date such payment becomes due, the Commission may 
at its option and in its discretion reduce or discontinue delivery of Lake Water to the 
Contract Customer until the amount due the Commission is paid in full with interest as 
herein specified.  The Commission shall give notice to the Contract Customer not less 
than twenty (20) days prior to the event of its intention to reduce or discontinue delivery 
of Lake Water in accordance with this subsection (f) and shall provide the Contract 
Customer an opportunity for a hearing prior to any reduction or discontinuance.  If the 
Commission reduces or discontinues the delivery of Lake Water under such 
circumstances, the Contract Customer shall, nevertheless, continue to be liable to pay 
all charges herein provided for.  The rights specified in this subsection shall be in 
addition to all other rights and remedies available to the Commission at law or in equity 
for breach of any of the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 (g) Security Deposit.  If a Contract Customer is in default in any payment due 
under this Contract and the default is not cured within thirty (30) days after the due date 
of the defaulted payment, the Commission may, at its option, require such Contract 
Customer, as a further obligation under this Contract, to deposit as security for the 
payment of such Contract Customer’s obligations hereunder a reasonable amount 
determined by the Commission.  The Contract Customer’s compliance with the 
Commission’s demand for a security deposit shall be a condition precedent to the curing 
of such Contract Customer’s default and the restoration of the Lake Water service to 
such Contract Customer, if abated or reduced by reason of such default.   The security 
deposit or any part thereof may, at the Commission’s discretion, be applied to any 
subsequent default by the Contract Customer in any payments due hereunder.  If so 
applied, the Contract Customer shall provide funds within three (3) business days to 
restore the security deposit to the amount required by the Commission.  At the earliest 
of the end of the term of this Contract, a term of two (2) years after the curing of the 
most recent default by the Contract Customer, or at such time that the Commission may 
in its sole discretion determine, any security deposit shall be returned to the Contract 
Customer if the Contract Customer has performed all its obligations under this Contract.  
 

 
                                                             123 of 264



19 

 (h) Rates to Contract Customers Same.  No change in the rates or charges 
under this Contract for any Contract Customer may be made unless the same change is 
made for all Contract Customers. 
 
 (i) Limitation on Payments; Net Indebtedness of Contract Customers.  
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Contract to the contrary, the payments 
required to be made by each Contract Customer under this Contract shall be required to 
be made solely from revenues to be derived by such Contract Customer from the 
operation of its Unit System.  This Contract shall not constitute an indebtedness of any 
Contract Customer within the meaning of any statutory or constitutional limitation. 
 
 (j) May Use Other Moneys.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsection (i) of 
this Section, the Contract Customers are not prohibited by this Contract from using 
other available funds to make the payments required by this Contract. 
 
 (k) Sole Method for Contract Customers to Enforce Provisions Hereof 
Against Other Customers.  Each Contract Customer acknowledges that its obligations 
to make payments hereunder are of benefit to each other Contract Customer and to 
Subsequent Customers as such other Customers’ obligations are of benefit to the 
Contract Customer.  Accordingly, each Contract Customer agrees that, in addition to the 
Commission, Bondholders, a Trustee or other parties by law entitled to enforce the 
provisions of this Contract, any three (3) or more Subsequent Customers acting 
together may enforce the provisions of this Section 6, but only if the Commission has 
not acted to enforce such provisions within ninety (90) days of failure to make a 
payment hereunder.  Any rights any Contract Customer has under this Contract or other 
contracts with the Commission shall be limited in enforcement as set forth herein. 
 
 (l) Beginning of Obligation to Pay.  The obligation to make any and all 
payments under this Contract shall begin the month immediately following the issuance 
of any Bonds or the obtaining of Lake Water from the Commission, whichever is later. 
 
 (m) Provision in Lieu of Water Allocation.  At any time when no Water 
Allocation is in effect for a Customer and reference to a Water Allocation is necessary to 
give meaning to a term of this Contract, the Water Allocation for such Customer shall be 
deemed to be such Customer’s Full Water Requirements for the then most recently 
completed calendar year divided by 365. 
 
 Section 7.  Procedural and Other Limitations; Further Covenants of the 
Commission.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Contract, the Contract 
Customers shall have the rights enumerated within this section and the Commission in 
its activities shall be obligated in the manner provided in this section. 
 
 (a) Procedural Rule.  No motion, resolution or ordinance concerning the 
subjects enumerated below shall be adopted by the Commission except by at least a 
majority affirmative vote of all of the Commissioners which majority must contain the 
votes of at least one-third (1/3) of the Commissioners appointed by the County Board 

 
                                                             124 of 264



20 

Chairman and forty percent (40%) of the Commissioners appointed by the Mayors as 
provided in the Act:  (1) Approval of individual contracts or a series of contracts related 
to a single Project in an amount in excess of $100,000;  (2) Setting of rates for the sale 
of Lake Water to Contract Customers;  (3) Borrowing funds;  (4) Exercise of eminent 
domain powers;  (5) Employment of the General Manager and Financial Administrator, 
and managerial and professional consultants;  (6) Amendment of the Water Supply 
Contract or (7) entering into any agreement to provide Lake Michigan Water to a 
Subsequent Customer. 
 
 (b) Lake Water Only.  Without the prior approval of the corporate authorities of 
any Contract Customer affected, the Commission shall not deliver any water to a 
Contract Customer other than Lake Water.  Costs for Lake Water charged by the 
Commission shall only include Aggregate Costs relating to the purchase and delivery of 
Lake Water. 
 
 (c) Intentionally Omitted. 
 
 (d) Covenants to Be Set Out in Bond Ordinance.  Any Bond Resolution 
passed by the Commission shall contain language to the following effect: 
 
 Any holder or registered owner of a bond or any of its coupons, in any civil 

action, mandamus, or other proceeding, may enforce and compel performance of 
all duties required by law to be performed by the Commission or by any 
customers of the Commission, including the making of rates and charges, the 
collecting of sufficient revenue and the application thereof, as provided by 
applicable law, and including, expressly, all of the terms and provisions of 
Sections 6, 7 and 16 of the Contract [referring to this Contract]. 

 
 The parties or persons which make loans of funds to the Commission [by this 

Bond Resolution] have received the pledge of the State of Illinois that it will not 
impair or limit the power or ability of the Commission or a unit of local 
government fully to carry out the terms of any contract for the supply of water 
entered into by the Commission and a unit of local government for the term of 
such contract.  For purposes of such impairment or limitation, the contracts for 
the supply of water executed by units of local government and the Commission 
contain terms and conditions intended by the parties thereto and by the 
Bondholders to be absolute conditions thereof. 

 
 (e) Absolute Conditions.  For purposes of the pledge and agreement of the 
State of Illinois that it will not impair or limit the power or ability of the Commission or the 
Contract Customers fully to carry out the terms and conditions hereof, all terms and 
conditions contained herein are intended to be absolute conditions hereof and are 
agreed to by the parties.  It is hereby intended that no change in the Act or other law or 
regulation subsequent to the date hereof shall affect any of the terms or provisions of 
this Contract, and neither the Contract Customers nor the Commission, without the 

 
                                                             125 of 264



21 

unanimous consent of all of them, shall take any actions under a change in the Act or 
other law or regulation contrary to the terms and conditions herein. 
 
 (f) Emergency Supply.  A Contract Customer may contract for a temporary 
supply of water in case of an emergency from any other unit of local government or any 
entity. 
 
 (g) Governance.  For the term of this Contract, the number of Commissioners 
appointed by the Mayors as provided in the Act shall be not less than one-half (1/2) the 
total number of Commissioners (excluding, expressly, for purposes of said count, the 
Chairman). 
 
 (h) Retail Sales. The Commission shall not engage in the retail sale or 
distribution of water to residents or customers of any Contract Customer. 
 
 (i) Evidence of Customer Action. Wherever in this Contract the consent or 
authorization of a Contract Customer or a group of Contract Customers are required, 
the consent may only be evidenced by a resolution or motion passed by the corporate 
authorities of the Contract Customer. 
 
 (j) Limitation on Funds.  No funds received by the Commission from Operation 
and Maintenance Costs or Fixed Costs payable from Contract Customers may be 
expended for the planning, construction, operations or maintenance of a waterworks 
system other than the Waterworks System, or the extension thereof, specified within 
this Contract. 
  
 (k) Certain Budget, Rate Limitation, Notice and Hearing Provisions.   Not 
less than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of each Fiscal Year, the Commission 
shall prepare and send to the Contract Customers a tentative budget.  Each such 
budget shall include, among such other items as the Commission may choose, an 
estimate of Fixed Costs to be payable by each Contract Customer in a stated aggregate 
dollar amount per month for each and an estimate of Operations and Maintenance 
Costs in a stated price per 1,000 gallons.  The Commission will hold a hearing on such 
budget, at which the Contract Customers may be heard, and shall give the Contract 
Customers not less than twenty-one (21) days notice of such hearing.  Operations and 
Maintenance Costs payable in each Fiscal Year shall be determined and assessed by 
the Commission on a price per 1,000 gallons basis; such price may not exceed the 
estimate as set forth in the tentative budget unless the Commission shall hold a hearing 
on such higher price, at which the Contract Customers may be heard, and shall give the 
Contract Customers not less than twenty-one (21) days’ notice of such hearing. 
 
 Section 8.  Special Conditions and Covenants. 
 

(a) Commission to Build Waterworks System and Supply Lake Water. 
The Commission shall, subject to the other terms and conditions of this Contract, 
continually hold itself ready, willing and able to supply Lake Water to any Contract 

 
                                                             126 of 264



22 

Customer.  The Commission shall also use its best efforts, consistent with its legal 
obligations to its other Customers and consistent with fair and equitable treatment of all 
of its Customers, to supply each Contract Customer with such additional amounts of 
Lake Water as may be from time to time allocated to such Contract Customer over and 
above its present Water Allocation, but the Commission does not hereby guarantee a 
supply of such additional amounts. 
 

(b)  Title to Lake Water.  Title to all Lake Water supplied hereunder shall remain 
in the Commission to the lesser of the points ten feet (10 ft.) downstream from the 
Commission’s metering stations or a common dividing wall between the Commission’s 
metering station and the Contract Customer’s pressure adjusting or rate control stations 
for each Unit System and thereupon shall pass to such Contract Customer. 
 

(c)  Payments Hereunder an Operation Expense of Unit Systems.  Obtaining 
water is an essential item of expense of the Unit Systems.  To the fullest extent 
permitted by law or contract, all of the payments to be made by each Contract Customer 
hereunder shall constitute operating expenses of the Unit Systems as to any and all 
revenue bonds of such Contract Customer which are supported in whole or in part by a 
pledge of the revenues of its Unit System, with the effect that such Contract Customer’s 
obligation to make payments from its water revenues under this Contract has priority 
over its obligation to make payments of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest 
on any such bonds which are or will be supported in whole or in part by a pledge of 
such Unit System revenues.  Each Contract Customer shall make all budgetary, 
emergency and other provisions and appropriations necessary to provide for and 
authorize the prompt payment by such Contract Customer to the Commission of its 
shares of Aggregate Costs.  The obligations of each Contract Customer under this 
Contract are further payable from all other accounts of the Unit System of each Contract 
Customer, respectively, for its shares, in which there are lawfully available funds.  In any 
revenue bond ordinances or resolutions hereafter enacted by a Contract Customer, the 
priority of lien established pursuant to this Contract shall be expressly provided and set 
forth in said bond ordinances or resolutions.  If legal action is brought against a Contract 
Customer challenging the priority of such Contract Customer’s obligations hereunder 
over the lien of any revenue bonds supported by a pledge of the revenues of its Unit 
System, the Commission shall, if requested to do so by such Contract Customer, 
undertake the defense of the legal action at the Commission’s expense. 
 

(d) Commission Insurance.  The Commission will carry insurance or 
maintain self-insurance with respect to the Waterworks System of the kinds and in the 
amounts which are customarily carried or maintained by parties operating similar 
properties, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, fire and other 
casualty and public liability insurance or protection.  All moneys received for loss under 
the insurance policies or on deposit as self-insurance reserve funds shall be used in 
making good the loss or damage in respect of which they were paid except to the extent 
no longer deemed useful to or profitable in the operation of the Waterworks System, 
whether by repairing the property damaged or replacing the property destroyed, and 
provision for making good such loss or damage or replacing the property destroyed 

 
                                                             127 of 264



23 

shall be made within a reasonable time from date of loss.  The proceeds derived from 
any and all policies or available from self-insurance reserves for public liability losses 
shall be used in paying or reimbursing any accounts from which payments for 
settlements, judgments or expenses were advanced. 
 

(e) Commission to Continue to Serve.  The Commission will use its best 
efforts to continue serving all the Contract Customers. 
 

(f)  Commission Covenant to Operate Properly.  From time to time, the 
Commission will take steps reasonably necessary so that the Waterworks System may 
at all times be operated properly. 
 

Section 9.  Additional Contract Customer Covenants.  Each Contract 
Customer further covenants as follows: 
 

(a) Maintain and Operate Unit System.  It will own and maintain its Unit 
System, and all improvements and extensions of its Unit System, in good repair and 
working order, will operate the same efficiently, and will punctually perform all duties 
with respect to its Unit System as may be required by the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Illinois and all other applicable laws and by all resolutions and ordinances of 
such Contract Customer. 
 

(b) Rate Covenant.  It will establish, maintain, revise as necessary and collect, 
rates and charges for customers of its Unit System as shall be required from time to 
time to produce revenues at least sufficient (i) to pay all amounts due under this 
Contract and to pay all other costs of operation and maintenance of its Unit System, (ii) 
to provide an adequate depreciation fund for its Unit System, (iii) to make all deposits in 
all funds and accounts required by the terms of resolutions or ordinances authorizing 
bonds payable from revenues of its Unit System and (iv) to pay the principal of and 
interest on all bonds of such Contract Customer payable from the revenues of its Unit 
System.  The Commission may not sue to enforce the provisions of this Section as they 
relate to clauses (ii) through (iv) unless it can show that the ability of the Contract 
Customer to make the payments set forth in clause (i) is substantially impaired by the 
inadequacy of said rates and charges.  The rates and charges for customers of a Unit 
System shall not be required, however, to be sufficient to produce amounts required to 
make payments under this contract so long as available amounts sufficient for making 
such payments for the next six (6) months or the remainder of such Contract 
Customer’s fiscal year, whichever is longer, shall have been set aside in cash or 
investments in a separate account in its Unit System Fund designated for the purpose 
of making payments under this Contract, 
 

(c) Segregate Revenues.  It shall provide for the segregation of all revenues of 
its Unit System in such Unit System Fund and provide for the application of the 
revenues for the purpose of subsection (b) of this Section.  Moneys of a Unit System of 
a Contract Customer which exceed the obligations of such Contract Customer 
hereunder may be used for any lawful corporate purposes. 

 
                                                             128 of 264



24 

 
 (d) Future Subordination of Revenue Bond Lien.  Any resolution or ordinance 
of the Contract Customer which authorizes the issuance after the date of this Contract 
of any obligation of the Contract Customer to be paid from revenues of its Unit System 
will expressly provide that revenues of its Unit System may be used to pay principal of 
and premium, if any, and interest of those obligations only to the extent that those 
revenues exceed the amounts required to pay the operation and maintenance expenses 
of its Unit System including, expressly, all amounts payable from time to time under this 
Contract. 
 
 (e) General Covenant to Operate Properly.  From time to time, it will take steps 
reasonably necessary so that its Unit System may at all times be operated in 
accordance with industry standards. 
 
 (f) Accounting and Audit.  It will make and keep proper books and accounts 
(separate and apart from all other records and accounts of such Contract Customer) in 
which complete entries shall be made of all transactions relating to its Unit System, and, 
within two hundred ten (210) days following the close of each fiscal year of such 
Contract Customer, it will cause the books and accounts of its Unit System to be 
audited annually by independent certified public accountants, showing the receipts and 
disbursements on account of its Unit System. 
 
 (g) Maintain Ownership of Unit System and Properties.  It will continue to own 
and possess its Unit System and will, within the exercise of reasonable business 
judgment and in a manner so as not to cause a default hereunder, dispose of property 
which is part of its Unit System only to the extent that the Commission consents in 
writing, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  This subsection (g) does not 
prohibit a Contract Customer from selling specific equipment that it considers surplus 
and that is no longer needed or utilized to operate its Unit System. 
 
 (h) Insurance.  It will carry insurance or maintain self-insurance with respect to 
its Unit System of the kinds and in the amounts which are customarily carried or 
maintained by parties operating similar properties, including, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, fire and other casualty and public liability insurance or 
protection.  All moneys received for loss under the insurance policies or on deposit as 
self-insurance reserves shall be used in making good the loss or damage in respect of 
which they were paid except to the extent that the property damaged or lost would be 
permitted to be disposed of under subsection (g) of this Section, whether by repairing 
the property damaged or replacing the property destroyed, and provisions for making 
good such loss or damage or replacing the property destroyed shall be made within a 
reasonable time from date of loss.  The proceeds derived from any and all policies or 
available from self-insurance reserves for public liability losses shall be used in paying 
or reimbursing any accounts from which payments for settlements, judgments or 
expenses were advanced. 
 

 
                                                             129 of 264



25 

 (i) Budget and Appropriations.  It will adopt a budget or appropriations 
ordinance for each fiscal year of such Contract Customer, or otherwise in accordance 
with applicable state laws, provide lawful authority for payment of all sums anticipated to 
be due to the Commission during such fiscal year. 
 
 (j) Continue to Serve.  It will use its best efforts to continue serving all 
customers of its Unit System within its territorial limits which are served as of the date of 
this Contract. 
 
 (k) Maintain Water Allocation.  It will use its best efforts to obtain or retain, from 
time to time, a Water Allocation at least equal to its Full Water Requirements from time 
to time. 
 
 (l) Combining or Separating Unit System Accounts.  It may combine its 
waterworks system with its sewerage system or separate its combined waterworks 
system and sewerage system into separate systems only on the conditions as follows: 
(i) the Contract Customer shall provide the Commission with written evidence that the 
proposed combination or separation will not materially and adversely affect the Contract 
Customer’s ability to comply with all of the terms, conditions and covenants of this 
Contract; and (ii) if the Commission shall then determine the proposed combination or 
separation will not materially and adversely affect the Contract Customer’s ability to 
comply with all of the terms conditions and covenants of this Contract, then and only 
then the Commission shall approve such combination or separation and advise such 
Contract Customer in writing. 
 
 (m) Customer Covenants as to Rate of Withdrawal.  Each Contract Customer 
will take Lake Water at the most uniform and continuous rate of withdrawal practicable. 
 

Section 10.  Election as to Water Purchase Requirements.  Any Contract 
Customer electing to take less than its Full Water Requirements, as determined by the 
Commission, shall pay its pro rata share of the Operations and Maintenance Costs and 
the Fixed Costs for the period of time during which its Full Water Requirements are not 
taken.  In the event such Contract Customer elects to purchase less than its Full Water 
Requirements in any year pursuant to this Section, it shall pay a share of 
Underconsumption Costs, if any, incurred for such year and such Contract Customer’s 
share of such Underconsumption Costs shall be deemed to be Operation and 
Maintenance Costs under this Contract.  The prior sentence shall not be applicable 
where the Underconsumption is caused by an emergency situation as approved in 
writing by the highest executive of the Commission and lasts for less than thirty (30) 
days, Such Contract Customer’s share of Operation and Maintenance Costs and Fixed 
Costs, if any, for the year shall be that proportion of those costs which the Operation 
and Maintenance Costs and Fixed Costs of such Contract Customer for that year was to 
the sum of the Operation and Maintenance Costs and Fixed Costs of all Customers for 
such year. 
 

 
                                                             130 of 264



26 

Section 11.  Resale Limitations. Charter Customers shall not resell more than 
five percent of the water purchased from the Commission except: (i) to retail water 
customers under published rates and charges, without any  special contract; or(ii) any 
contract approved in writing by the Commission, which approval shall be in the sole 
discretion of the Commission. 

 
 

 
Section 12.  Subsequent and Other Contracts. 

 
 (a) No Contract with Rate More Favorable.  The Commission shall not supply 
Lake Water except pursuant to a written contract.  No contract entered into after the 
Effective Date shall provide rates, charges or terms lower or more favorable to the 
Subsequent Customer than those provided in this Contract for Contract Customers. 
 
 (b) Occasional Service Only Except to Contract Customers.  Other than the 
providing of service to Contract Customers, the Commission shall not contract for a 
supply of Lake Water to any person except to a Subsequent Customer or for occasional 
water use. Occasional water use is  the use of Lake Water for not more than thirty (30) 
days during any two-year period. 
 
 (c) Subsequent Contract Terms.  After the Effective Date, the Commission 
shall not enter into a contract with any unit of local government or private entities that is 
not a Contract Customer, unless such contract provides for an equitable and lawful 
differential rate or charge in the formula for Aggregate Costs which may take into 
account any pertinent factor and shall take into account each of the factors as follows: 
(i) the utility rate which would be chargeable by a regulated utility for the proposed 
service, (ii) replacement cost of the Waterworks System less depreciation and net 
outstanding Bonds, and (iii) the amount and time of payment of Fixed Costs which 
would have been payable by the proposed Customer had such Customer become a 
Contract Customer, plus interest on such costs from the time when they would have 
been paid, compounded semiannually. 
 
 The differential may be satisfied by a lump sum payment or by surcharge for any 
term of years not longer than the then remaining term of this Contract.  The differential 
shall inure to the benefit of the previous Contract Customers as their interests may 
appear (that is, those that have borne greater costs shall benefit proportionally greater) 
in such reasonable manner as the Commission may determine. 
 
 The allocation of the benefit so derived among prior Contract Customers shall be 
made by the Commission only after it has received and reviewed the recommendations 
of an independent consulting engineer, independent financial consultant and competent 
attorney, working together, who shall be selected by the Commission from a list of three 
(3) individuals or firms for each position by the Contract Customers. 
 

 
                                                             131 of 264



27 

 For the purpose of making such list of three (3) individuals or firms, the 
Commission shall call a meeting of only the Contract Customers that are units of local 
government by giving notice to the Contract Customers as provided in this Contract not 
less than thirty (30) days prior to a proposed meeting date.  The Commission shall 
convene the meeting, but thereupon the Contract Customers that are units of local 
government shall elect a presiding officer from among their number.  Such meeting may 
be adjourned from time to time without notice.  The majority of Contract Customers that 
are units of local government present and voting at said meeting shall be empowered to 
select such individuals or firms.  The Commission shall keep the minutes of the 
meeting. 
 
 If the Contract Customers that are units of local government do not act at said 
meeting or within twenty-one (21) days thereof, the Commission shall proceed to select 
such persons or firms itself. 
 
 If the Commission shall impose the recommended differential, then the 
differential as imposed shall not be subject to any dispute or claim by any Contract 
Customer.  This provision shall not require the Commission to follow such 
recommendations. 
 
 This entire subsection is qualified by the Commission’s legal duty to serve within 
its territorial limits and to charge for such service fair and equitable rates which are not 
prohibitive.  It is the intent of the Commission in entering into this provision of the 
Contract to recognize that the Contract Customers that are units of local government, 
solely, enable the Commission to proceed to construct the Waterworks System, that the 
units of local government hereinafter referred to need to be induced to become Contract 
Customers and that this provision is an express inducement, that by its essential design 
in accordance with good engineering practice, the Waterworks System must be built in 
many ways sufficient upon initial completion to serve all of said units, but that only those 
units of local government who become Contract Customers will pay for such from the 
start of construction. 
 

Section 13.  Force Majeure.  In case by reason of force majeure event any party 
hereto shall be rendered unable wholly or in part to carry out its obligation under this 
Contract, then if such party shall give notice and full particulars of such force majeure 
event in writing to the other parties within seven (7) days after the occurrence of the 
event or cause relied on, the obligation of the party giving such notice, so far as it is 
affected by such force majeure event shall be suspended during the continuance of the 
inability then claimed, but for no longer period, and any such party shall endeavor to 
remove or overcome such inability with all reasonable dispatch.  The term “force 
majeure” as employed herein shall mean acts of God, strikes, lockouts or other 
industrial disturbances, acts of public enemy, orders of any kind of the Government of 
the United States, of the State of Illinois, or of any civil or military authority, insurrection, 
riots, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, hurricanes, storms, floods, 
washouts, droughts, arrests, restraints of government and people, civil disturbances, 
explosions, breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines, canals, or tunnels, partial or 

 
                                                             132 of 264



28 

entire failure of water supply, and inability on the part of the Commission to deliver Lake 
Water hereunder, or of any Contract Customer to receive Lake Water hereunder, on 
account of any other causes not reasonably within the control of the party claiming such 
inability. The settlement of strikes and lockouts shall be entirely within the discretion of 
the party having the difficulty and that the above requirement that any force majeure 
events shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall not require the settlement of 
strikes and lockouts by acceding to the demands of the opposing party or parties when 
such settlements is unfavorable to it in the judgment of the party having the difficulty.  
No force majeure event which renders any of the parties unable to perform under this 
Contract shall relieve a Contract Customer of its obligation to make payments to the 
Commission as required under Section 6. 
 

Section 14.  Commission Defaults.  Failure by the Commission to deliver Lake 
Water to any Contract Customer as required by this Contract or failure of the 
Commission to perform any other obligation under this Contract and the continuation of 
that failure to perform for thirty (30) days after written notice from such Contract 
Customer to the Commission of such failure shall be a default of the Commission under 
this Contract, unless any such failure is excused pursuant to Section 13 of this Contract.  
If the Commission defaults under this Contract, the Contract Customer or Contract 
Customers affected may bring any action against the Commission, including an action 
for money damage or in equity and actions for mandamus and specific performance of 
the Commission’s obligations to the extent allowed by law.  Election of any remedy shall 
not be a waiver of any other remedy. 
 

Section 15.  Contract Customer’s Obligation Unconditional.  The Contract 
Customers shall have no right to terminate, cancel or rescind this Contract, no right to 
withhold from the Commission or the Trustee who is an assignee of the Commission 
pursuant to Section 17 of this Contract payments due or to become due under this 
Contract, no right to recover from the Commission or such Trustee amounts previously 
paid under this Contract unless paid contrary to the provisions of this Contract or law, 
no right of reduction or set-off against the amounts due or to become due under this 
Contract, to the Commission or such Trustee, and no lien on any amounts in any fund 
established by the Commission or such Trustee for any reason or on account of the 
existence or occurrence of any event, condition or contingency, whether foreseen or 
unforeseen or foreseeable or unforeseeable by the Contract Customers or the 
Commission or any other person; including by way of illustration, and not limitation, by 
reason of the fact that the Waterworks System in whole or in part is not completed, 
operable or operating; the output of the Waterworks System in whole or in part is 
suspended, interrupted, interfered with, reduced or curtailed; any party to the Water 
Supply Contract does not perform in whole or in part thereunder; the Water Allocation of 
any Customer is modified or terminated or any Customer does not perform in whole or 
in part under this Contract or any other agreement or instrument; it being the intent 
hereof that the Contract Customers shall be absolutely and unconditionally obligated to 
make all payments hereunder.  The Commission may issue Bonds in specific reliance 
on the limitations set forth in this Section with respect to the rights of the Contract 
Customers. 

 
                                                             133 of 264



29 

 
Section 16.  Modification of this Contract or of the Water Supply Contract.  

Except for revisions and adjustments otherwise expressly provided for, neither this 
Contract nor the Water Supply Contract may be changed or modified unless the 
consent of the Commission and of three-fourths of the Contract Customers shall have 
been obtained.  Such modification may be requested by any party, in which event a joint 
meeting of representatives of all governing bodies shall be called by the Commission 
and held not more than sixty (60) days after such request is made and not less than 
thirty (30) days before the giving of notice of such meeting.  At the joint meeting, the 
requested changes or modifications shall be considered and discussed.  No such 
change or modification may materially impair or adversely affect the ability or obligation 
of any Contract Customer under the Contract to make payments to the Commission at 
the times, in the amounts, and with the priority required in order for the Commission 
timely to meet its obligations under this Contract, the Water Supply Contract, other 
water purchase or sale contracts of the Commission and the Bond 
Ordinances/Resolutions, including without limitation the making of all deposits in various 
funds and accounts created under the Bond Ordinances/Resolutions; or materially 
impair or adversely affect the ability of the holders of the Bonds or the Trustee, under 
the Contract or Bond Ordinances/Resolutions, to enforce the terms of the Contract.  No 
such change of modification which will affect the rights and interest of the holders of the 
Bonds shall be made without the written approval of an authorized representative of the 
holders of at least seventy percent (70%) of the outstanding Bonds and no such change 
or modification shall be effective which would cause a violation of any provisions of the 
Bond Ordinances/Resolutions or any ordinance authorizing bonds of any Contract 
Customer. 
 

Section 17.  Non-Assignability.  Except to the extent hereinafter provided, no 
party shall assign or transfer this Contract or any rights or interests herein without the 
written consent of three-fourths of the Contract Customers and the Commission.  The 
right to receive all payments which are required to be made by the Contract Customers 
to the Commission in accordance with the provisions of this Contract may be assigned 
by the Commission to any Trustee as provided in the Bond Ordinances/Resolutions to 
secure the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as 
those amounts come due, subject to the application of those payments as may be 
provided in the Bond Ordinances/Resolutions.  The Contract Customers will, upon 
notice of assignment to any such Trustee, make all payments directly to such Trustee.  
The rights of the Commission to enforce the provisions of this Contract may be 
assigned to such Trustee and, in such event, the Trustee will have the right to enforce 
this Contract at law or in equity with or without the further consent or participation of the 
Commission.  The Commission may also retain the right to enforce this Contract. 
 

Section 18.  Cooperation in Construction of Commission Water Supply.  
The Contract Customers shall cooperate with the Commission in the construction and 
acquisition of the Waterworks System.  Each Contract Customer shall grant without 
charge to the Commission any reasonable required construction easements and any 
easements necessary for portions of the Waterworks System to be located on such 

 
                                                             134 of 264



30 

Contract Customer’s property, provided the Commission agrees to restore the 
easement property in a reasonable manner after construction.  Each Contract Customer 
shall grant the Commission access to its property to the extent reasonably necessary to 
construct and maintain the Waterworks System. 
 

Section 19.  Mutual Cooperation in Issuance of Obligations.   Each Contract 
Customer shall cooperate with the Commission in the issuance of the Bonds, and the 
Commission shall cooperate with each Contract Customer in the issuance of the 
Contract Customer’s general obligation bonds or revenue bonds of its Unit System. In 
such connection, each Contract Customer and the Commission will comply with all 
reasonable requests of each other and will, upon request, do as follows: 
 

(i) Make available general and financial information about itself in accordance 
with GAAP; 

 
(ii) Consent to publication and distribution of its financial information; 
 
(iii) Certify that general and financial information about it is accurate, does not 
contain any untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a 
material fact necessary in order to make the statements in that information, in 
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; 
 
(iv) Make available certified copies of official proceedings; 
 
(v) Provide reasonable certifications to be used in a transcript of closing 
documents; and 
 
(vi) Provide and pay for reasonably requested opinions of counsel as to the 
validity of its actions taken with respect to and the binding effect of this Contract, 
title to its Unit System or the Waterworks System, as applicable, pending or 
threatened litigation which could materially affect its performance hereunder, and 
other reasonably related opinions. 
 
Section 20. Regulatory Bodies.  The parties through this Contract seek to 

exercise and maintain all sovereign rights granted to them under and through the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Illinois.  This Contract shall be subject to all valid 
rules, regulations, and laws, applicable hereto passed or promulgated by the United 
States of America, the State of Illinois, or any governmental body or agency having 
lawful jurisdiction, or any authorized representative or agency or any of them; provided 
however, that this clause shall not be construed as waiving the right of either party to 
challenge the validity of such rule, regulation, or law on any basis, including the 
impairment of this Contract. 
 

Section 21.  Commission Cooperative Arrangements With Other Water 
Suppliers. Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Contract, the Commission is 
not prohibited by this Contract from entering into cooperative arrangements with other 

 
                                                             135 of 264



31 

suppliers of Lake Water to provide Lake Water to each other to meet their water needs, 
provided that these arrangements do not interfere, except in emergencies, with the 
delivery of Lake Water to the Contract Customers. 
 

Section 22.  Notices and Evidence of Actions.  All notices or communications 
provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be delivered to the Contract Customers 
affected or the Commission either in person or by United States mail, via certified mail, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the principal office thereof. 
 
 Any action hereunder to be taken by the Commission or any Contract Customer 
may be evidenced by copy of official proceedings (including pertinent minutes, motions, 
resolutions, or ordinances) duly certified by the Clerk of such Contract Customer or the 
Commission. 
 

Section 23.  Severability.  Should any part, term, or provision of this Contract be 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, 
the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 24.  Effective Date and Term.     This Contract shall be effective when 
all the parties have executed this Contract (the “Effective Date”).  This Contract shall 
continue in force and effect until February 24, 2064.  The Contract Customers and the 
Commission agree to begin negotiation of a succeeding Water Purchase and Sale 
Contract not later than five (5) years prior to the end of the term of this Contract. 
 

Section 25.  Governing Law; Superseder.  This Contract shall be construed 
exclusively under the applicable laws of the State of Illinois.  All other contracts between 
the Commission and the Contract Customers are hereby superseded and shall be null 
and void. 

 
Section 26.    Venue.  Any action brought to enforce the terms of this Contract 

shall be brought in the Eighteenth Judicial Circuit, DuPage County, Illinois. 
 

Section 27.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which 
shall constitute but one and the same instrument.  Any such counterpart may be signed 
by one or more of the parties hereto so long as each of the parties hereto has signed 
one or more of such counterparts. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their respective 
corporate names to be subscribed hereto and their respective corporate seals to be 
hereto affixed and attested by their duly authorized officers, all on the date set opposite 
their respective corporate names. 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                             136 of 264



32 

        
       VILLAGE OF ADDISON 
 
       By _____________________    
            Rich Veenstra, Mayor 
Date:  ____                 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By _________________________     
     Lucille Zucchero, Village Clerk 

 
VILLAGE OF BARTLETT 

 
       By _______________________ 
            Kevin Wallace, President 
Date:          _ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By _______________________ 
     Lorna Giless, Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF BENSENVILLE 
 
       By ______________________ 
            Frank DeSimone, President 
Date:        _ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By    ____________________ 
     Nancy Quinn, Village Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                             137 of 264



33 

 
VILLAGE OF BLOOMINGDALE 

 
       By __________________________    
            Franco A. Coladipietro, President 
Date:          _          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By _________________________ 
     Pamela S. Hager, Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF CAROL STREAM 
 
       By _______________________ 
            Frank Saverino, Mayor 
Date:          _          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By __  ____________________ 
     Julia Schwarze, Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF CLARENDON HILLS 
 
       By ______________________    
            Eric Tech, President 
Date:         _          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ______________________     
     Lynn B. Dragisic, Village Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                             138 of 264



34 

 
CITY OF DARIEN 

 
       By _______________________ 
            Joseph A. Marchese, Mayor 
Date:          ___ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By     _____________________ 
    JoAnne Ragona, City Clerk 
 
 
 
       VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 
 
       By    ___________________ 
            Robert T. Barnett, Mayor 
Date:          ___ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By     ____________________ 
     Rosa Berardi, Village Clerk 
 

COUNTY OF DUPAGE 
 
       By  ________________________ 
            Deborah A. Conroy, Chair 
Date:    __  _ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By __     ____________________ 
     Jean Kaczmarek, County Clerk 
 
        

 
 
 

 
                                                             139 of 264



35 

 
CITY OF ELMHURST 
 

       By ________________________ 
            Scott M. Levin, Mayor 
Date:      ___ 
 
[SEAL] 
Attest: 
 
By    _________________________ 
    Jackie Haddad-Tamer, City Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF GLENDALE HEIGHTS 
 
       By _________________________ 
            Chodri Ma Khokhar, President 
Date:        ____ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By     ___________________________ 
     Marie Schmidt, Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF GLEN ELLYN 
 
       By    ______________________ 
            Mark Senak, President 
Date:          ____ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ______________________ 
     Caren Cosby, Village Clerk 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                             140 of 264



36 

 
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

 
       By    __________________________   
            Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., President 
Date:          _____ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      _______________________ 
     Emily Tompkins, Village Clerk 
 
        

VILLAGE OF ITASCA 
 
       By    _________________ 
            Jeff Pruyn, Mayor 
Date:          _          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By    _____________________ 
    Jody Conidi, Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF LISLE 
 
       By    _____________________ 
            Christopher Pecak, Mayor 
Date:          _ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ______________________ 
    Kristy Grau, Village Clerk 
 
        
 
 
 
 

 
                                                             141 of 264



37 

 
VILLAGE OF LOMBARD 

 
       By    _____________________ 
            Keith T. Giagnorio, President 
Date:         _ _ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By    _______________________ 
    Liz Brezinski, Village Clerk 
 
 
 
       CITY OF NAPERVILLE 
 
       By   ___________________    
            Scott A. Wehrli, Mayor 
Date:          __ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By     _______________________ 
     Doug A. Krieger, City Manager 
 
       VILLAGE OF OAK BROOK 
 
       By    _______________________ 
            Laurence Herman, President 
Date:       __ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By    __________________________ 
     Netasha Scarpiniti, Village Clerk 
 
        
 
 
 

 
                                                             142 of 264



38 

 
CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

 
       By _____________________ 
             Paul Esposito, Mayor 
Date:        __ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By  _______________________  
     Michael Shadley, City Clerk 
 
        
 

VILLAGE OF ROSELLE 
 
       By   ___________________ 
            David Pileski, Mayor 
Date:          __ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By     _________________________ 
    Amanda Hausman, Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF VILLA PARK 
 
       By _______________________ 
            Nick Cuzzone, President  
 Date:      ___ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      __________________________ 
    Hosanna Korynecky, Village Clerk 
 
 
        
 
 

 
                                                             143 of 264



39 

 
VILLAGE OF WESTMONT 

 
       By    _______________________ 
            Ron Gunter, Mayor 
Date:      _ ___ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      _______________________    
    Virginia Szymski, Village Clerk 
 
 
       CITY OF WHEATON 
 
       By    ______________________ 
            Philip J. Suess, Mayor 
Date:      ____ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ______________________ 
     Andrea Rosedale, City Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK 
 
       By ____________________   
            Frank A. Trilla, Mayor 
Date: ______  
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By    __________________________ 
     Deborah A. Hahn, Village Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
                                                             144 of 264



40 

 
VILLAGE OF WINFIELD 

 
       By ______________________ 
            Carl Sorgatz, President 
Date:          _ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ________________________ 
     Nicole Cannizzo, Village Clerk 
 
 
 
       CITY OF WOOD DALE 
 
       By _______________________ 
            Annunziato Pulice, Mayor 
Date:       ___ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By   ________________________ 
     Lynn Curiale, City Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF WOODRIDGE 
 
       By  ______________________ 
            Gina Cunningham, Mayor 
Date: _____  
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      _________________________ 
     Joseph Heneghan, Village Clerk 
 
        
 
 
 

 
                                                             145 of 264



41 

 
Illinois American Water 

 
 
       By ______________________ 
            President 
Date:          _  
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ________________________ 
      
 
 
 

      
 Argonne National Laboratory 

 
 
       By _______________________ 
            Director 
Date:       ___ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By   ________________________ 
      
 
       Aqua Illinois, Inc. 
 
 
       By  ______________________ 
           President 
Date: _____  
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      _________________________ 
      
 

 
                                                             146 of 264



42 

 
 
 
 

DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
 
       By ______________________ 
            Jamez F. Zay, Chairman 
Date:       ____ 
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      _______________________ 
     Danna M. Mundall, Clerk 
 
 
        
 

 
                                                             147 of 264



1 

 
 
 
 
 

DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION 
Counties of DuPage, Cook, Kane and Will, Illinois 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT 
 

Between 
 

The DuPage Water Commission 
 

and 
 

Contractharter Customers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATION/AGREEMENTS/ 
WTR. PUR.&SALE CONT BTW DWC&CHART. CUST 1986

 
                                                             148 of 264



2 

 
 
 

DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
 

COUNTIES OF DuPAGE, COOK, KANE AND WILL ILLINOIS 
 
 

AND 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ADDISON 
VILLAGE OF BARTLETT 

VILLAGE OF BENSENVILLE 
VILLAGE OF BLOOMINGDALE 
VILLAGE OF CAROL STREAM 

VVAILLAGE OF CLARENDON HILLS 
CITY OF DARIEN 

VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE 
CITY OF ELMHURST 

VILLAGE OF GLENDALE HEIGHTS 
VILLAGE OF GLEN ELLYN 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
VILLAGE OF ITASCA 
VILLAGE OF LISLE 

VILLAGE OF LOMBARD 
CITY OF NAPERVILLE 

VILLAGE OF OAK BROOK 
CITY OF OAKBROOK TERRACE 

VILLAGE OF ROSELLE 
VILLAGE OF VILLA PARK 
VILLAGE OF WESTMONT 

CITY OF WHEATON 
VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK 

VILLAGE OF WINFIELD 
CITY OF WOOD DALE 

VILLAGE OF WOODRIDGE 
ILLINOIS AMERICAN WATER 

ARGONNE NATIONAL LABORATORY 
AQUA ILLINOIS 

 
WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT 
DATED AS OF JUNE 11, 1986________, ____ 

 
                                                             149 of 264



3 

WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT 
 

Table of Contents 
            Page 

PREAMBLES 
Section 1. Definitions 
 
Section 2. Water Supply 

(a) Agreement to Purchase and Sell 
  (b) Certain Limits on Supply and Commission’s Power to Contract 
  (c) Emergency or Maintenance Shut-Off 
  (d) Curtailment; Emergency Use of Other Sources 
  (e) Water Quality 
 
Section 3. Storage, Delivery, Distribution and Conservation 

(a) Storage 
(b) Points of Delivery, Back-Flows, Pressure 
(c) Charter Contract Customer to Maintain Water Quality and Unit System 

and to Prevent Waste 
 
Section 4. Measuring Equipment 

(a) Commission to Supply Equipment, Official Record 
(b)  Calibration 
(c) Check Meters 
(d) Variations between Meters; Reconciliation 
(e) Removal of Commission Metering Station 
 

Section 5. Unit of Measurement 
 
Section 6. Prices and Terms of Payment 

(a) Operation and Maintenance Costs; Underconsumption Costs 
(b) Fixed Costs 
(c) Bills and Due Date 
(d) Default Shares 
(e) Disputed Payments 
(f) Interest on Overdue Payments 
(g) Security Deposit 
(h) Rates to Charter Contract Customers Same 
(i) Limitation on Payments; Net Indebtedness of CharterContract  

Customers 
(j) May Use Other Moneys 
(k) Sole Method for Charter Contract Customers to Enforce Provisions 

Hereof Against Other Customers 
(l) Beginning of Obligation to Pay 
(m) Provision in Lieu of` Water Allocation 
 

 
                                                             150 of 264



4 

Page 
             
Section 7. Procedural and Other Limitations; Further Covenants of the 
  Commission 

(a) Procedural Rule 
(b) Lake Water Only 
(c) Taxes 
(d) Covenants to Be Set Out in Bond Ordinances/Resolutions 
(e) Absolute Conditions 
(f) Emergency Supply 
(g) Governance 
(h) Retail Sales 
(i) Evidence of Customer Action 
(j) Limitation on Funds 
(k) General Obligation Bonds 
(l)(k) Certain Budget, Rate Limitation, Notice and Hearing 

Provisions 
(m)Use of Sales Taxes to Rebate Charges In Limited  

Circumstances 
 

Section 8. Special Conditions and Covenants 
(a) Commission to Build Waterworks System and Supply 

 Lake Water 
(b) Title to Lake Water 
(c) Commission to Use Best Efforts to Build and Finance 

Construction 
(d)(c) Payments Hereunder an Operation Expense of Unit  

Systems 
(e)(d) Commission Insurance 
(f)(e) Commission to Continue to Serve 
(g)(f) Commission Covenant to Operate Properly 

 
Section 9. Additional Charter Contract Customer Covenants 

(a) Maintain and Operate Unit System 
(b) Rate Covenant 
(c) Segregate Revenues 
(d) Future Subordination of Revenue Bond Lien 
(e) General Covenant to Operate Properly 
(f) Accounting and Audit 
(g) Maintain Ownership of Unit System and Properties 
(h) Insurance 
(i) Budget and Appropriations 
(j) Continue to Serve 
(k) Maintain Water Allocation 
(l) Combining or Separating Unit System Accounts 
(m) Customer Covenants as to Rate of Withdrawal 

 
                                                             151 of 264



5 

 
Section 10. Election as to Water Purchase Requirements 
 
Section 11. AbandonmentIntentionally Omitted 
 
Section 12. Subsequent and Other Contracts 

(a) No Contract With Rate More Favorable 
(b) Occasional Service Only Except to Contract Customers 
(c) Subsequent Contract Terms 

 
Section 13. Force Majeure 
 
Section 14. Commission Defaults 
 
Section 15. Charter Contract Customer’s Obligation Unconditional 
  
Section 16. Modification of this Contract or of the Chicago Water Supply 
  Contract 
 
Section 17. Non-Assignability 
 
Section 18. Cooperation In Construction of Commission Water Supply 
 
Section 19. Mutual Cooperation in Issuance of Obligations 
 
Section 20. Regulatory Bodies 
 
Section 21. Commission Cooperative Arrangements with Other Water 
  SuppliersSupplies 
 
Section 22. Notices and Evidence of Actions 
 
Section 23. Severability 
 
Section 24. Effective Date and Term 
 
Section 25. Governing Law; Superseder 
 
Section 26. Venue 
 
Section 27. Execution in Counterparts 
 
SIGNATURES 
 
EXHIBIT 1 Map 
 

 
                                                             152 of 264



6 

 
 
 

List of Defined Terms and References 
 Term          Page 
 
Act 
Aggregate Costs 
Bonds 
Bond Resolution 
Charter Customers 
Charter Date 
Chicago Water Supply Contract 
Commission 
Contract 
Contract Customers 
Costs of the Project 
Customer 
Effective Date 
Fiscal Year 
Fixed Costs 
Full Water Requirements 
Lake Water 
Minimum Take or Pay Requirement 
Operation and Maintenance Costs 
Prior Contracts 
Project 
Rebate 
Rebate Recipients 
60% Completion Date 
Subsequent Customer 
Subsequent Contract 
Trustee 
Underconsumer 
Underconsumption 
Underconsumption Costs 
Underconsumption Ratio 
Unit System 
Water Allocation 
Waterworks System 

 
                                                             153 of 264



7 

DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
COUNTIES OF DuPAGE, COOK, KANE AND WILL, ILLINOIS 

WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT 
 

 This Water Purchase and Sale Contract, dated as of XXJune 11, 1986, by and 
between the DuPage Water Commission, Counties of DuPage, Cook and Will, Illinois 
(the “Commission”), a county water commission and public corporation under Division 
135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-1 et seq., and the 
Water Commission Act of 1985, 70 ILCS 3720/1 et seq. (collectively, the “Acts”), and 
each of the following units of local government and private water providers inof the 
State of Illinois: 
 

Unit of Local Government 
 

Village of Addison 
Village of Bartlett 

Village of Bensenville 
Village of Bartlett 

Village of Bloomingdale 
Village of Carol Stream 

Village of Clarendon Hills 
City of Darien 

County of DuPage 
Village of Downers Grove 

County of DuPage 
City of Elmhurst 

Village of Glendale Heights 
Village of Glen Ellyn 
Village of Hinsdale 

Village of Itasca 
Village of Lisle 

Village of Lombard 
City of Naperville 

Village of Oak Brook 
City of Oakbrook Terrace 

Village of Roselle 
Village of Villa Park 
Village of Westmont 

City of Wheaton 
Village of Willowbrook 

Village of Winfield 
City of Wood Dale 

Village of Woodridge 

 
Private Utilities 

 
Illinois American Water 

Argonne National Laboratory 
Aqua Illinois 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has been organized under said division and act 
(collectively, the “Act”) to supply water within its territorial limits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the aforementioned units of local government (the “ContractCharter 
Customers” as hereafter defined) have each executed counterparts of this Contract and 
are authorized under the Act to receive potable water from Lake Michigan (“Lake Water” 
as hereafter defined) through the instrumentality of the Commission and, by executing 

 
                                                             154 of 264



8 

this Contract are enabling the Commission to construct and complete its waterworks 
system (the “Waterworks System” as hereafter defined); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractharter Customers each have a waterworks system (a 
“Unit System” as hereafter defined) and have each received or may properly petition to 
receive from the State of Illinois Department of Transportation Department of Natural 
Resources, Office of Water Resources, a “Water Allocation” as hereafter defined; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has entered into a contract with the City of Chicago 
to purchase Lake Water sufficient to meet the water supply needs of the Commission 
and the Charter Contract Customers and others (the “Chicago Water Supply Contract” 
as hereafter defined); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission proposes to issue and sell its “Bonds” as hereafter 
defined from time to time during the term of this Contract in sufficient amounts for the 
payment of: “Costs of the Project” as hereafter defined; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Bonds will be issued from time to time by the Commission 
pursuant to a “Bond Resolution” as hereafter defined; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, Article VII, Section 10 of the Illinois Constitution 
of 1970, and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Aact, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., as 
amended, the Commission and itsthe Charter Customers are authorized to enter into 
this Contract; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by the execution of this Contract, itsthe Charter Customers are 
surrendering none of their respective rights to the ownership and operation of their 
respective Unit Systems, except as expressly limited to this Contract, nor is the 
Commission surrendering any of its rights to the ownership and operation of its 
Waterworks System, but all expressly assert their continued right to operate such 
systems; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is known to itsthe Charter Customers that the Commission maywill 
use this Contract as the basis for obtaining loans from time to time to be evidenced by 
the issuance of the Bonds and for payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds and as the means for the payment of its maintenance and 
operating expenses; and for the establishment and maintenance of accounts and 
reserves for such purposes as may be required in the Bond Resolution authorizing 
issuance of Bonds or authorized by applicable statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, itsthe Charter Customers recognize that the Commission may in the 
future enter into contracts with other “Subsequent Customers” as hereafter defined and 
other customers as may be served from time to time who have Water Allocations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, certain Charter Customers were members of the Commission as it 
existed under prior law and previously entered into water purchase contracts (the “Prior 

 
                                                             155 of 264



9 

Contracts” as hereafter defined) with the Commission, which gave them substantial 
rights not only as contracting parties, but also as voting members of the Commission; 
and such Charter Customers would not enter into this Contract, which cancels the 
provisions of the Prior Contracts, unless this Contract retained many of the powers and 
protections accorded to them in the Prior Contracts; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission, in Article VI, Section 7.b5 (c) of its By-Laws, 
requires a greater than majority vote containing a certain composition of Commissioners 
to validate certain motions, resolutions or ordinances; and the Contractharter 
Customers enter into this Contract in reliance upon the continuation of procedural rules 
of the Commission as set forth in said Article VI, Section 7.b5 (c) which grant this vote 
and composition; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Contract also contains certain requirements for the nature and 
composition of the vote of the Commission required to effectuate certain actions relating 
to the contractual rights of the Contractharter Customers herein; and such 
Contractharter Customers execute this Contract in reliance upon the continuation of 
such requirements for the term of this Contract; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractharter Customers have entered into this Contract in 
reliance upon Section 2 (j) of the Water Commission Act of 1985 which provides that 
units of local government may enter into contracts for the supply of Lake Water with the 
Commission in contemplation of and reliance upon the pledge of the State of Illinois that 
no subsequent legislation would impair or limit the power or ability of a County Water 
Commission or a unit of local government fully to carry out the terms of any contract for 
the supply of Lake Water; and, in particular, the rights of the Contractharter Customers 
and the obligations of the Commission under this Contract are intended by the 
Contractharter Customers and acknowledged by the Commission to be subject to such 
pledge and agreement of the State of Illinois; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and of the mutual 
covenants and agreements herein contained, the parties hereto hereby agree as 
follows: 
 
 The preambles hereto are hereby incorporated herein by reference, as if set out 
in full.  Section numbers and captions are for reference and convenience only and do 
not expand or limit the meaning as contained in the text of this Contract.  A definition in 
the singular may be used in the plural, and vice-versa. 
 
 Section 1.  Definitions.  The following words and phrases shall have the 
following meanings when used in this Contract, unless the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning is intended. 
 
 “Acts” means Division 135 of Article 11, Division 135 of the Illinois Municipal 
Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-1 et seq., and the Water Commission Act of 1985, 70 ILCS 
3720/1 et seq.. 

 
                                                             156 of 264



10 

 
  “Aggregate Costs” means Operation and Maintenance Costs, Fixed Costs and 
Underconsumption Costs, collectively, as herein defined. 
 
 “Bonds” means all of the Commission’s obligations which are payable from the 
revenues of the Waterworks System, whether in the form of bonds, notes, or other 
evidences of indebtedness, in whatever original principal amount, together with any 
such additional revenue obligations authorized by statute to be issued by the 
Commission from time to time and refunding revenue obligations issued to refund other 
such obligations. 
 
 “Bond Resolution” means the Commission’s bond resolution or bond resolutions 
or bond ordinance or bond ordinances under which the Commission will authorize the 
issuance of and issue Bonds. 
  
 “Charter Customers” means the units of local government that executed the 
original contract between the Commission and its customers dated June 11, 
1986named as initial parties hereto in the heading of this Contract and which do 
properly authorize the execution of and execute a counterpart of this Contract as 
acceptance hereof and file the same with the Clerk of the Commission on or before the 
Charter Date as provided in Section 24 hereof. 
 

  
 “Chicago Water Supply Contract” means the water supply contract, dated March 

19, 1984December 14, 1983, between the Commission and the City of Chicago, Illinois, 
as amended, or0 supplemented or extended from time to time, or any alternative water 
supply agreement. 

 
 “Commission” means the DuPage Water Commission, Counties of DuPage, 
Cook, Kane and Will, Illinois. 
 
 “Contract” means this cContract. 
 
 “Contract Customers” collectively means Charter Customers and any other entity 
that has executed a contract with the Commission to receive Lake Michigan Water from 
the Commission and wholesale it to the public prior to the date of this 
ContractSubsequent Customers, collectively. 
 
 “Cost of the Project” means, with respect to a Project, all costs of the Project, 
including costs of the acquisition of necessary lands, easements, and rights-of-way over 
lands and waters; the erection, construction, rehabilitation, repair and replacement of 
pumping, storage or other facilities, and the installation of mains and pipelines; costs of 
financing and administration during any period of acquisition, erection, construction, 
rehabilitation, repair, replacement or installation, as aforesaid; costs of repayment of 
such interim indebtedness as may be incurred for such costs, including administrative 
expenses prior to issuance of Bonds for a Project; and costs for such other purposes, 

 
                                                             157 of 264



11 

including without limitation reasonable reserves and working capital, as may be 
determined by the Commission. 
 
 
 “Customer” means any customer purchasing water from the Commission, 
including Contract Customers. 
 
 “Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Commission. 
 
 “Fixed Costs” means an amount sufficient, at all times, to pay the principal of and 
premium, if any, and interest on Bonds, to provide reserves required therefor, to provide 
an adequate depreciation fund for the Waterworks System, to comply with the 
covenants of the Bond Resolution, and to pay reasonable capital costs necessary to 
carry out the corporate purposes and powers of the Commission; and except as any of 
the above are included in Operations and Maintenance Costs. 
 
 “Full Water Requirements” means, with respect to a Customer, the amount of 
water necessary from time to time to meet the potable water requirements of all then 
current customers served by the Unit System of such Customer (including municipal 
use where applicable) whether within or without the corporateion limits or applicable 
service area of such Customer. 
 
 “Lake Water” means potable, filtered water drawn from Lake Michigan. 
 
 “Minimum Take or Pay Requirement” means a requirement that a certain 
minimum amount of Lake Water from the Waterworks System will be taken or, if not 
taken, will be paid for on the same basis as if taken. 
 

 “Operations and Maintenance Costs” means amounts payable under the 
Chicago Water Supply Contract, but not including Underconsumption Costs except as 
provided in Section 10 of this Contract, and similar water supply contracts, and all 
expenses incurred in the administration, operation and maintenance of the Waterworks 
System and the accumulation of reserves related to payment of said costs.  Upon the 
adoption of a Bond Resolution by the Commission in connection with the sale of Bonds, 
Operation and Maintenance Costs payable under this Contract shall in any month at 
least be equal to the amount required to be deposited in that month into the operation 
and maintenance fund or account created under the Bond Resolution. 
 
 “Prior Contracts” means the water purchase contracts between the Commission 
and certain Charter Customers, executed on various dates in the year 1984, providing 
for a supply of Lake Water. 
 
 “Project” means any acquisition or construction for the provision of Lake Water 
related to the Waterworks System including initial acquisition and construction thereof 
and all future improvements or extensions, acquisition, construction, repair, 
maintenance or replacement thereof. 

 
                                                             158 of 264



12 

 
“Subsequent Customer” means a customer of the Waterworks System which has 

a Water Allocation, is not a ContractCharter Customer and is served pursuant to a 
Subsequent Contract executed after the Effective Date of this contract. 
 
 “Subsequent Contract” means a contract which provides for a Customer to either 
take its Full Water Requirements from the Waterworks System or contains a Minimum 
Take or Pay Requirement and which contract further provides for storage and other 
requirements, terms of payment (expressly subject to the following sentence), Force 
Majeure and Commission Defaults substantially the same as Sections 3, 6, 13, 14, and 
15 hereof (which provisions may relate to a Full Water Requirements agreement of or a 
Minimum Take or Pay Requirement agreement as the case may be).  The rate or 
charges for Lake Water may be higher than those provided herein, and only the terms 
of payment need be substantially the same. 
 
 “Trustee” means the trustee provided in the Bond Resolution. 
  
 “Underconsumer” means, for any given year, a Contract Customer which takes 
less Lake Water in such year than its Water Allocation times 365 times the 
Underconsumption Ratio for such year. 
 
 “Underconsumption” means the amount by which the amount of Lake Water 
actually taken by a Contract Customer is less than the Underconsumption Ratio times 
such customer’s Water Allocation times 365. 
 
 “Underconsumption Costs” means any amount which the Commission is 
obligated to pay under the Chicago Water Supply Contract solely by reason of failure to 
accept delivery of the minimum quantity of Lake Water that the Commission is obligated 
to purchase under the Chicago Water Supply Contract. 
 
 “Underconsumption Ratio” means, for any given year, (Ii) the minimum amount of 
Lake Water required to be taken by the Commission under the Chicago Water Supply 
Contract divided by (ii) the sum of the Water Allocations of all Contract Customers times 
365. 
 
 “Unit System” means the waterworks system or combined waterworks and 
sewerage system (if such systems are combined for financing and accounting 
purposes) from time to time of a Contract Customer. 
 
 “Water Allocation” means, with respect to a Customer, such Customer’s 
allocation and allowable excess from time to time of Lake Water pursuant to the Level of 
Lake Michigan Act, as amended from time to time as ordered by the; Illinois Department 
of Natural ResourcesTransportation Administrative Opinion Order Nos. XXLMO 80-1, 
LMO 80-4 and subsequent orders of the State of Illinois Department of Transportation; 
or such other amounts of Lake Water as a Customer may lawfully take. 
 

 
                                                             159 of 264



13 

“Water Supply Contract” means the water supply contract, dated March 19, 1984, 
between the Commission and the City of Chicago, Illinois, as amended,0 supplemented 
or extended from time to time, or any alternative water supply agreement. 
 
 “Waterworks System” means all the Commission’s facilities, including land, 
easements, rights-of-way over lands and waters, pumping, storage and other facilities,  
mains and pipelines acquired and used for the purposes of providing and transmitting 
Lake Water from the City of Chicago’s water supply system to Customers substantially 
in accordance with the plans and project description attached hereto as Exhibit 1.  Said 
Exhibit 1which may be modified, amended and supplemented from time to time by the 
Commission in its sole discretion to serve the Lake Water needs of only those 
Customers or potential Customers located within the territorial limits of the Commission 
on March 1, 1986, or within territory which by annexation or consolidation becomes part 
of municipalities defined as “included units” in the Act as the Act is written on March 1, 
1986, without amendment thereto. 
 

Section 2.  Water Supply. 
 
      (a) Agreement to Purchase and Sell.  Subject to the provisions of this Contract, 
the Commission shall sell to each Charter Contract Customer and each CharterContract 
Customer agrees to purchase from the Commission an amount of Lake Water 
necessary from time to time to serve its Full Water Requirements.  The Commission’s 
obligation to each CharterContract Customer, however, to deliver Lake Water 
hereunder shall be limited to a maximum annual amount equivalent to such 
CharterContract Customer’s then current Water Allocation and to a maximum rate of 
Lake Water in any one hour equal to 1.7 times such CharterContract Customer’s Water 
Allocation divided by 24.   Further, the Commission’s obligation to each CharterContract 
Customer to deliver Lake Water at a maximum hourly rate shall be divided among the 
connection points, if more than one of each such CharterContract Customer as provided 
in the design of the Waterworks System. 
 
  (b) Certain Limits on Supply and Commission’s Power to Contract.  The 
Commission shall use its best efforts to furnish Lake Water to the CharterContract 
Customers as hereinabove provided, but its obligation hereunder shall be limited by (iI) 
the amount of Lake Water from time to time available to the Commission; (ii) contracts 
between the Commission and its other Customers; (iii) the capacity of the Waterworks 
System; and (iv) ordinary transmission loss, including standard metering error, between 
the Commission’s source of supply and the points of delivery.  The Commission shall 
not enter into contracts with other Customers that would cause the Commission to be 
obligated to sell Lake Water in excess of the least of (iI) Waterworks System capacity, 
(ii) the maximum amount of Lake Water available under the Chicago Water Supply 
Contract or (iii) an amount which would decrease the amount of Lake Water then being 
supplied or to be supplied in the future to the Charter Contract Customers. 
 

(c) Emergency or Maintenance Shut-Off.  The Commission undertakes to use 
reasonable care and diligence to provide a constant supply of Lake Water as herein 

 
                                                             160 of 264



14 

provided for, but reserves the right at any time temporarily to turn off the Lake Water in 
its mains for emergency and maintenance purposes.  The Commission shall give to the 
Charter Contract Customers notice not less than forty-eight (48) hours in advance of 
any such turn-off, except that in emergencies it shall give notice which is reasonable 
under the particular circumstances. 
 

(d) Curtailment; Emergency Use of Other Sources.  If it becomes necessary 
for the Commission to limit its delivery of Lake Water to its Customers for any reason, 
each Charter Contract Customer shall be entitled to the fullest extent possible to receive 
during such period of curtailment its pro rata share of Lake Water available as 
determined by the ratio of its total Lake Water use during the prior Fiscal Year to the 
sum of Lake Water use during the prior Fiscal Year of all Customers entitled to Lake 
Water during such period of curtailment.  Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to 
prohibit each CharterContract Customer from serving its customers in cases of 
emergency, or when the Commission for whatever reason is unable to meet such 
CharterContract Customer’s Full Water Requirements, from any source including wells 
owned by such CharterContract Customer and maintained for emergency use. 
 

(e) Water Quality. The Commission further undertakes to provide in the Chicago 
Supply Contract and similar water supply contracts that all Lake Water delivered to the 
Commission under said contracts shall be of such quality, at the point of delivery to the 
Commission under said contracts, as to meet the requirements of any Federal, State or 
local agency as shall have jurisdiction from time to time for the operation of public water 
supplies.  The Commission shall supply each CharterContract Customer with Lake 
Water of a quality commensurate with that furnished other CharterContract Customers, 
and meeting state and federal water quality standards.  The Commission bears no 
responsibility for the contamination of Lake Water or deterioration of water quality 
occurring beyond the points of delivery to the CharterContract Customers. 
 
 Section 3.  Storage, Delivery, Distribution and Conservation. 
 

(a) Storage.  The Chicago Water Supply Contract currently requires the 
Commission to provide for and maintain water storage within the Waterworks System 
and certain Customer Unit Systems, collectively, of sufficient capacity to store not less 
than two times the annual average daily water demands (including operable shallow 
well capacity which may be counted towards meeting up to ten percent (10%) of the 
storage requirements.)  In the event the City of Chicago enforces the minimum water 
storage standards and thereby requires the Commission to provide additional water 
storage and capacity, then this Section will apply.  Each CharterContract Customer 
agrees to use its best efforts to increase the water storage capacity of its Unit System; 
but in no event shall a CharterContract Customer be required to increase the water 
storage capacity contained in its Unit System (including its operable shallow well 
capacity which may be counted towards meeting up to ten percent (10%) of its storage 
requirements) to an amount more than (I) twice the amount of its then annual average 
daily water demand, less that portion of the Commission’s storage capacity in its 
Waterworks System equal to such CharterContract Customer’s annual average daily 

 
                                                             161 of 264



15 

water demand divided by the total annual average daily water demands of all 
Customers (to the extent that such Customers are included as parties for whom storage 
must be provided and maintained under the provisions of the Chicago Water Supply 
Contract) or (ii) an amount of storage (including storage under construction or ordered 
to b constructed pursuant to this subsection) relative to its annual average daily water 
demand which is more than any other Contract Customer’s storage relative to its annual 
average daily water demand. 

 
(b) Points of Delivery, Back-Flows, Pressure.  The points of delivery shall be 

defined as the points of outlet where the Lake Water delivered hereunder leaves the 
Waterworks System and enters a Unit System.  These points will be to the lesser of ten 
feet downstream from the Commission’s metering stations or a common dividing wall 
between the Commission’s metering station and the Contract Customer’s pressure 
adjusting or rate control stations.  The number and location of connections to each 
CharterContract Customer’s system are shown on Exhibit 1.  Each CharterContract 
Customer shall receive its supply of Lake Water downstream of the Commission’s 
metering stations at pressures that will vary from time to time. Each point of delivery 
shall have a pressure adjusting or rate controlincreasing/reducing station.  Each 
CharterContract Customer is responsible for the siting, design, construction, operation, 
maintenance and replacement of the pressure adjusting or rate control stations supplied 
by Contract Customerincreasing/reducing stations to convey water from the Waterworks 
System into the Unit System.  The Commission shall pay or reimburse each 
CharterContract Customer for reasonable costs of design and initial construction of 
such stations; provided, that each CharterContract Customer shall provide appropriate 
sites without reimbursement. 
 
 Initial construction and fFuture construction and modification of plans and 
specifications of the pressure increasing/reducing stations shall be submitted to the 
Commission for review and approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
 Each CharterContract Customer’s operation of its pressure adjusting or rate 
controlincreasing/reducing stations shall not cause surges or back-flows into the 
Waterworks System nor shall the operation of the Customer’s pressure adjusting or rate 
controlincreasing/reducing facilities cause the Waterworks System pressure to drop 
below 20 psi.  The Commission shall not be responsible for any damage to the Unit 
System caused by design, operation or maintenance of the Customer’s connection 
facilities to the Waterworks System. 
 
 (c) CharterContract Customer to Maintain Water Quality and Unit System 
and to Prevent Waste.  Each CharterContract Customer agrees to operate its Unit 
System from the points of delivery on to the consumer in such a manner as at no time to 
place the Commission and the Waterworks System in jeopardy of failing to meet the 
regulations of any agency or governmental authority having jurisdiction for its operation 
of public water supplies.  Each CharterContract Customer also agrees to notify the 
Commission as promptly as possible of all emergency and other conditions which may 

 
                                                             162 of 264



16 

directly or indirectly affect the quantity or quality of the Lake Water received hereunder 
or the Waterworks System. 
 
Section 4.  Measuring Equipment. 
 
 (a) Commission to Supply Equipment, Official Record.  The Commission 
shall furnish, install, own, operate, maintain, repair and replace, at its own expense, at 
the points of delivery the necessary equipment and devices of a type meeting the 
standards of the American Waterworks Association for measuring properly the quantity 
of Lake Water delivered under this Contract, together with such above-ground 
structures as the Commission shall deem necessary to house such equipment and 
devices.  Such meter or meters and other equipment so installed and structures so 
constructed shall remain the property of the Commission.  Such structures and 
equipment shall be located at sites selected and provided by each CharterContract 
Customer, respectively, for Lake Water delivered to it, for such purpose.  Such sites 
shall be subject to review and approval by the Commission, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld.  Each CharterContract Customer shall grant to the Commission 
a property interest in each respective site sufficient to enable the Commission to install, 
use, operate and maintain such structures and equipment during the term of this 
Contract; however, each Contract Customer shall be responsible for maintaining the 
grounds and landscaping, including but not limited to shrubbery and other plantings, 
located on each site provided.  The Commission and each CharterContract Customer 
shall have access to such structures and equipment for examination and inspection at 
all reasonable times, but the reading for billing purposes, calibration and adjustment 
thereof shall be done only by the employees or agents of the Commission.  For the 
purpose of this Contract, the official record of readings of the meter or meters shall be 
the journal or other record book of the Commission in its office in which the records of 
the employees or agents of the Commission who take the readings are or may be 
transcribed.  Upon written request of a CharterContract Customer, the Commission will 
give the CharterContract Customer a copy of such journal or record book, or permit the 
CharterContract Customer to have access thereto in the office of the Commission 
during regular business hours. 
 
 (b) Calibration.  At least once in each Fiscal Year, the Commission shall 
calibrate its meters dedicated to measuring Lake Water to a CharterContract Customer 
if requested in writing by such CharterContract Customer to do so, in the presence of a 
representative of the CharterContract Customer, and the Commission and such 
CharterContract Customer shall jointly observe any adjustments which are made to the 
meters in case any adjustments shall be necessary, and if any check meters as 
hereinafter provided for have been installed, such meters shall also be calibrated by the 
CharterContract Customer in the presence of a representative of the Commission and 
the Commission and such CharterContract Customer shall jointly observe an 
adjustment in case any adjustment is necessary. 
 
 (c) Check Meters.  A CharterContract Customer may, at its option and its own 
expense, install and operate a check meter to check each meter installed by the 

 
                                                             163 of 264



17 

Commission, but the measurement of Lake Water for the purpose of this Contract shall 
be solely by the Commission’s meters, except in the cases hereinafter specifically 
provided to the contrary.  All such check meters shall be of standard make and shall be 
subject at all reasonable times to inspection and examination by any employee or agent 
of the Commission, but the calibration and adjustment thereof shall be made only by 
such CharterContract Customer, except during any period when a check meter may be 
used under the provisions hereunder for measuring the amount of water delivered, in 
which case the calibration and adjustment thereof shall be made by the Commission 
with like effects as if such check meter or meters had been furnished and installed by 
the Commission. 
 

(d) Variations between Meters; Reconciliation.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
if the Commission or any Contract Customer at any time observes a variation between a 
delivery meter and a check meter, if any such check meter shall have been installed, or 
any other evidence of meter malfunctions, such party shall promptly notify the other 
party and the Commission and such Contract Customer shall then cooperate to procure 
an immediate calibration test and adjustment of such meter to accuracy and shall jointly 
observe any such adjustment.  The party who discovers such variation shall give the 
other party notice not less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the time of all tests of 
meters (which tests shall be conducted during normal working hours) so that the other 
party may conveniently have a representative present.  If said representative is not 
present at the time set in such notice, calibration and adjustment may, notwithstanding 
any other provision of this paragraph, proceed in the absence of said representative.  If, 
upon any test, the percentage of inaccuracy of any meter is found to be in excess of two 
percent (2%), registration thereof shall be corrected by agreement of the Commission 
and such Contract Customer based upon the best data available, for a period extending 
back to the time when such inaccuracy began, if such time is ascertainable, and if such 
time is not ascertainable, then for a period extending back one-half (1/2) of the time 
elapsed since the last date of calibration, but in no event further back than a period of 
183 calendar days of meter operationsix (6) months.  If for any reason any meters are 
out of service or out of repair so that the amount of Lake Water delivered cannot be 
ascertained or computed from the reading thereof, the Lake Water delivered during the 
period such meters are out of service or out of repair shall be deemed to be the 
registration of any check meter or meters if the same have been installed and are 
accurately registering.  Otherwise, the amount of Lake Water delivered during such 
period shall be estimated (iI) by correcting the error if the percentage of the error is 
ascertainable by calibration tests of mathematical calculations, or (ii) if the error is not 
ascertainable by calibration tests or mathematical calculation, by estimating the quantity 
of delivery by considering deliveries during preceding periods under similar conditions 
when the meter or meters were registering accurately. 
 

(e) Removal of Commission Metering Station.  Within ninety (90) days after 
the termination of this Contract (absent a failure to renew)without renewal, the 
Commission shall at its own expense remove metering equipment and stations from 
and restore the property of each CharterContract Customer to which such termination 
without renewal applies.  If the Commission fails to remove and restore, as aforesaid, 

 
                                                             164 of 264



18 

the CharterContract Customer affected may elect to enforce its right to same or to take 
title to such equipment and station. 
 
 Section 5.  Unit of Measurement.  The unit of measurement for Lake Water 
delivered hereunder shall be gallons of water, U.S. Standard Liquid Measure, and all 
measuring devices shall, unless the Commission and affected Contract Customer 
otherwise agree, to be so calibrated.  In the event that it should become necessary or 
desirable to use other units of measurement, the basis of conversion shall be that 7.48 
gallons is equivalent to one (1) cubic foot. 
 
 Section 6.  Prices and Terms of Payment. 
 

(a) Operation and Maintenance Costs; Underconsumption Costs.   Each 
CharterContract Customer shall pay a shaore of Operation and Maintenance Costs for 
each month, which shall be an amount equal to the then current price per 1,000 gallons 
for Operation and Maintenance Costs times the quantity of Lake Water divided by 
1,000 delivered by the Waterworks System to such CharterContract Customer for such 
month.  At any time no Lake Water is being supplied through the Waterworks System 
to Contract Customers, each Contract Customer’s share of monthly Operation and 
Maintenance Costs shall be that proportion of those costs which such Contract 
Customer’s Water Allocation bears to the total Water Allocations of all Contract 
Customers required to make Operation and Maintenance Costs payments during the 
same period. The Commission may require Subsequent Customers to pay for any 
month a share of Operation and Maintenance Costs, which share may beis based 
upon a rate or proportion higher than that which is applicable to CharterContract 
Customers.  Such requirement of a greater share may but need not be applied by the 
Commission to reduce the shares of said costs payable in any month by the 
CharterContract Customers; provided, however, that in no event shall the Commission 
reduce the shares of CharterContract Customers by an amount which exceeds the 
amount that is available due to such greater share being paid by a Subsequent 
Customer. 

 
 Each Underconsumer shall pay its share of Underconsumption Costs as 
determined and assessed by the Commission after notification of such costs by the City 
of Chicago.  Each Underconsumer’s share of Underconsumption Costs for a year shall 
be equal to the ratio of its Underconsumption to the aggregate Underconsumption of all 
Underconsumers for such year. 
 
 (b) Fixed Costs.  Subject to the single limitation on its obligation to pay Fixed 
Costs set forth in this subsection, eEach CharterContract Customer agrees to pay its 
share of Fixed Costs for each Fiscal Year, which share shall be payable monthly and 
shall be that proportion of Fixed Costs which such CharterContract Customer’s Full 
Water Requirements for the two preceding calendar years prior to such Fiscal Year 
bears to the sum of the Full Water Requirements of or Minimum Take of Pay 
Requirements, as applicable, of all those Contract Customers for such two preceding 
calendar years, who are not relieved from Fixed Costs payments pursuant to the 

 
                                                             165 of 264



19 

payment limitation set forth in the last sentence of this subsection.  The Commission 
may require Subsequent Customers to pay for any month a share of Fixed Costs which 
is greater than said proportion.  Such requirement of a greater share may but need not 
be applied by the Commission to reduce the shares of said costs payable in any month 
by the CharterContract Customers; provided, however, that in no event shall the 
Commission reduce the shares of CharterContract Customers by an amount which 
exceeds the amount that is available due to such greater share being paid by a 
Subsequent Customer.  Prior to the Commission’s delivery of Lake Water to any 
CharterContract Customer for two (2) calendar years, each CharterContract Customer’s 
share of monthly Fixed Costs shall be that portion of Fixed Costs which such 
CharterContract Customer’s Water Allocation bears to the total Water Allocations of 
Contract Customers, who are not relieved from Fixed Costs payments pursuant to the 
payment limitation set forth in the last sentence of this paragraph.  Subject to the single 
limitation on its obligation to pay Fixed Costs set forth in this paragraph, each Charter 
Customer’s obligation to make all payment of Fixed Costs as required hereunder is 
unconditional and irrevocable, payable without setoff or counterclaim and irrespective of 
whether Lake Water is ever furnished, made available or delivered to any Charter 
Customer or whether the Waterworks System is completed, operable or operating, and 
notwithstanding suspension, interruption, interference, reduction or curtailment of the 
supply of Lake Water.  The rights of the Charter Customer in the event of the failure by 
the Commission to perform its obligations under this Contract are governed by Section 
14.  Each Charter Customer'’ obligation to pay Fixed Costs hereunder is subject to the 
single limitation that, if for any period of time (and only during such period) the 
Commission is in fact supplying the Full Water Requirements or Minimum Take or Pay 
Requirements, as applicable, of Contract Customers other than such Charter Customer, 
whose Full Water Requirements and Minimum Take or Pay Requirements are more 
than 85% of the sum of the Full Water Requirements or Minimum Take or Pay 
Requirements, as applicable, of all Contract Customers, and during such period of time 
the Commission is unable to supply any Lake Water to such Charter Customer, then 
such Charter Customer shall have no obligation to pay Fixed Costs for such period.   
 
 (c) Bills and Due Date.  The Commission shall notify each CharterContract 
Customer of such CharterContract Customer’s share of Aggregate Costs for a month on 
or before the tenth (10th) day of the following month.  The CharterContract Customer’s 
share of Aggregate Costs for a month shall be due and payable and must be received 
at the offices of the Commission on ore before the tenth day of the month following the 
month of the Commission’s notification. or, iI  If the Commission provides the notice 
later than the tenth (10th) day of the month, Charter Contract Customer shall have, 
within twenty-eight (28) days of from the date of notification to make said payment. 
 
 (d) Default Shares.  If any Customer shall default in the payment to the 
Commission of any part of its share of Aggregate Costs, or any part of the payment of 
its share due pursuant to this subsection 6(d), each CharterContract Customer agrees 
to pay a share of the amount so in default to the Commission, which share shall be in 
the same proportion as such CharterContract Customer’s share of the Aggregate Costs 
for the month prior to the month of the default bears to the sum of the shares of 

 
                                                             166 of 264



20 

Aggregate Costs in that month of all Contract Customers obligated to make payments 
under this subsection 6(d) not in default.  A CharterContract Customer’s share of 
defaulted Aggregate Costs, or such defaulted payment of shares, as the case may be, 
shall be due and payable twenty-one (21) days after the Commission’s written demand 
therefor.  The demand shall include the Commission’s calculations of the amount due 
by the Carter Contract Customer hereunder. If and when the defaulting Customer 
makes a payment to the Commission of a defaulted amount or interest thereon for 
which the CharterContract Customers have made a payment to the Commission under 
this paragraph, the Commission will pay to each CharterContract Customer its 
proportionate share of such amount, including any such interest paid thereon. 
 
 (e) Disputed Payments.  If a CharterContract Customer desires to dispute all or 
any part of any payments under this Agreement, the CharterContract Customer shall 
nevertheless pay the full amount of any such payment when due and include with such 
payment written notification to the Commission that charges are disputed, the grounds 
for dispute and the amount in dispute. 
 
 Upon receipt of notification of dispute, representatives of the Commission shall 
meet with representatives of the CharterContract Customer to resolve such dispute.  No 
adjustment or relief on account of any disputed charges shall be made unless disputed 
charges are the subject of such notice within twenty-one (21) days of receipt by 
Contract Customer of the billtime herein specified, or within a reasonable period from 
the time the CharterContract Customer knew or should have known of the facts giving 
the rise to the dispute. 
 
 The Commission and the CharterContract Customer shall promptly attempt and 
continue efforts to resolve the dispute.  In the event that it is determined that the 
CharterContract Customer shall have overpaid, it shall receive a refund with interest at 
the rate set out in subsection (f). 
 
 (f) Interest on Overdue Payments.  If a CharterContract Customer shall fail to 
make any payment required under this Contract on or before its due date, such 
CharterContract Customer shall be in default, and interest on the amount of such 
payment shall accrue during the period of non-payment at the maximum legal rate 
payable by an Illinois non-home rule unit, not to exceed the higher of the weighted 
average effective interest rate on all series of Bonds of the Commission any of which 
are then outstanding plus two percent (2%) or the prime rate from time to time 
announced by the largest commercial bank, measured in terms of total assets, located 
and doing banking business in the State of Illinois, plus five percent (5%), from the date 
such payment becomes due until paid in full with interest as herein specified.  In the 
event such payment is not made within thirty (30) days from the date such payment 
becomes due, the Commission may at its option and in its discretion reduce or 
discontinue delivery of Lake Water to the Charger Contract Customer until the amount 
due the Commission is paid in full with interest as herein specified.  The Commission 
shall give notice to the CharterContract Customer not less than twenty (20) days prior to 
the event of its intention to reduce or discontinue delivery of Lake Water in accordance 

 
                                                             167 of 264



21 

with this subsection (f) and shall provide the Charter Contract Customer an opportunity 
for a hearing prior to any reduction or discontinuance.  If the Commission reduces or 
discontinues the delivery of Lake Water under such circumstances, the CharterContract 
Customer shall, nevertheless, continue to be liable to pay all charges herein provided 
for.  The rights specified in this subsection shall be in addition to all other rights and 
remedies available to the Commission at law or in equity for breach of any of the 
provisions of this Contract. 
 
 (g) Security Deposit.  If a CharterContract Customer is in default in any 
payment due under this Contract and the default is not cured within thirty (30) days after 
the due date of the defaulted payment, the Commission may, at its option, require such 
CharterContract Customer, as a further obligation under this Contract, to deposit as 
security for the payment of such CharterContract Customer’s obligations hereunder a 
reasonable amount determined by the Commission.  The CharterContract Customer’s 
compliance with the Commission’s demand for a security deposit shall be a condition 
precedent to the curing of such CharterContract Customer’s default and the restoration 
of the Lake Water service to such CharterContract Customer, if abated or reduced by 
reason of such default.   The security deposit or any part thereof may, at the 
Commission’s discretion, be applied to any subsequent default by the CharterContract 
Customer in any payments due hereunder.  If so applied, the CharterContract Customer 
shall provide funds within three (3) business daysimmediately to restore the security 
deposit to the amount required by the Commission.  At the earliest of the end of the 
term of this Contract, a term of two (2) years after the curing of the most recent default 
by the CharterContract Customer, or at such time that the Commission may in its sole 
discretion determine, any security deposit shall be returned to the CharterContract 
Customer if the CharterContract Customer has performed all its obligations under this 
Contract.  
 
 (h) Rates to CharterContract Customers Same.  No change in the rates or 
charges under this Contract for any CharterContract Customer may be made unless the 
same change is made for all CharterContract Customers. 
 
 (i) Limitation on Payments; Net Indebtedness of CharterContract 
Customers.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Contract to the contrary, the 
payments required to be made by each CharterContract Customer under this Contract 
shall be required to be made solely from revenues to be derived by such 
CharterContract Customer from the operation of its Unit System.  This Contract shall not 
constitute an indebtedness of any CharterContract Customer within the meaning of any 
statutory or constitutional limitation. 
 
 (j) May Use Other Moneys.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsection (iI) of 
this Section, the CharterContract Customers are not prohibited by this Contract from 
using other available funds to make the payments required by this Contract. 
 
 (k) Sole Method for CharterContract Customers to Enforce Provisions 
Hereof Against Other Customers.  Each CharterContract Customer acknowledges 

 
                                                             168 of 264



22 

that its obligations to make payments hereunder are of benefit to each other 
CharterContract Customer and to Subsequent Customers as such other Customers’ 
obligations are of benefit to the CharterContract Customer.  Accordingly, each 
ContractCharter Customer agrees that, in addition to the Commission, Bondholders, a 
Trustee or other parties by law entitled to enforce the provisions of this Contract, any 
three (3) or more Contract Subsequent Customers acting together may enforce the 
provisions of this Section 6, but only if the Commission has not acted to enforce such 
provisions within ninety (90) days of failure to make a payment hereunder.  Any rights 
any Contract Customer has under this Contract or other contracts with the Commission 
shall be limited in enforcement as set forth herein. 
 
 (l) Beginning of Obligation to Pay.  The obligation to make any and all 
payments under this Contract shall begin the month immediately following the issuance 
ofafter any Bonds or the obtaining of Lake Water from the Commission, whichever is 
later are issued. 
 
 (m) Provision in Lieu of Water Allocation.  At any time when no Water 
Allocation is in effect for a Customer and reference to a Water Allocation is necessary to 
give meaning to a term of this Contract, the Water Allocation for such Customer shall be 
deemed to be as follows: 
 
 (i) prior to May 1, 1988, the MGD value set out for such Customer in Section 24 
hereof, if applicable, or in the applicable Subsequent Contract for a Subsequent 
Customer and 
 
 (ii) on or after May 1, 1988, such Customer’s Full Water Requirements for the 
then most recently completed calendar year divided by 365. 
 
 Section 7.  Procedural and Other Limitations; Further Covenants of the 
Commission.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Contract, the 
CharterContract Customers shall have the rights enumerated within this section and the 
Commission in its activities shall be obligated in the manner provided in this section. 
 
 (a) Procedural Rule.  No motion, resolution or ordinance concerning the 
subjects enumerated below shall be adopted by the Commission except by at least a 
majority affirmative vote of all of the Commissioners which majority must contain the 
votes of at least one-third (1/3) of the Commissioners appointed by the County Board 
Chairman and forty percent (40%) of the Commissioners appointed by the Mayors as 
provided in the Act:.  (1) Approval of individual contracts or a series of contracts related 
to a single Project in an amount in excess of $100,000;.  (2) Setting of rates for the sale 
of Lake Water to CharterContract Customers;.  (3) Borrowing funds;.  (4) Exercise of 
eminent domain powers;.  (5) Employment of the General Manager and Financial 
Administrator, and managerial and professional personnel either as employees or 
consultants;. or  (6) Amendment of the Chicago Water Supply Contract or (7) entering 
into any agreement to provide Lake Michigan Water to a Subsequent Customer. 
 

 
                                                             169 of 264



23 

 (b) Lake Water Only.  Without the prior approval of the corporate authorities of 
any CharterContract Customer affected, the Commission shall not deliver any water to a 
CharterContract Customer other than Lake Water.  Costs for Lake Water charged by 
the Commission shall only include Aggregate Costs relating to the purchase and 
delivery of Lake Water. 
 
 (c) Intentionally Omitted.Taxes.  To the fullest extent it may lawfully do so, the 
Commission covenants to do as follows.  It shall annually appropriate and impose its 
corporate sales taxes, or any taxes permitted which are a substitution for sales taxes, in 
the maximum amounts authorized by law.  In the event that any CharterContract 
Customer (iI) is not supplied by the Commission an amount of water equal to its Water 
Allocation times 365 times the Underconsumption Ratio for a given year but 
nevertheless pays a share of Underconsumption Costs for such year, (ii) is entitled to a 
Rebate as hereinafter defined and provided for or (iii) pays Operation and Maintenance 
Costs or Fixed Costs in the case of abandonment of the Waterworks System, the 
Commission shall apply such sums of money as it receives from the proceeds of such 
taxes (x) to repay to CharterContract Customers the amount paid by each, respectively, 
for Underconsumption Costs as  set forth in clause (iI), (y) to pay the Rebate as set forth 
in clause (ii) and (z) to repay to CharterContract Customers the amount paid by each, 
respectively,  for Operation and Maintenance Costs and Fixed Costs as set forth in 
clause (iii).  If the Commission cannot pay all of said amounts, it shall make payment 
thereon pro rata. 
 
 (d) Covenants to Be Set Out in Bond Ordinance.  Any Bond Resolution 
passed by the Commission shall contain language to the following effect: 
 
 Any holder or registered owner of a bond or any of its coupons, in any civil 

action, mandamus, or other proceeding, may enforce and compel performance of 
all duties required by law to be performed by the Commission or by any 
customers of the Commission, including the making of rates and charges, the 
collecting of sufficient revenue and the application thereof, as provided by 
applicable law, and including, expressly, all of the terms and provisions of 
Sections 6, 7 and 16 of the Contract [referring to this Contract]. 

 
 The parties or persons which make loans of funds to the Commission [by this 

Bond Resolution] have received the pledge of the State of Illinois that it will not 
impair or limit the power or ability of the Commission or a unit of local 
government fully to carry out the terms of any contract for the supply of water 
entered into by the Commission and a unit of local government for the term of 
such contract.  For purposes of such impairment or limitation, the contracts for 
the supply of water executed by units of local government and the Commission 
contain terms and conditions intended by the parties thereto and by the 
Bondholders to be absolute conditions thereof. 

 
 (e) Absolute Conditions.  For purposes of the pledge and agreement of the 
State of Illinois that it will not impair or limit the power or ability of the Commission or the 

 
                                                             170 of 264



24 

CharterContract Customers fully to carry out the terms and conditions hereof, all terms 
and conditions contained herein are intended to be absolute conditions hereof and are 
agreed to by the parties.  It is hereby intended that no change in the Act or other law or 
regulation subsequent to the date hereof shall affect any of the terms or provisions of 
this Contract, and neither the CharterContract Customers nor the Commission, without 
the unanimous consent of all of them, shall take any actions under a change in the Act 
or other law or regulation contrary to the terms and conditions herein. 
 
 (f) Emergency Supply.  A CharterContract Customer may contract for a 
temporary supply of water in case of an emergency from any other unit of local 
government or any entity. 
 
 (g) Governance.  For the term of this Contract, the number of Commissioners 
appointed by the Mayors as provided in the Act shall be not less than one-half (1/2) the 
total number of Commissioners (excluding, expressly, for purposes of said count, the 
Chairman). 
 
 (h) Retail Sales. The Commission shall not engage in the retail sale or 
distribution of water to residents or customers of any CharterContract Customer. 
 
 (i) Evidence of Customer Action. Wherever in this Contract the consent or 
authorization of a CharterContract Customer or a group of CharterContract Customers 
are required, the consent may only be evidenced by a resolution or motion passed by 
the corporate authorities of the CharterContract Customer. 
 
 (j) Limitation on Funds.  No funds received by the Commission from Operation 
and Maintenance Costs or Fixed Costs payable from Charter Contract Customers may 
be expended for the planning, construction, operations or maintenance of a waterworks 
system other than the Waterworks System, or the extension thereof, specified within 
this Contract. 
 
 (k) General Obligation Bonds.  The Commission shall not issue any Bonds until 
or unless they shall have issued general obligation bonds for the Waterworks System in 
an amount of at least $100,000,000.  Such general obligation bonds and Bonds may be 
issued simultaneously. 
 
 (kl) Certain Budget, Rate Limitation, Notice and Hearing Provisions.   Not 
less than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of each Fiscal Year, the Commission 
shall prepare and send to the CharterContract Customers a tentative budget.  Each 
such budget shall include, among such other items as the Commission may choose, an 
estimate of Fixed Costs to be payable by each CharterContract Customer in a stated 
aggregate dollar amount per month for each and an estimate of Operations and 
Maintenance Costs in a stated price per 1,000 gallons.  The Commission will hold a 
hearing on such budget, at which the CharterContract Customers may be heard, and 
shall give the CharterContract Customers not less than twenty-one (21) days notice of 
such hearing.  Operations and Maintenance Costs payable in each Fiscal Year shall be 

 
                                                             171 of 264



25 

determined and assessed by the Commission on a price per 1,000 gallons basis; such 
price may not exceed the estimate as set forth in the tentative budget unless the 
Commission shall hold a hearing on such higher price, at which the CharterContract 
Customers may be heard, and shall give the CharterContract Customers not less than 
twenty-one (21) days’ notice of such hearing. 
 
 (lm) Use of Sales Taxes to Rebate Charges In Limited Circumstances. To 
the fullest extent it may lawfully do so, the Commission agrees to rebate solely from the 
corporate sales taxes of the Commission, or any taxes permitted which are a 
substitution for sales taxes, within a reasonable time, payments of Aggregate Costs 
made by Charter Customers under this Contract upon the conditions as follows:   
 
 (i) This provision applies only upon initial construction of the Waterworks System. 
 
 (ii) The “60% Completion Date” is defined as the date during initial construction 
upon which the Waterworks System is serving or able to serve the Full Water 
Requirements of Charter Customers the sum of whose Water Allocations equals or 
exceeds sixty percent (60%) of the sum of the Water Allocations of all Charter 
Customers. 
 
 (iii) This provision applies only to those Charter Customers (the “Rebate 
Recipients”) which are not being served or able to be served with any Lake Water by 
reason of the Waterworks System not having been sufficiently completed one year after 
the 60% Completion Date. 
 
 (iv) The Commission shall rebate from such sales taxes, or any taxes permitted 
which are a substitution for sales taxes, to each Rebate Recipient the amount paid (the 
“Rebate”) by such Rebate Recipient to the Commission pursuant to this Contract during 
the period beginning one year after the 60% Completion Date to the date upon which 
the Waterworks System can deliver Lake Water to such Rebate Recipient. 
 
 (v) The Commission agrees, to the fullest extent it may lawfully do so, annually to 
appropriate such amount of such sales taxes, or any taxes permitted which are a 
substitution for sales taxes, as may be necessary to meet its obligation to pay the 
Rebates to the Rebate Recipients; provided, the Commission shall not be required to 
pay any Rebates until it has had sufficient time to take such budget and appropriations 
measures as are necessary under law. 
 
 (vi) The Rebate Recipients are not relieved of any obligation under this Contract 
by the terms of this subsection but become entitled to payment of Rebates from the 
taxes as are herein described.  The Charter Customers acknowledge that such funds 
are limited in amount.  The Rebate Recipients shall have no recourse against any 
revenues of the Waterworks System.  No interest shall be paid on any Rebate amount. 
 
 Section 8.  Special Conditions and Covenants. 
 

 
                                                             172 of 264



26 

(a) Commission to Build Waterworks System and Supply Lake Water.  
The Commission shall proceed promptly with the construction of the Waterworks 
System necessary to the performance of its obligations hereunder.  The Commission 
will make a diligent effort to have its facilities completed to the point of delivery so as to 
furnish Lake Water to the Charter Customers by January 31, 1992, but the Commission 
does not hereby guarantee delivery by such date.  The Commission shall not be liable 
to any Charter Customer for any damages occasioned by delay in the commencement 
of such service to any Charter Customer, and all payments provided for under this 
Contract remain due and payable in accordance with its terms notwithstanding any such 
delay.  After Lake Water is first tendered for delivery to a Charter Customer at any point 
of delivery, Tthe Commission shall, subject to the other terms and conditions of this 
Contract, continually hold itself ready, willing and able to supply Lake Water to anysuch 
CharterContract Customer.  The Commission shall also use its best efforts, consistent 
with its legal obligations to its other Customers and consistent with fair and equitable 
treatment of all of its Customers, to supply each CharterContract Customer with such 
additional amounts of Lake Water as may be from time to time allocated to such 
CharterContract Customer over and above its present Water Allocation, but the 
Commission does not hereby guarantee a supply of such additional amounts. 
 

(b)  Title to Lake Water.  Title to all Lake Water sSupplied hereunder shall 
remain in the Commission to the lesser of the points ten feet (10 ft.) downstream from 
the Commission’s metering stations or a common dividing wall between the 
Commission’s metering station and the Contract Customer’s pressure adjusting or rate 
control stations for each Unit System and thereupon shall pass to such CharterContract 
Customer. 
 

(c)  Commission to Use Best Efforts to Build and Finance Construction.  
The Commission shall use its best efforts to obtain the necessary permits and contracts 
for labor and material, and to borrow funds and issue its Bonds therefor in order to 
acquire and construct the Waterworks System. 
 

(d)(c) Payments Hereunder an Operation Expense of Unit Systems.  
Obtaining water is an essential item of expense of the Unit Systems.  To the fullest 
extent permitted by law or contract, all of the payments to be made by each 
CharterContract Customer hereunder shall constitute operating expenses of the Unit 
Systems as to any and all revenue bonds of such CharterContract Customer which are 
supported in whole or in part by a pledge of the revenues of its Unit System, with the 
effect that such CharterContract Customer’s obligation to make payments from its water 
revenues under this Contract has priority over its obligation to make payments of the 
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on any such bonds which are or will be 
supported in whole or in part by a pledge of such Unit System revenues.  Each 
CharterContract Customer shall make all budgetary, emergency and other provisions 
and appropriations necessary to provide for and authorize the prompt payment by such 
CharterContract Customer to the Commission of its shares of Aggregate Costs.  The 
obligations of each CharterContract Customer under this Contract are further payable 
from all other accounts of the Unit System of each CharterContract Customer, 

 
                                                             173 of 264



27 

respectively, for its shares, in which there are lawfully available funds.  In any revenue 
bond ordinances or resolutions hereafter enacted by a CharterContract Customer, the 
priority of lien established pursuant to this Contract shall be expressly provided and set 
forth in said bond ordinances or resolutions.  If legal action is brought against a 
CharterContract Customer challenging the priority of such CharterContract Customer’s 
obligations hereunder over the lien of any revenue bonds supported by a pledge of the 
revenues of its Unit System, the Commission shall, if requested to do so by such 
Charter Contract Customer, undertake the defense of the legal action at the 
Commission’s expense. 
 

(e)(d) Commission Insurance.  The Commission will carry insurance or 
maintain self-insurance with respect to the Waterworks System of the kinds and in the 
amounts which are customarily carried or maintained by parties operating similar 
properties, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, fire and other 
casualty and public liability insurance or protection.  All moneys received for loss under 
the insurance policies or on deposit as self-insurance reserve funds shall be used in 
making good the loss or damage in respect of which they were paid except to the extent 
no longer deemed useful to or profitable in the operation of the Waterworks System, 
whether by repairing the property damaged or replacing the property destroyed, and 
provision for making good such loss or damage or replacing the property destroyed 
shall be made within a reasonable time from date of loss.  The proceeds derived from 
any and all policies or available from self-insurance reserves for public liability losses 
shall be used in paying or reimbursing any accounts from which payments for 
settlements, judgments or expenses were advanced. 
 

(f)(e) Commission to Continue to Serve.  The Commission will use its best 
efforts to continue serving all the CharterContract Customers. 
 

(g)(f)  Commission Covenant to Operate Properly.  From time to time, the 
Commission will take steps reasonably necessary so that the Waterworks System may 
at all times be operated properly and advantageously. 
 

Section 9.  Additional CharterContract Customer Covenants.  Each 
CharterContract Customer further covenants as follows: 
 

(a) Maintain and Operate Unit System.  It will own and maintain its Unit 
System, and all improvements and extensions of its Unit System, in good repair and 
working order, will operate the same efficiently, and will punctually perform all duties 
with respect to its Unit System as may be required by the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Illinois and all other applicable laws and by all resolutions and ordinances of 
such CharterContract Customer. 
 

(b) Rate Covenant.  It will establish, maintain, revise as necessary and collect, 
rates and charges for customers of its Unit System as shall be required from time to 
time to produce revenues at least sufficient (iI) to pay all amounts due under this 
Contract and to pay all other costs of operation and maintenance of its Unit System, (ii) 

 
                                                             174 of 264



28 

to provide an adequate depreciation fund for its Unit System, (iii) to make all deposits in 
all funds and accounts required by the terms of resolutions or ordinances authorizing 
bonds payable from revenues of its Unit System and (iv) to pay the principal of and 
interest on all bonds of such CharterContract Customer payable from the revenues of its 
Unit System.  The Commission may not sue to enforce the provisions of this Section as 
they relate to clauses (ii) through (iv) unless it can show that the ability of the 
CharterContract Customer to make the payments set forth in clause (iI) is substantially 
impaired by the inadequacy of said rates and charges.  The rates and charges for 
customers of a Unit System shall not be required, however, to be sufficient to produce 
amounts required to make payments under this contract so long as available amounts 
sufficient for making such payments for the next six (6) months or the remainder of such 
CharterContract Customer’s fiscal year, whichever is longer, shall have been set aside 
in cash or investments in a separate account in its Unit System Fund designated for the 
purpose of making payments under this Contract, 
 

(c) Segregate Revenues.  It shall provide for the segregation of all revenues of 
its Unit System in such Unit System Fund and provide for the application of the 
revenues for the purpose of subsection (b) of this Section.  Moneys of a Unit System of 
a CharterContract Customer which exceed the obligations of such CharterContract 
Customer hereunder may be used for any lawful corporate purposes. 
 
 (d) Future Subordination of Revenue Bond Lien.  Any resolution or ordinance 
of the CharterContract Customer which authorizes the issuance after the date of this 
Contract of any obligation of the CharterContract Customer to be paid from revenues of 
its Unit System will expressly provide that revenues of its Unit System may be used to 
pay principal of and premium, if any, and interest of those obligations only to the extent 
that those revenues exceed the amounts required to pay the operation and 
maintenance expenses of its Unit System including, expressly, all amounts payable 
from time to time under this Ccontract. 
 
 (e) General Covenant to Operate Properly.  From time to time, it will take steps 
reasonably necessary so that its Unit System may at all times be operated in 
accordance with industry standardsproperly and advantageously. 
 
 (f) Accounting and Audit.  It will make and keep proper books and accounts 
(separate and apart from all other records and accounts of such CharterContract 
Customer) in which complete entries shall be made of all transactions relating to its Unit 
System, and, within two hundred ten (210) days following the close of each fiscal year 
of such CharterContract Customer, it will cause the books and accounts of its Unit 
System to be audited annually by independent certified public accountants, showing the 
receipts and disbursements on account of its Unit System. 
 
 (g) Maintain Ownership of Unit System and Properties.  It will continue to own 
and possess its Unit System and will, within the exercise of reasonable business 
judgment and in a manner so as not to cause a default hereunder, dispose of property 
which is part of its Unit System only to the extent that the Commission consents in 

 
                                                             175 of 264



29 

writing, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheldsuch property is no longer 
useful or profitable in the operations of its Unit System.  This subsection (g) does not 
prohibit a Contract Customer from selling specific equipment that it considers surplus 
and that is no longer needed or utilized to operate its Unit System. 
 
 (h) Insurance.  It will carry insurance or maintain self-insurance with respect to 
its Unit System of the kinds and in the amounts which are customarily carried or 
maintained by parties operating similar properties, including, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, fire and other casualty and public liability insurance or 
protection.  All moneys received for loss under the insurance policies or on deposit as 
self-insurance reserves shall be used in making good the loss or damage in respect of 
which they were paid except to the extent that the property damaged or lost would be 
permitted to be disposed of under subsection (g) of this Section, whether by repairing 
the property damaged or replacing the property destroyed, and provisions for making 
good such loss or damage or replacing the property destroyed shall be made within a 
reasonable time from date of loss.  The proceeds derived from any and all policies or 
available from self-insurance reserves for public liability losses shall be used in paying 
or reimbursing any accounts from which payments for settlements, judgments or 
expenses were advanced. 
 
 (i) Budget and Appropriations.  It will adopt a budget or appropriations 
ordinance for each fiscal year of such CharterContract Customer, or otherwise in 
accordance with applicable state laws, provide lawful authority for payment of all sums 
anticipated to be due to the Commission during such fiscal year. 
 
 (j) Continue to Serve.  It will use its best efforts to continue serving all 
customers of its Unit System within its territorial limits which are served as of the date of 
this Contract. 
 
 (k) Maintain Water Allocation.  It will use its best efforts to obtain or retain, from 
time to time, a Water Allocation at least equal to but not in excess of two (2) times its 
Full Water Requirements from time to time. 
 
 (l) Combining or Separating Unit System Accounts.  It shall not combine its 
existing separate waterworks system with its separate sewerage system or separate its 
existing combined waterworks and sewerage system into separate systems before May 
1, 1990.  Thereafter, it may combine its waterworks system with its sewerage system or 
separate its combined waterworks system and sewerage system into separate systems 
only on the conditions as follows: (iI) the CharterContract Customer shall provide the 
Commission with written evidence that the proposed combination or separation will not 
materially and adversely affect the CharterContract Customer’s ability to comply with all 
of the terms, conditions and covenants of this Contract; and (ii) if the Commission shall 
then determine the proposed combination or separation will not materially and adversely 
affect the CharterContract Customer’s ability to comply with all of the terms conditions 
and covenants of this Contract, then and only then the Commission shall approve such 
combination or separation and advise such CharterContract Customer in writing. 

 
                                                             176 of 264



30 

 
 (m) Customer Covenants as to Rate of Withdrawal.  Each CharterContract 
Customer will take Lake Water at the most uniform and continuous rate of withdrawal 
practicable. 
 

Section 10.  Election as to Water Purchase Requirements.  When and if the 
Commission pays in full all of its Bonds, aAny CharterContract Customer electing to 
takemay elect to thereafter purchase from time to time less than its Full Water 
Requirements, as determined by from the Commission, shall pay its pro rata share of 
the Operations and Maintenance Costs and the Fixed Costs for the period of time 
during which its Full Water Requirements are not taken.  In the event such 
CharterContract Customer elects to purchase less than its Full Water Requirements in 
any year pursuant to this Section, it shall pay a share of Underconsumption Costs, if 
any, incurred for such year and such CharterContract Customer’s share of such 
Underconsumption Costs shall be deemed to be Operation and Maintenance Costs 
under this Contract.  The prior sentence shall not be applicable where the 
Underconsumption is caused by an emergency situation as approved in writing by the 
highest executive of the Commission and lasts for less than thirty (30) days, Such 
CharterContract Customer’s share of Operation and Maintenance Costs and Fixed 
Underconsumption Costs, if any, for the year shall be that proportion of those costs 
which the Operation and Maintenance Costs and Fixed CostsUnderconsumption of 
such CharterContract Customer for that year was to the sum of the Operation and 
Maintenance Costs and Fixed CostsUnderconsumption of all Customers for such year. 
 
Section 11.  Resale Limitations. Charter Customers shall not resell more than five 
percent of the water purchased from the Commission except: 
   (i)  Tto retail water customers under published rates and charges, 
without any  special contract; or 
(ii) A any contract approved in writing by the Commission, which approval shall be in 
the sole discretion of the Commission. 

 
 

Abandonment.  Upon obtaining the consent of not less than (I) two-thirds of all 
Charter Customers, (ii) a majority of those Charter Customers which would receive less 
than one-half of their Full Water Requirements due to the termination hereinafter 
referred to and (iii) a majority of those Charter Customers which would receive no Lake 
Water due to such termination, the Commission may elect to terminate acquisition and 
construction of all or any part of its Waterworks System prior to its substantial 
completion.  All of the following must occur before such termination.   

 
 (a) The Commission shall have found that the cost of substantial 

completion of the Waterworks System would so greatly exceed original estimates of that 
cost that it would not be economically feasible for the Contract Customers together to 
pay the Fixed Costs which would be payable after substantial completion. 

 

 
                                                             177 of 264



31 

 (b) The Commission and each Charter Customer shall have been 
provided with a certificate from an independent consulting engineer and a certificate 
from an independent financial consultant to the effect that they each concur with the 
finding of the commission described in subsection (a) of this Section. 

 
 (c) The Charter Customers and any Trustee appointed under a Bond 

Resolution of the Commission shall have been given ninety (90) days’ notice of the 
proposed termination of acquisition and construction of all or any part of the Waterworks 
System. 

 
 (d) The Commission shall have caused to be prepared a cooperative 

study by an attorney or firm of attorneys having nationally recognized expertise in 
municipal finance, an independent consulting engineer, and an independent financial 
consultant as to the proper, advantageous and equitable operation and disposition of 
the assets of the Waterworks System. 

 
 If the Commission terminates acquisition and construction of all or any 

part of the Waterworks System pursuant to this Section, the obligations of each Charter 
Customer to make the payments required for Aggregate Costs under Section 6 of this 
Contract or required under subsection 6(d) of this Contract shall continue. 
 

Section 12.  Subsequent and Other Contracts. 
 
 (a) No Contract with Rate More Favorable.  The Commission shall not supply 
Lake Water except pursuant to a written contract.  No Subsequent Ccontract entered 
into after the Effective Date shall provide rates, charges or terms lower or more 
favorable to the Subsequent Customer than those provided in this Contract for Charter 
Contract Customers. 
 
 (b) Occasional Service Only Except to Contract Customers.  Other than the 
providing of service to CharterContract Customers, Tthe Commission shall not contract 
for a supply of Lake Water to any person except to a Subsequent Customer or for 
occasional water use., Occasional water use isbeing  the use of Lake Water for not 
more than thirty (30) days during any two-year period. 
 
 (c) Subsequent Contract Terms.  After the Effective Date, Tthe Commission 
shall not enter into a Subsequent Ccontract with any of the units of local government or 
private entities that areis not a Contract Customernamed in Section 24 hereof, unless 
such Subsequent Ccontract provides for an equitable and lawful differential rate or 
charge in the formula for Aggregate Costs which may take into account any pertinent 
factor and shall take into account each of the factors as follows: (iI) the utility rate which 
would be chargeable by a regulated utility for the proposed service, (ii) replacement cost 
of the Waterworks System less depreciation and net outstanding Bonds, and (iii) the 
amount and time of payment of Fixed Costs which would have been payable by the 
proposed Customer had such Customer become a CharterContract Customer, plus 

 
                                                             178 of 264



32 

interest on such costs from the time when they would have been paid, compounded 
semiannually, at not less than ten percent (10%) per annum.. 
 
 The differential may be satisfied by a lump sum payment or by surcharge for any 
term of years not longer than the then remaining term of this Contract.  The differential 
shall inure to the benefit of the previous Contract Customers as their interests may 
appear (that is, those that have borne greater costs shall benefit proportionally greater) 
in such reasonable manner as the Commission may determine. 
 
 The differential and the allocation of the benefit so derived among prior Contract 
Customers shall be made by the Commission only after it has received and reviewed 
the recommendations of an independent consulting engineer, independent financial 
consultant and competent attorney, working together, who shall be selected by the 
Commission from a list of three (3) individuals or firms for each position by the 
CharterContract Customers. 
 
 For the purpose of making such list of three (3) individuals or firms, the 
Commission shall call a meeting of only the CharterContract Customers that are units of 
local government by giving notice to the CharterContract Customers as provided in this 
Contract not less than thirty (30) days prior to a proposed meeting date.  The 
Ccommission shall convene the meeting, but thereupon the CharterContract Customers 
that are units of local government shall elect a presiding officer from among their 
number.  Such meeting may be adjourned from time to time without notice.  The 
majority of CharterContract Customers that are units of local government present and 
voting at said meeting shall be empowered to select such individuals or firms.  The 
Ccommission shall keep the minutes of the meeting. 
 
 If the CharterContract Customers that are units of local government do not act at 
said meeting or within twenty-one (21) days thereof, the Commission shall proceed to 
select such persons or firms itself. 
 
 If the Commission shall impose the recommended differential, then the 
differential as imposed shall not be subject to any dispute or claim by any Contract 
Customer.  This provision shall not require the Commission to follow such 
recommendations. 
 
 This entire subsection is qualified by the Commission’s legal duty to serve within 
its territorial limits and to charge for such service fair and equitable rates which are not 
prohibitive.  It is the intent of the Commission in entering into this provision of the 
Contract to recognize that the CharterContract Customers that are units of local 
government, solely, enable the Commission to proceed to construct the Waterworks 
System, that the units of local government hereinafter referred to need to be induced to 
become CharterContract Customers and that this provision is an express inducement, 
that by its essential design in accordance with good engineering practice, the 
Waterworks System must be built in many ways sufficient upon initial completion to 

 
                                                             179 of 264



33 

serve all of said units, but that only those units of local government who become 
CharterContract Customers will pay for such from the start of construction. 
 

Section 13.  Force Majeure.  In case by reason of force majeure event any party 
hereto shall be rendered unable wholly or in part to carry out its obligation under this 
Contract, then if such party shall give notice and full particulars of such force majeure 
event in writing to the other parties within seven (7) daysa reasonable time after the 
occurrence of the event or cause relied on, the obligation of the party giving such notice, 
so far as it is affected by such force majeure event shall be suspended during the 
continuance of the inability then claimed, but for no longer period, and any such party 
shall endeavor to remove or overcome such inability with all reasonable dispatch.  The 
term “force majeure” as employed herein shall mean acts of God, strikes, lockouts or 
other industrial disturbances, acts of public enemy, orders of any kind of the 
Government of the United States, of the State of Illinois, or of any civil or military 
authority, insurrection, riots, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, 
hurricanes, storms, floods, washouts, droughts, arrests, restraints of government and 
people, civil disturbances, explosions, breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines, 
canals, or tunnels, partial or entire failure of water supply, and inability on the part of the 
Commission to deliver Lake Water hereunder, or of  any CharterContract Customer to 
receive Lake Water hereunder, on account of any other causes not reasonably within 
the control of the party claiming such inability. The settlement of strikes and lockouts 
shall be entirely within the discretion of the party having the difficulty and that the above 
requirement that any “Fforce Mmajeure” events shall be remedied with all reasonable 
dispatch shall not require the settlement of strikes and lockouts by acceding to the 
demands of the opposing party or parties when such settlements is unfavorable to it in 
the judgment of the party having the difficulty.  No force majeure event which renders 
any of the parties unable to perform under this Contract shall relieve a CharterContract 
Customer of its obligation to make payments to the Commission as required under 
Section 6. 
 

Section 14.  Commission Defaults.  Failure by the Commission to deliver Lake 
Water to any CharterContract Customer as required by this Contract or failure of the 
Commission to perform any other obligation under this Contract and the continuation of 
that failure to perform for thirty (30) days after written notice from such CharterContract 
Customer to the Commission of such failure shall be a default of the Commission under 
this Contract, unless any such failure is excused pursuant to Section 13 of this Contract.  
If the Commission defaults under this Contract, the CharterContract Customer or 
CharterContract Customers affected may bring any action against the Commission, 
including an action for money damage or in equity and actions for mandamus and 
specific performance of the Commission’s obligations to the extent allowed by law.  
Election of any remedy shall not be a waiver of any other remedy. 
 

Section 15.  CharterContract Customer’s Obligation Unconditional.  The 
CharterContract Customers shall have no right to terminate, cancel or rescind this 
Contract, no right to withhold from the Commission or the Trustee who is an assignee of 
the Commission pursuant to Section 17 of this Contract payments due or to become 

 
                                                             180 of 264



34 

due under this Contract, no right to recover from the Commission or such Trustee 
amounts previously paid under this Contract unless paid in error or contrary to the 
provisions of this Contract or law, no right of reduction or set-off against the amounts 
due or to become due under this Contract, to the Commission or such Trustee, and no 
lien on any amounts in any fund established by the Commission or such Trustee for any 
reason or on account of the existence or occurrence of any event, condition or 
contingency, whether foreseen or unforeseen or foreseeable or unforeseeable by the 
CharterContract Customers or the Commission or any other person; including by way of 
illustration, and not limitation, by reason of the fact that the Waterworks System in whole 
or in part is not completed, operable or operating; the output of the Waterworks System 
in whole or in part is suspended, interrupted, interfered with, reduced or curtailed; any 
party to the Chicago Water Supply Contract, including the City of Chicago, does not 
perform in whole or in part thereunder; the Water Allocation of any Customer is modified 
or terminated or any Customer does not perform in whole or in part under this Contract 
or any other agreement or instrument; it being the intent hereof that the CharterContract 
Customers shall be absolutely and unconditionally obligated to make all payments 
hereunder excepting the single limitation set forth in the last sentence of Section 6(b).  
The Commission maywill issue its Bonds in specific reliance on the limitations set forth 
in this Section with respect to the rights of the CharterContract Customers. 
 

Section 16.  Modification of this Contract or of the Chicago Water Supply 
Contract.  Except for revisions and adjustments otherwise expressly provided for, 
neither this Contract nor the Chicago Water Supply Contract may be changed or 
modified unless the consent of the Commission and of three-fourths of the 
CharterContract Customers shall have been obtained.  Such modification may be 
requested by any party, in which event a joint meeting of representatives of all 
governing bodies shall be called by the Commission and held not more than sixty (60) 
days after such request is made and not less than thirty (30) days before the giving of 
notice of such meeting.  At the joint meeting, the requested changes or modifications 
shall be considered and discussed.  No such change or modification may materially 
impair or adversely affect the ability or obligation of any CharterContract Customer 
under the Contract to make payments to the Commission at the times, in the amounts, 
and with the priority required in order for the Commission timely to meet its obligations 
under this Contract, the Chicago Water Supply Contract, other water purchase or sale 
contracts of the Ccommission and the Bond Ordinances/Resolutions, including without 
limitation the making of all deposits in various funds and accounts created under the 
Bond Ordinances/Resolutions; or materially impair or adversely affect the ability of the 
holders of the Bonds or the Trustee, under the Contract or Bond 
Ordinances/Resolutions, to enforce the terms of the Contract.  No such change of 
modification which will affect the rights and interest of the holders of the Bonds shall be 
made without the written approval of an authorized representative of the holders of at 
least seventy percent (70%) of the outstanding Bonds and no such change or 
modification shall be effective which would cause a violation of any provisions of the 
Bbond Ordinances/Resolutions or any ordinance authorizing bonds of any 
CharterContract Customer. 
 

 
                                                             181 of 264



35 

Section 17.  Non-Assignability.  Except to the extent hereinafter provided, no 
party shall assign or transfer this Contract or any rights or interests herein without the 
written consent of three-fourths of the CharterContract Customers and the Commission.  
The right to receive all payments which are required to be made by the CharterContract 
Customers to the Commission in accordance with the provisions of this Contract may be 
assigned by the Commission to any Trustee as provided in the Bond 
Ordinances/Resolutions to secure the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds as those amounts come due, subject to the application of those 
payments as may be provided in the Bond Ordinances/Resolutions.  The 
CharterContract Customers will, upon notice of assignment to any such Trustee, make 
all payments directly to such Trustee.  The rights of the Commission to enforce the 
provisions of this Contract may be assigned to such Trustee and, in such event, the 
Trustee will have the right to enforce this Contract at law or in equity with or without the 
further consent or participation of the Commission.  The Commission may also retain 
the right to enforce this Contract. 
 

Section 18.  Cooperation in Construction of Commission Water Supply.  
The CharterContract Customers shall cooperate with the Commission in the 
construction and acquisition of the Waterworks System.  Each CharterContract 
Customer shall grant without charge to the Commission any reasonable required 
construction easements and any easements necessary for portions of the Waterworks 
System to be located on such CharterContract Customer’s property, provided the 
Commission agrees to restore the easement property in a reasonable manner after 
construction.  Each CharterContract Customer shall grant the Commission access to its 
property to the extent reasonably necessary to construct and maintain the Waterworks 
Systeminstall the points of delivery and the appurtenant devices. 
 

Section 19.  Mutual Cooperation in Issuance of Obligations.   Each 
CharterContract Customer shall cooperate with the Commission in the issuance of the 
Bonds, and the Commission shall cooperate with each CharterContract Customer in the 
issuance of the CharterContract Customer’s general obligation bonds or revenue bonds 
of its Unit System. In such connection, each CharterContract Customer and the 
Commission will comply with all reasonable requests of each other and will, upon 
request, do as follows: 
 

(i) Make available general and financial information about itself in accordance 
with GAAP; 

 
(ii) Consent to publication and distribution of its financial information;: 
 
(iii) Certify that general and financial information about it is accurate, does not 
contain and any untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a 
material fact necessary in order to make the statements in that information, in 
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;: 
 
(iv) Make available certified copies of official proceedings;: 

 
                                                             182 of 264



36 

 
(v) Provide reasonable certifications to be used in a transcript of closing 
documents; and 
 
(vi) Provide and pay for reasonably requested opinions of counsel as to the 
validity of its actions taken with respect to and the binding effect of this Contract, 
title to its Unit System or the Waterworks System, as applicable, pending or 
threatened litigation which could materially affect its performance hereunder, and 
other reasonably related opinions. 
 
Section 20. Regulatory Bodies.  The parties through this Contract seek to 

exercise and maintain all sovereign rights granted to them under and through the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Illinois.  This Contract shall be subject to all valid 
rules, regulations, and laws, applicable hereto passed or promulgated by the United 
States of America, the State of Illinois, or any governmental body or agency having 
lawful jurisdiction, or any authorized representative or agency or any of them; provided 
however, that this clause shall not be construed as waiving the right of either party to 
challenge the validity of such rule, regulation, or law on any basis, including the 
impairment of this Contract. 
 

Section 21.  Commission Cooperative Arrangements With Other Water 
Suppliers. Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Contract, the Commission is 
not prohibited by this Contract from entering into cooperative arrangements with other 
suppliers of Lake Water to provide Lake Water to each other to meet their water needs, 
provided that these arrangements do not interfere, except in emergencies, with the 
delivery of Lake Water to the CharterContract Customers. 
 

Section 22.  Notices and Evidence of Actions.  All notices or communications 
provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be delivered to the CharterContract 
Customers affected or the Commission either in person or by United States mail, via 
certifiedregistered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the 
principal office thereof. 
 
 Any action hereunder to be taken by the Commission or any CharterContract 
Customer may be evidenced by copy of official proceedings (including pertinent 
minutes, motions, resolutions, or ordinances) duly certified by the Clerk of such 
CharterContract Customer or the Commission. 
 

Section 23.  Severability.  Should any part, term, or provision of this Contract be 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, 
the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 24.  Effective Date and Term.  For purposes of this Section of the 
Contract, the following units of local government are included as potential Charter 
Customers and shall have the MGD value set forth for each in parentheses beside its 
name. 

 
                                                             183 of 264



37 

 
 

Unit of Local Government and MGD 
 
Village of Addison   (4,980) Village of Lombard  (4,634) 
Village of Bensenville  (2,682) City of Naperville  (9,624) 
Village of Bloomingdale  (2,411) Village of Oak Brook (4,219) 
Village of Carol Stream  (2,793) City of Oakbrook Terrace (0.663) 
Village of Clarendon Hills  (0.749) Village of Roselle  (2.072) 
City of Darien   (1.480) Village of Villa Park  (2.349) 
Village of Downers Grove  (6.479) City of West Chicago (2.896) 
The County of DuPage  (1.492) Village of Westmont  (1.818) 
City of Elmhurst   (6.021) City of Wheaton  (5.909) 
Village of Glendale Heights (2.211) Village of Willowbrook (1.287) 
Village of Glen Ellyn   (3.134) Village of Winfield  (0.856) 
Village of Hinsdale   (2.906) City of Wood Dale  (1.200) 
Village of Itasca   (0.700) Village of Woodridge (2.599) 
Village of Lisle   (2.652) 
 
The Commission shall authorize and execute this Contract and offer it to the aforesaid 
units.  The aforesaid units shall have until September 1, 1986 (the “Charter Date”), to 
authorize the execution of and execute a counterpart of this Contract as acceptance 
hereof and to file same with the Clerk of the Commission.  This Contract will become 
effective on the date (the “Effective Date”), which must be on or before February 24, 
2024the Charter Date, upon which said units having an MGD value as listed which have 
in totalsum to an MGD value of 55 or more shall have executed and filed counterparts 
hereof.  Said units may become Charter Customers by executing and filing counterparts 
hereof after the Effective Date but on or before the Charter Date.  If on or before the 
Charter Date an insufficient number of said units shall have executed counterparts 
hereof so as to make this Contract effective, then this Contract shall be null and void 
and of no effect as to the Commission and all units having so executed and filed.  If 
effective as hereinabove provided,   Tthis Contract may be executed in counterparts 
and shall be effective when all the parties have executed this Contract (the “Effective 
Date”).  This Contract shall continue in force and effect until February 24, 20242064.  
The CharterContract Customers and the Commission agree to begin negotiation of a 
succeeding Water Purchase and Sale Contract not later than five (5) years prior to the 
end of the term of this Contract. 
 

Section 25.  Governing Law; Superseder.  This Contract shall be construed 
exclusively under the applicable laws of the State of Illinois.  All other contracts between 
the Commission and the CharterContract Customers are hereby superseded and shall 
be null and void. 

 
Section 26.    Venue.  Any action brought to enforce the terms of this Contract 

shall be brought in the Eighteenth Judicial Circuit, DuPage County, Illinois. 
 

 
                                                             184 of 264



38 

Section 276.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which 
shall constitute but one and the same instrument.  Any such counterpart may be signed 
by one or more of the parties hereto so long as each of the parties hereto has signed 
one or more of such counterparts. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their respective 
corporate names to be subscribed hereto and their respective corporate seals to be 
hereto affixed and attested by their duly authorized officers, all on the date set opposite 
their respective corporate names. 
 
SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW 
 
       VILLAGE OF ADDISON, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    ANTHONY RUSSOTTO    
        President 
Date:          8/29/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      PANOREA LEKKAS     
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF BENSENVILLE, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    JOHN C. GEILS    
        President 
Date:          8/29/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ELVIRA  L. JOHNSON     
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF BLOOMINGDALE, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    SAMUEL J. TENUTO    
        President 

 
                                                             185 of 264



39 

Date:          8/29/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      MARIE E. TAYFEL 
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF CAROL STREAM, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    JANICE GERZEVSKE 
        President 
Date:          7/22/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      CLELA A. MONTGOMERY     
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF CLARENDON 
         HILLS, ILLINOIS 
 
       By    ALAN I. HURD    
        President 
Date:          8/4/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      MARY A. ARNOLD     
 Village Clerk 
 
       CITY OF DARIEN, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    ERWIN A. SIROVY   
        Mayor 
Date:          8/27/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 

 
                                                             186 of 264



40 

Attest: 
 
By      GERTRUDE M. COIT     
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
       VILLAGE OF DOWNERS 
         GROVE, ILLINOIS 
 
       By    BETTY M. CHEEVER    
        Mayor 
Date:          8/18/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      BARBARA WALDNER 
 Village Clerk 
 
       CITY OF ELMHURST, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    ROBERT J. QUINNI 
        Mayor 
Date:          8/18/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      DOROTHY L. SCHMIDTKE     
 Deputy City Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF GLENDALE 
         HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 
 
       By    JERI SULLIVAN    
        President 
Date:          8/28/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 

 
                                                             187 of 264



41 

 
By      PAT ZACNY     
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF GLEN ELLYN 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    MICHAEL R. FORMENTO  
        President 
Date:          8/25/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      WILMA D. LINDE     
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    RICHARD L. MILLER, JR.   
        President 
Date:          8/26/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ELLEN B. MOONEY 
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF ITASCA, ILLINOIS 
 
       By    SHIRLEY H. KETTER 
        President 
Date:          8/26/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      EDWINA SKORA     
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF LISLE, ILLINOIS 

 
                                                             188 of 264



42 

 
       By    GEORGE A. VARNEY    
        President 
Date:          8/11/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      MARJORIE M. CONNELLY     
 Village Clerk 
 
           JOSEPHINE A. HIRSMAN   
 Deputy Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF LOMBARD, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    RICHARD ARNOLD    
        President 
Date:          8/21/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      LORRAINE G. GERHARDT     
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF NAPERVILLE, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    MARGARET P. PRICE    
        Mayor 
Date:          8/5/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      SUZANNE L. HOLT 
 City Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF OAK BROOK, 
         ILLINOIS 
 

 
                                                             189 of 264



43 

       By    WENCE F. CERNE 
        President 
Date:          8/12/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      MARIANNE LAKOSIL     
 Village Clerk 
 
       CITY OF OAKBROOK 
         TERRACE, ILLINOIS 
 
       By    RICHARD F. SARALLO    
        Mayor 
Date:          8/27/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ROBERTA GRENINGER     
 City Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF ROSELLE, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    SANDRA J. BIRDSALL    
        President 
Date:          7/7/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      HARRIET M. WARD     
 Village Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF VILLA PARK, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    PAUL W. HYDE    
        President Pro Tem 
 Date:          8/26/86          
 

 
                                                             190 of 264



44 

[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      M. CAROL REEDY 
 Village Clerk 
 
 
       VILLAGE OF WESTMONT, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    FRANK H. BELLERIVE 
        Mayor 
Date:          8/28/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      ELMER FRIES     
 Village Clerk 
 
 
       CITY OF WHEATON, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    ROBERT J. MARTIN    
        Mayor 
Date:          8/25/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      LILLIAN JOHNSON     
 City Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    EUGENE NOOSE   
        President 
Date:          8/25/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 

 
                                                             191 of 264



45 

Attest: 
 
By      DARLENE WILSON     
 Deputy Village Clerk 
 
 
 
 
       CITY OF WOOD DALE, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    JERRY C. GREER    
        Mayor 
Date:          8/25/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      GERALDINE JACOBS 
 City Clerk 
 
       VILLAGE OF WOODRIDGE, 
         ILLINOIS 
 
       By    WILLIAM F. MURPHY, JR. 
        Mayor 
Date:          8/28/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 
By      DOROTHY M. STAHL     
 Village Clerk 
 
       DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
 
       By    GEORGE CONGREVE    
            Chairman 
Date:          8/29/86          
 
[SEAL] 
 
Attest: 
 

 
                                                             192 of 264



46 

By      PETER W. ERNST     
  Clerk 
 

 
                                                             193 of 264



 

 

  1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Paul May, General Manager, DuPage Water Commission 
 

From: DWC Customer Contract Review Steering Committee: 
Darrell Blenniss, Naperville 
Dan Dinges, Bartlett  
Kathleen Gargano, Hinsdale 
John Hubsky, Glen Ellyn 
Nick Kottmeyer, DuPage County 
Peter Scalera, Bloomingdale 
Al Stonitsch, Woodridge 
Rick Valent, Oak Brook 
 

Re: DuPage Water Commission Customer Contract Review 

Date August 28, 2023 

 

Purpose and Action Requested 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an update on the Steering Committee’s (“the 

Committee”) review of the DuPage Water Commission’s (“DWC”) proposed Customer Water 

Contract (“the Contract”) extension.  

Background/Discussion 

In preparation for the February 2024 customer contract expiration, DWC solicited the formation 

of an advisory steering committee comprised of contract customers to provide input and advice 

on a new Contract extension.  The Committee was established in June 2019, and was comprised 

of a cross-section of DWC customers. The customers on the Committee were: Bartlett, 

Bloomingdale, DuPage County, Glen Ellyn, Hinsdale, Naperville, Oak Brook, and Woodridge. The 

Committee met multiple times in 2019 as it undertook a comprehensive review of the Contract.  

The Committee also held an informational session for all Customers in January 2020.  The 

Committee’s work was subsequently put on hold due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Following 

DWC’s hiring of new General Manager (Paul May), the Committee was asked to reconvene in 

October 2022 to continue its advisory work on a new Contract extension.  

The Committee met several times with DWC leadership to provide input on potential 

amendments, and to also review and respond to DWC’s proposed changes.   In addition, the 

Committee solicited an independent legal review of the proposed Contract from both the City 

of Naperville’s legal counsel and the DuPage County State’s Attorney’s Office.  Legal counsel 

from both agencies conducted their own reviews of the amended document, and worked 

 
                                                             194 of 264



 

 

  2 

 

directly with DWC’s legal counsel to review and discuss various updates to the proposed final 

draft. 

In addition to conducting a review of the Contract, the Steering Committee also initiated a 

review of the DWC’s by-laws and provided extensive input and comments for DWC leadership’s 

further review and consideration.  

Recommendation 

The Committee, on behalf of the DWC Customers, has completed its good faith, independent 

review of the DWC’s proposed new water supply contract, and has had an opportunity to 

provide DWC leadership meaningful input throughout the process.  The Committee, therefore, 

supports and endorses the distribution of this final draft to DWC customers for their review and 

would recommend its approval.  

 

 
                                                             195 of 264



 

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 5 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-51-23 
Account:  01-60-629000, 01-60-685100 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           DC    RCB   CAP   PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/14/2023 

Description: A Resolution Suspending Purchasing Procedures and Approving the Renewal 
of the Unitrends Retention Services and the Purchase and Installation of a 
New Unitrends Appliance. 

Agenda Section:   Administration Committee 

Originating Department:      Information Technology  
 

The Commission utilizes ITSavvy, LLC. for Consulting and Network Support Services related to the 
Commission’s Servers, Firewalls, Switches, Storage Area Network (SAN), Back-up Systems, Cloud Storage, 
Wireless Network, and various other Information Technology (IT) projects that may arise.  

In 2018, ITSavvy connected the Commission with one of their partners that specializes in network data 
retention and restoration, Unitrends.  The Commission has since utilized Unitrends to back up the 
Enterprise Network and ancillary systems utilizing specialized hardware and cloud services that allow for 
30 days of onsite and one year of cloud data retention.  This capability has been critical for creating a 
resilient Enterprise Network environment and has proven useful time and time again while maintaining 
the Commission's systems. 

The Commission is coming to the end of its current 3-year agreement with Unitrends retention services as 
well as reaching the end-of-life timeframe with the current Unitrends appliance.  The Commission has been 
pleased with the service provided by Unitrends since 2018, and would like to maintain consistency with 
the established services.  Therefore, staff is recommending the renewal of a 3-year agreement maintaining 
the local and cloud retention services as well as the purchase of a new Unitrends appliance for onsite 
storage.  The new hardware will replace the existing unit that has reached its end-of-life as well as increase 
the storage capacity from 16 TB to 24 TB to allow for the anticipated growth of the Enterprise Network.  
The renewal of the 3-year agreement and purchase of the new Unitrends appliance with the installation 
services is $83,137.17, with the cost breakdown indicated below: 

Unitrends 3-Year Data Retention Agreement: $54,040.48 

Unitrends 9024S Appliance & Installation Services: $29,096.69 

Total: $83,137.17 

Recommended Motion:  To approve Resolution No. R-51-23. 

 
                                                             196 of 264



| 2 of 5 | 

 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-51-23 

A RESOLUTION SUSPENDING THE PURCHASING PROCEDURES AND APPROVING 
THE RENEWAL OF THE UNITRENDS RETENTION SERVICES AND THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION  

OF A NEW UNITRENDS APPLIANCE FROM IT SAVVY, LLC.  

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-1 

et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission received a price quotation from IT Savvy LLC, dated 

August 9, 2023, in the amount of $83,137.17 for renewal of a 3-year retention service agreement and the 

purchase of a new Unitrends appliance as requested by Commission staff; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission believes it is in the best 

interest of the Commission to suspend purchasing procedures and accept the price quotation offered by 

IT Savvy LLC to renew the 3-year retention service agreement and purchase a new Unitrends appliance as 

requested by Commission staff;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein and made a part hereof as findings 

of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission as if fully set forth. 

SECTION TWO:  The price quotation of IT Savvy LLC, dated as of August 9, 2023, for renewal of a 3-

year retention service agreement and the purchase of a new Unitrends appliance as requested by 

Commission staff shall be and hereby is approved and accepted by the Board of Commissioners of the 

 
                                                             197 of 264



| 3 of 5 | 

 

DuPage Water Commission in the amount of $83,137.17 necessary to effect the renewal of the agreement 

and the purchase of said hardware is hereby approved without further act. 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 

 

 

 
                                                             198 of 264



| 4 of 5 | 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ADOPTED THIS ___ DAY OF _____________________, 2023. 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
James Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2023/R-51-23.docx 
 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

Healy, J.       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 
                                                             199 of 264



| 5 of 5 | 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

DELETE PAGE IF NO ATTACHMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
                                                             200 of 264



Bill To:
ACCT #: 550938
DuPage Water Commission
Accounts Payable
600 East Butterfield Road
Elmhurst, IL 60126
United States
630-516-1918

Ship To:
DuPage Water Commission
Denis Cuvalo 
600 E Butterfield Rd
Elmhurst, IL 60126-4642
United States
630-834-0100

Client Contact:
Denis Cuvalo
(P) 630-834-0100
cuvalo@dpwc.org

Client Executive:
Jim Mundall
(P) 630.396.6311
(F) 630.396.6322
jmundall@ITsavvy.com

ITsavvy LLC
313 South Rohlwing Road
Addison, IL 60101
www.ITsavvy.com 

Quote Details

Quote #: 3747318

Date: 08/09/2023

Payment Method: Net 30 Days

Client PO#: 

Cost Center:

Shipping Method: Ground

Description: Unitrends Recovery 9024S Appliance Bundle 12-23-2023 - 12-31-2026

Subtotal:  $83,137.17

Shipping:  $0.00

Tax:  Exempt

TOTAL:  $83,137.17

Item Description Part # Tax Qty Unit Price Total

1 Unitrends Recovery 9024S Appliance Bundle with Unitrends Enterprise Plus 
& Platinum Support

22656985 Y 1 $28,249.02 $28,249.02

Eff Dates:
12-23-2023 - 12-31-2026

2 Forever Cloud 500GB with DRaaS -1 Year Retention
Forever Cloud 500GB with DRaaS -1 Year Retention - Annual Subscription

23867956 Y 16 $3,377.53 $54,040.48

Eff Dates:
12-23-2023 - 12-31-2026

3 Per-premise SureEssentials installation services for Hardware 23116353 Y 1 $847.67 $847.67

One Time Purchase
Eff Dates:
12-23-2023 - 12-31-2026

ITsavvy is always looking to deliver the lowest cost possible to our clients.  This results in fluctuating prices that you will find are lower more often than 
not. However, prices are subject to increases without notice in the event of a manufacturer or distributor price increase.  Available inventory is subject to 
change without notice.  This document is a quotation only and is not an order or offer to sell. 

We do accept credit cards for payment.  However, if the credit card is provided after the order has been invoiced there will be a charge of 3% of the total 
purchase.

Unless specifically listed above, these prices do NOT include applicable taxes, insurance, shipping, delivery, setup fees, or any cables or cabling services 
or material. 

ITsavvy's General Terms and Conditions of Sale, which can be found at www.ITsavvy.com/termsandconditions, shall apply to and are incorporated into all 
agreements with Client, including all Orders.

Printed Name: Title:

Authorized Signature: Date: [date|req|signer1|Date]

[text|noreq|signer1                                                                 ][text|req|signer1                                                                       ]

[sig|req|signer1                                                             ]__________________________________

_______________________________________ ______________________________________

______________________________________

Fair Market Value $1 Buy Out

36 Month FMV / MO 60 Month FMV / MO 36 Month $1 / MO 60 Month $1 / MO

$2,475.58 $1,636.64 $2,705.28 $1,734.91

Lease estimates are based upon final individual credit review and approval.  Your final payment 
options may be higher / lower based upon credit review.  Payments do not include sales tax.  Other 
lease terms are also available.  Contact us to learn more.

Quote

 
                                                             201 of 264



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 4 | 

 

To: Paul May – General Manager  

From: Chris Bostick – Manager of Water Operations  

Mike Weed – Operations & Instrumentation Supervisor 
Dariusz Panaszek – Pipeline & Remote Facilities Supervisor  
Jessica Haney – Project Engineer  
Denis Cuvalo – SCADA and Information Technology Supervisor  

Date: 9/14/2023 

Subject: Status of Operations and Construction 

 

Operations Overview 

The Commission’s sales for the month of August 2023 were a total of 2.73 billion gallons.  This 
represents an average daily demand of 87.9 million gallons per day (MGD), which is higher 
than the August 2022 average day demand of 83.7 MGD.  The maximum day demand was 
101.5 MGD recorded on August 23, 2023, which is higher than the August 2022 maximum day 
demand of 91.4 MGD.  The minimum day flow was 76 MGD. 
 
The Commission’s recorded total precipitation for the month of August 2023 was 1.13 inches 
compared to 1.85 inches for August 2022.  The level of Lake Michigan for August 2023 is 
579.72 (Feet International Great Lakes Datum (IGLD) 1985) compared to 580.02 (Feet IGLD 
1985) for August 2022.  
 
Operations & Instrumentation Maintenance and Construction Overview 

The DuPage Pump Station’s High Lift Pump (HLP) and Motor rehabilitation program includes 
inspecting, cleaning, and repairing one pump and motor assembly annually.  HLP #9 and 
Motor #9 were removed and sent to Midwest Service Center for cleaning and performing 
electromechanical checks and provision of a status report including documentation of 
necessary repairs.  The cleaning and repair services are complete, delivery of the motor 
occurred on April 6th; reinstallation and assembly of both pump and motor are forthcoming.    
 
The start-up of the newly installed water quality monitoring equipment throughout the 
distribution system is complete.   

 
                                                             202 of 264



Status of Operations and Construction 
September 14, 2023 

 

| 2 of 4 | 

 

 
Annual Vibration Monitoring System inspection and testing for High Lift Pumps 1-9 was 
completed on September 7th.  
 
Lexington Pump Station 

AECOM Technical Services has submitted the final draft report of the Condition Assessment 
of the Lexington Pump Station’s critical facilities. A copy of the report has been delivered to 
the Committee for review and discussion. 

Alternate Water Source   

in April 2023, the Board of Commissioners received a report and presentation from the 
engineering firm Carollo Inc., for various source water alternatives.  

Potential partners, North Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency (NSMJAWA) and the 
Northwest Water Commission (NWC) have expressed interest in a regional project. Carollo 
has updated the technical memorandum (TM8) to include consideration regarding how 
additional partners would impact the route and scale of the proposed infrastructure. The 
updated Carollo TM8 memorandum has been received and is currently under third-party 
engineering review by Burns and McDonnell to validate the findings of the updated Carollo 
TM8 memorandum regarding the “North Route”.  R-50-23 appears on the Finance Committee 
agenda as Task Order No. 03 with Raftelis Financial Consultants to provide peer review of the 
updated TM8 and to prepare conceptual financing plans for the potential expansion of the 
alternative water source and partnering with NSMJAWA and NWC.  A “North” route update 
presentation will be provided to the Board of Commissioners at the October 19, 2023 
meeting. 

Pipeline & Remote Facilities Maintenance Overview 

Pipeline Staff continues Meter Station drainage improvements.  
 
Remote Facilities Staff continue inspecting Meter Stations and performing maintenance work.  
 
R-52-23 appears on the agenda seeking approval of Exterior Standpipe Cleaning Services by 
Jetco, Ltd., at a cost of $26,350.00, as approved for in the FY-23/24 Management Budget. 
 
Engineering & Capital Improvement Program Overview 

The DPPS Emergency Generation System Modifications (Contract PSD-10/22) project is 
ongoing. The contractor has finished installing the masonry and precast panels and is 
beginning to install the steel deck and roofing for the building addition. They will also begin 
to paint the concrete masonry units installed. 
 

 
                                                             203 of 264



Status of Operations and Construction 
September 14, 2023 

 

| 3 of 4 | 

 

CAT Power Systems have tentatively set late October to commence the upgrade of the 
Emergency Generation System Controls package as approved under a cooperative purchasing 
agreement with Omnia Partners.  As this project is a design-build project, Staff is seeking 
authorization to amend Task Order No. 03 with Greeley and Hansen to provide Technical 
Observation and Project Management services to document the upgrade on behalf of the 
Commission.  R-53-23 appears on the agenda to approve these additional services at an 
estimated cost not-to-exceed $65,000.00. 
 
R-46-23 appears on the agenda seeking approval of Task Order No. 08 with DeLasCasas CP, 
LLC. The task order would approve feasibility testing, design, and construction services for 
cathodic protection galvanic anode system to service the West Transmission Main (Contract 
TW-2) at an estimated not-to-exceed cost of $59,000, as approved in the FY-23/24 
Management Budget. 
 
R-47-23 appears on the agenda seeking approval of Task Order No. 09 with DeLasCasas CP, 
LLC. The task order would allow DeLasCasas to examine the existing under-performing 
cathodic protection system and also perform feasibility testing for a new cathodic protection 
system for the South and Outer Belt Transmission Mains (Contract TS-3/88 and TOB-E/87) at 
an estimated not-to-exceed cost of $43,000, as approved in the FY-23/24 Management 
Budget 
 
WaterLink Communities (Montgomery/Oswego/Yorkville) 
 
Phase I engineering continues rapid progress with data gathering, site surveying, 
topographical surveying and determining ownership and control of parcels along all potential 
alternative pipe routes.  Staff and the LAN and Associates engineering team continue to 
actively engage stakeholders and affected state, county municipal and other private agencies 
along the potential routes.  Several workshops regarding construction material and 
appurtenances have been held as well as hydraulic workshops to aide in the design of the 
pipeline network. The Engineer’s monthly status report is included within the Board packet. 
 
SCADA & Information Technology Overview 
 
The SCADA Replacement Project (Contract PSD-9/21) is ongoing.  The Control Room remodel 
is nearing completion, the remaining work includes doorway lite glazing and a handful of 
miscellaneous punch list items.  Furthermore, with the Control Room TV wall, there was an 
update with the AV system hardware which is now expected to be delivered in late 
September.  The SCADA system programming continues to be developed and is on schedule 
with Concentric Integration’s control system acceptance testing and installation plans.  The 
SCADA system graphics and screen development is also making significant progress with a 
majority of the Lexington and DuPage Pump Station screens nearing final completion.  
Workshops are continuing in preparation for upcoming tasks such as the Access Control 
upgrade, the DPPS UPS installation, the campus fiber backbone replacement, and most 

 
                                                             204 of 264



Status of Operations and Construction 
September 14, 2023 

 

| 4 of 4 | 

 

importantly the DWC campus control panel replacement.  The project is progressing under 
budget and on schedule.  
 
R-51-23 appears on the agenda seeking approval to suspend purchasing procedures and 
approve the renewal of the Unitrends data retention services for a three-year term as well as 
the purchase of a new Unitrends appliance at a cost of $83,137.17, as approved in the FY-
23/24 Management Budget. 
 
September 2023 Commission Agenda Items: 

Resolution No. R-46-23:  A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Task Order No. 08 Under 
a Master Contract with DeLasCasas CP, LLC (Not-To-Exceed 
$59,000.00) 

Resolution No. R-47-23:  A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Task Order No. 09 Under 
a Master Contract with DeLasCasas CP, LLC (Not-To-Exceed 
$43,000.00) 

Resolution No. R-52-23:  A Resolution Approving Exterior Standpipe Cleaning Services 
(Jetco, LTD. – Not-To-Exceed $26,350.00) 

Resolution No. R-53-23:  A Resolution Approving a Fifth Amendment to Task Order No. 
03 under a Master Contract with Greeley and Hansen 
(Additional Cost Not-To-Exceed $65,000.00) 

Attachments 

1. DuPage Laboratory Bench Sheets for July 2023  
2. Water Sales Analysis 01-July-2018 to 30-July-2023 
3. DuPage Water Commission Chart Sales vs. Historical Average 
4. DuPage Water Commission Chart Sales vs. Allocation 

 

 
                                                             205 of 264



DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION
WATER SALES ANALYSIS 01-May-92 TO 31-Aug-23

PER DAY AVERAGE 78,143,524

DOCUMENTED TOTAL DWC
SALES TO PURCHASES FROM GALLONS BILLINGS BILLINGS DOCUMENTED COMMISSION ACCOUNTED OPER. &

CUSTOMERS CHICAGO BILLED TO FROM COMMISSION WATER USE FOR MAINT. CHGO
MONTH (GALLONS) (GALLONS) % CUSTOMERS CHICAGO WATER USE (2) % % RATE (3) RATE

------------------ -------------------------- --------------------------- -------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- ------------------- ------------ --------------
May-20 2,084,924,000 2,141,838,951 97.34% $10,362,072.28 $8,513,809.83 376,100 0.02% 97.36% $4.97 $3.975
Jun-20 2,522,634,000 2,596,146,493 97.17% $12,537,490.98 $10,571,508.52 731,078 0.03% 97.20% $4.97 $4.072
Jul-20 2,782,507,000 2,872,440,835 96.87% $13,829,059.79 $11,696,579.08 647,000 0.02% 96.89% $4.97 $4.072
Aug-20 3,078,522,000 3,180,137,701 96.80% $15,300,254.34 $12,949,520.72 3,694,350 0.12% 96.92% $4.97 $4.072
Sep-20 2,427,570,000 2,510,646,051 96.69% $12,065,022.90 $10,223,350.72 1,148,848 0.05% 96.74% $4.97 $4.072
Oct-20 2,143,671,000 2,203,255,879 97.30% $10,654,044.87 $8,971,657.94 748,000 0.03% 97.33% $4.97 $4.072
Nov-20 1,897,985,000 1,957,960,123 96.94% $9,432,985.45 $7,972,813.62 200,026 0.01% 96.95% $4.97 $4.072
Dec-20 1,955,711,000 2,027,160,874 96.48% $9,719,883.67 $8,254,599.08 348,955 0.02% 96.49% $4.97 $4.072
Jan-21 1,988,344,000 2,040,857,402 97.43% $9,882,069.68 $8,310,371.34 205,828 0.01% 97.44% $4.97 $4.072
Feb-21 1,915,366,000 1,971,858,620 97.14% $9,519,369.02 $8,029,408.30 290,224 0.01% 97.15% $4.97 $4.072
Mar-21 1,986,888,000 2,055,661,022 96.65% $9,874,833.36 $8,370,651.68 512,237 0.02% 96.68% $4.97 $4.072
Apr-21 1,959,759,000 2,010,756,459 97.46% $9,740,002.23 $8,187,800.30 1,013,926 0.05% 97.51% $4.97 $4.072

May-21 2,331,364,000 2,401,447,849 97.08% $11,586,879.08 $9,778,695.64 1,625,835 0.07% 97.15% $4.97 $4.072
Jun-21 2,646,312,000 2,727,518,236 97.02% $13,152,170.64 $11,226,465.06 872,815 0.03% 97.05% $4.97 $4.116
Jul-21 2,661,520,000 2,750,318,994 96.77% $13,227,754.40 $11,320,312.98 772,815 0.03% 96.80% $4.97 $4.116
Aug-21 2,736,795,000 2,818,422,046 97.10% $13,601,871.15 $11,600,625.14 458,555 0.02% 97.12% $4.97 $4.116
Sep-21 2,616,212,000 2,698,022,374 96.97% $13,002,573.64 $11,105,060.09 1,237,080 0.05% 97.01% $4.97 $4.116
Oct-21 2,128,141,000 2,179,013,387 97.67% $10,576,860.77 $8,968,819.10 396,147 0.02% 97.68% $4.97 $4.116
Nov-21 1,896,311,000 1,961,815,221 96.66% $9,424,665.67 $8,074,831.45 462,613 0.02% 96.68% $4.97 $4.116
Dec-21 1,950,793,000 2,010,917,641 97.01% $9,695,441.21 $8,276,937.01 382,031 0.02% 97.03% $4.97 $4.116
Jan-22 2,046,043,000 2,110,214,643 96.96% $10,168,833.71 $8,685,674.26 621,078 0.03% 96.99% $4.97 $4.116
Feb-22 1,879,376,000 1,935,513,559 97.10% $9,340,498.72 $7,966,573.81 247,750 0.01% 97.11% $4.97 $4.116
Mar-22 1,990,472,000 2,061,912,643 96.54% $9,892,645.84 $8,486,832.44 459,838 0.02% 96.56% $4.97 $4.116
Apr-22 1,935,992,000 1,981,414,298 97.71% $9,621,880.24 $8,155,501.25 285,652 0.01% 97.72% $4.97 $4.116

May-22 2,276,513,000 2,344,221,635 97.11% $11,792,337.34 $9,648,816.25 5,698,667 0.24% 97.35% $5.18 $4.116
Jun-22 2,682,480,000 2,772,533,130 96.75% $13,895,246.40 $11,982,888.19 690,925 0.02% 96.78% $5.18 $4.322
Jul-22 2,804,661,000 2,892,532,635 96.96% $14,528,143.98 $12,501,526.05 883,858 0.03% 96.99% $5.18 $4.322
Aug-22 2,688,224,000 2,772,533,130 96.96% $13,925,000.32 $11,982,888.19 906,806 0.03% 96.99% $5.18 $4.322
Sep-22 2,415,535,000 2,474,643,822 97.61% $12,512,471.30 $10,695,410.60 1,021,063 0.04% 97.65% $5.18 $4.322
Oct-22 2,153,410,000 2,220,050,683 97.00% $11,154,663.80 $9,595,059.05 2,891,786 0.13% 97.13% $5.18 $4.322
Nov-22 1,919,552,000 1,979,550,491 96.97% $9,943,279.36 $8,555,617.22 1,008,092 0.05% 97.02% $5.18 $4.322
Dec-22 2,071,113,000 2,123,449,660 97.54% $10,728,365.34 $9,177,549.43 552,389 0.03% 97.56% $5.18 $4.322
Jan-23 2,014,750,000 2,060,255,805 97.79% $10,436,405.00 $8,904,425.59 337,423 0.02% 97.81% $5.18 $4.322
Feb-23 1,835,597,000 1,883,158,917 97.47% $9,508,392.46 $8,139,012.84 529,206 0.03% 97.50% $5.18 $4.322
Mar-23 1,971,974,000 2,026,257,691 97.32% $10,214,825.32 $8,757,453.41 306,690 0.02% 97.34% $5.18 $4.322
Apr-23 1,962,197,000 2,010,451,747 97.60% $10,164,180.46 $8,689,172.45 349,596 0.02% 97.62% $5.18 $4.322

May-23 2,474,377,000 2,540,440,833 97.40% $13,336,892.03 $10,979,785.28 684,441 0.03% 97.43% $5.39 $4.322
Jun-23 2,971,436,000 3,043,540,086 97.63% $16,016,040.04 $13,814,628.45 678,930 0.02% 97.65% $5.39 $4.539
Jul-23 2,567,425,000 2,639,887,376 97.26% $13,838,420.75 $11,982,448.80 1,047,600 0.04% 97.29% $5.39 $4.539
Aug-23 2,708,945,000 2,773,069,509 97.69% $14,601,213.55 $12,586,962.50 832,992 0.03% 97.72% $5.39 $4.539

------------------ -------------------------- --------------------------- -------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- ------------------- ------------ --------------
TOTALS (1) 894,352,630,798 920,158,813,794 97.20% $2,200,183,406.64 $1,944,795,562.25 864,816,103 0.09% 97.29% $2.46 $2.114

=============== =============== ======== ================ ================ ============= ============ =========== ======= ========

(1) - SINCE MAY 1, 1992
(2) - REPRESENTS DU PAGE PUMP STATION, METER TESTING AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECT USAGE
(3) - DOES NOT INCLUDE FIXED COST PAYMENTS

YTD
Aug-22 10,451,878,000 10,781,820,530 96.94% 54,140,728 46,116,119 $5.18 $4.277

Aug-23 10,722,183,000 10,996,937,804 97.50% 57,792,566 49,363,825 $5.39 $4.489

270,305,000 215,117,274 $3,651,838 $3,247,706
2.6% 2.0% 6.7% 7.0%

Month
Aug-22 2,688,224,000 2,772,533,130 96.96% 13,925,000 11,982,888 $5.18 $4.322

Aug-23 2,708,945,000 2,773,069,509 97.69% 14,601,214 12,586,963 $5.39 $4.539

20,721,000 536,379 $676,213 $604,074
0.8% 0.0% 4.9% 5.0%

Aug>July 141,520,000 133,182,133 762,793 604,514

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Com m ission Reports\August 2023\h2osales 0823.xlsx

 
                                                             206 of 264



 
                                                             207 of 264



1.500

2.000

2.500

3.000

3.500

4.000

JUN JUL AUG

BI
LL

IO
N

 G
AL

LO
N

S
DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION SALES

FY 2023-24, 2022-23 & 2021-22 VS. HISTORICAL AVERAGE

Historical Average

FY 2021-22

FY 2022-23

FY 2023-24

 
                                                             208 of 264



1.500

2.000

2.500

3.000

3.500

4.000

4.500

JUN JUL AUG

BI
LL

IO
N

 G
AL

LO
N

S
DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION SALES

FY 2023-24 VS. ALLOCATION

Actual Allocation

 
                                                             209 of 264



 
 
 

   
 

 
One Oakbrook Terrace, Suite 300    •    Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181     •    Phone: 630.426.0106    •    www.lan-inc.com  

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

M O N T H L Y  S T A T U S  R E P O R T  

 
LAN PROJECT #: 128-10031-000 
 
PROJECT: DuPage Water Commission WaterLink Extension 
 
REPORT DATE: September 11, 2023 
 
MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 
 

I. Progress through September 11, 2023 

a. Field data collection and Surveying remains ongoing.  

1. Total of 41 initial JULIE tickets comprising 300+ individual utility requests were submitted in June.  Thus 

far, approximately 90% responses received; 22 second requests submitted in late July for those utilities 

that didn’t respond within 30 days of initial request. 

2. Survey monumentation, survey control, cadastral line development completed at 37 of 40 initial locations. 

3. Detailed site topographic survey completed at 12 key intersections (See attached Survey Progress 

Exhibit). 

4. Soil borings completed at 8 locations to date, with 20 more scheduled in coming weeks as ComEd access 

and IDOT permit approvals are secured. Robinson survey crews will be collecting ‘as drilled’ locations and 

elevation data to place on applicable plan/profile sheets.  Geotechnical reports on initial borings expected 

by Sept 15.  

5. Total of 59 title commitment requests received for ComEd routes. Required for ComEd review of 

preliminary plan and profile drawings.  Easement information has been added to drawings for purposes of 

refining pipeline alignments.   

b. Data collection (as-builts, GIS, design drawings) in progress. 

1. Currently reviewing data from WaterLink communities to confirm received data is adequate. 

c. Evaluation of route alternatives in progress, three routes under consideration consist of the “Extended ComEd” 

Route and two Non-ComEd Routes "Montgomery Road” and “95th Street” (See attached route maps). 

1. Route Analysis Matrix is complete.  Please see attached. 

2. Route analysis matrix has been built into GIS to develop a tool to demonstrate the level of difficulty of 

installation in half mile segments across all routes.  Additionally, the best location for the pipeline within the 

roadway ROW is being evaluated. 

3. Confirmation of received as-built data and route analysis being performed simultaneously. 

 
                                                             210 of 264



 
 
 

   
 

 
One Oakbrook Terrace, Suite 300    •    Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181     •    Phone: 630.426.0106    •    www.lan-inc.com  

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

M O N T H L Y  S T A T U S  R E P O R T  

4. Team is communicating with the various oil and gas pipeline companies to determine their locations within 

the ComEd properties. 

5. Preliminary plan/profile drawings for entire ComEd routes in progress. Drawings include utility info received 

to date.  Design Team to develop preliminary pipeline alignment and submit alignment drawings to ComEd 

as part of their standard review process.   

d. Ongoing coordination with ComEd. 

1. DWC signed site access permission letter, to be executed by ComEd week of 9/11/23 to allow for 

completion of ESA and wetlands delineation.  Additionally, the Team will perform onsite visits to aid in 

routing study. 

2. Coordination is ongoing with ComEd and the team is responsive to ComEd requests. 

3. Design Team working to understand requirements for geotechnical work.  ESA Phase 1 must be submitted 

first.   

e. Team met with Kendall County Highway Department, Kendall County Township and Oswego Township.   

1. All parties were generally receptive to the project.   

• Provided permission to do geotechnical work. 

• Provided overview on current projects – Collins and Grove. 

• Provided schedule – DWC consultant team to continue to provide updates on status of project. 

• Team will reach out to Kendall Township in the future for assistance with property owners. 

f. Team met with DuPage County DOT on August 17th to discuss potential open-cut connection west of 75th/Book 

Road intersection. Traffic control / maintenance requirements clarified. Design Team prepared initial 

Maintenance of Traffic Plan with construction cost estimates meeting those requirements. Results demonstrate 

that construction cost for open-cut option would exceed a tunneled option by over $1 million without a 

corresponding reduction in traffic impacts during construction.  It is recommended the crossing of 75th Street 

be made via tunnel construction. 

g. Design Team and DWC staff attended several pipe and valve manufacturer events including Thompson Pipe 

Plant Tour in South Beloit, IL (8/22/23), Northwest Pipe Trailer Demonstration at DWC Office (8/24/23), and 

Val-Matic Valve Plant Tour in Elmhurst and Addison, IL (8/29/23). 

h. Hydraulics workshop held on 9/7/2023.  Meeting minutes, conclusions and next steps will be completed and 

sent to DWC for review week of 9/11/2023.  A summary will be provided in the next status report. 

 

 
                                                             211 of 264



 
 
 

   
 

 
One Oakbrook Terrace, Suite 300    •    Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181     •    Phone: 630.426.0106    •    www.lan-inc.com  

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

M O N T H L Y  S T A T U S  R E P O R T  

II. Scope Changes 

a. Extended ComEd route alternate to be included in route evaluation. 

1. Additional geotechnical investigation for ComEd extended route across Fox River. 

2. Additional survey for ComEd extended route across the Fox River. 

3. Titles and plats for all parcels in Extended ComEd Corridor. 

III. Financials 

a. Total Phase I Contract:  $4,263,649.00 (plus in-progress field services authorized for ComEd Extended Route) 

b. Fee Expended through September 1, 2023:  $1,340,311 (31.4%) 

IV. Completed Workshops, Meetings and Visits 

a. Pipe Materials & Valve Workshop – August 10, 2023 (DWC Office). 

b. Thompson Pipe Plant Tour – August 22, 2023 (South Beloit, IL). 

c. Northwest Pipe Demonstration Trailer and Training – August 24, 2023 (DWC Office). 

d. Val-Matic Valve Plant Tour – August 29, 2023 (Elmhurst & Addison, IL). 

e. Coordination meetings DuPage County (August 17th) and Kendall County Transportation (August 21st). 

f. Hydraulics Workshop – September 7, 2023. 

V. Upcoming Tasks & Meetings 

a. Further coordination with ComEd. 

b. Completion of ESA Phase 1 and Wetlands Delineation Work. 

c. Completion of geotechnical and CCDD analyses. 

d. Identification of appropriate locations for SUE and potholing investigations. 

e. Preparation of preliminary plan and profile drawings for ComEd alignments. 

f. Route scoring and evaluation. 

g. Route alternatives and Fox River crossing workshops. 

 
                                                             212 of 264



Activity through 

June 30, 2023

Activity through 

July 31, 2023

Activity through 

September 01, 2023 Planned Planned Planned Planned Planned

Description July 2023 August 2023 September 2023 October 2023 November 2023 December 2023 January 2024 February 2024

Basic Services 95,813$                   144,374$                 251,845$                 663,098$                 658,098$                 290,385$                 164,912$                 45,169$                   

Additional Services 67,127$                   360,443$                 403,110$                 548,616$                 172,226$                 226,696$                 171,735$                 -$                         

MONTHLY TOTALS 162,940$                 504,817$                 654,956$                 1,211,714$             830,324$                 517,081$                 336,647$                 45,169$                   

Cash Flow/Invoicing Forecast - Phase I Services
DuPage Water Commission

September 2023
WaterLink Extension

 $                                            4,263,649 TOTAL PHASE I FEE

Sheet 1 of 1 9/11/2023
 

                                                             213 of 264



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish % Complete

1 NOTICE TO PROCEED - PHASE I SERVICES 0 days Mon 6/19/23 Mon 6/19/23 40%

2 TASK 3 - PIPELINE CORRIDOR IDENTIFICATION 130.42 days Mon 6/19/23 Fri 10/27/23 78%

3  3.b. Corridor Identification/Evaluation 11 days Mon 6/19/23 Fri 6/30/23 100%

4  3.e. Utility Investigation & Data Collection/Coordination 67 days Mon 6/19/23 Fri 8/25/23 85%

5  3.c. Develop/Evaluate up to 3 Alternatives, Determine Favorable Route 67 days Mon 6/26/23 Fri 9/1/23 80%

7  3.f. Develop Preliminary Route Plan View Sheets (available GIS, utility data) 81.42 days Mon 7/10/23 Fri 9/29/23 80%

6  3.d. Develop Scoring Matrix 67.38 days Mon 7/17/23 Fri 9/22/23 85%

10  3.i. Prepare Conceptual Pump Station Layout and Determine Property Area 53.42 days Mon 7/31/23 Fri 9/22/23 85%

8  Pipe Materials Workshop 0 days Thu 8/10/23 Thu 8/10/23 100%

9  Valve Workshop 0 days Thu 8/10/23 Thu 8/10/23 100%

11 Hydraulics Workshop 0 days Thu 9/7/23 Thu 9/7/23 95%

12  3.j. Constructability Reviews of 2 Routes. Coordination w/ Land Acquisition 11 days Mon 10/2/23 Fri 10/13/23 0%

13  3.l. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 11 days Mon 10/16/23 Fri 10/27/23 0%

14 TASK 5 - SURVEY SERVICES 186 days Mon 6/19/23 Fri 12/22/23 50%

15  5.a-h. GIS 18 days Mon 6/19/23 Fri 7/7/23 100%

16  5.b. Survey Monumentation/Control/Cadastral Line Development 137 days Mon 6/19/23 Fri 11/3/23 84%

17 REL Field Survey 74 days Mon 6/19/23 Fri 9/1/23 90%

18 REL CAD 32 days Mon 8/7/23 Fri 9/8/23 80%

19 REL Office Survey 88 days Mon 8/7/23 Fri 11/3/23 80%

20  5.c. Detailed Site Topo/Processing/Drafting w/Utilities at Critical Intersections 66.8 days Mon 6/19/23 Fri 8/25/23 85%

21 REL Field Survey 53 days Mon 6/19/23 Fri 8/11/23 85%

22 Data Processing/Drafting 30 days Mon 7/24/23 Fri 8/25/23 85%

23  5.a-h. SUE Locating (Accurate Locating) 32 days Mon 8/14/23 Fri 9/15/23 0%

24  5.a-h. Survey Control/SUE Utilities/3D TIN Surface Model/P&P Sheets 52 days Mon 8/14/23 Thu 10/5/23 0%

25  5.e. Utility Potholing w/ Traffic Control & Restoration 53 days Mon 8/21/23 Fri 10/13/23 0%

26 Potholing (Sheridan Plumbing) 39 days Mon 8/21/23 Fri 9/29/23 0%

27 REL Field Survey 32 days Mon 8/28/23 Fri 9/29/23 0%

28 CAD 11 days Mon 10/2/23 Fri 10/13/23 0%

29  5.f-g. Aerial LiDAR along Entire Route x 2000 ft Width 46 days Mon 11/6/23 Fri 12/22/23 0%

30 Set Control 11 days Mon 11/6/23 Fri 11/17/23 0%

31 Aerial LiDAR (SAM) 32 days Mon 11/20/23 Fri 12/22/23 0%

32 TASK 4 - HYDRAULIC MODELING 150 days Mon 7/3/23 Thu 11/30/23 70%

33 4.a-g Hydraulic Modeling & Technical Memorandum 150 days Mon 7/3/23 Thu 11/30/23 70%

34 TASK 6 - GEOTECHNICAL BORINGS AND LOGS 60 days Mon 8/21/23 Fri 10/20/23 14%

35 6.a-d.  Field Staking, Soil Borings/Logs, Lab Analysis & Geotech Report 60 days Mon 8/14/23 Fri 10/13/23 13%

36 Field Staking 4 days Mon 8/14/23 Fri 8/18/23 25%

37 Geocon Field Drilling 25 days Mon 8/21/23 Fri 9/15/23 25%

38 Geotechnical Reports 25 days Mon 9/18/23 Fri 10/13/23 5%

39 REL CAD 11 days Mon 9/25/23 Fri 10/6/23 0%

40 6.b-c.  CCDD Sampling, Laboratory Analysis & Report 53 days Mon 8/21/23 Fri 10/13/23 14%

41 Geocon Field Samples 25 days Mon 8/21/23 Fri 9/15/23 20%

42 Lab Analysis 5 days Mon 9/18/23 Sat 9/23/23 20%

43 CCDD Reports 18 days Mon 9/25/23 Fri 10/13/23 5%

51 TASK 10 - RECOMMENDED PLAN DEVELOPMENT 67 days Mon 8/7/23 Fri 10/13/23 14%

56 10.d.  Identification, Documentation and Assembly of Easements 67 days Mon 8/7/23 Fri 10/13/23 15%

52 10.a.  Prepare Preliminary Designs for Favorable Route 32 days Mon 9/4/23 Fri 10/6/23 20%

53 10.b.  Conduct Constructability Reviews and Confirm Property Availability 11 days Mon 9/11/23 Fri 9/22/23 0%

57 Fox River Crossing Workshop 0 days Wed 10/11/23 Wed 10/11/23 10%

54 10.b.  Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 11 days Mon 9/25/23 Fri 10/6/23 0%

55 10.c.  Hydraulic Modeling of Selected Route 11 days Mon 10/2/23 Fri 10/13/23 20%

44 TASK 7 - PHASE I ESA 60 days Fri 9/1/23 Tue 10/31/23 40%

45 7.a-d. Prepare Phase I ESA 60 days Fri 9/1/23 Tue 10/31/23 40%

46 TASK 8 - WETLANDS DELINEATION 28 days Fri 9/1/23 Fri 9/29/23 35%

47 8.a-b. Wetlands Delineation 28 days Fri 9/1/23 Fri 9/29/23 35%

48 TASK 9 - WIFIA FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS COMPLIANCE 90 days Fri 9/1/23 Thu 11/30/23 13%

50 9.c  Cultural and Archeological Surveys 60 days Fri 9/1/23 Tue 10/31/23 10%

49 9.b  WIFIA PEA Questionnaire Determination 29 days Wed 11/1/23 Thu 11/30/23 20%

59 TASK 11 - PROJECT DEVELOPMENT REPORT 88 days Mon 10/2/23 Fri 12/29/23 0%

60 11.a.  Draft Project Development Report 32 days Mon 10/2/23 Fri 11/3/23 0%

63 11.b.  Pipeline Design Criteria Memorandum 28 days Mon 10/9/23 Mon 11/6/23 0%

66 Route Selection Workshop 0 days Wed 10/25/23 Wed 10/25/23 0%

64 Draft PDR Submittal 0 days Fri 11/3/23 Fri 11/3/23 0%

62 11.a.  Stakeholder Reviews 25 days Mon 11/6/23 Fri 12/1/23 0%

61 11.a.  Final Project Development Report 25 days Mon 12/4/23 Fri 12/29/23 0%

65 Final PDR Submittal 0 days Fri 12/29/23 Fri 12/29/23 0%

58 TASK 10d - IDENTIFY PARCELS AND ORDER TITLE COMMITMENTS 67 days Mon 10/23/23 Fri 12/29/23 0%

6/19

100%6/19

85%6/19

80%6/26

80%7/10

85%7/177/10

85%7/31

8/10

8/10

9/7

0%9/11

0%9/25

100%6/19

90%6/19

80%8/7

80%8/7

85%6/19

85%7/24

0%7/10

0%7/10

0%7/17

0%7/24

0%8/28

0%

0%

70%7/3

25%8/147/17

25%8/217/24

5%9/188/21

0%8/28

20%8/217/24

20%9/188/21

5%9/258/28

15%

20%

0%

10/11

0%

20%10/2

40%9/1

35%9/1

10%9/1

20%11/1

0%

0%

10/25

11/3

0%

0%

12/29

0%

31 5 10 15 20 25 30 5 10 15 20 25 30 4 9 14 19 24 29 3 8 13 18 23 28 3 8 13 18 23 28 2 7 12 17 22 27 2 7 12 17 22 27 1 6 11

June 2023 July 2023 August 2023 September 2023 October 2023 November 2023 December 2023 January 2024

                         Critical           Critical Progress                             Task                Task Progress                       Milestone                       Slippage

DuPage Water Commmission

WaterLink Extension

Phase I Project Schedule

\\ladco\shares\projects\128\128-10031-000\1-0-Communications\1-3-Meetings\5-Status Reports\September 2023\DWC WaterLink Phase I Schedule - September Progress.mpp Page 1  
                                                             214 of 264

ogarza
Text Box
September 2023Monthly Progress Meeting



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-46-23 
Account:  01-60-751200, 01-60-663200 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           JH    RCB   CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/14/2023 

Description:  A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Task Order No. 08 Under a Master 
Contract with DeLasCasas CP, LLC 

Agenda Section:    Engineering & Construction  

Originating Department:    Engineering  

The Commission entered into a Master Contract with DeLasCasas CP, LLC, for professional engineering 
services on August 23, 2021, in connection with such discrete projects as are delineated and described in 
Task Orders to be approved by the Commission.  Resolution No. R-46-23 would approve Task Order No. 08 
to the Master Contract: 

Task Order No. 08: Feasibility Testing, Design, and Construction Services for Installation of a Cathodic 
Protection System on TW-2   

During the annual 2021 Close Interval Survey, the DuPage Water Commission found that the 48” 
diameter steel West Transmission Main (Contract TW-2) was receiving inadequate cathodic protection 
as according to AMPP (Association for Materials Protection and Performance, formerly NACE) 
standards. The Close Interval Survey results displayed that the 48” diameter pipeline was only 
receiving adequate protection for approximately 35% of the system from existing galvanic anodes 
which had been installed in 2007. Task Order No. 08 would enable DeLasCasas CP, LLC. to install  
cathodic protection for the remaining unprotected 65% of the TW-2 pipeline.  Resolution R-46-23 is 
seeking authorization to perform feasibility testing, design, and construction services, including 
resident engineering and commissioning, to install additional galvanic cathodic protection systems on 
the TW-2 pipeline at an estimated not-to-exceed cost of $59,000.00.  

Recommended Motion: 

To adopt Resolution No. R-46-23. 

 

 
                                                             215 of 264



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-46-23 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND RATIFYING TASK ORDER NO. 08 UNDER A MASTER CONTRACT 
WITH DELASCASAS CP, LLC 

 

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission (the “Commission”) entered into a contract with 

DeLasCasas CP, LLC (the “Consultant”) to provide, from time to time, professional engineering services in 

connection with various projects of the Commission (the “Master Contract”); and 

WHEREAS, the Master Contract sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which the 

Commission will obtain from time to time, and the Consultant will provide from time to time, professional 

engineering services for such discrete projects as are delineated and described in Task Orders to be 

approved by the Commission and the Consultant; and 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has accepted the Task Orders attached hereto and by this reference 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof as Exhibit 1 (“Task Order No. 08”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 

findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  The Task Orders attached hereto as Exhibit 1 shall be and hereby are approved 

and, if already issued, ratified because the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission has 

determined, based upon the representations of Staff and the Consultant, that the circumstances said to 

necessitate the Task Orders were not reasonably foreseeable at the time the Master Contract was signed, 

the Task Orders are germane to the Master Contract as signed, and/or the Task Orders are in the best 

interest of the DuPage Water Commission and authorized by law. 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
                                                             216 of 264



| 2 of 3 | 
 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

Healy, J.       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2023. 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
 
 
Board/Resolutions/2022/R-46-23.docx 

 

 

 
                                                             217 of 264



| 3 of 3 | 
 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 
                                                             218 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 08 

Page 1 of 6 

TASK ORDER NO. 08 
 
In accordance with Section 1.1 of the Master Contract between the DuPage Water 
Commission (“Owner”) and DeLasCasas CP, LLC (“Consultant”) for Professional 
Engineering Services dated August 23, 2021 (the “Contract”), Owner and Consultant 
agree as follows: 

1. Project: 

Perform Feasibility Testing, Design, and Construction Services of a Cathodic 
Protection Galvanic Anode System for the West Transmission Main (Contract TW-
2) as delineated in the proposal from DeLasCasas CP, LLC dated August 7, 2023.   

2. Services of Consultant: 

 A. Feasibility Testing: 

1. Determine if electrical isolation or continuity exists at the 
insulating flange (IF) at Station 161+18. 

a. Interrupt the closest sacrificial anode system south of this 
location for the testing. 
 

2. Perform current requirement testing with the existing sacrificial 
anode systems south of Station 161+18 to assess the conditions 
and performance of the four (4) existing sacrificial anode systems 
(SAS). 

a. Measure the output characteristics of the existing SAS 
including: 

i. Current output at shunt 
ii. Potentials as found at the anode and pipe. 
iii. SAS interruption and measurement of the remote 

On and Off potentials of anodes and pipe. 
iv. Measure current output with multimeter in series. 

b. Interrupt the sacrificial anode systems, one at a time, to 
measure the close and remote potentials and how far each 
ground bed provides protection on the pipeline. 

i. Take potentials measurements On and Off at: 
1. The closest test station at the SAS. 
2. The middle point between two consecutive 

sacrificial anode systems. 
3. The end of the protected sections. 

c. Measure local polarization potential. 

 
                                                             219 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 08 

Page 2 of 6 

i. Install dataloggers at the SAS test station, at a test 
station in the middle point between two SAS, and at 
the end of the protected sections. 

ii. Disconnect the SAS. 
iii. Let the pipeline depolarize for at least one day. 
iv. Determine polarization levels subtracting the 

depolarization potential from the instant off 
(polarized) potential. 
 

3. Perform current requirement testing in the non-protected section 
of the pipeline to compare with information gathered in step B 
above. 

a. Based on the data collected in step B above: 
i. Calculate attenuation characteristics of the pipeline. 
ii. Select locations for the new SAS. 
iii. Perform current requirement testing on the 

unprotected section with portable ground beds at 
one pre-selected site. The site will be chosen from 
the locations selected above for the new SAS. 
 

4. Perform soil strata study for the installation of new sacrificial 
anode systems. 

a. Calculate average soil resistivity from the existing SAS. 
b. Measure soil resistivity at the chosen locations for new 

SAS. 
c. Check soil strata logs from existing wells, based on Illinois 

Geological Institute information. 
 

5. Perform electrical short testing at casing under railroad at Sta. 
179+22 based on the NACE Standard SP0286-2007.  

a. If the casing is electronically shorted to the pipe, complete 
current requirement testing at both sides of the casing. 

i. Suggest solutions to the electric short. 

 B. Design of Sacrificial Anode Ground Beds: 

1. Complete SAS design calculations. 
 

2. Determine distance between the SAS based on the criterion of 
reaching 150 mV to remote earth at the middle point between 
consecutive SAS, utilizing the data from Feasibility Testing.  

 
3. Complete a constructability study for the selected sites. 

 
                                                             220 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 08 

Page 3 of 6 

4. Submit an installation drawing for the sacrificial anode systems 
for the review of the Owner. Make any revisions as noted by the 
Owner.  
 

5. Provide a bill of material and material specifications sheet to the 
Owner. 

 B. Construction Services to install Sacrificial Anode Ground Beds 

1. Perform Resident Engineering to examine the installation of the 
galvanic anode system. Ensure the system is being installed per 
contract drawings and specifications. 10 Days of inspection are 
included in this proposal.  
 

2. Complete commissioning of the SAS five weeks after the SAS 
are connected to the pipeline. 

 
3. Provide a commissioning report to the Owner.  

C. Additional Services: 

  None 

3. Approvals and Authorizations:  Consultant shall obtain the following approvals 
and authorizations: 

None 

4. Commencement Date: 

 September 22, 2023 

5. Completion Date: 

240 Calendar Days following Commencement Date plus extensions, if any, 
authorized by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

6. Submittal Schedule: 

None 

 

 
                                                             221 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 08 

Page 4 of 6 

7. Key Project Personnel: 

Names:   Telephone: 

Rogelio De Las Casas    312.835.0272 

Jennifer De Las Casas   312.636.2845 

8. Contract Price: 

For providing, performing, and completing each phase of Services, an amount 
equal to Consultant’s Direct Labor Costs opposite each such phase, plus an 
amount equal to the actual costs of all Reimbursable Expenses, but not to exceed, 
in each phase of Services, the following not to exceed amount set forth opposite 
each such phase except as adjusted by a Change Order issued pursuant to 
Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

Feasibility Testing $15,700.00 

Design of Sacrificial Anode System $17,300.00 

Construction Services of Sacrificial Anode System $26,000.00 

Total  $59,000.00 

 

9. Payments: 

Direct Labor Costs shall mean the billing rate of all Consultants personnel including 
all professionals whether owners or employees, engaged directly on the Project.  

Reimbursable Expenses shall mean the actual expenses incurred by Consultant 
directly or indirectly in connection with the Project, including expenses for 
transportation, telephone, postage, computer time and other highly specialized 
equipment, reproduction and similar Project related items. 

10. Special Safety Requirements: 

Even though Consultant is required to independently assess the potentially 
hazardous conditions at its workplace on or in the vicinity of Owner’s facilities and 
appurtenances and take the necessary precautions to ensure a safe workplace 
pursuant to the Contract and Consultant’s legal obligations, Consultant is advised 
that it would be reasonable to assume that hazardous electrical voltage and current 
may be present at any time during the Services.  Consultant must ensure that all 

 
                                                             222 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 08 

Page 5 of 6 

personnel observe all appropriate safety precautions when working on or in the 
vicinity of Owner’s facilities and appurtenances, and shall: 

i. Independently verify the presence or absence of AC electrical 
current on or in the vicinity of Owner’s CP Test Facilities and its 
appurtenances and notify Owner and affected Consultant personnel 
accordingly.  Owner shall instruct its employees to comply with the 
restrictions and prohibitions of Consultant’s energy control program 
and procedures. 

ii. Take immediate and necessary measures to protect all workers, 
Owner employees, and general public from hazardous electrical 
voltage and current. 

iii. Work with Owner’s personnel to control hazardous electrical 
voltages and current and control access to the locations where 
hazardous electrical voltages and currents are present. 

iv. Train and instruct Owner’s personnel on the safe electrical working 
practices to be employed between the time of temporary control 
measures being employed through and up to the time when 
permanent control measures are applied. 
 

11. Modifications to Contract: 

None 

12. Attachments: 

None 

Approval and Acceptance: Acceptance and approval of this Task Order, including the 
attachments listed above, shall incorporate this Task Order as part of the Contract. 

The Effective Date of this Task Order is September 22, 2023. 

 
                                                             223 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 08 

Page 6 of 6 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

By: ________________________________ 
 Paul D. May, P.E.  
 General Manager 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 
 
Name:    Jessica Haney 
 
Title:     Project Engineer 
 
Address:    600 East Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, Illinois 60126-4642  
 
E-mail Address:   haney@dpwc.org 
 
Phone:   (630) 834-0100 
 
Fax:    (630) 834-0120 
 
 

DELASCASAS CP, LLC 

By: ________________________________ 
Jennifer De Las Casas 

                                              LLC Managing Member 
 
 
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 
 
Name:    Rogelio De Las Casas 
  
Address:    111 Ambassador Ave, Romeoville, Illinois, 60446 
 
E-mail Address:   rogelio@delascasascp.com 
 
Phone:   (312) 835-0272 
 

 

 
                                                             224 of 264



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-47-23 
Account:  01-60-751200, 01-60-663200 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           JH    RCB   CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/14/2023 

Description:  A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Task Order No. 09 Under a Master 
Contract with DeLasCasas CP, LLC 

Agenda Section:    Engineering & Construction  

Originating Department:    Engineering  

The Commission entered into a Master Contract with DeLasCasas CP, LLC, for professional engineering 
services on August 23, 2021, in connection with such discrete projects as are delineated and described in 
Task Orders to be approved by the Commission.  Resolution No. R-47-23 would approve Task Order No. 09 
to the Master Contract: 

Task Order No. 09: Corrosion Control and Feasibility Testing of a new Cathodic Protection System on TS-
3/88 and TOB-E/87   

During the annual 2022 Closed Interval Survey, the DuPage Water Commission found that the steel 
portions of the large-diameter South and Outer Belt Transmission Mains (Contract TS-3/88 and TOB-
E/87) were receiving inadequate cathodic protection as according to AMPP (Association for Materials 
Protection and Performance, formerly NACE) standards. These pipelines utilize existing rectified 
cathodic protection systems which are showing signs of failure to provide inadequate cathodic 
protection to several areas. Task Order No. 09 would enable DeLasCasas CP, LLC. to perform testing 
to examine why the existing rectified cathodic protection system is failing and perform feasibility 
testing for a new rectified cathodic protection system that will enable the pipelines to be protected to 
industry standards. Approval of Resolution R-47-23 would authorize Task Order No. 09 to DeLasCasas 
CP, LLC at the estimated not-to-exceed cost of $43,000.00.  

Recommended Motion: 

To adopt Resolution No. R-47-23. 

 
                                                             225 of 264



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-47-23 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND RATIFYING TASK ORDER NO. 09 UNDER A MASTER CONTRACT 
WITH DELASCASAS CP, LLC 

 

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission (the “Commission”) entered into a contract with 

DeLasCasas CP, LLC (the “Consultant”) to provide, from time to time, professional engineering services in 

connection with various projects of the Commission (the “Master Contract”); and 

WHEREAS, the Master Contract sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which the 

Commission will obtain from time to time, and the Consultant will provide from time to time, professional 

engineering services for such discrete projects as are delineated and described in Task Orders to be 

approved by the Commission and the Consultant; and 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has accepted the Task Orders attached hereto and by this reference 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof as Exhibit 1 (“Task Order No. 09”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 

findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  The Task Orders attached hereto as Exhibit 1 shall be and hereby are approved 

and, if already issued, ratified because the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission has 

determined, based upon the representations of Staff and the Consultant, that the circumstances said to 

necessitate the Task Orders were not reasonably foreseeable at the time the Master Contract was signed, 

the Task Orders are germane to the Master Contract as signed, and/or the Task Orders are in the best 

interest of the DuPage Water Commission and authorized by law. 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
                                                             226 of 264



| 2 of 3 | 
 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

Healy, J.       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2023. 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
 
 
Board/Resolutions/2022/R-47-23.docx 

 

 

 
                                                             227 of 264



| 3 of 3 | 
 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 
                                                             228 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 09 

Page 1 of 7 

 

TASK ORDER NO. 09 
 
In accordance with Section 1.1 of the Master Contract between the DuPage Water 
Commission (“Owner”) and DeLasCasas CP, LLC (“Consultant”) for Professional 
Engineering Services dated August 23, 2021 (the “Contract”), Owner and Consultant 
agree as follows: 

1. Project: 

Examine failure of existing cathodic protection systems and perform feasibility 
testing for a new Cathodic Protection System for the South and Outer Belt 
Transmission Mains (Contract TS-3/88 and TOB-E/87) as delineated in the 
proposal from DeLasCasas CP, LLC dated September 4, 2023.   

2. Services of Consultant: 

 A. Feasibility Testing (TOB-E/87): 

1. Visit each rectifier and isolation flange and measure the as-found 
characteristics. 

o Turn off all the rectifiers. 
o Inventory all isolation flanges and test for electrical 

continuity/isolation. Data to be provided from DuPage Water 
Commission to assist.  
 

2. Visit the three rectifiers with linear anodes that have failed. 
o Rectifier to visit: 

 Sta 651+00 
 Sta 679+50 
 Sta 760+10 

o Troubleshoot the rectifier systems. 
 Determine (+) cable integrity. 
 Determine (-) cable integrity. 
 Use portable ground bed to assess: 

• The current required for protection. 
• Attenuation characteristics of the pipeline. 

• The close and remote potentials at the 
closest test station. 

• The close and remote potentials at two test 
stations remote from the ground bed at both 
sides of the rectifier. 

 
                                                             229 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 09 

Page 2 of 7 

 

• The close and remote potentials at the 
furthest test station where the rectifier IR is 
measured. 

3. Visit the other five rectifiers, with linear anodes working. 
o Rectifier to visit: 

 Sta 85+00 
 Sta 300+50 
 Sta 363+00 
 Sta 400+75 
 Sta 547+00 

o Turn on and interrupt one rectifier at the time: 
 Measure 

• The close and remote potentials at the closest test 
station.  

• The close and remote potentials at the next test 
station at both sides of the rectifier. 

• Determine the furthest test station where IR drop of 
the rectifier affects the pipeline. 

• Find close and remote potentials at this test 
station. 

• Find the percent of influence of each linear anode 
on the pipeline. 

 

4. With field testing data perform the following: 
o Calculate the conductance of the pipeline per section. 
o Calculate the current requirement with the conductance and the 

resistance of the pipeline to remote earth. 
• The criterion to determine the amount of current is 300 mV 

of IR shift to remote earth at the middle point between two 
rectifiers. 

o Determine the ground bed resistances to remote earth. 
o With attenuation characteristics, determine if more cathodic 

protection systems are required to improve the current distribution. 
o Determine how many additional ground beds need to be designed 

to ensure the line will be protected. 
• See if the Northern Inspection Service’s proposed new 

systems will satisfy the new cathodic protection 
requirements. 

 
                                                             230 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 09 

Page 3 of 7 

 

• Assess the remoteness of the Northern Inspection Service’s 
proposed new systems. 

o Provide proposal with cost estimate for the engineering services. 
• The cathodic protection system enhancement will focus on 

the steel sections of the main only. 
  

 B. Feasibility Testing (TS-3/88): 

1. Visit each rectifier and isolation flange and measure the found 
characteristics. 

o Turn off all the rectifiers. 
o Inventory of all isolation flanges and test for electrical 

continuity/isolation. Data to be provided from DuPage Water 
Commission to assist.  
 

2. Visit the rectifier at Sta 119+25 with the linear anodes that have failed. 
o Troubleshoot the rectifier systems. 

 Determine (+) cable integrity. 
 Determine (-) cable integrity. 
 Use portable ground bed to assess: 

• The current required for protection. 
• Attenuation characteristics of the pipeline. 

• The close and remote potential at the closest 
test station. 

• The close and remote potentials at two test 
stations remote from the ground bed at both 
sides of the rectifier. 

• The close and remote potentials at the 
furthest test station where the rectifier IR is 
measured. 

3. Two rectifiers, with linear anodes working. 
o Rectifier to visit: 

 Sta 356+00 
 Sta 554+50 

o Turn on and interrupt one rectifier at the time: 
 Measure 

• The close and remote potentials at the closest test 
station.  

 
                                                             231 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 09 

Page 4 of 7 

 

• The close and remote potentials at the next test 
station at both sides of the rectifier. 

• Determine the furthest test station where IR drop of 
the rectifier affects the pipeline. 

• Find close and remote potentials at this test 
station. 

• Find the percent of influence of each linear anode 
on the pipeline. 
 

4. With field testing data perform the following: 

o Calculate the conductance of the pipeline per section. 
o Calculate the current requirement with the conductance and the 

resistance of the pipeline to remote earth. 
• The criterion to determine the amount of current is 300 

mV of IR shift to remote earth at the middle point between 
two rectifiers. 

o Determine the ground bed resistances to remote earth. 
o With attenuation characteristics, determine if more cathodic 

protection systems are required to improve the current 
distribution. 

o Determine how many additional ground beds need to be 
designed to ensure the line will be protected. 

• See if the Northern Inspection Service’s proposed new 
systems will satisfy the new cathodic protection 
requirements. 

o Assess the remoteness of the Northern Inspection Service’s 
proposed new systems. 

o Provide proposal with cost estimate for the engineering 
services. 

• The cathodic protection system enhancement will focus 
on the steel sections of the main only. 

 
C. Additional Services: 

  None 

3. Approvals and Authorizations:  Consultant shall obtain the following approvals 
and authorizations: 

None 

 
                                                             232 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 09 

Page 5 of 7 

 

4. Commencement Date: 

 September 22, 2023 

5. Completion Date: 

210 Calendar Days following Commencement Date plus extensions, if any, 
authorized by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

6. Submittal Schedule: 

None 

7. Key Project Personnel: 

Names:   Telephone: 

Rogelio De Las Casas    312.835.0272 

Jennifer De Las Casas   312.636.2845 

8. Contract Price: 

For providing, performing, and completing each phase of Services, an amount 
equal to Consultant’s Direct Labor Costs opposite each such phase, plus an 
amount equal to the actual costs of all Reimbursable Expenses, but not to exceed, 
in each phase of Services, the following not to exceed amount set forth opposite 
each such phase except as adjusted by a Change Order issued pursuant to 
Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

Feasibility Testing $43,000.00 

 

9. Payments: 

Direct Labor Costs shall mean the billing rate of all Consultants personnel including 
all professionals whether owners or employees, engaged directly on the Project.  

Reimbursable Expenses shall mean the actual expenses incurred by Consultant 
directly or indirectly in connection with the Project, including expenses for 

 
                                                             233 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 09 

Page 6 of 7 

 

transportation, telephone, postage, computer time and other highly specialized 
equipment, reproduction and similar Project related items. 

10. Special Safety Requirements: 

Even though Consultant is required to independently assess the potentially 
hazardous conditions at its workplace on or in the vicinity of Owner’s facilities and 
appurtenances and take the necessary precautions to ensure a safe workplace 
pursuant to the Contract and Consultant’s legal obligations, Consultant is advised 
that it would be reasonable to assume that hazardous electrical voltage and current 
may be present at any time during the Services.  Consultant must ensure that all 
personnel observe all appropriate safety precautions when working on or in the 
vicinity of Owner’s facilities and appurtenances, and shall: 

i. Independently verify the presence or absence of AC electrical 
current on or in the vicinity of Owner’s CP Test Facilities and its 
appurtenances and notify Owner and affected Consultant personnel 
accordingly.  Owner shall instruct its employees to comply with the 
restrictions and prohibitions of Consultant’s energy control program 
and procedures. 

ii. Take immediate and necessary measures to protect all workers, 
Owner employees, and general public from hazardous electrical 
voltage and current. 

iii. Work with Owner’s personnel to control hazardous electrical 
voltages and current and control access to the locations where 
hazardous electrical voltages and currents are present. 

iv. Train and instruct Owner’s personnel on the safe electrical working 
practices to be employed between the time of temporary control 
measures being employed through and up to the time when 
permanent control measures are applied. 
 

11. Modifications to Contract: 

None 

12. Attachments: 

None 

Approval and Acceptance: Acceptance and approval of this Task Order, including the 
attachments listed above, shall incorporate this Task Order as part of the Contract. 

 
                                                             234 of 264



TASK ORDER NO. 09 

Page 7 of 7 

 

The Effective Date of this Task Order is September 22, 2023. 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

By: ________________________________ 
 Paul D. May, P.E.  
 General Manager 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 
 
Name:    Jessica Haney 
 
Title:     Project Engineer 
 
Address:    600 East Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, Illinois 60126-4642  
 
E-mail Address:   haney@dpwc.org 
 
Phone:   (630) 834-0100 
 
 

DELASCASAS CP, LLC 

By: ________________________________ 
Jennifer De Las Casas 

                                              LLC Managing Member 
 
 
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 
 
Name:    Rogelio De Las Casas 
  
Address:    111 Ambassador Ave, Romeoville, Illinois, 60446 
 
E-mail Address:   rogelio@delascasascp.com 
 
Phone:   (312) 835-0272 

 

 
                                                             235 of 264



R 

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 3 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-52-23 
Account:  01-60-663300, NTE $26,350 

Approvals:  Author / Manager / Finance / Admin 

           D.P.    RCB  CAP   PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/14/2023 

Description: A Resolution Approving Exterior Standpipe Cleaning Services 

Agenda Section:     Engineering & Construction  

Originating Department:     Pipeline  
 

To extend the useful life of exterior coating systems previously applied to the Commission’s 
standpipes, washing is occasionally required to remove potentially detrimental contaminants from 
the finished surfaces. 

In accordance with Commission Purchasing Procedures, staff solicited several proposals from 
standpipe maintenance service providers to perform cleaning services at Standpipe 2 located in 
Glendale Heights; the solictation results are listed below: 

Jetco, Ltd. $26,350 

National Wash Authority $19,140 

National Soft Wash $18,050 

Of the three proposals received, only the proposal of Jetco, Ltd. Complied with the cleaning 
specifications prepared by the coatings consultant, Dixon Engineering; the other two firms were non-
responsive to the requests to modify their scope of work to meet the specifications.  Staff therefore 
recommends approval to procure the services of Jetco, Ltd., to perform the cleaning at a cost of 
$26,350.00, following the means and methods suggested by the Commission’s coatings consultant, 
Dixon Engineering. 

$40,000 is included in the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Management Budget for tank cleaning services. 

Recommended Motion: 

To approve R-52-23 for Exterior Standpipe Cleaning Services with Jetco, Ltd., in the amount of 
$26,350.00.  

 
                                                             236 of 264



| 2 of 3 | 

 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-52-23 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING EXTERIOR STANDPIPE CLEANING SERVICES 
  

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 

1985, 70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 

5/11-135-1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its 

customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to extend the useful life of Commission standpipe coating 

systems; and 

WHEREAS, staff solicited proposals in accordance with the Commission’s Purchasing 

Procedures; and 

WHEREAS, based upon the representations of staff, the Board of Commissioners of the 

DuPage Water Commission has determined that the proposal of Jetco Ltd. was most favorable to the 

interests of the Commission; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof 

as findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  The DuPage Water Commission hereby authorizes Exterior Standpipe 

Cleaning Services from Jetco, Ltd., for the price set forth in Its Proposal, but not to exceed $26,350.00 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 

 

 

 
                                                             237 of 264



| 3 of 3 | 

 

R-52-23 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

Healy, J.       

Novotny, D.     

Pruyn, J.     

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.     

Suess, P.     

VanVooren, D.      

Zay, J.      
   

        ADOPTED THIS ___ DAY OF _____________________, 2023. 

 
 

 ________________________________ 
James Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2023/R-52-23.docx 

 
                                                             238 of 264



JETCO, LTD.    Special Coatings and Linings Contractors Since 1966  

 PO Box 908 Lake Zurich, Illinois 60047   ph:847.438.4550    fax:847.438.3962 

1 | P a g e  o f  2

PROPOSAL   

ONE (1) 114 Ft. DIAMETER WATER STORAGE STANDPIPE (TANK #2)
EXTERIOR PRESSURE WASH 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

July 20, 2023 Proposal No.: Q01-07202023

We hereby submit our proposal to provide labor, materials, equipment and supervision for 
the washing of one (1) 114 ft. diameter Standpipe Water Storage Tank as follows:

I. PRODUCTS 

A. United 727 Weather-Zyme as manufactured by United Laboratories, 320 37th Ave., St. Charles, IL 

60174. Phone: 1-800-323-2594. (Product Data Sheet attached) 

II. EXECUTION

A. Low pressure water clean at 4,000 to 5,000 psi all surfaces and appurtenances to remove mildew,

soot, and other contaminants. 

B. Use a biodegradable algicide for the exterior as noted above per manufacturer’s instructions. 

C. Hand wash with a higher concentration of algicide any mildew not removed by power washing. 

D. Mix algicide at level recommended by the manufacturer, but not at a level that could result in an 

environmental problem. 

E. Using a 15º or 25º tip, hold water jet nozzle perpendicular (90º to surface) at all times. 

F. Maintain a water jet nozzle distance of 2 in. – 10 in. from the surface. 

III. CLARIFICATIONS

• DuPage Water Commission to provide 110v/15A electric service at no cost to Jetco.

• DuPage Water commission to provide RPZ with hose bib fitting and 12.0 gpm potable water supply

at no cost to Jetco.

• DuPage Water Commission Safety Standards are attached to this proposal and thus become part of

the scope of work included herein.  Jetco follows, and all employees are trained in, all OSHA

Standards including, but not limited to, Fall Prevention, Scaffold Safety, Ladder Safety, Personal

Protective Equipment, and Hazard Communication.

• No less than the current DuPage County Prevailing Wage Rates shall be paid to all craftsmen.

Weekly certified payroll reports will be included with any and all pay requests.

• Upon acceptance of this proposal, Jetco will submit certificates of insurance to cover the work.

DuPage Water Commission will be named as certificate holder and additional insured.

All work shall be completed prior to 11/30/2023.•

 
                                                             239 of 264



JETCO, LTD.    Special Coatings and Linings Contractors Since 1966  

 PO Box 908 Lake Zurich, Illinois 60047   ph:847.438.4550    fax:847.438.3962 

2 | P a g e  o f  2

We propose hereby to furnish materials and labor – complete in accordance with above specifications, for the sum 

of:  $26,350.00  

Payment to be made as follows:  Upon Completion   

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices.  Any alteration or deviation from specifications involving extra 

costs will be executed only upon written orders and will become an extra cost over and above the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control.  Owner 

to carry fire and other necessary insurance.  Our workers are fully covered by worker’s compensation insurance. 

Acceptance of Proposal – The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are authorized to do the 

work as specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Signature:X                            Date:   

Authorized Signature:      Note :   This proposal may be withdrawn if not 
Kenneth  Brend / President   accepted within  30   days. 

 
                                                             240 of 264



Special Considerations 

A. Pre-Existing Conditions and Project Record Documents.  Information as to 
the Owner’s existing facilities has been indicated or provided solely for the convenience 
of the Contractor.  Owner assumes no responsibility whatever in respect to the sufficiency 
or accuracy of such information, and such information is not guaranteed.   

Contractor may examine at the offices of Owner the “Drawings of Record” 
from the initial construction of the standpipes and appurtenances within the Work Site.  
Such information is made available solely for the convenience of Contractor and is not 
guaranteed.  Contractor is directed to Section 1 of the General Instructions to Contractor 
included in this Proposal Package for provisions related to the improper use of this 
information. 

B. Pre-Proposal Work Site Inspections.  Contractor shall, before submitting its 
Proposal, personally inform itself, by on-site inspection and investigation and by such 
other appropriate and lawful means as it may wish, of all conditions under which the Work 
is to be performed; of the obstacles, unusual conditions or difficulties that may be 
encountered, whether or not referred to in the Proposal Package; and of all other relevant 
matters concerning the Work Site and the surrounding area, including subsurface, 
underground and other concealed conditions.  If the Contractor desires to make 
explorations or observations to determine conditions at or around the Work Site, it shall 
obtain permission from the Owner or other appropriate property owner prior to 
commencement of any such activity.  The Owner will provide access to the Work Sites 
for such pre-Proposal inspections from 7:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on normal business days.  
To schedule an appointment, contact [TBD] at (630) 834-0100 a minimum of two (2) 
business days in advance to schedule an appointment. 

Safety of the Work Site 

A. Contractor’s Responsibility.  The Contractor shall be solely and completely 
responsible for providing and maintaining safe conditions at the Work site, including the 
safety of all persons and property during performance of the Work.  This requirement shall 
apply continuously and shall not be limited to normal working hours.  The Contractor shall 
take all safety precautions as shall be necessary to comply with all applicable laws and 
to prevent injury to persons and damage to property.  The Contractor shall provide, by its 
own designation, only “Qualified Workers” to perform the Work and shall provide its own 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for such Work including, but not limited to:  clothing, 
gloves, eyewear/safety glasses, head/face shields, testing equipment, footwear, hard 
hats, and hearing protection, as appropriate for the potential hazards to be encountered 
as determined by the Contractor.  The Contractor must ensure that all personnel observe 
all appropriate safety precautions when working on or in the vicinity of the Owner’s 
facilities and appurtenances. 

B. No Duty.  Neither the Owner, nor any official or employee of the Owner, nor 
any authorized assistant or agent of any of them, shall be responsible for the adequacy 
of the Contractor’s safety measures in, on, or near the Work site or sites.  The Owner 

 
                                                             241 of 264



shall not provide design or construction review relating to the Contractor’s safety 
precautions required for the Contractor to perform the Work. 

C. No Liability.  Neither the Owner, nor any official or employee of the Owner, 
nor any authorized assistant or agent of any of them, shall be responsible for conditions 
at the Work site or sites, nor for the safety of persons or property, during the performance 
of the Work. 

D. Safety Representative.  The Contractor shall employ or hire a competent 
safety representative or Subcontractor, who is capable of identifying predictable and 
existing conditions that are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to persons or property, 
to devise, supervise, and ensure compliance with all safety precautions and programs as 
shall be necessary to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, and guidelines, 
including without limitation OSHA, and to prevent injury to persons and damage to 
property.  The Contractor shall advise the Owner, in writing, of such safety 
representative’s name, address, and telephone number or numbers where such safety 
representative may be reached at all times, 24 hours per day, and such safety 
representative shall have full and complete authority to promptly correct or eliminate any 
such unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous conditions. 

E. Notification of Potentially Hazardous Conditions.  The Contractor is advised that 
potentially hazardous conditions described in the Illinois Health and Safety Act, federal 
OSHA Regulations and Guidelines, and Illinois Department of Labor Rules and 
Regulations, could be encountered during the performance of the Work, including without 
limitation energized electrical facilities and overhead exposed electricity; cranes, and 
other hoisting machinery with operational and use limitations with special hazard 
warnings and instructions. The Contractor should take special notice of the potentially 
hazardous conditions identified in this paragraph and take all necessary precautions to 
guard against such potential hazards, including without limitation conducting employee 
safety training and education, posting warnings and instructions, testing and inspecting, 
and utilizing adequate protective and emergency systems, equipment, and devices, in as 
much safety remains the Contractor’s sole responsibility under the Contract.  The 
Contractor is directed to the Illinois Health and Safety Act, federal OSHA Regulations and 
Guidelines, including without limitation Occupational Safety & Health Standards and 
Construction Industry Safety & Health Regulations as outlined in Parts 1910 and 1926 of 
US Dept. of Labor Chapter XVII - Occupational Safety and Health Administration, Title 
29, and US Dept. of Labor Document OSHA 2202 “OSHA Safety and Health Standards 
Digest,”, and Illinois Department of Labor Rules and Regulations for a further description 
of these potentially hazardous conditions and the regulations applicable thereto. 

The Contractor is being notified of these potentially hazardous conditions so that 
the Contractor may independently assess the potentially hazardous conditions and take 
the necessary precautions to ensure a safe workplace pursuant to the Contract and the 
Contractor’s legal obligations.  The Owner’s notification of these potentially hazardous 
conditions should not be construed to be, nor interpreted as, an exclusive listing of the 
potentially hazardous conditions that could be encountered during the performance of the 
Work but, rather, such notice shall be construed to be, and interpreted as, exemplary 

 
                                                             242 of 264



only.  The Owner’s notification of these potentially hazardous conditions should not be 
construed or interpreted as waiving the Contractor’s sole and complete responsibility for 
conditions at the Work site or sites or for providing and maintaining safe conditions at the 
Work site or sites, including the safety of all persons and property during performance of 
the Work.  This notification of potentially hazardous conditions is provided solely to assist 
the Contractor in the performance of these duties, in the interest of maximum safety. 

F. Hot Work.  Hot Work (any temporary operation involving open flames or 
producing smoke, heat, slag, and/or sparks, including without limitation brazing, cutting, 
grinding, soldering, torch heating, and welding) shall only be performed through 
compliance with a Hot Work program meeting the requirements of OSHA and other 
applicable law.  When the Work site is owned by the Owner, the Owner shall notify the 
Contractor of any unique or concealed flammable materials or any undisclosed potentially 
hazardous conditions of which it is aware, and the Contractor shall obtain the approval of 
the Owner’s General Manager, or his/her designee, prior to performing any Hot Work 
within such Work site or sites.  At all Work Sites, regardless of ownership, the Contractor 
shall independently make its own determination as to the presence or absence of 
flammable materials and hazardous conditions in the area(s) where such Hot Work will 
be performed, even when the Owner has notified the Contractor of any unique or 
concealed flammable materials or any undisclosed potentially hazardous conditions of 
which it is aware; the Contractor shall independently secure authorization from its own 
supervisory and management personnel who have been designated by the Contractor as 
responsible for authorizing Contractor’s Hot Work; and the Contractor shall comply with 
any safety precautions imposed by such persons, including without limitation: 

a. Making areas where Hot Work is to be performed fire safe by either
changing the location of the Hot Work or by removing or guarding
against fire hazards;

b. Employing supervisors, cutters, welders, and fire watchers that have
been effectively trained in (i) the safe use and operation of the relevant
equipment and processes (brazing, cutting, grinding, soldering, torch
heating, welding, ventilating, fire protection, extinguishing, watching,
and warning, etc.) and (ii) the need for, and the appropriate use and
protective level of, PPE;

c. Maintaining suitable brazing, cutting, grinding, soldering, torch heating,
welding, ventilating, fire protection, extinguishing, warning, etc.
equipment on-site in good working condition; and

d. Posting adequate warnings.

The Contractor shall not rely upon the Owner’s Hot Work practices, programs, or 
procedures at the Work Site owned by the Owner, or the Owner’s verification of readiness 
for Hot Work of the Work Site owned by the Owner, or the Owner’s placement of fire 
extinguishers, ventilation equipment, warning signs, or fire watches at the Work SITE 
owned by the Owner.  The Contractor shall independently verify the readiness of all of 

 
                                                             243 of 264



the Work Site for Hot Work and independently place fire extinguishers, ventilation 
equipment, warning signs, and fire watches in accordance with the Contractor’s Hot Work 
practices, programs, and procedures, and as required by law. 

G. Safety-Related Equipment.  The Contractor shall not use, nor be entitled to 
use, any of the Owner’s safety-related equipment, including without limitation:  The 
Owner’s fall-protection, fall-restraint, or fall-arrest equipment; the Owner’s ladders or work 
platforms, forklifts, movable or overhead cranes, or other materials handling equipment; 
the Owner’s confined space entry equipment, including gas monitors, ventilation 
equipment, or personnel retrieval systems; or the Owner’s ventilators, fire extinguishers, 
or personnel rescue systems. 

 
                                                             244 of 264



Take Off What The Environment Puts On!

United 727

WEATHER-ZYME
Building and Exterior Cleaner

Natural enzymes and powerful detergents combine 
to wash away deep-down dirt, smog, grime,

grease, smoke, fuel residue—even black algae!

In a pressure washer, a steam cleaner or a bucket-
and-brush operation, this versatile concentrate
can be used effectively and economically around
your facility and grounds...

U
N

ITED LABORATORIE
S

Ea
rth Smart

®

• Signage.

• Outdoor furniture.

• Tents, RV vehicles.

• Awnings, canopies.

• Outdoor storage tanks,
tank farms.

Earth Smart® formula
means it’s safe for
workers and the
environment!

• Completely non-toxic. Runoff,
mist and overspray will not
harm plants, trees, shrubs
and flowers.

• No hazardous
components,
no VOCs and
ranked zero
in all HMIS
categories.

• Near-neutral pH. No acid or
caustic splashback concerns.

• Patented Separation Technology
keeps washwater cleaner
longer, makes
recirculating
systems work
better.

• Safe for most hard surfaces
including aluminum,
fiberglass, tin, brass,
concrete, plexiglass, marble,
brick, granite, stucco, vinyl,
plastic and glass.

• No phosphates. No bleach.

• Dock doors.

• Buildings.

• Storage sheds.

• Golf carts.

• Stadiums, bleachers.

• Sidewalks.

• Patios, pool decks.

• Barns, silos.

• Airplane hangars, terminals.

• Cemetery markers, monuments.

• Statues, fountains.

• Portable toilets.

SEPARATION
TECHNOLOGY
SEPARATION
TECHNOLOGY

FLAMMABILITY

H
E
A
L
T
H

R
E
A
C
T
I
V
I
T
Y

0 0
0

SPECIFIC HAZARDS

0-Minimal to 4-Extreme

L A B O R A T O R I E S
 

                                                             245 of 264



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-53-23 
Account:  01-60-722300 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           RCB    RCB   CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/14/2023 

Description:  A Resolution Approving a Fifth Amendment to Task Order No. 03 under a Master 
Contract with Greeley and Hansen 

Agenda Section:    Engineering & Construction  

Originating Department:    Operations  

 

On April 16, 2020, the Commission approved R-18-20, Task Order No. 3, with Greeley and Hansen for Study 
and Report on the Feasibility of Emergency Generation System Modifications at the DuPage Pumping Station. 

On September 17, 2020, the Commission approved R-36-20, the 1st Amendment to Task Order No. 3 to have 
Greeley and Hansen utilize their expertise to guide staff and provide the necessary technical information on 
the Commission’s generator exhaust to enable staff to comply with revisions to IEPA Air Quality Permitting 
requirements. 

On January 21, 2021, the Commission approved R-7-21, the 2nd Amendment to Task Order No. 3 to add Design 
Services and Bidding Services to the Task Order and revising the cost at a not-to-exceed amount of 
$602,396.00. 

On September 16, 2021, The Commission approved R-45-21, the 3rd Amendment to Task Order No. 3 to 
include additional Design Services to the Design Phase Services of the Task Order and revising the cost at a not-
to-exceed amount to $634,225.00. 

On March 17, 2022, the Commission approved R-20-22, the 4th Amendment to Task Order No. 3 to include 
Project Management and Construction Phase Services, revising the cost not-to-exceed $1,307,625.00 and a 
modification to the schedule to align with the construction schedule. 

The 5th Amendment would increase the Project Management and Construction Phase Services to be onsite to 
observe and document and advise staff on the Design-Build Emergency Generator Controls Update Project as 
being performed by Caterpillar Power Systems.  The increase in engineering effort would modify the not-to-
exceed costs from $1,307,625 to $1,372,625.00.  The additional Project Management and Construction Phase 
Services requested in this amendment were intentionally omitted from all previous Task Order amendments 
until staff received the final workplan and schedule from Caterpillar in order to coordinate the Task Order 
amendment cost with the anticipated hours related to the scheduled construction tasks.  The additional fee 
requested is an amount not-to-exceed $65,000.00. 

Recommended Motion: 

To approve R-53-23. 

 
                                                             246 of 264



| 1 of 4 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-53-23 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A FIFTH AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER NO. 3  
UNDER A MASTER CONTRACT WITH GREELEY AND HANSEN  

 

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission (the “Commission”) entered into a contract with 

Greeley and Hansen (the “Consultant”) to provide, from time to time, professional engineering services 

in connection with various projects of the Commission (the “Master Contract”); and 

WHEREAS, the Master Contract sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which the 

Commission will obtain from time to time, and the Consultant will provide from time to time, professional 

engineering services for such discrete projects as are delineated and described in Task Orders to be 

approved by the Commission and the Consultant; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. R-18-20, the Commission approved Task Order No. 3 to the 

Master Contract for Professional Engineering Services for the DuPage Water Commission; and 

WHEREAS, The Commission and Consultant entered into a First Amendment to Task Order No. 3, 

approved pursuant to Resolution No. R-36-20, adopted on September 17, 2020 to add IEPA Air Quality 

Permitting assistance, and increase the not-to-exceed cost of the services; and 

WHEREAS, The Commission and Consultant entered into a Second Amendment to Task Order No. 

3, approved pursuant to Resolution No. R-7-21, adopted on January 21, 2021 to add Design and Bidding 

Services, and increase the not-to-exceed cost of the services; and 

WHEREAS, The Commission and Consultant entered into a Third Amendment to Task Order No. 

3, approved pursuant to Resolution No. R-45-21, adopted on September 16, 2021 to add to the scope of 

Design Services, and increase the not-to-exceed cost of the services; and 

 
                                                             247 of 264



R-53-23 
 

| 2 of 4 | 
 

WHEREAS, The Commission and Consultant entered into a Fourth Amendment to Task Order No. 

3, approved pursuant to Resolution No. R-20-22, adopted on March 17, 2022 to add Project Management 

and Construction Services to the scope and to increase the not-to-exceed of the services; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and Consultant desire to further amend Task Order No. 3 to the 

Master Contract to increase  the Project Management and Construction Services  for Technical 

Observation for the Design-Build Electrical Generator Controls Update Project as being performed by 

Caterpillar Power Systems to the scope and to increase the not-to-exceed of the services, the Board of 

Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby finding and determining, based upon the 

representations of staff and consultant that the circumstances said to necessitate the changes were not 

reasonably foreseeable at the time Task Order No. 3 was signed, the changes are germane to the Task 

Order as signed, and/or the changes are in the best interest of the DuPage Water Commission and 

authorized by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has approved the Fifth Amendment to Task Order No. 3 attached 

hereto and by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof as Exhibit 1; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 

findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  The Fifth Amendment to Task Order No. 3 attached hereto as Exhibit 1 shall be 

and hereby is approved. 

 
                                                             248 of 264



R-53-23 
 

| 3 of 4 | 
 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

Healy, J.       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

Zay, J.      

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2023. 

 

 ________________________________ 
James Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2023/R-53-23.docx 

 
                                                             249 of 264



R-53-23 
 

| 4 of 4 | 
 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 
                                                             250 of 264



 

FIFTH AMENDMENT TO 
TASK ORDER NO. 3 

 
In accordance with Section 1.1 of the Master Contract between the DuPage Water Commission 
(“Owner”) and Greeley and Hansen (“Consultant”), for Professional Engineering Services dated June 
19, 2013 (the “Contract”), Owner and Consultant agree to amend, effective September 22, 2023, Task 
Order No. 3 to the DuPage Water Commission’s Emergency Generation System Modifications at the 
DuPage Pumping Station, as previously amended by a First Amendment dated as of September 17, 
2020 and as previously amended by a Second Amendment dated as of January 22, 2021 and as 
previously amended by a Third Amendment dated as of September 16, 2021 and as previously 
amended by a Fourth Amendment dated as of March 18, 2022 (collectively Task Order No. 3) as 
follows: 

1. Project: 

 Engineering services in connection with the DuPage Water Commission’s Emergency 
Generation System Modifications, based upon Greeley and Hansen’s proposal dated March 
5, 2020, and Design and Bidding Services based upon Greeley and Hansen’s Emergency 
Generation System Modifications Technical Memorandum dated November 2020, as 
modified by Greeley and Hansen’s proposal dated August 24, 2021 and as modified by Greeley 
and Hansen’s proposal dated March 4, 2022 and as modified by Greeley and Hansen’s 
Proposal dated September 12, 2023: 

2. Completion Date: 

 Section 5, entitled “Completion Date,” of Task Order No. 3 shall be amended in its entirety so 
that said Section 5 shall hereafter be and read as follows:  

 “5. Completion Date: 

A. Study and Report Phase:  90 days following the Commencement Date plus 
extensions, if any, authorized by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 
2.1 of the Contract. 

B. Preliminary Design Phase:  90 days following the Commencement Date plus 
extensions, if any, authorized by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 
2.1 of the Contract. 

C. Final Design Phase:  180 days following issuance of Notice to Proceed by 
Owner plus extensions, if any, authorized by a Change Order issued pursuant 
to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

D. Bidding Phase:  90 days following issuance of Notice to Proceed by Owner plus 
extensions, if any, authorized by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 
2.1 of the Contract. 

E. Construction Phase:  180 days following Final Approval of Contract PSD-10/22 
plus any PSD-10/22 Contract Time Extensions, if any, or any other time 

 
                                                             251 of 264



5th Amendment to Task Order No 03 
 

2 
 

extensions to this Task Order authorized by a Change Order issued pursuant 
to Section 2.1 of the Contract. 

* Days exclude Owner’s Review Periods” 

3. Contract Price:  

 Section 8, entitled “Contract Price” of Task Order No. 3 shall be amended in its entirety so 
that said Section 8 shall hereafter be and read as follows: 

 “8. Contract Price: 

For providing, performing, and completing each phase of Services, an amount equal to 
Consultant’s Direct Labor Costs times the following factor set forth opposite each such phase, 
plus an amount equal to the actual costs of all Reimbursable Expenses, but not to exceed, in 
each phase of Services, the following not to exceed amount set forth opposite each such 
phase except as adjusted by a Change Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract: 

 
Phase 

 
Not to Exceed 

Study and Report $84,397 

Preliminary Design $228,948 

Final Design $304,348 

Bidding $15,595 

Other Direct Costs (ODC) $937 

Construction Phase Services $673,400 
 

Amendment #5: Generator Controls Upgrade 
RE Services 

$65,000 

Total All Phases $1,307,625 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the total Contract Price shall be increased by $65,000.00 to a 
total not to exceed sum of $1,372,625.00.  The contact price maybe adjusted by a Change 
Order issued pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Contract.” 

 
                                                             252 of 264



5th Amendment to Task Order No 03 
 

3 
 

In all other respects, Task Order No. 3 to the Contract shall remain in full force and effect, and Task 
Order No. 3 to the Contract shall be binding on both parties as hereinabove amended.  
 
The Effective Date of this Task Order is September 22, 2023. 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

 Paul D. May, PE 
 General Manager 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 
 
Name:  R. Christopher Bostick 
Title: Manager of Water Operations 
Address:  600 East Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, Illinois 60126-4642  
E-mail Address:  bostick@dpwc.org 
Phone: (630) 834-0100 
Fax: (630) 834-0120 

GREELEY AND HANSEN LLC 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

 
 Joseph Teusch, P.E.  

Vice President 
 
 
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 
 
Name: Mike Debnar 
Title: Project Manager 
Address: 100 S Wacker Dr., Chicago, IL 60606 
E-mail Address:  michael.debnar@greeley-hansen.com 
Phone: (312) 312.254.7652 

 

 
                                                             253 of 264



100 S Wacker Drive, Suite 1400 
Chicago, IL 60606 

 

 

September 12, 2023 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
Mr. Chris Bostick 
Manager of Water Operations 
600 E. Butterfield Road 
Elmhurst, IL 60126 
 

Subject: Proposed Fifth Amendment to Task Order No. 3 for Design Services During Construction for the 
DuPage Emergency Generation System Modifications Project PSD 10-22 

Dear Mr. Bostick: 

Thank you for requesting this additional scope of services for the Emergency Generation System Modifications 
Project via a Fifth Amendment to Task Order No. 3.    

Greeley and Hansen understands that this task will be invoiced on a time and material basis. The values 
established in this amendment are the maximum not to exceed values for the work, unless modified by an 
additional amendment.   

This amendment is for Design Services During Construction (DSDC).  The project scope is detailed in 
Attachment A and is reflective of the Contractor (Caterpillar) Work Plan. The fee is summarized in the following 
table: 

Proposed Change Order Description Total Hours Not to Exceed ($) 

Field Engineering Services for 22-day duration 272 $ 62,000  

SUB-TOTAL  $ 62,000 

Sub-Consultants  $0 

Reimbursables  $3,000 

TOTAL  $ 65,000 

 
Greeley and Hansen will provide rates for all staff billed under the time and material invoicing.  We will also 
provide yearly escalation rates between zero and the published cost of living increase from the US Bureau of 
Labor Statistics for each staff member for each succeeding calendar year of the work.  

Fees are based on a 22-Day construction duration corresponding to the Generator Control System Upgrade 
project, valid for a period of 60 days after Notice to Proceed.   

Please review and approve each item for inclusion in the amendment.  Please call if you should have any 
questions or concerns.  It has been a pleasure working with you.  

 
Yours very truly, 

Greeley and Hansen LLC 

 

 

Joe Teusch, P.E. 

Vice President 

 
                                                             254 of 264



Ammendment # 5 PSD 10-22 - 2 - September 12, 2023  

 

 

c: Andy Martin, Joe Dinkel, file 

 

Attachment A – Scope of Services 

 

 

 

 

  

 
                                                             255 of 264



Ammendment # 5 PSD 10-22 - 3 - September 12, 2023  

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

We understand your request for services for Greeley and Hansen to provide Field Engineering services for your 
Generator Controls Upgrade project. The scope for this effort includes Field Engineer services for the 
Construction, Testing and Commissioning of the new Generator Control System as summarized below. 
 

• Full-time on-site support of a Field Engineer during Construction, Testing and Commissioning 
(preliminary dates are 10/16 to 11/7) 
 

• Site support may include evenings (up to 10-hour workdays) and weekends (up to 8-hour workdays) 
 

• The RE would be responsible for ensuring the Construction is being executed in accordance with the 
drawings and scope documents 
 

• Scope includes providing as-built record drawings for the Generator Control System and Switchgear 
Modifications 

 
For the proposal, we have assumed 23 days of construction duration. 

 
• Project will be primarily supported by Mike Wagner and Dan Romza. Additional support staff maybe 

provided based on the project schedule and resource availability. 
 

• CAD support will be provided for as-built drawings. It is assumed CAD files will be provided for revision 
by Greeley and Hansen. If CAD files are not provided, Greeley and Hansen will provide PDF markups 
of PDF files for as-built drawings.  

 

 
                                                             256 of 264



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 1 | 

 

To: Paul May, General Manager 

From: Cheryl Peterson, Financial Administrator  

Date: 9/12/2023 

Subject: Accounts Payable Listings  

 

Following is a summary of the Accounts Payable to be considered at the September 21, 2023, 
Commission meeting: 

   
August 9, 2023, to September 12, 2023, A/P Report        $12,696,559.68 
 
Accrued and estimated payments required before 
October 2023 Commission meeting 

 
 
 

                                       
4,641,175.00 

 
Total 

  
$17,337,734.68 

 

cc:  Chairman and Commissioners 

 

 
                                                             257 of 264



9/12/2023 1:55:40 PM Page 1 of 3

Board Open Payable Report
DuPage Water Commission As Of 09/12/2023

Summarized by Payable Account

Payable Number Description Post Date
Payable
Amount

Net
Amount

01-211000 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLEPayable Account:

A.K. MULCH & FIREWOODVendor: 2464 236.00Payable Count:   (1)

CA7 for MS1E Drainage 08/31/2023 236.00 236.00INV0006998

Action Screen Print & EmbroideryVendor: 2460 2,173.85Payable Count:   (2)

Hat Embroidery 08/29/2023 1,130.00 1,130.0051993

IML Promo Items 09/12/2023 1,043.85 1,043.8551977

AECOMVendor: 1663 36,796.73Payable Count:   (3)

Lexington Pump Station - Condition Assessment 08/15/2023 15,411.33 15,411.332000789202

Lexington Pump Station - Condition Assessment 08/17/2023 18,225.64 18,225.642000778607

Tollway Review 08/24/2023 3,159.76 3,159.762000790341

APWA - ILLINOIS PUBLIC SERVICE INSTITUTEVendor: 1292 815.00Payable Count:   (1)

Registration - Sanchez 09/12/2023 815.00 815.00INV0007016

ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.Vendor: 1052 465.00Payable Count:   (1)

Additional Auto 08/31/2023 465.00 465.004829298

Atlas Bobcat, LLCVendor: 2303 932.71Payable Count:   (1)

Annual PM Service to Bobcat E26 08/31/2023 932.71 932.71K42486

Atomatic Mechanical Services, Inc.Vendor: 2173 1,158.22Payable Count:   (1)

Service Call for Cooling Issues in Office Area 08/15/2023 1,158.22 1,158.22SRV23-04209

Badger MeterVendor: 2251 2,317.56Payable Count:   (1)

Cellular Fees for Beacon Endpoints 08/31/2023 2,317.56 2,317.5680136304

Benchmark Construction Co, Inc.Vendor: 1731 6,923.13Payable Count:   (1)

Heaters for PSD-11 07/31/2023 6,923.13 6,923.132115 FINAL

BMO HARRIS CREDIT CARDVendor: 2283 10,372.10Payable Count:   (1)

Combined Statements: August 2023 08/31/2023 10,372.10 10,372.10INV0006994

CITY OF CHICAGO SUPERINTENDENT OF WATER COLLECTIONVendor: 1135 12,586,962.50Payable Count:   (1)

WATER BILLING: August 2023 08/31/2023 12,586,962.50 12,586,962.50INV0007015

Concentric Integration, LLCVendor: 2321 165.00Payable Count:   (1)

Cellular Backhaul Support 08/31/2023 165.00 165.000249366

Crown Equipment CorporationVendor: 2320 424.30Payable Count:   (1)

Water Deionizer Cartridge 08/15/2023 424.30 424.30133633883

DOOR SYSTEMS, INC.Vendor: 1240 434.00Payable Count:   (1)

Gate Service Call 08/31/2023 434.00 434.00929423

F.E. MORAN, INC.Vendor: 2041 1,240.00Payable Count:   (1)

Service Call - Heat Sensor Alarm 08/31/2023 1,240.00 1,240.00001-348123372

Georgia Western LLCVendor: 2452 3,005.62Payable Count:   (2)

Bearings for Manual Valve Repairs 08/31/2023 2,982.00 2,982.0087011

Shipping Charges for PO 40432 08/31/2023 23.62 23.6287014

GRAINGERVendor: 1055 3,550.25Payable Count:   (1)

Safety Supplies 08/31/2023 3,550.25 3,550.259819566051

IT SAVVY LLCVendor: 1904 4,524.90Payable Count:   (1)

IT Network Monitoring 09/12/2023 4,524.90 4,524.9005078609

J. J. KELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC.Vendor: 1391 113.66Payable Count:   (1)

 
                                                             258 of 264



Board Open Payable Report As Of 09/12/2023

9/12/2023 1:55:40 PM Page 2 of 3

Payable Number Description Post Date
Payable
Amount

Net
Amount

Labor Law Update Subscription Renewal 09/12/2023 113.66 113.669108335182

Meccon Industries, Inc.Vendor: 2198 18,762.00Payable Count:   (1)

Pump & Motor Work 08/31/2023 18,762.00 18,762.0051423

METRO TANK AND PUMP COMPANYVendor: 2426 366.00Payable Count:   (1)

Service Call - Leak in Diesel Fuel Hose Fitting 08/31/2023 366.00 366.0019279

NCPERS Group Life Ins.Vendor: 2189 132.84Payable Count:   (3)

NCPERS - IMRF 6641 08/04/2023 44.28 44.28INV0006923

NCPERS - IMRF 6641 08/18/2023 44.28 44.28INV0006954

NCPERS - IMRF 6641 09/01/2023 44.28 44.28INV0006980

ODP Business Solutions, LLCVendor: 1395 193.04Payable Count:   (2)

Office Supplies 08/24/2023 119.99 119.99325318020001

Office Supplies 08/31/2023 73.05 73.05325818013001

O'Leary's Contractors Equipment & Supply, Inc.Vendor: 2240 177.38Payable Count:   (1)

Arrow Board Repair 08/29/2023 177.38 177.38475731

RHINO MARKING SYSTEMSVendor: 1953 8,569.66Payable Count:   (2)

TriView Test Stations - Credit for Sales Tax 08/31/2023 -685.59 -685.59CMR204665

TriView Test Stations 08/31/2023 9,255.25 9,255.25R204665

SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC BUILDINGS AMERICA, INCVendor: 1777 1,289.00Payable Count:   (1)

Temperature Immersion Sensors for HVAC System 08/31/2023 1,289.00 1,289.00970464

Sporty's CateringVendor: 2463 762.00Payable Count:   (1)

Catering - Intern Luncheon 08/31/2023 762.00 762.002251143

STAPLES ADVANTAGEVendor: 1773 415.21Payable Count:   (1)

Office Supplies 09/12/2023 415.21 415.213546823971

Sterling Talent SolutionsVendor: 2163 439.10Payable Count:   (1)

Background Checks 08/17/2023 439.10 439.109487581

Strategia Consulting LLCVendor: 2230 1,031.25Payable Count:   (1)

Consulting Services 08/31/2023 1,031.25 1,031.251864

TREE TOWNS IMAGING & COLOR GRAPHICSVendor: 2029 113.00Payable Count:   (2)

Document Printing 08/15/2023 5.00 5.000000308342

OPS Valve Map 08/29/2023 108.00 108.000000308443

WESTCHESTER LOCK & KEY SERVICE, INC.Vendor: 1445 32.00Payable Count:   (1)

Locker Keys 09/12/2023 32.00 32.005974

William A. FatesVendor: 2096 1,666.67Payable Count:   (1)

Service as Treasurer: September 2023 09/05/2023 1,666.67 1,666.67INV0006995

12,696,559.68Payable Account 01-211000     Payable Count:   (42)     Total:

 
                                                             259 of 264



Board Open Payable Report As Of 09/12/2023

9/12/2023 1:55:40 PM Page 3 of 3

Summary

Payable Account Summary
Account AmountCount

01-211000 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 12,696,559.6842

Report Total: 12,696,559.6842

Payable Fund Summary
Fund Amount

01 - WATER FUND 12,696,559.6842

Report Total: 12,696,559.6842

 
                                                             260 of 264



 Estimate 
Amount 

         Description Check Number Payment 
Date

 Payment 
Amount 

70,000.00          Blue Cross Blue Shield - Health Insurance

8,000.00            Euclid Managers -  Dental Insurance

12,000.00          Illinois Public Risk Fund - Workers Comp.

200.00               Envision Health Care - Administration Fees

400.00               Healthiest You

150.00               NCPERS - IMRF

22,000.00          ComEd  -  Utility Charges

400,000.00        Mid American Energy Services -  Utility Charges

180,000.00        City of Chicago - Lexington. Electric

35,000.00          City of Chicago - Lexington Labor Costs

35,000.00          City of Chicago - Repairs & Maintenance

2,000.00            City of Naperville -Meter Station Electric Bills

15,000.00          Nicor  -  Gas

400.00               Comcast  -  Internet Service

3,000.00            AT & T   -  Telephone Charges

3,000.00            AT & T - Scada Backhaul Network/IP Flex

1,000.00            Fed - Ex   -   Postage/Delivery

5,000.00            Procurement Card Charges

200.00               Anderson - Pest Control

400.00               Republic Services - Disposal Services

500.00               Aramark - Supplies

1,000.00            Cintas- Supplies

200.00               Elecsys - Cell Data Services

3,500.00            AL Warren - Fuel

600.00               Toshiba - Copy and Leas Charges

2,500.00            Multisystem Management - Cleaning Services

625.00               Pitney Bowes - Postage

8,000.00            Grainger - Supplies for Operations

2,500.00            Verizon - Wireless Service

300.00               Verizon Connect - Diagnostics

50.00                 City of Aurora - Microbial Analysis

150.00               Logical Media - Hosting Services

1,700.00            William Fates - Treasurer

6,000.00            Baker Tilly

15,000.00          Schirott, Luetkehans & Garner, LLC

8,000.00            Schirott, Luetkehans & Garner, LLC - MOY

7,000.00            IT Savvy - Network Support

200.00               Alexander Kefaloukos - Security 

600.00               Red Wing - Uniforms

100.00               Elmhurst Occupational Health - New employee

500.00               Elmhurst Standard Plaza - Vehicle Maintenance

200.00               Sooper Lube - Vehicle Maintenance

200.00               Sterling - Background Checks

1,500.00            Storino Ramello & Durkin

500.00               Local 399 Training courses

6,000.00            AECOM - Tollway TM Review

3,000.00            Atomatic - Chiller Issues

500.00               Badger Meter - Cellular Fees for Beacon Endpoints

4,000.00            Beary - Landscaping

2,000.00            Beary - Tanksite Landscaping

2,000.00            Bedrock - Landscaping

300.00               Benchmark - Frame & Lid Rehab

12,000.00          Benchmark - QR 12/21 WAO 16 Final Payment

30,000.00          Casey General - Installation of Fabric Structures

300.00               City of Elmhurst - Quarterly Service

6,000.00            Core & Main - Sensus OMNI+ Hydrant Meters

3,000.00            Core & Main - Supplies for Meter Station Drainage

1,800.00            Dave Chapman - IPSI Estimated Reimbursed Expenses

700.00               Dell - Visio Plan 1 License

2,500.00            Donohue & Associates - Watermain Improvements

5,500.00            Door Systems - Gate Repairs 

2,000.00            Door Systems - Assessment of Gate #2 Damage

300.00               Ebel's Ace Hardware - Project Supplies

4,500.00            GPRSINC.COM - Ground Penetrating Radar Locating Services

20,000.00          HazChem - 2018 Diesel Spill Collection Sump Removal

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ITEMS TO BE PAID BY 10-19-23

Board Meeting Date: September 21, 2023

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Commission Reports\EST ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LIST - Sept 2023.xlsx

 
                                                             261 of 264



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ITEMS TO BE PAID BY 10-19-23

Board Meeting Date: September 21, 2023

20,000.00          Hexagon - Additional Infor Licenses

4,500.00            Home Depot - Milwaukee Core Drill Kit

1,000.00            Home Depot - Project Supplies

800.00               Illinois Public Service Institute - Conferences for Cardenas

200.00               ISAWWA - Leadership Series

9,000.00            Joliet Junior College - Electrical Safety Classes

10,000.00          Julie - Quarterly Service

1,000.00            Kara Company - Julie Marking Paint

4,000.00            Kieft Brothers - Basin & Grates for MS Drainage

75,000.00          Meccon - Rigging/Transport/Millwright Services for Pump & Motor

3,000.00            New Horizon - Microsoft 365 Administrator Online Training

600.00               Office Depot - Supplies

4,500.00            Premier Fall Protection - Annual Recertification of Standpipe

2,000.00            Program One - Window Cleaning

300.00               Red Wing - Safety Shoes - Lebed

300.00               Red Wing - Safety Shoes - Loster

300.00               Red Wing - Safety Shoes - Marusarz

1,500.00            Rey Cardenas - IPSI Expense Reimbursement

200.00               Regional Truck - Repair Bed Liner Unit 34

1,100.00            Regional Truck - Betterbuilt Job Box Unit 34

4,000.00            Regional Truck - Install Power Inverter & Steps E350

3,000.00            Reliable - Uniforms

600.00               Roesch Ford - Trouble Code & Routine Maintenance #46

8,500.00            SCARCE - Mason Art & Launch Digital Marketing

800.00               Skarshaug - Electrical Glove/Boot Testing

900.00               Specialty Mat - Mat Service

20,000.00          Superior Industrial - Alignment/Mechanical Seal Service on HLP#9

1,500.00            Triton Electronics - Annual Calibration of Test Equipment

2,000.00            Villa Park Office Equipment - File Cabinets

300,000.00        Baxter and Woodman/Boller Construction SCADA

30,000.00          Carollo - SCADA Replacement

20,000.00          Strand - SCADA Replacement

85,000.00          ITSavvy - Unitrends Renewal

50,000.00          Carollo - Alt Water Source Study

700,000.00        LAN - MOY Engineering

1,220,000.00     LAN - MOY Engineering

40,000.00          Raftelis

75,000.00          Burns & McDonnell

20,000.00          Sikich - Professional Services

25,000.00          Tyler - Incode Annual Fees

50,000.00          DeLasCasas - TIB Engineering & Commissioning

40,000.00          DeLasCasas - Stray Current Mitigation Resident Engineering

30,000.00          DeLasCasas - TW-2 Feasibility Testing

15,000.00          Farwest - CP Parts

15,000.00          Chicago Tribune - Contract Ad

5,000.00            Chicago Sun-Times - Contract Ad

700,000.00        JJH - Generator Building Contractor

70,000.00          Greeley & Hansen - Resident Engineer Services

10,000.00          CGMT - Concrete Testing

4,641,175.00     

\\agua\vol2\Accounting\2023-2024\Commission Reports\EST ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LIST - Sept 2023.xlsx

 
                                                             262 of 264



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

DuPage Water Commission 

600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 1 | 

 

To: Commissioners 

From: Paul D. May, P.E., General Manager 

Date: September 14, 2023 

Subject: Luetkehans, Brady, Garner & Armstrong July 2023 Invoices 

 

I reviewed the Luetkehans, Brady, Garner & Armstrong invoices for services rendered during the period of July 
1, 2023 through July 31, 2023 and recommend it for approval.  The invoices should be placed on the September 
21, 2023 Commission meeting accounts payable. 
 
 

 
                                                             263 of 264



July 2023
Luetkehans Brady Garner & Armstrong

AVERAGE

HOURS HOURLY ATTORNEYS &

CATEGORY FEES BILLED RATE PARALEGALS EMPLOYED MAJOR ACTIVITIES

General $963.50 4.10 $235.00 Luetkehans (3.40 @ $235/hr.) Armstrong 

(0.70 @235/hr.) 

various (meetings, review agreements, correspondence, 

contracts, telephone conferences, and attend Board 

meeting)

Misc: $0.00

Total: $963.50 4.10 $0.00

AVERAGE

HOURS HOURLY ATTORNEYS &

CATEGORY FEES BILLED RATE PARALEGALS EMPLOYED MAJOR ACTIVITIES

Chicago Contract $1,927.00 8.20 $235.00 Luetkehans (4.50 @ $235/hr.) Garner 

(0.20 @ 235/hr.) Armstrong (3.30 

@235/hr.) Lupescu (0.20 @235/hr.)

various (meetings, review agreements, correspondence, 

contracts, telephone conferences, and attend Board 

meeting)

Georges & Synowiecki Invoice: $602.10

Misc: $8.65

Total: $2,537.75 8.20 $235.00

AVERAGE

HOURS HOURLY ATTORNEYS &

CATEGORY FEES BILLED RATE PARALEGALS EMPLOYED MAJOR ACTIVITIES

Charter Customer Contract $1,880.00 8.00 $235.00 Luetkehans (4.60 @ $235/hr.) Armstrong 

(3.40 @235/hr)

various (meetings, review agreements, correspondence, 

contracts, telephone conferences, and attend Board 

meeting)

Misc: $0.00

Total: $1,880.00 8.00 $235.00

AVERAGE

HOURS HOURLY ATTORNEYS &

CATEGORY FEES BILLED RATE PARALEGALS EMPLOYED MAJOR ACTIVITIES

M. O. Y. $517.00 2.20 $235.00 Luetkehans (2.20 @ $235/hr.) various (meetings, review agreements, correspondence, 

contracts, telephone conferences, and attend Board 

meeting)

Misc: $7.02

Total: $524.02 2.20 $235.00

Total of all invoices: $5,905.27 22.50 $235.00

 
                                                             264 of 264


	2023-09-21 Reg Comm Mtg Agenda
	2023-08-17  Reg Comm Mtg Minutes 
	Dist 4 - Romano
	August 2023 Treasurer Report
	August 2023 Finance Packet
	R-50-23 T.O. 3 Raftelis
	RFBA - Professional Development Travel and Expenses for September 2023
	RFBA - 2024 Meeting Schedule
	R-48-23 IUOE 399
	R-49-23 Joint Meeting
	R-51-23 Unitrends
	Status of Operations - August 2023
	September Status Report - DWC WaterLink (002)
	R-46-23 T.O. 8 DeLasCasas
	R-47-23 T.O. 9 DeLasCasas
	R-52-23 Jetco Tank Cleaning
	R-53-23 Greeley & Hansen T.O. 3 Amend 5
	September 2023 Accounts Payable Packet
	Legal Inv - July 2023



